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NEW ZEALAND.

PALMERSTON NORTH RAILWAY FACILITIES
COMMISSION

(REPORT OF), TOGETHER WITH MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE, ETC.

Presented to both Houses of the General Assembly by Command of His Excellency.

COMMISSION
TO INQUIRE INTO AND REPORT RESPECTING THE FACILITIES FOR THE CONDUCT

OF RAILWAY BUSINESS AT PALMERSTON NORTH.

Jellicob, Governor-General.
To all to whom these presents shall come, and to William Mowat Hannay,

Esquire, of Wellington; James Marchbanks, Esquire, of Wellington ;

and Alfred Henry Miles, Esquire, of Wellington : Greeting.
Whereas it is desirable that inquiry should be made respecting the sufficiency
and suitability of the facilities now existing at Palmerston North for the conduct
of the business of the Government Railways Department:

Now, therefore, I, John Rushworth, Viscount Jellicoe, Governor-General of
the Dominion of New Zealand, in exercise of the powers conferred on me by the
Commissions of Inquiry Act, 1908, and of all other powers and authorities enabling
me in this behalf, and acting by and with the advice and consent of the Executive
Council of the said Dominion, do hereby constitute and appoint yon, the said—

William Mowat Hannay,
James Marchbanks, and
Alfred Henry Miles

to be a Commission to inquire into and report upon the following matters :—

1. Whether the facilities now existing at Palmerston North for the conduct
of the business of the Government Railways Department are sufficient and suit-
able for that purpose.

2. If such facilities are not sufficient or arc not suitable for such purpose,
what alterations therein (whether in respect of situation or otherwise howsoever)
are necessary and desirable and best adapted to enable the business of the said
Department to be carried on with the greatest degree of safety, efficiency, economy,
and convenience.

And, with the like advice and consent, I do further appoint you, the said
William Mowat Hannay

to be the Chairman of the said Commission.
And, for the purpose'of better enabling you, the said Commission, to carry

these presents into effect, you are hereby authorized and empowered to make and
conduct any inquiry under these presents, at such, times and places in the said
Dominion as you deem expedient, with power to adjourn from time to time and
place to place as you think fit, and to call before you and examine, on oath or
otherwise, as may be allowed by law, such person or. persons as you think capable
of affording you information in the premises. And you are also hereby empowered
to call for and examine such books, papers, plans, writings, documents, or records
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as you deem likely to afford you the fullest information, on the subject-matter of
the inquiry hereby directed to be made, and to inquire of and concerning the
premises by all lawful means whatsoever.

And, using all diligence, you are required to report to me under your hands
and seals not later than, the first day of March, one thousand nine hundred and
twenty-one, your opinion as to the aforesaid matters.

And you are hereby strictly charged and directed that you shall not at any
time publish or otherwise disclose, save to me in pursuance of these presents or by
my direction, the contents or purport of any report so made or to be made by you.

And it is hereby declared that these presents shall continue in full force and
virtue although the inquiry is not regularly continued from time to time or from
place to place by adjournment.

And, lastly, it is hereby further declared that these presents are issued under
and subject to the provisions of the Commissions of Inquiry Act, 1908.

Given under the hand of His Excellency the Governor-General of the
Dominion of New Zealand; and issued under the Seal of that
Dominion, at the Government House at Wellington, this 7th day
of February, 1921.

W. F. Massey, Minister of Railways.
Approved in Council.

F. D. Thomson,
Clerk of the Executive Council.

EXTENSION OF COMMISSION REGARDING RAILWAY FACILITIES AT PALMERSTON
NORTH.

Jellicoe, Governor-General.
To all to whom these presents shall come, and to William Mowat Hannay,

Esquire, of Wellington ; James Marchbanks, Esquire, of Wellington ;

and Alfred Henry Miles, Esquire, of Wellington : Greeting.
Whereas by a Warrant dated the seventh day of February, one thousand nine
hundred and twenty-one, and issued under my hand and the public seal of the
Dominion, you were appointed a Commission to inquire into and. report respecting
the sufficiency and suitability of the facilities now existing at Palmerston North.
for the conduct of the business of the Government Railways Department, and what
alterations (if any) are required therein ; and using all diligence, you were required to
report to me, under your hands and seals, not later than, the first day of March,
one thousand nine hundred and twenty-one, your opinion as to the aforesaid
matters:

And whereas it is expedient to extend the scope of the said inquiry in manner
hereinafter appearing :

And whereas it is also expedient to extend the time within which you were
required to report as aforesaid in manner hereinafter appearing :

Now, therefore, I, John Rush worth, Viscount Jellicoe, Governor-General of
the Dominion of New Zealand, in exercise of the powers conferred by the Com-
missions of Inquiry Act, 1908, and of all other powers and authorities enabling me
in this behalf, and acting by and with the advice and consent of the Executive
Council of the said Dominion, do hereby direct that your powers and functions
under the said Warrant are hereby extended, and shall be deemed to include the
power to inquire into the following matter, namely :—

Whether it is desirable and expedient, and warranted in and by the
public interest, that any deviation of the Wellington - New Plymouth
Railway should be made between Paekakariki and Marton ; and,
if so, between what points such deviation should be made.

And, with the like advice and consent, and in further pursuance of the said
power and authority, I do hereby extend the time within which you are required
to report to me, under your hands and seals, your opinion on the matters specified
in the said Warrant and in this Warrant to the fourteenth day of April, one
thousand nine hundred and twenty-one.
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And, with the like advice and consent, and in further pursuance of the said

power and authority, I do hereby confirm the said Commission as extended by
these presents.

Given under the hand of His Excellency the Governor-General of the
Dominion of New Zealand ; and issued under the Seal of that
Dominion, at the Government Buildings at Wellington, this 3rd
day of March, 1921.

W. F. Massey, Minister of Railways.
Approved in Council.

F. D. Thomson,
Clerk of the Executive Council.

EXTENSION OF COMMISSION REGARDING RAILWAY FACILITIES AT PALMERSTON
NORTH.

Jellicoe, Governor-General.
To all to whom these presents shall come, and to William Mowat Hannay

,

Esquire, of Wellington; James Marchbanks, Esquire, of Wellington;
and Alfred Henry Miles, Esquire, of Wellington : Greeting.

Whereas by a Warrant dated the seventh day of February, one thousand nine
hundred and twenty-one, and issued under my hand and the public seal of the
Dominion, you were appointed a Commission to inquire into and report respecting
the sufficiency and suitability of the facilities now existing at Palmerston North
for the conduct of the business of the Government Railways Department, and
what alterations (if any) are required therein ; and, using all. diligence, you were
required to report to me, under your hands and seals, not later than "the first day
of March, one thousand nine hundred and twenty-one, your opinion as to the
aforesaid matters :

And whereas by a further Warrant dated, the third day of March, one
thousand nine hundred and twenty-one, and issued under my hand and the
public seal of the Dominion, the scope of the said inquiry was extended as therein
mentioned, and the time within which you were required to report as aforesaid
was extended to the fourteenth day of April, one thousand nine hundred and
twenty-one :

And whereas it is expedient to further extend the time within which you
were required to report as aforesaid in manner hereinafter appearing :

Now, therefore, I, John Rushworth, Viscount Jellicoe, Governor-General of
the Dominion of New Zealand, in exercise of the powers conferred by the Com-
missions of Inquiry Act, 1908, and of all other powers and authorities enabling me
in this behalf, and acting by and with the advice and consent of the Executive
Council of the said Dominion, do hereby further extend the time within which
you are required to report to me under your hands and seals your opinion on the
matters specified in the said Warrants dated the seventh day of February, one
thousand nine hundred and twenty-one, and the third day of March, one thousand
nine hundred and twenty-one, respectively to the thirtieth day of April, one
thousand nine hundred and twenty-one.

And, with the like advice and consent, and in further pursuance of the said
power and authority, I do hereby confirm the said Commission as further extended
by these presents.

Given under the hand of His Excellency the Governor-General of the
Dominion of New Zealand; and issued under the Seal of that
Dominion, at the Government House at Wellington, this 14th day
of April, 1921.

W. F. Massey, Minister of Railways.
Approved in Council.

F. D. Thomson,
Clerk of the Executive Council.



D.—4a 4

E E P O R rr.
To His Excellency Viscount Jellicoe, Governor-General of the Dominion of

New Zealand.
May it please Your Excellency,—

In pursuance of the Commission issued to us by Your Excellency by Warrants
dated respectively the 7th day of February, 1921, the 3rd day of March, 1921, and
the 14th day of April, 1921, whereby we were appointed and authorized to inquire
into and report to you on the following questions, namely : —

(1.) Whether the facilities now existing at Palmerston North for the
conduct of the business of the Government Railways Department
are sufficient and suitable for that purpose ;

(2.) If such facilities are not sufficient or are not suitable for such purpose,
what alterations therein (whether in respect of situation or otherwise
howsoever) are necessary and desirable and best adapted to enable
the business of the said Department to be carried on with the
greatest degree of safety, efficiency, economy, and convenience ;

(3.) Whether it is desirable and expedient, and warranted in and by the
public interest, that any deviation of the Wellington-New Plymouth
railway should be made between Paekakariki and Marton ; and,
if so, between what points such deviation should be made :

we have the honour to report that sittings of the Commission (due notice of which
was given by advertisement in the newspapers) were held at Wellington and
Palmerston North for the purpose of hearing evidence. Counsel appeared before
us representing respectively the Railway Department, the Palmerston North Chamber
of Commerce, and certain persons who were associated in opposition to the proposals
of the Railway Department regarding the construction of a new railway-station
and goods-yard at Palmerston North.

The following witnesses were examined :—

Richard William McVilly, General Manager, New Zealand Government
Railways.

Francis William MacLean, Chief Engineer, New Zealand Government
Railways.

Robert West Holmes, retired civil engineer, Wellington.
William Thomson, retired farmer, Palmerston North.
John Chrystall, Mayor of Foxton.
Thomas John Rodgers, land agent, Palmerston North.
William Wallace Cook, of Messrs. W. Cook and Sons (Limited), Palmerston

North.
*

JohnAitchison, manager, New Zealand Express Company, Palmerston North.
John Ireland, flour-miller, Palmerston North.
Albert Lonsdale Cook, of Messrs. W. Cook and Sons (Limited), Palmerston

North.
Christian Nicolai Clausen, timber-merchant, Palmerston North.
James Alfred Nash, Mayor of Palmerston North.
George Joseph Harford, Mayor of Feilding.
Jack Howard Vincent, representative of the Oroua County Council.
Lachlan Thomson McLean, Chairman of the Kiwitea County Council.
Joseph Linklater, Chairman of the Kairanga County Council and Foxton

1.1arbour Board.
John Llewellyn Morgan, Railway Stationmaster, Palmerston North.
Ernest Hugh Crabb, grain-merchant and Borough Councillor, Palmerston

North.
Henry Llewellyn Young, president, Palmerston North Chamber of Commerce.
John Moore Johnston, secretary, Manawatu Racing Club and Manawatu

Agricultural and Pastoral Society.
Joseph Prime Maxwell, civil engineer, Wellington.
James Edward Fulton, civil engineer, Wellington.
James Burnett, civil engineer, Wellington.
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During our visit to Palmerston North we carefully inspected the railway
facilities now existing there and observed the working thereof. We also inspected
the localities in which it was proposed in evidence that a new railway-station and
yards should be constructed. On completion of our sittings at Palmerston North
we proceeded by motor-car to Marton, and thence to Levin, via Bull's, Sanson, and
Foxton, in order to observe the route of a deviation of the railway-line from Levin
to Marton which was brought under our notice in the course of the inquiry.

The first question submitted to us was, as has been stated above, whether the
facilities now existing at Palmerston North for the conduct of the business of the
Government Railways Department are sufficient and suitable for that purpose.
In regard to this question we are of the opinion that the present facilities for the
conduct of the railway business at Palmerston North are quite inadequate for that
purpose. The operations of the Railway Department can, under present con-
ditions, be carried on only at considerable risk of injury to those engaged therein,
while the necessity for frequent shunting across Cook Street and the Square is a
source of considerable inconvenience and danger to the public.

The lack of proper and sufficient goods-shed accommodation and standing
sidings renders it quite impossible to deal with the goods traffic satisfactorily, thus
materially retarding the economic turnover of the rolling-stock, and involving the
customers of the Railway Department in inconvenience and loss through being
unable to obtain prompt delivery and despatch of their goods. The station-platform
accommodation is also insufficient to enable the Department to discharge its functions
in the passenger branch efficiently and economically and with due regard to the
convenience of the public.

In regard to the second question submitted to vs—namely, if such facilities
are not sufficient or are not suitable for such purpose, what alterations therein
(whether in respect of situation or otherwise howsoever) are necessary and desirable
and best adapted to enable the business of the said Department to be carried on
with the greatest degree of safety, efficiency, economy, and convenience—we are of
opinion that, apart from other considerations, the very great expenditure and the
destruction of buildings which would be involved in securing a sufficient area of
land to reasonably provide for present and probable future requirements at the
site of the present station renders it practically impossible to retain the station
on that site.

In. the course of the inquiry two schemes for providing the necessary facilities
on other sites were submitted to us. The first was that proposed by the Railway
Department. This involves a deviation of the present line, commencing at or about
Longburn Station, running thence as shown in Plan No. 2G453 [Exhibit No. 3]
attached hereto, and rejoining the present main line at about the 912-mile peg
(between Terrace End and Bunnythorpe Stations). Under this proposal the location
of the railway-station would be on the northern side of Boundary Road, in the
vicinity of Rangitikei Road.

The other scheme was that submitted by or on. behalf of those who were
opposed to that propounded by the Railway Department. Under this second scheme
it was proposed to retain the present route through Palmerston North "and to
construct a new station and yards on a site between the present location and
Awapuni Station, as shown on the sketch.-plan produced in evidence by Mr. J. E.
Fulton [Exhibit No. 10].

We have carefully considered these schemes and the evidence given in respect
thereof, and after mature deliberation we have come to the conclusion that the
first—namely, that submitted by the Railway Department—should be adopted.
In making this recommendation we desire to mention that we are satisfied that it
would be possible to construct a properly equipped station, giving the necessary
facilities, on the site proposed in. the second scheme. It should be noted, however,
that the adoption of this scheme would, among other things, involve the destruction
of a number of houses, the closing of Cook Street, West Street, and Kairanga Road,
and the removal of the passenger-station and goods-shed approximately half a mile
farther from the business portion of the town than the present location.

The first scheme would enable all the necessary facilities to be readily provided,
and also allow for ample provision being made for ■ all probable future expansion,
Its adoption would also eliminate the danger now arising from the numerous level
crossings between Longburn and Terrace End Stations, and particularly those at
the Square.
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On the evidence brought before us it would appear that to provide equal
accommodation the first scheme might cost from £100,000 to £150,000 more than
the second, but after an exhaustive examination of the two schemes in all their
bearings, and having regard to the necessity for making adequate provision for
the future, we think that the interests of the public generally would ultimately
be better served by the adoption of the first scheme.

In reply to the second question submitted to us, therefore, we have to report
that we are of opinion that the proposals submitted by the Railway Department,
as indicated in sketch-plan numbered 26453, are necessary, and desirable, and best
adapted to enable the business of the Department to be carried on with the greatest
degree of safety, efficiency, economy, and convenience.

We also wish to express our opinion that it is highly desirable that a decision
as to the future location of the railway-station at Palmerston North be come to as
soon as possible, and that the necessary land be acquired promptly thereafter.

We feel constrained also to draw Your Excellency's attention to that portion
of the evidence of the General Manager of Railways wherein he stated that the
position in regard to railway facilities at Palmerston North, was so serious that
unless it was taken in hand almost immediately the Department would, in the very
near future, be unable to carry on its business with satisfaction to itself, to the
public, or to the Government. From the evidence given before us and from our
own observations we have been much impressed by the accuracy of this statement,
and we think that if the position forecasted by the General Manager is to be avoided
it is essential that some temporary relief be at once afforded at the present site.

In regard to the third question submitted to vs—namely, whether it is
desirable and expedient, and warranted in and by the public interest, that any
deviation of the Wellington - New Plymouth Railway should be made between
Paekakariki and Marton, and, if so, between what points such deviation should be
made—we have to inform Your Excellency that the only such deviation, suggested
to us was one from Levin to Marton, via Foxton, Sanson, and Bull's. It was,
however, admitted by those who represented this matter to us that the work was
not one which could be expected to be undertaken in the immediate future, and
in this we concur.

We are of opinion, therefore, that it is not desirable, or expedient, or warranted
in or by the public interest that any deviation of the Wellington - New Plymouth
Railway should be made at present between Paekakariki and Marton.

All which we respectfully submit.
We have the honour to be Your Excellency's obedient servants,

W. M. Hannay.
J. Marchbanks.
A. H. Miles.

Wellington, 22nd April, 1921.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS.

Thursday, 3rd March, 1921.
The Commissioner held a preliminary meeting in L Committee-room, Parliamentary Buildings,
Wellington, at 11 a.m.

Present : All the Commissioners, and Messrs. H. E. LeGrove and J. A. Mitchell, official reporters,
and H. H. Sterling, secretary.

Mr. M. Myers appeared as counsel for the Railway Department.
The Secretary read the Commission and extension thereof.
A discussion took place as to the procedure to be followed. It was decided to take evidence in

Wellington on Friday and Monday following, and to proceed to Palmerston North on Tuesday,
Bth March, and continue proceedings there at 2.30 p.m." on Wednesday, 9th idem.

Mr. F. W. MacLcan, Chief Engineer in the Railway Department, placed various plans before the
Commission and briefly explained the same.

Friday, 4th March, 1921.
The Commission met in Parliamentary Buildings, Wellington, at 11 a.m.
Sir James Wilson and Mr. W. IT. Field, M.P., attended before the Commission on behalf of

parties interested in the proposed deviation of the railway between Levin and Marton.
After some discussion it was decided to adjourn until 11 a.m. on Monday, 7th March, to meet the

convenience of the parties represented by Mr. Field.

Monday, 7th March, 1921.
The Commission met in Parliamentary Buildings, Wellington, at 10.30 a.m.
Mr. M. Luckie appeared as counsel for parties favourable to the Levin-Marton deviation of the

Main Trunk line and opposed to the shifting of Palmerston North Station to the site proposed by the
Railway Department.

The following witnesses were called by Mr. Myers and examined on oath : Francis William
MacLean and Richard William McVilly.

Wednesday, 9th March, .1.921.
The Commission met in the Courthouse, Palmerston North, at 2.30 p.m.
Mr. M. H. Oram appeared as counsel for the Palmerston North Chamber of Commerce.
Sir James Wilson addressed the Commission on behalf of the Levin-Greatford Railway League.
Mr. Luckie addressed the Commission and called the following witnesses, who were examined on

oath : Robert West Holmes, William Thomson, John Chrystall, Thomas John Rodgers, William
Wallace, Cook, John Aitchison, Albert Lonsdale Cook, John Ireland, and Christian Nicolai Clausen.

Mr. Myers called the following witness, who was examined on oath : James Alfred Nash.

Thursday, 10th March, 1921.
The Commission met at the Courthouse, Palmerston North, at 11 a.m.
The following witnesses were called by Mr. Myers and examined on oath : Joseph Harford,

Jack Howard Vincent, Lachlan Thomson McLean, Joseph Linklator, John Llewellyn Morgan, Ernest
Hugh Crabb, Henry Llewellyn Young, John Moore Johnston, William McKenzie.

Friday, 11th March, 1921.
The Commission proceeded by motor-car from Palmerston North to Marton, and thence to

Levin, via Bull's, Sanson, and Foxton; thence by train to Wellington.

Tuesday, 22nd March, 1.921.
The Commission met in Parliamentary Buildings, Wellington, at 2.30 p.m.
The following witnesses were further examined : Francis William MacLean, Richard William

McVilly. -

Wednesday, 23rd March, 1921.
The Commission met in Parliamentary Buildings, Wellington, at 10.30 a.m.
The following witnesses were called by Mr. Luckie and examined on oath : Joseph Prime

Maxwell, James Edward Fulton.
Thursday, 24th March, 1921.

The Commission met in Parliamentary Buildings, Wellington, at 10 a.m.
The following witness was further examined : Francis William MacLean.
The following witness was called by Mr. Myers and examined on oath : James Burnett.
Messrs. Luckie and Myers addressed the Commission.
The Commission rose at 1 p.m.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.

Wellington, Thursday, 3rd March, 1921.
The Commission met in the Parliamentary Buildings, Wellington, on Thursday, 3rd March, 1921.
M. Myers, Esq., appeared on behalf of the Department, and R. W. McVilly, Esq., General Manager
of Railways, was present at the opening.

The Secretary of the Commission (Mr. H. H. Sterling) read the order of reference appointing the
Commission.

Preliminary Discussion.
The Chairman : Well, Mr. Myers, I do not know how you propose to bring evidence before the

Commission, but I thought, and, the other Commissioners think, that, as it will practically be a review
of the recommendation of the Department, we might take first the oral or written evidence from the
Department, and then proceed to Palmerston. Then, on the return of the Commission to Wellington,
the Department could give further evidence or make further statements.

Mr. Myers : Of course, I do not know at the present moment what evidence is likely to be
called in Palmerston with regard to the subject-matter of the first and original Commission.

The Chairman : We have one communication from the Palmerston North Railway Vigilance
Association, and also a communication from His Worship the Mayor.

Mr. Myers : I apprehend, sir, that some sort of notice will be given in the papers at Palmerston
North whore it is proposed that the Commission should sit there.

The Chairman : Yes.
Mr. Myers : We are entirely in the hands of the Commission, and, as the members of the Com-

mission will understand, we are desirous simply of giving the fullest information you desire at such
time as you desire it and in such manner you may desire. My own suggestion, is that perhaps the
best course would be for the General Manager, or some other officer deputed by him for the purpose,
to appear before the Commission and submit to the Commission the plans of the proposed alterations
at Palmerston North, without going into detail as to the why and wherefore; that the Commission
should, then go to Palmerston North, inspect for itself the existing accommodation and. the proposed
new accommodation, and then hear what reasons the people in Palmerston, or any other people who
may desire to give evidence, have for objecting to the proposals of the Department. Then the
Department could give their oral evidence at Palmerston North or in Wellington, as may be most
convenient. If the Palmerston North people desire to be represented, of course they could be so
represented. Ido not know whether those suggestions commend themselves to the Commission.

The Chairman : I think some such arrangement would be quite reasonable. The only thing is
that, in addition to the mere copies of reports and plans, 1 think it would be well if the Department
tendered some evidence before we went to Palmerston, or amplified their previous evidence if they
have anything more to say. The Commissioners would like to have the departmental statement as
fully as is possible before we hear the other people at all. For instance, we would like to know,
among other things, which no doubt the Department can supply, the probable cost of the present
proposals of the Department, and the reasons why the Department prefers the other site.

Mr. Myers : A good deal of the information that the Commission desires will, of course, be found
in the reports. Certain plans have been prepared, which will be submitted to the Commission, but
whether at the moment we can give you all the information that you desire in regard to the cost I
am not aware. I think probably we will be able to give you all the information necessary, but the
details that will be required will be worked out later.

Mr. Miles : I agree with the Chairman that it is absolutely necessary that we should have the
fullest possible information from the Department. The information that the Department could give
us would be of the utmost value to us.

Mr. Myers : We are entirely in the hands of the Commission, and will give the Commission all
the assistance we can, and will adopt any course that the Commission desires. So much for the
moment with regard to the first Commission. After all, Ido not suppose that a great deal of evidence
will be given in Palmerston.

The Chairman : I do not think so.
Mr. Myers: And, after all, the evidence that can be given in Palmerston is not expert testimony.
The Chairman : No, but I fancy from what I have heard that there will be many persons desirous

of giving evidence. Of course, I may be wrong in that.
Mr. Myers : With regard, to the second Commission, or extension of the Commission, I apprehend

that while the Commission is in Palmerston it would bo best to take any evidence that is available
there. Of course, it will be understood that the Railway Department is not suggesting any deviation.
On the contrary, the Railway Department takes precisely the same view as it took in 1916—namely,
that any such deviation is impracticable, and would be nothing short of absurd, and more so even
now than in 1916 owing to the altered conditions.

2—D. 4a.
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The Chairman : The matter that I am most anxious about in the meantime is to endeavour to
fix a time when the Commission will sit in Palmerston North, so that any people in Palmerston who
desire to give evidence will have timely notice. Ido not know how long it will take to go through
the departmental statements before going there.

Mr. Myers : That cannot take very long. The officers of the, Department have examined all
the different proposals. They have come to their own conclusions as experts and as the officers who
are responsible for the conduct and administration of the railways of New Zealand, and they can
indicate without very much elaboration—subject to any examination the Commissioners may think
it necessary to subject them to—the reasons for their faith in those proposals.

Mr. Miles : Yes, we want all that information : it is of the utmost importance.
The Chairman : I do not know whether it would suit the other Commissioners or the Depart-

ment, but, if it would, I would suggest that after the Commission adjourns here we might meet in
Palmerston about the middle of next week.

Mr. Myers : If the Commission could sit in Palmerston on Tuesday afternoon, or even on
Wednesday, that would be suitable. I cannot think that the evidence in Palmerston would take
longer than Wednesday afternoon and Thursday. If you could fix, say, Wednesday afternoon for
the sitting in Palmerston, the Commission could then leave on Tuesday if it thought fit, and any
officers they desired to show them around in Palmerston could go, possibly, on the Monday, the
explanatory and necessarily preliminary evidence of the Railway officers being taken in the meantime.

The Chairman : I thought we might start to-morrow with evidence, and continue on Monday,
and that would give us the main evidence from the departmental point of view before going north.

Mr. Myers: Very well, sir. . I quite agree that it wouldbe a good thing perhaps to have to-morrow
sitting, but, frankly, I doubt very much whether you will find it necessary to take more than one day
with the officers of the Department.

The Chairman : I am quite sure it will facilitate matters for the Department to give us as much
information as possible before we go north.

Mr. Myers : Yes, and then afterwards, when the Commission returns, the officers will always
be available.

The Chairman : I do not know whether you want to say anything in connection with the question
of the Greatford deviation now ?

Mr. Myers : I was going to suggest that we should leave that until later on. No doubt, in the
advertisement of the Commission, you will give any one the opportunity of giving evidence in
Palmerston North, and later on in Wellington, in regard to the subject-matter of the extension of
the extension of the Commission as well as the original Commission, and then we can give you any
further information afterwards ; but we cannot say any more than we have said before—namely,
that a diversion would be more impracticable, more expensive, and more unreasonable from our point
of view and, as we think, from the point of view of the Dominion, than it would have been in 1916.

Mr. Marchbanks : The Department will, I take it, be able to produce some evidence of the study
they have made in regard to enlarging the present station as well as the proposed new station at
Palmerston ?

Mr. McVilly: Yes.
Mr. Marchbanks: We will have produced before us some of the difficulties the Department is

" up against " in extending the present station, and the probable cost .

Mr. Myers : I apprehend that will be so, but I have not had the opportunity of going into the
matter ; but that must be, because they must have considered that matter.

Mr. Marchbanks : We want to have some idea of the cost.
Mr. Myers : Mr. McVilly informs me that he has sent for some plans, and has asked Mr. MacLean,

Chief Engineer of Railways, to attend before the Commission right away. Probably it might be as
well for Mr. MacLean to explain the plans so that the members of the Commission will be in a better
position to think over what questions they might want to put to him to-morrow or later on.

Mr. McVilly : The plans I have sent for are plans of the deviation, and plans showing the
present station ; also what we would have to do if the station were to remain where it is, the extent
of the buildings which would have to be taken, how far we would have to go up the line, and what it
would mean to the town. The plans I refer to are those we showed to the Borough Council when we
explained the position to them and satisfied, them.

The Chairman : I was wondering if you had any other reports showing the supposed or estimated
value of the land which you would be possessed of if the station were moved. It occurred to me
that, supposing the deviation were carried out, there would be a lot of valuable land which would
not be required for railway purposes.

Mr. McVilly : I am not sure if we have those figures exactly, but we estimate that we will gel a.
large; annual rental for leasing the sites, or even selling them if wo wanted to.

The Chairman : I suppose, in addition to evidence with regard to inconvenience apparently being
suffered at the present station, we will get some evidence as to the volume of the traffic passing
through, and the difficulties which have to be contended against ?

Mr. Myers : Yes, we will show the impossibility of carrying on under present conditions. There
is a letter here which I would like to read to the Commission, written by Mr. McVilly to His Worship
the Mayor of Palmerston North, dated Bth June, 1920. It is as follows :—

Sib,—
With reference to my interview of yesterday, at which I. placed before you the Department's proposals for

improving the accommodation at Palmerston North Station, which incidentally involves the deviation of the railway
and removal of the station from its present site, I have the honour to forward under separate cover a plan embodying
the proposed alterations.
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The existing accommodation is quite inadequate to meet satisfactorily the requirements of the present traffic,
and the business is now being carried on at a very great inconvenience, and under many disadvantages to the public
and the Department alike. Owing to the restricted area of the yard and its situation in the heart of the town, it is
impracticable to carry out the improvements and provide the accommodation that is essentially necessary to meet
the requirements of the prospective traffic of the near future. The inconveniences that arise under present circum-
stances to road traffic which has to pass over the numerous railway-crossings, and the difficulties that occur in
connection with the local traffic, are so well known to yourself and the members of the Council as to mako it unneces-
sary for mo to enlarge thereon. The main point for consideration in the interests of the Dominion, your town, and
the Department is tho solution of the difficulties and the provision of facilities that will provide not only for the
moment but the future requirements of a large and rapidly growing railway traffic. This problem has engaged the
serious attention of the Department, and after giving the matter mature consideration I am firmly convinced that
the only satisfactory solution of the difficulty is tho deviation of the railway-line near Longburn to the west of
Boundary Road, and the construction of a new and up-to-date station on a site approximately between Kaitanga and
Rangitikei Roads, as shown in block on the plan. This would at once do away with all level crossings, as the scheme
would provide for overbridges for road traffic on the main arterial, roads leading into Palmerston North. Ample
provision would be made for all future requirements, and the station could be placed on its permanent site.

Tho railway running-lines between Longburn Junction and Terrace End now occupy a portion of the reserve for
road and railway. The removal of the present running-lines would enable the main thoroughfare to be widened, and
give residents on the west side of the Palmer'ston-Longburn Road direct access to the main road. Furthermore, it
would settle once and for all the difficulties that have arisen in connection with the closing of Cook Street, and remove
an obstacle to the connection of the east and west sides of your town by electric tramway when that scheme is carried
into effect.

As evidence of the necessity for now dealing comprehensively with the matter, I may state for your information
that in the last twenty years the passenger business at Palmerston North has increased by 300 per cent., the outward
live-stock business by 600 per cent., timber traffic by 400 per cent., other goods by 200 per cent., and revenue by
600 per cent. For the same period the increases in inward business are—Cattle, 385 per cent. ; sheep, 90 per cent. ;

pigs, 337 per cent. ; minerals, 767 per cent. ; other goods, 272 per cent.
Notwithstanding the war, the increases during tho last five years have been : Outward traffic—Passenger, 20 per

cent. ; timber, 12_ per cent. ; other goods, 52 per cent. ; revenue, 72 per cent. Inward traffic—Cattle and sheep,
7 per cent. ; pigs, 1,762 per cent. ; minerals, 8 per cent. ; other goods, 14 per cent.

The number of railway-vehicles which have to be handled at Palmerston North during the day ranges from
1,500 to 2,000, exclusive of those on through trains.

Apart altogether from the consideration of local requirements it is imperatively necessary that the accommoda-
tion at such an important subterininal rail way-station as Palmerston North should bo sufficient to provide for tho
requirements of the ever-increasing volume of traffic between the various termini that has necessarily to pass through
and be dealt with at the subterminal station. This aspect of the question has been taken into very serious consider-
ation by the Department in preparing the proposals, which are on a scale that makes ample provision, for present and
future requirements.

I shall be obliged if you will place the matter before your Council for consideration, with a view to obtaining
their concurrence therein.

Mr. F. W. MacLean, Chief Engineer of the Railway Department, attended before the Com-
mission and produced —(1.) Plan of Palmerston North with existing station and linos belonging to
the Railway Department. (2.) Plan showing proposed new site of railway-station.

These plans were discussed and explained to the members of the Commission.
The Commission adjourned till next day at 11 a.m.

Wellincton, Friday, 4tii March, 1921.
The Commission met at 11 a.m., Sir James Wilson and Mr. W. H. Field, M.P., being present.
The Chairman (to Sir James Wilson) : Well, Sir James, from the conversation I had with you

I understand you merely want time in order to bring evidence before the Commission in connection
with the question of the deviation of the railway-line from Paekakariki to Marton, and that you are
not prepared with that evidence at present.

Sir James Wilson : No. I want to explain that I only ascertained within the last few days that
the order of reference of the Commission has been extended to enable the Commission to take evidence
upon other matters in addition to the Palmerston North Railway-station.

The Chairman : We ourselves only knew yesterday.
Sir James Wilson : You will understand that the matter has been sprung upon us suddenly, and

we are not in a position to give our evidence at present. We desire to bring forward some expert evidence
on the matter, but the time at our disposal has not been sufficient. If the Commission could take
what evidence is offering at Palmerston North and then give us the opportunity of bringing forward
our evidence in Wellington possibly at a later date, that would be satisfactory. T should like to say,
first of all, gentlemen, on behalf of the people on the coast, that we are really not anxious that the
expenditure necessary for this deviation should lie incurred at the present time. We would not have
suggested it had it not been for the proposed expenditure in connection with Palmerston North. We
do not deem it desirable to incur the expenditure at the present time, but we think our evidence
will show that if the money is to be spent it would bo better to spend it in another direction—
namely, from Levin to Greatford— which would be of greater benefit to the community in the
future. We have not yet ascertained what would be tho cost of this deviation, nor have we any
idea of the estimated cost of the proposed alterations at Palmerston North. However, we think the
matter is so important that the Commission should have a detailed survey of the line between Levin
and Greatford. We do not think it is right to thrust this expenditure upon the local bodies when it
is really a Government matter. It is really a matter of great moment to the country, and therefore
it will be suggested to the Commission that some general survey of the line should be made by some
independent person, or by any engineer that you may select, and that would indicate to the Commission
some degree of comparison as to the expenditure on the two linos.
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The, Chairman : You will excuse me if I say that perhaps this matter should come up later. As
far as submitting evidence to the Commission is concerned, we can arrange with you as to a suitable
date without any difficulty at all. At present we are just commencing on our inquiry with regard
to the alterations at Palmerston North, and perhaps it would be better if the other matter was left
over in the meantime.

Sir James Wilson : I was not giving evidence, but only sketching to the Commission what is
likely to be brought forward.

The Chairman : We will meet in Palmerston North on Wednesday specially for the purpose of
going into the question of the Palmerston North Railway-station site, but it is quite likely that we
will be able to take any evidence, if it is tendered, in connection with the Paekakariki to Marton
deviation.

Sir James Wilson : Even then there would bo only five days.
The Chairman : I was going to add that as far as I know the mind of the Commission we would not

shut out any evidence which may be tendered at Palmerston North, and we would be willing later on
to take evidence at Wellington if it was considered advisable. I think you may rest assured that, as
far as the Commission is concerned, any one who desires to give evidence in connection with the
question of the deviation of the Main Trunk line will receive the fullest consideration from the
Commission.

Sir James Wilson : May I ask another question ? Are those who are interested in the question
of the deviation entitled to some information from the Railway Department as to the cost of the
scheme proposed by Mr. Hiley ? Will that be placed before us ?

The Chairman : I could not say.
Sir James Wilson : We suggest that it ought to be placed before the Commission. It ought to be

public property, and we suggest that the public who are interested in this matter should have access
to that report —I moan the report in connection with the reorganization of the Palmerston North
yards.

The Chairman : I suppose we will get any reports that have been made to the Government or to
the Department.

Sir James Wilson : It is not confidential. What I suggest to the Commission is that we should
have access to it in order to have some idea of what the cost will bo.

The Chairman : We will consider that.
Mr. Marchbanks : I take it it will be given in evidence and possibly published.
Sir James Wilson : If that is so, then we claim that we have a right to know what Mr. Hiloy's

scheme was that was proposed a few years ago.
Mr. Miles : Have you ever applied for the information from the Railway Department ?

Sir James Wilson : Yes, it has been applied for, but I will leave that to Mr Field to deal with,
because it was he who applied for the information.

Mr. Field : May I explain, Mr. Chairman
The Chairman : I do not want to stop you, Mr. Field, but I think it would be in the interests of

the Commission and the inquiry if you allowed us to go on with that portion of the matter that we
are now dealing with. We will not be deciding yet on any of the matters that have been referred to us
by the order of reference. When you come before us you will have the right to bring forward any
evidence in regard to the Levin-Greatford deviation, and then that matter will be threshed out.

Sir James Wilson : That is the vital point, that you have evidence to show that this matter has
been dealt with by the recent General Manager of Railways, and he placed certain statements before
the Borough Council in Palmerston North as to what reorganization would be required, and the cost
of same. That is vital so far as wo are concerned.

The Chairman : No doubt we will get that.
Sir James Wilson: I only desired to draw the attention of the Commission to that point. Mr.

Miles asked me if I had personally applied for the information. I say no, but it has been applied for
by Mr. Field, and we have not got it.

Mr. Field : I shall be very brief, Mr. Chairman, but I wish to supplement the remarks made by
Sir James Wilson. It depends very largely upon the answer you make to me whether we can get along
with our evidence or not. It was not until 11 o'clock last night that I knew the Commission was
sitting this morning, and we have been unable to obtain any information whatever from the Railway
Department to assist us in preparing our evidence. It is quite true that we have got ample evidence
in reference to the question of the Levin-Greatford deviation similar to that given in 1916, and we
have more evidence now almost readily available ; but we did not know until two or three days ago
that the scope of the Commission was to be enlarged to include this question. It was only as a result
of extreme pressure that we are able to have it brought within the scope or order of reference of the
Commission. We want to tender evidence not only with regard to the proposed Levin - Foxton -

Marton deviation, but we want to tender evidence to counter the proposals which are now being
made by the Department. In the Bill of last year the schedule provides for an authorization of about
eight and a half to nine miles of a deviation in the railway round the town of Palmerston North.
We are informed that that is going to cost a large amount of money. With a view to preparing for this
Commission, which we knew long ago was going to be set up, we desired the information which the
Railway Department was able to afford us in regard to the proposed deviation around Palmerston
North, and we want also information concerning Mr. Hiley's proposal for relieving the congestion
which was made in 1914. All we had concerning this proposal was contained in D.-2 of 1914. We
know it is stated that Mr. Hiley recognized that a new railway-station ought to be built at Palmerston
North, and that the railway-yards be reorganized at an estimated cost of £40,000, the work to be
completed in two years. We have done our best to obtain that information. I should mention that
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I wrote as far back as August last asking for detailed information in regard to Mr. Haley's scheme. The
reply I got from the Minister of Railways was that the Railway Department had no records whatever
of Mr. Hiley's scheme. Then I wrote immediately afterwards and pointed out to the Minister of
Railways that not only must the Department have those records, but that Mr. Hiley's scheme in
detail had been referred to in Palmerston North by the Borough Council and the Chamber of Com-
merce, and fully considered by them. The only reason, as far as I could make out, why Mr. Hiley's
proposal was not carried out was on account of some controversy between those local bodies to which
I have referred and the Railway Department as to whether the sub-bridge should be constructed under
Cook Street. I received a reply from the Minister of Railways to the effect that the matter would be
further looked into, but I have heard nothing further. We do not know what Mr. Hiley's proposals
are, nor do we know what the proposals of the Department are as dealt with in the schedule to the
Bill of last year. We want to tender evidence to show that the proposals contained in the schedule to
the Bill would be unjustifiably expensive under the present conditions of the country, and we want to
show also that Mr. Hiley's scheme, or some modification of the scheme, would be ample to provide
for the congestion at Palmerston North at the present time. We cannot tender that evidence under
the circumstances unless we know what the proposals of the Department are. We want that inform-
ation made available for our expert witnesses in order that they may bo in a position to give
evidence before this Commission, either at Palmerston North next week or in Wellington at some
subsequent date. But all these things take time, and all I ask for this information to-day is so that we
may not lose time. We would like to know to-day whether the information can be made available.

The Chairman : I may say at once that I cannot state; what information will be available, or
what information the Department is possessed of. The Commission does not know. We have power
to call for any information necessary, but I would have to consult my colleagues in regard to your
application.

Mr. Myers : The records of a public Department are not to bo laid bare to any person who desires
a roving commission to inspect them. No public Department can tolerate such a thing. If Mr. Field
is correct in saying that Mr. Hiley discussed with the Palmerston North Borough Council and the
Chamber of Commerce details of a worked-out scheme—and on this point I may say that I think
Mr. Field will find he is wrong—Mr. Field could readily have obtained all the information that he and
his experts require on reference to the Palmerston North Borough Council. If his hypothesis is correct
there should be no difficulty about it ; but I think he will find it is not correct. Now, Mr. MacLean
is going to give evidence this morning, and if Mr. Field and Sir James Wilson will wait and hear what
Mr. MacLean has to say, the probability is that they will get all the information they require. May
I say one thing whilst Sir .lames Wilson and Mr. Field are here, and that is that I venture to suggest
to them that it is of some importance that they should hear the evidence with regard to the proposed
alterations in connection with the Palmerston North Station, because it may have, from what Sir
James has said, a very importantbearing upon the view which he and those associated with him should
take in regard to the Main Trunk deviation. The view of the Railway Department is that, whatever
may be done so far as the Main Trunk deviation is concerned, the Palmerston North Station accom-
modation must be dealt with and dealt with properly. What 1 mean to suggest to Sir James Wilson
and Mr. Field is that a great deal of expenditure must necessarily take place in connection with
Palmerston North, so that it is quite possible that in those circumstances they may not think it
advisable to press any suggestions which they may have to make in regard to the Main Trunk deviation
at this stage.

The Chairman : I think we will now proceed to take Mr. MacLcan's evidence.
Sir James Wilson : You will excuse me, Sir, but I cannot wait to hear that evidence. I hope

Mr. Field will be able to do so, but I have an important engagement which I must keep.
Mr. Field : I only want to say, Mr. Chairman, that if Mr. Myers's suggestion is carried out it

will place us at a decided disadvantage. It is quite impossible for us to obtain from the Palmerston
North Borough Council and tho Chamber of Commerce the details of Mr. Hiley's scheme, because they
did not keep details of the scheme.

The Chairman : But Mr. MacLean is going to give evidence.
Mr. Field : Yes, but I wanted my expert witnesses to be here. lam not here as counsel but as

one of a sub-committee composed of Sir James Wilson, the Mayor of Foxton, and myself, which
sub-committee was set up for the purpose of instructing witnesses to give evidence in this matter. I
think it is very likely now the Commission is sitting and that counsel is appearing that we will also
instruct counsel on the matter ; but if the Commission is going to take evidence to-day of a highly
technical nature which I do not profess to understand, I would like our witnesses to hear that evidence,
or, at any rate, to hear what the proposals are. If the public are not going to bo advised as to how the
money is to be expended and the Commission upholds that view, I have nothing more to say. I wish
to say, in addition to what Sir James Wilson has said, that we would not be here to-day if it were not
for the fact that the question of the deviation arises. We would not be present if it was only a question
of the accommodation at Palmerston North. We say that tho accommodation at Palmerston North
can be provided for without any deviation. If there is to be a deviation, then we say that our sug-
gested deviation, saving as it does seventeen miles of the Main Trunk line, and doing away with special
grades, could be carried out at an expenditure which would not be in excess of what we believe the
proposed expenditure is likely to be. We say that our suggested deviation could be made for the same
amount of money, and would at the same time be of very much greater national advantage.

The Chairman : All the same, I think we will now go on with our evidence.
Mr. Field : How am Ito instruct my witnesses ? I would like to have Mr. Holmes or Mr. Fulton

here this morning. We want the Commission to give us the most ample opportunity of going into this
question in all its bearings.
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The Chairman : So you will have.
Mr. Field,: We want to save the Commissioners' time, too.
The Chairman : You need not worry about that.
Mr. Field : The position is that lam placed at a decided disadvantage. I feel inclined to send for

Mr. Holmes and Mr. Fulton to come up here and listen to Mr. MacLean's evidence, but the difficulty
is that I cannot get Mr. Fulton because I believe he is away. If the Commission proposes to go on
with the taking of evidence I would ask to be allowed to get Mr. Fulton here to listen to that evidence,
and I will at once communicate with the league with which I am connected, and the body of gentle-
men who are interested in the matter, and ask them to empower me to instruct counsel in the matter.
If I had known a few days ago that this Commission was going to sit and that the question of the
deviation was being included

Mr. Myers : You were advised on the 24th February, Mr. Field, by the Prime Minister that
instructions had been given for the extension of the scope of the Commission.

Mr. Field : Yes, but we did not know that the Commission was going to sit so soon. That is
only a week ago. We have not had any time. We had our meeting at Foxton on Monday last, and
this is only Friday, it is impossible for a man to do everything in five minutes. 1 strongly urge that
the Commission should not proceed too far without allowing us the opportunity of, at any rate,
instructing counsel and getting our witnesses together. I will send for Mr. Fulton at once and see if
I can get him.

The Chairman : After considering the matter the Commissioners are of opinion that we can adjourn
the inquiry till Monday morning to give you that opportunity.

Mr. Field : That will be of very great help to us.
The Chairman : That will not affect our arrangement to sit at Palmerston North on Wednesday.

In any case, if there is any evidence which you have not got ready for Wednesday you can call it at
a later date. Sir James Wilson seemed to be alarmed because he thought he would not have the
opportunity of bringing his evidence before the Commission. There is no question about that; we
want to hear all the evidence necessary.

Mr Miles : On our return from Palmerston North, Mr. Field, you will have every facility to enable
you to put your case before the Commission.

Mr. Field : The main point is that our witnesses will not have before them the proposals of the
Government,

The Chairman : Well, the Commission agrees to adjourn till Monday morning at 11 o'clock.
Mr. Field : That will be of great assistance.
The Commission adjourned till LI a.m. on Monday, 7th March, 1921.

Wellington, Monday, 7th March, 1921.
Mr. Field : 1 desire to say, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Luckie has been instructed to act as counsel

in this matter, but at present he is engaged at the Supreme Court and cannot be present for a few
minutes. Possibly Mr. Myers can. proceed with his address.

Mr. Myers : I do not think it necessary to take up the time of the Commission in making an
address. 1 have already explained to the Commission what the questions are and how they arise.
It will save the time of the Commission if I proceed at once to call Mr. MacLean.

Francis William MacLean sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] You are the Chief Engineer of the New Zealand Railways . —Yes.
A position which you have held for a number of years . —Yes, for five years.
Prior to your holding that position, were you Chief Assistant to the Chief Engineer \ —l was

Inspecting Engineer.
For how long ?—Practically for eight years.
And prior to that I think you were in the service of the Railway Department for a number of

years ?—First I was Assistant Engineer and then District Engineer.
The whole length of your service in the Department being what ?- -Thirty-six years and a half.
Would it be fair and correct to say that during the time you have been Chief Engineer the ques-

tion of railway-station facilities at Palmerston North has given you cause for grave and anxious
consideration ?- That is so.

Are you able to say whether the question arose even before you became Chief Engineer . —lt did.
It has been a question in the minds of the officers of the Railway Department for the last thirty-odd
years.

Do you mean that the Engineers of the Railway Department have foreseen the necessity for some
alteration ? —Not only the Engineers, but the Railway Commissioners, the General Manager, and all
those who had any connection with the business.

Is the difficulty one that has increased as time has gone along '(—Very much so.
Would you mind indicating first of all in quite a general way the reasons that have given rise to

this trouble, and the reasons for making alterations ?—From its geographical position in regard to the
railway system, Palmerston North must necessarily be a large and busy railway centre. It has to
deal with the traffic from the North—that is, not only from the Taranaki District, but also from the
Auckland District, and in addition to that the Napier traffic. There has also to be dealt with at that
station the traffic from Wellington, and also the traffic on the Foxton Branch. Therefore the traffic
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at Palmerston North has to be dealt with from four directions. There is not only the traffic which
is passing through Palmerston North, but the traffic arising from those different directions and going
from one to the other. For instance, there is quite a big traffic which goes to and from what we call
the Taranaki direction, including the Auckland-Main Trunk line, and the east coast or Napier direction,
and vice versa. Then there is also the traffic, although not to such a large extent, between Wellington
—that is, the old Manawatu Railway--and Foxton, and vice versa.

Before dealing with, the subject in detail I want to ask you whether the railway at present
necessarily runs through the main streets in Palmerston North ? —That is so.

And. the station itself is on the main street ? —lt is actually alongside the main street.
Of course, in the old days Palmerston was a small place, and did that matter so much then ?

—I believe that the station was at the Square, which was intended to be the railway-station, and
the borough was built round it.

Is the system such as now exists—a railway-station on the main street of a town like Palmerston
Nonh, and the railway running through the main street—a system which has your approval as a
railway man % —To my mind it is absolutely inconceivable that that arrangement can continue for
any length of time.

Looking, therefore, at the requirements of Palmerston North alone, and without taking into
consideration any question of the deviation of the Main Trunk line, such as we have heard suggestions
of, can you tell this Commission whether or not in your opinion and in the opinion of your colleagues
some alteration in Palmerston is essential . —Absolutely essential.

That is irrespective of any question of the Main Trunk deviation . —The other questions have
very little to do with it.

You have spoken of Palmerston North being a busy railway centre. I assume the Department
has figures which will show the annual increase of the railway business there ?— Yes, but that is a
matter which I think it will be better to get evidence of from the Genera; Manager.

Are you, however, able to say from your knowledge of the statistics that the business at
Palmerston North has increased practically year by year and increased considerably ?—Very con-
siderably. There has been a specially rapid increase in later years.

Has the position at Palmerston North now reached such a stage as that you consider the matter
is one of urgent importance ?—I can only say that it is quite evident to even a layman that the
conditions at Palmerston North at the present time are, to put it into plain words, chaotic.

We may take it that such a condition of things in a busy centre is not a good thing in a railway
system ?—lt is not good, for anybody.

When I say " not good for a railway system," of course I have the public interest in mind. ?•—Yes,
that is so.

Have you, in conjunction with your colleagues, including the General Manager, considered
various proposals in regard to the question of making alterations at Palmerston North ? —Yes.

Have you taken into careful consideration all the possible alternative schemes that have
occurred to the minds of your colleagues and yourself ?—We have personally, and I may say I have
specially, given every scheme which 1 could possibly conceive of the most anxious and careful
consideration.

And have you by a process of elimination on considerations of railway and public expediency
come to a conclusion as to what is the best course to adopt '-After giving the matte , as I say, the
most anxious consideration, I was driven to the conclusion that only one proposal would meet the
difficulty—that is, after examining all the possible schemes I was driven to one conclusion and one
conclusion only.

Is that conclusion to which you have given consideration one which commends itself to your own
knowledge to your colleagues, to the General Manager, to yourself .- Yes.

1 think you have a plan or plans which show the present position at Palmerston North and the
various alternative proposals which have been considered? —Yes, I have here a plan (No. 252H2)
of tho Palmerston North Borough. [Exhibit No. L]

There is one street on the plan in Palmerston North—namely, Cook Street—which T understand
has always caused your Department very great difficulty, and is really a bugbear to your experts .
—That is so. In 1889 the Railway Commissioners sought power to dose Cook Street and also Pitt
Street. Objection was made, and the objection wa. taken to the Court of Appeal. The Court of
Appeal gave its decision against the Railway Commissioners, on the ground that the proper authority
had not taken the action that was necessary The case was heard by the Court of Appeal in 1892.
The first Proclamation was issued by the Governor in Council, and the Court of Appeal decided that
the wrong authority had taken the action. The Railway Commissioners then issued a Proclamation
with the same object in view. That was again heard by the Court of Appeal, and the Court decided
that the Railway Commissioners had no power to do it. That is the position at the present time.

In Pitt Street you overcame the difficulty by means of a subway ?— Action was taken under the
Municipal Corporations Act with regard to Pitt Street. The question of the closing of streets has to
be heard before a Magistrate, and in this case the Magistrate gave his decision that Pitt Street might
be closed if a foot-subway were provided. That foot-subway was provided and the street closed.

How long ago was that . —That was in the early " nineties."
You are not speaking positively with regard to the date ?—No, I cannot give the exact date.
I understand your Department has been advised that the on y way n which to effectually close

Cook Street is by legislation ? —We were advised that we have now under the altered legislation power
to close Cook Street, but on reconsideration the Crown Law Office came to the conclusion that although
we had that power it would not be advisable to do so without special legislation. We have certain
legislative powers for instance, we have power to construct a railway along Lambton Quay—but
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such powers cannot in the course of ordinary events be exercised, and the Crown Law Office have
advised that the only solution of the difficulty would be the passing of special legislation.

I think that the Department, quite apart from whether or not it would meet the case, is some-
what afraid of claims for compensation afterwards ? —lt certainly is afraid of claims for compensation,
but that is not the question. Of course we understood that the claims for compensation would be
very serious.

In a case of that sort you do not know where it is going to lead to ?—That is so.
You told the Commission that in the early " nineties " the question of closing Cook Street was

arranged under the existing condition of things, and, considering that you also have to look to the
future, would it meet the case at the present moment if Cook Street were closed ?—ln my opinion
it would not meet the case at all. The position is an impossible one with Cook Street. Even if we
could close Cook Street I am absolutely satisfied that we could not make a workable arrangement
with the Palmerston North Railway-station in its present position. I have here Plan No. 25610
showing the present station, a print of which I will put in later on. [Exhibit No. 2.]

That is a plan of the Palmerston North Station as it exists at present ?—Yes. There are certain
minor alterations and additions since. I also produce Plan No. 26453 [Exhibit No. 3] showing the
proposals which I laid before the General Manager of a deviation of tho railway from Longburn,
showing the borough boundary, which is called Boundary Road. The proposal is that a deviation
should be made parallel to Boundary Road, joining up with the Auckland route at some distance
beyond Terrace End.

The plan shows a red line near the figures 527 ?—Yes, from Longburn Station to Section 527.
Then tho plan shows a red line which is the proposed railway from Section 527 to Whaka-

ronga ? —Yes, that is really a continuation of this deviation.
I think it is not intended at present to construct that portion of the deviation ? —The red

lines show tho main deviation, and the extension of the red line is for future working in connection
with facilities for the Napier business. We propose for the present to join the existing railway in
order to junction with the Auckland Railway near Section 527.

You do not propose at present to construct the whole of the new line from. Section 527 to
Whakaronga ?—No, not at present.

What you propose to do is to run the line from Section 527 to the existing line, and use the
existing line to Whakaronga Station for the Napier work for a time ? —Yes, for a time.

I think you have another plan which shows the suggestions which have been considered for
altering the existing station arrangements ? All I have is a sketch-plan showing the method of dealing
as far as we can with the traffic on the present site. I put in copy of Plan No. 19724, which was pre-
pared in 1912. It is purely a sketch-plan. [Exhibit No. 4.]

Does that provide for closing Cook Street ?—Yes, absolutely.
And. it would leave tin; present station accommodation where it is ?—lt was not proposed in the

sketch-plan to alter the station-buildings, the width of the road, or the width of the platform.
Have you considered the feasibleness of that scheme ? —When we came to work out the details of

that scheme we came to the conclusion that neither the accommodation that was provided nor the
shunting-facilities in this design would meet the difficulty at all.

I suppose it would cost a certain amount of money ? —That scheme at tho present time would
probably cost anything up to £150,000.

And does that include any compensation that you may have to pay in regard to Cook Street ?
—

Not at all.
It is absolutely in the clouds, you may say ?—Yes.
Would that scheme, in your opinion, relieve even your present difficulties, apart from the future .

—A scheme of that kind would be bound to relieve the congestion to some extent, but it would not get
over all the difficulties, and it would introduce very serious difficulties from the point of view'of the
Borough of Palmerston North.

Apart from that, can you say whether it would be anything more than a mere temporary
expedient ? —Only a temporary expedient.

Now, there is some other alternative in connection with the line, is there not ? —Yes, I produce
a further plan, No. 26630. [Exhibit No. 5.]

Would you explain what that indicates ?—lt is a more detailed plan of the alterations than the
previous plan, No. 19724, and which we worked out in the beginning of 1919. In the preparation of
this plan I was provided with certain figures by the Traffic Branch showing the accommodation that
was considered absolutely necessary for the present traffic. In order to provide that accommodation,
which it was found would take up the whole area we had, and would not allow of any increase in the
station building, nor any increase in the width of tho platforms, a plan was prepared accordingly.

Are both those conditions in your opinion requisite . -Absolutely. Almost a more important
point is the fact that there were no facilities possible under this arrangement for shunting, and end-
less complications would have arisen under such a scheme as this in connection with the locomotive
depot and the shunting of the traffic. In my opinion it is essential in connection with a station such
as Palmerston North that the road access to the station should be of sufficient dimensions—that is,
from tho public point of view, which you cannot separate from the railway point of view—as to allow
for proper working. 1 desired a width of road of something like 100ft. in Main Street; the station
building, instead of being 30 ft. wide, should be at least 50 ft. wide, and the main platform, instead of
being 20 ft. wide, should be at least 30 ft. wide. Another platform, as in the previous design—that is,
19724—has to be provided, and that I consider should be at least 30 ft. wide ; but the question had
not been settled whether it would be necessary to provide on that platform waiting-room accommo-
dation, ticket accommodation, sanitary conveniences, and possibly refreshment-rooms. If that accom-
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modation had to be provided, then the platform would have to be made wider still. In order to get
this accommodation one of two things was necessary : either that we should, as shown in red on the
plan, take the extra width for this main street from the Railway Reserve, and push the buildings and
platforms towards the south ; as an alternative to that, as shown in green, the question was to take
a sufficient area of land on the north side of Main Street, which is at present built on with hotels,
shops, and other business places generally, and keep the platforms somewhat irTore to the north than
they are at present.

I want you now to give the Commission your reasons for or against the scheme shown in red in
regard to its practicability.—The scheme as shown in red has a fatal objection—namely, that it would
leave a small area of land for the general sidings, goods-shed accommodation, and local traffic
accommodation.

Is it from a railway point of view a practicable scheme ?—Quite impracticable if the whole busi-
ness of Palmerston North is to be dealt with at that station.

As an engineer in charge of the railways of this country, would you take the responsibility for
it . —I would emphatically give my opinion that it is an impossible scheme.

So that you would not take the responsibility for it ? —No. It has a further disadvantage that
would be shared by any scheme at the present site—namely, that shunting would have to be carried
on both over the Square and over West Street: that is tho street bounding the railway on the west
and the public square on the east.

Is that all you desire to say about the red scheme . —Yes.
Now, with regard to the scheme as outlined in green : what do you say about that ? —That

scheme also curtails very seriously the accommodation that can be provided on the site. It also in-
volves, as I have said, in the red scheme, shunting over the Square and over the street, and it involves
an enormous expenditure in the purchase of property.

When you speak of expenditure in the purchase of property, you arc referring to compensation ?

--Yes.
And have you in mind tho fact that you are dealing all. along with a street with businesses where

you have got to meet the serious question of goodwill ? —That is so. It is impossible to say what the
compensation would be. I should imagine it would run into a quarter of a million altogether.

How far down would you have to take it ?—Probably from near Andrew Young Street to well on
to Short Street.

It is a pretty considerable length ? —Yes, probably about 30 chains.
And you would necessarily have to destroy the sections and buildings ?—Yes, the main street

would have to be diverted to a new position.
Still dealing with the scheme outlined in green, and apart from the question of compensation,

would there be a considerable expenditure in the general railway lay-out of the scheme ? —Yes, there
would certainly be a very huge expenditure in connection with that which it is practically impossible
to estimate. There is the difficulty, in carrying on alterations like that, of carrying on the traffic at
the same time.

May I take it that in a scheme such as the one outlined in green it is impossible to make anything
like more than an approximation by way of an estimate ? —That is so. You could not possibly make
ah accurate estimate.

Is that because of the indefiniteness of the considerations which you have to deal with . —Yes,
that is so.

Have you ever endeavoured to make a comparison as to the expenditure between the scheme as
outlined, in green and the diversion as shown on Plan No. 26453 ?—No. I have made a comparison
between the scheme shown in red, and its necessary consequence, with the proposed diversion scheme.
The comparison has been made on the basis that the business to be dealt with at this station would be
purely through and local passenger traffic and the local delivery traffic. That is what we call the traffic
arising to and from this station.

Then, does the red scheme involve some other lay-out or scheme apart from the actual scheme in
the neighbourhood of the railway-station . —Yes.

What does it involve ?—The adoption of such a proposal involves in the first place the formation
of what we call a sorting-yard" some considerable distance out of Palmerston itself—that is, a yard
where the marshalling and making-up of trains and storage of wagons and carriages would be provided
for. It further involves the construction of another line of railway from Palmerston North to Terrace
End, and a continuation of that line to the sorting-yard. In addition to that it involves the removal
of the engine-depot from its present position near West Street to some other locality as near Palmerston
North as possible.

On the southern side ? —lt would preferably and probably be on the southern side.
So that you would have your engine accommodation on the southern side and the sorting accom-

modation on the northern side ? —Yes. Perhaps I could explain it better on Plan No. 26453. This
plan shows the present position of the station. There is at the present time a double line of railway
from the station to Terrace End—that is, one line of railway for the Napier Section and one line of
railway for the northern traffic. A sorting-yard would have to be provided somewhere to the north
of Palmerston North. Tho nearest place that such a sorting-yard could be provided would be about
three miles from the station, but there would be limitations there in the way of the accommodation
that could be provided, and probably the sorting-yard would have to go some four miles and a half
to five miles out.

Would that be past Terrace End and on the northern line ?—Yes. A subsidiary sorting-yard
would have to be made alongside the Napier line of railway, with a connection between the main
sorting-yard and this subsidiary yard. The engine-depot would probably have to be made somewhere

3-D. 4a.
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between the Palmerston North Station and the Awapuni Station. Almost certainly the engine-depot
itself would require an independent line to and from the station, and almost certainly we would
require to have a double line of railway from Longburn to the Palmerston North Station. Those are
the consequences. Then, in addition to that I may say that it would be necessary to regrade this
railway between Terrace End and the sorting-yard. There is at the present time a gradient—
speaking from memory—of 1 in 70, and the load which can be brought from the south into Palmerston
North is much larger than could bo taken with the present gradients and the same engine from
Palmerston North to the sorting-yards, so that we would have to regrade the line so as to make it
possible to take to the sorting-yard the same load as comes from the south.

What is all that going to cost the poor taxpayer of New Zealand ?—. have already stated that it
is impossible to form any estimate—anything like an accurate estimate—of the of carrying out
the work where you have to carry on your existing traffic and put new lines in the position where the
existing lines are. But, putting it at as small a price as one could reasonably do, or without taking
into consideration any question of compensation for the Cook Street closing, which is essential in any
case, I have put the cost of this alteration of the station at £100,000. That is the red scheme. That
is the provision for purely passenger traffic and local delivery at the present station site. At thepresent
time it would be hopeless to carry it out at that. Then, there are very heavy earthworks involved
in the sorting-yard, and the purchase of land, earthworks, and tracks I put at something like £80,000.
Then, an extra track from the Palmerston Station to the sorting-yard, and the regrading of the
railway, would run into at least £50,000. The sorting-yard on the Napier line, and a line from that
subsidiary line to the main sorting-yard, would cost, say, £20,000. An engine-depot between
Palmerston North and Awapuni would cost not less than £50,000 with the purchase of land. If we
were to make a double line of railway from Longburn to Palmerston the cost of that would probably
run into another £50,000. That is a total of £350,000, and plus contingencies, say, £400,000.

And that is without allowing a single, sixpence in regard to compensation for the closing of Cook
Street ?—That is so.

And then you perpetuate, and T think increase, the traffic through Palmerston North itself?—
The effect of it would naturally bo that between the stations and the sorting-yard you would have
a very large increase in the number of trains running along Main Street with its numerous
crossings.

Do you desire at the present moment to say anything more with regard to the cost of the red
scheme as shown on Plan No. 26630 ?—I do not wish to say anything further about that. I have
not mentioned at all in connection with the whole scheme the fact that it seems to me inconceivable
that such a state of affairs as exists at the present time could continue for any lengthy period.
There is the effect of making a line along a main street with its numerous crossings and very
serious dangers for six miles from Longburn.

You said you have compared that scheme as to cost with your proposed diversion as shown on
Plan No. 26453 ?—Yes.

Would you give the Commission as well as you can your estimate of the cost of that scheme ?—I
have estimated the cost of the new railway, practically seven miles long, from Longburn. Station to
its junction with the north line and the connection with the existing line for the Napier traffic, not
including the connection between the existing line and Whakaronga as shown in red, providing a
double-track area from Longburn, a passenger and local-delivery station with ample facilities,
another large sorting-yard to the north of the passenger-station which would command the traffic
from both directions, the elimination of every level crossing, and ample facilities for the convenience
of the public, at £600,000. £50,000 would be ample to provide the portion of the present line to
Whakaronga.

Have you included the cost of land ?—I have allowed, in £100,000 for land, which is
a very large sum.

Is it correct to say that the land, you have to take for this scheme is all rural land ?—Yes.
And you know the questions arising, as you would have, if you had to take land in the vicinity

of the present station at Palmerston North—that is, land in a borough on which arc business premises
and where businesses are being carried on ?—That is so. Tho sum I have put in the estimate is
£100,000 for something like 120 acres of land. There are houses on the land.

Ts there not on the adoption of this diversion scheme a per contra, in favour of the Government
to'which you have not so far referred ?—I. have stated the net cost of this scheme at £650,000, with
£50,000 for contingencies, which works out at £700,000, but the contra to be deducted from that is
the value of the land now belonging to the Railway Department, which would be sold or leased if we
abandoned the present site.

How many acres would there be ?—I cannot remember. It would be calculated, for the purpose
of subdivision, by the frontage. Wo would have something approaching 7,000 lineal feet of frontage
to dispose of. A very low estimate of the value of that, I should say, would bo £30 a foot. It is the
present site only, and the frontages I have taken are the frontages to existing streets—namely, Main
Street. West Street, Church Street, Cook Street, and a little at tho Square.

A little laying-out of new roads might give you considerably more ?—I should not be surprised
if we got nearly double that.

However, putting it conservatively you would have 7,000 feet of frontage with the possibility
of doubling it, and putting it again conservatively at £30 per foot, there is over £200,000 at the lowest
estimate ?—Yes. I have not taken into consideration any land from. Longburn to the Palmerston
North Station, where the railway is constructed on what is-known as railway and road reserve", and
for the purposes of my estimates I have not included any value at all to the Railway Department from
the land on which the railway is constructed, and the same from the Palmerston North Station to
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Terrace End. When you asked me if I had anything further to say in regard to the scheme outlined
in red on Plan No. 26630, there is another matter which|has to be considered, and which is more a
question of working-expenses, and onjwhich possibly the General Manager the? Chief
Traffic Manager would be able to give evidence of more weight than myself;; but youlhave to face
this position : that at the present time, excluding all through trains—that is, the Main Trunk train,
the Napier train, and the Wanganui train—you have forty trains a day coming into Palmerston
North and going out—twenty trains each way. In working out such a scheme as has been outlined
in red with the sorting-yard, you must make the sorting-yard your terminal for all trains, which
means that every train must run five miles extra, if you take forty trains a day five miles, there are
200 train-miles extra every day, which amount to, say, 60,000 or 70,000 train-miles a year, which is
an extra expenditure on account of having the out. At the present time the
average cost of a train-mile in New Zealand is something like 12s. Putting it at, say, 10s. a mile,
there is £35,000 a year which you have to capitalize. In addition to that, at the present time we have
two shunting-engines working double shift at Palmerston North. These two engines would have to be
transferred to the sorting-yards to do all the shunting and marshalling. In addition to that you
must have a shunting-engine at the Palmerston North Station to deal with the traffic there, and in
addition to that you must have an engine which is running backwards and forwards between the
station and the sorting-yard. The cost of a shunting-engine under normal conditions for a single
shift is about £1,500 a year. A. shunting-engine at this place would probably run into more ; but,
taking it at £1,500, that would amount to £3,000 a year for the shunting-engines alone and the crews.
In addition to that you must have extra shunting gangs, which would amount to, say, £3,000 for the
two engines. That is for a double shift—namely, £6,000, and the shunting gangs at £3,000 a year-
while with the extra traffic at times you could put it down at £10,000 a year. If you summarize that
you have your train-mileage taken at 10s. per train-mile, which is £35,000 a year ; double shifts and
gangs, £1.0,000; and holiday traffic which has to be.provided for and which I put at £5,000: that
means £50,000 altogether. If you capitalize that at 5 per cent, there is £1,000,000 ; so that tho scheme
would cost in the first place £400,000, plus £1,000,000 for the increase in working-expenses, as against
the net amount of £500,000 for the new scheme. I might say in regard to this new scheme that if we
curtailed the facilities, eliminated the bridges and provided level crossings, and gave somewhat less
for the conveniences for the general public in the way of the size and nature of the buildings and
verandas, we could curtail to a certain extent the cost.

But you would not recommend that ? —No, but wo could cut off £100,000.
It follows that in your mind there is no doubt as to what is the best scheme ?—No doubt at

all. As I said, I have given the matter most anxious consideration, and in every way I could look
at it this scheme presented to my mind, from the Railway Department's point of view in the first
place, and just as much in the interests of the population of the Borough of Palmerston North and
the general travelling public, tho only solution of tho problem, and I recommended the General
Manager accordingly.

And I think you have said that that is a problem that must be solved quite irrespective of any
question of the Main Trunk diversion ? —Absolutely. You have got to deal with this problem it-
self, and it is apart from any diversion at all. You have a certain amount of traffic that you must

■ deal with no matter what diversion is made.
Can you say approximately how long it would take to complete this scheme of diversion as

shown on I'lan No. 26453 ?—The preliminary surveys would have to be made, and detailed designs,
but if the labour were available and up-to-date appliances were used I think it would take four years.
That is putting it on the safe side.

You know that there was an agitation in 1916, which apparently is being revived now, for the
diversion of the Main Trunk line from Levin to Marton ?—Yes.

That would involve the construction of railway mileage of how much ? —Approximately fifty
miles. There are no detailed surveys, but it would be about fifty miles.

Involving bridges as well as ordinary construction ? —I gave certain figures at the time, but did
not know the whole line. Since then I have been over the whole route. It is difficult to say what
bridging would be required. An enormous amount of bridging would be required, but I am of
opinion that that railway could not be made properly until the Manawatu River was altered ;

otherwise, instead of something like 30 chains of bridging, which might bo sufficient for the Manawatu
River, you might have to put in at least double that if the river were not confined into a permanent
course.

Seeing that there would be an 'enormous amount of bridge-construction, could you give the
Commission any idea of how long you think it would take to do that work . —Well, I think the
Public Works Department would probably bo able to answer that, but judging from past experience
I should say you might expect it to take twenty years.

Of course you have taken into consideration that other railways in New Zealand are also being
constructed ? —Yes.

And in the meantime may we take it that Palmerston North must be dealt with as absolutely
necessary ?—Yes. You have got to do the work at Palmerston North. You could not possibly
wait till then.

I suppose the construction of the fifty miles of railway between Levin and Marton would cost a
good deal of money ? —You could not expect to do it under £1,000,000.

That is the roughest estimation . —Yes. In a railway like that you know exactly what you have
to do. We have been spending, for instance, between Auckland and Mercer in improving the railway
about £10,000 a mile. Well, for a main line such as this to be constructed with such a heavy amount
of bridging you could not get it at under £20,000 a mile.
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Richard William McVilly sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] You are General Manager of the New Zealand Railways ? —Yes.
And have been for how long ?—About two years.
Prior to that you were Assistant General Manager for some time . —Yes, actually Assistant

General Manager for about three years.
And prior to that you were Chief Clerk for how long ?—Fourteen years.
I think your whole business life has been spent in the service of the New Zealand Railways ?—

That is so.
During the time you were Chief Clerk and Assistant General Manager 1 take it you used to

consult with the General Manager and tho heads of the branches with regard to such questions as
those which are before the Commission now \—Yes, I was in constant consultation with them.

You have, I think', considered carefully, both by yourself and in consultation with Mr. MacLean
and your other colleagues, the question as to the best course to be adopted to meet the difficulties
at Palmerston North ? —Yes, I have given careful consideration to it, and 1 have very fully discussed
the matter with Mr. MacLean and others both while 1 have been General Manager and previously
with Mr. Hiley, the former General Manager, and with Mr. Macl.ean's predecessors,

Are you satisfied that serious alterations in connection with the facilities at Palmerston North
arc not only necessary but absolutely essential .—I am. The position at Palmerston North is so
serious that unless it is tackled, and tackled in earnest, almost immediately the Department will
be unable to carry on its business satisfactorily in the very near future—with satisfaction to itself,
to the public, or to the Government.

May we take it that the question is one which would have been tackled and gone on with
between 19.1.4 and the present time but for the war . —Yes, that is so.

You have heard the evidence! given this morning by Mr. MacLean with regard to the various
schemes that have been under consideration, and as to the conclusion at which he has arrived—;

namely, that the diversion shown in Plan No. 26453 is the only feasible one . —Yes, I have heard that,
and I agree with it.

And do you agree with tho reasons as given by Mr. MacLean upon which that opinion is based ? —

Yes, I do.
Do you agree that whatever might possibly be done in connection with the Main Trunk deviation,

the Palmerston North difficulty must be settled immediately ? —That is inevitable. The Palmerston
North difficulty must be settled, and there is no time to waste.

On its own merits ?—Yes, entirely.
Do you mean irrespective of any other scheme in connection with any other branch of the

line ?—That is so. I regard Palmerston North as the most important subterminal in the country.
It is the point to which the whole of the through traffic of the North Island Main Trunk lines and
branches concentrates and from which it is redistributed. Any difficulties or delays at Palmerston
North affect the whole railway system in the North Island. For years past the difficulties that the
Department has had to contend against at Palmerston North have been very real, and they have
given Mr. Ronayne, Mr. Hiley, and the principal officers in the Department food for very serious
consideration. With my intimate knowledge of the business I have come to the conclusion that
the proposal which has been made for the deviation and rearrangement of tin; Palmerston North
Station is the only satisfactory way of dealing with the problem. lam looking at it, first, from the
point of view of the Dominion as a whole in regard to the railway system ; secondly, from the
point of view of the town ; and, thirdly, from the point of view of the Railway Department. lam
not putting the Railway Department first in this matter at all.

You aro putting the interests of the general public first ?—Exactly.
Prior to this deviation being determined upon by yourself and your colleagues, had your

Department come to any definite conclusion as to what was the best course to be adopted in regard
to the facilities at Palmerston North ? —No, the position was that certain tentative proposals and
some sketch-plans had been prepared showing what was thought might meet the position existing
prior to 1914, but when we investigated the proposals recently it was very apparent that the
requirements of the traffic were such that they could not .be met by the scheme indicated in the
sketch-plans and tentative suggestions such as had been made.

So that any sketch-plan prior to this diversion shown in Plan No. 26453 were mere tentative
trial schemes prepared for consideration ? —Yes.

Does that observation include this red scheme and green scheme alternatively in Plan No.
26630 ?—The observation includes that, yes.

I think it was Sir James Wilson or Mr. Field who on Friday last referred to some scheme that
it was suggested Mr. Hiley had submitted to the Palmerston North Borough Council. Do you
know to what that observation refers ? —Mr. Hiley had some interview with the Palmerston North
Borough Council early, I think, in 1914, just after he came here, and my recollection, of it is that
what he principally discussed then was a tentative scheme which involved the closing of Cook
Street.

Had Mr. Hiley arrived at any definite scheme, or was he feeling his way with a view to coming
to a decision as to a definite scheme ?--The position was that prior to Mr. Hiley coming here the
closing of Cook Street and other questions at Palmerston North had engaged considerable attention
at the hands of the Department. We had been negotiating for a long time to close Cook Street
with a view to seeing what we could do to relieve the troubles at Palmerston. We had not been
able to arrive at a satisfactory solution of the Cook Street problem, nor had we been able to arrive
definitely at a plan which would overcome the difficulty at Palmerston North. Mr. Hiley was
largely concerned in closing Cook Street, and as that was then a burning question he was asked to



R. W. MCVILLY.] 21 D. -4a.

meet the Borough Council, and he met them and discussed that particular question. Of course, in
doing so he pointed out that he was anxious to improve matters at Palmerston North.

Are you aware of any report made by Mr. Hiley upon this subject of the railway facilities at
Palmerston North ?—I have already stated definitely that there is no report made by Mr. Hiley in
regard to Palmerston North.

Is the question referred to in any of his reports ? —There is a reference to it in the Railways
Statement—a special report made in 1914 by Mr. Hiley dealing with a general scheme of improve-
ments, and in that report he made reference to some improvements at Palmerston North. Those
improvements were under discussion in 1912, and they are the ones to which I have referred. A
sketch-plan was drawn out and involved closing Cook Street.

Is that the sketch-plan that Mr. MacLean has referred to as prepared in 1912 ? —Yes, that is the
plan.

Mr. Field.] Is that tho plan that was laid before the Borough Council and the Chamber of
Commerce ? —As far as I know, that is the only plan, but lam not sure. 1 was not there ; but, at
all events, in connection with that I can say that I have made inquiries on more than one occasion
from the Engineering Branch, and they know of no other plan.

Mr. Myers.] During Mr. Hiley's time, did the question of a final and definite scheme with
regard to Palmerston North come up for settlement "\ —No. He and I had discussed the matter in a
general way, but the Palmerston North work which, he had included in the 191 I report was, together
with other big works, held up by the war conditions. Therefore the Palmerston North scheme was
not further discussed. It was useless to discuss it.

There was a letter or report I read to the Commission the other day, which you produced,
dated Bth June, 1920, from yourself to His Worship the Mayor of Palmerston North. . —Yes, that is
the one dealing with, the deviation and the increase in traffic.

Have you discussed this question of the deviation with the authorities in Palmerston ?- I
discussed the question fully with the Borough Council at Palmerston North.

That is the scheme as set out in Plan No. 26153 '. —Yes. I discussed it with the Mayor and.
Councillors. lam not sure whether all the Councillors were present, but the majority were.

With what result ? —I found they were unanimously in favour of the scheme, after hearing what
I had to say. They considered it was the best scheme that had ever been put before them, and
that it was the only scheme that would satisfactorily meet the position.

Are there any other reports that you desire to put in that you think would help the Commission,
or any details of traffic . —I would, like to hand in for the information of the Commission a report
made by myself to the Minister of Railways dated Ist November, 1920. It reads : —

Hon. the Minister of Railways, Wellington. Ist November', 1920.
Railway Improvements, Palmerston North.

The business to be dealt with daily at Palmerston North has entirely outgrown the facilities of the present station;
and it is quite impracticable to provide on the existing site the facilities that are necessary Io enable the Department
to satisfactorily handle the existing traffic. The result is that serious delays to trains are of almost daily occurrence.
The public arc; subjected to grave inconvenience, and the staff are carrying on under- heartbreaking conditions.

It is therefore imperatively necessary that immediate steps be taken to improve matters, and to place the
Department in a position that will enable the present and prospective business of tho future to be handled with
efficiency and economy.

The matter has engaged serious attention for a considerable time, and after giving much thought and making
myself personally acquainted with the existing conditions, and watching the operations carefully, I have come to the
conclusion that the only satisfactory solution of the difficulty is to remove the station to a new site beyond the
limits of tho town. The question has been discussed with the Borough Council, and that body heartily approved
the proposal.

The present line, as you are no doubt aware, is laid on a portion of tho road reserve from Longburn, and runs
through the main streets of Palmerston North to Terrace End. It is intersected by several crossings which are a
continual source of danger, and traffic in the Square is continually held up by shunting-engines, which have of
necessity to foul tho Square and the street-crossings every time a shunt is made. Every mixed and goods train
which at present arrives at Palmerston North has to be broken up and placed in small sections oir different sidings
as room can be found The lack of room at Palmerston North renders it necessary to run shunting-trains to
Longburn, Terrace End, or Whakaronga to find standing-room for wagons that cannot be accommodated in Palmerston
North station-yard,

The proposal to remove the station involves the deviation of the line from Longburn to Whakaronga, where it
will junctionwith the Napier line.

In the 1914 rail way-improvement scheme it was proposed to spend £40,000 at Palmerston North. The position has,
however, entirely changed since that time, and quite irrespective of what the decision may be regarding the proposed
building of a line from -Levin to Marton, respecting which representations have recently been made to. you, the
removal of the Palmerston North Station cannot be avoided, as the business from Wairarapa, Napier, and Marton
portions of the railway, which must always be dealt with at Palmerston North, cannot be handled on the present
site.

From the Department's point of view the necessity for carrying out the proposed works at Palmerston North is
the most urgent of the important works that have been projected. I therefore strongly urge that the necessary
legislation, which has been submitted to you in Bill form, bo passed during the present session so that an immediate
start may bo made on this imperatively essential work.

R. W. MoVillv,
General Manager.

Is there anything else you wish to produce ?—Yes, I have also here a report from Mr. MacLean,
Chief Engineer, dated 22nd August, 1919, which reads : —

The General Manager.
Palmerston North Station : Closing of Cook Street: Rearrangement of Station.

As explained to you personally, I have held over a reply to your memorandum until I corrld lay before yorr some
important suggestions in connection with tho position at Palmerston North. It appears to me inadvisable to discuss
the closing of Cook Street if any other proposal which does not involve the closing of the street were to be adopted,
or, at any rate,- until the alternatives could be discussed.
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Although the legislation which appears necessary for the closing of Cook Street would deal primarily with that
subject, the whole title will presumably have to be cleared up, including that to the land occupied in Main Street.
(Sec the opinion of the Crown Solicitor forwarded with your 1917/0001 of 29/4/19, second page, first paragraph, and
the second clause of the recommended course of action).

As stated by the Crown Solicitor, the whole position is difficult and complicated. It appears probable that
strong opposition will be raised to the closing of Cook Street (which is essential if the station is to remain in its
present position), and that the closing will involve tho Department in the payment of considerable compensation.

Before going further with the proposals, I recommend that the questiorr of removing the station from the present
position altogether be considered.

It appears to me certain that sooner or later the present station site will have to be abandoned.
At the best—and conditional on (look Street being closed —the accommodation and shunting facilities which can

be provided must necessarily be limited owing to the comparatively short distance (about 50 chains) for such a station
between the Square and West Street, and I cannot believe that in a growing centre such as Palmerston North the
receiving of trains through the centre of the borough and along a main thoroughfare from Longburn to Terrace End
(six miles), with the numerous street-crossings involved, can be continued for any length of time.

Eor these reasons I consider- it will be in the best interests of the Borough of Palmerston North and of the
country generally,, as well as of the railway, to abandon the present site before the very large expenditure involved
in providing for the requirements of the traffic at the present site is incurred.

Present Station Site.
A rearrangement plan of the station, designed to provide as nearly as possible for the stated requirements of

the Traffic and Locomotive Branches, has been drafted, but even restricting the public road (Main Street) at the
approach to the passenger-station, the station-building, and the main platform, to their present inadequate widths,
it seems apparent that the accommodation required cannot be provided. To give arrything like adequate accommoda-
tion for present needs, but without adeqirate shunting facilities, it will be necessary to provide for the locomotive-
depot in some other position.

To deal with the passenger traffic properly without unduly hampering the traffic in Main Street, I am satisfied
that this street opposite the station-building and at tire approaches thereto should not be less than 100 ft. wide.
The necessary accommodation cannot satisfactorily be provided in a building of less than 50 ft. wide, and the main
platform should not be less than 30 ft. wide. These widths I consider the minimum possible.

On a print of the draft rearrangement plan (No. 26630) which has been prepared I have shown the effect of
providing the widths suggested in different ways : (a) (red lines) —by encroaching on the land now occupied by the
railway-station ; (b) (green litres)—by the purchase of land on tho opposite side of Main Street, if the former method
were adopted, comparatively little land would be available for sidings, sheds, &c. ; in the latter method a very large
expenditure in the purchase of property would be involved.

Alternative Proposals.
(1.) Retention of Present Site for Passenger and Goods Traffic.—To deal with both passenger and goods traffic at

tho present site will involve exceedingly heavy expenditure in the purchase of property, and the accommodation which
can bo provided would be adequate only for tho need of the early future. A locomotive -depot would have to be
provider! in some other locality.

(2.) Retention of Present Site for Passenger and Local Traffic, with Provision for Separate Yard for Goods Traffic. —
To avoid the necessity for the purchase of private property in widening Main Street, the station-buildings, and
platforms it would be necessary to limit the business to be carried on at the station to passenger and purely local
goods traffic. The goods traffic which has to pass through this large and growing railway centre would have to be
dealt with at some point outside Palmerston North. Tho nearest available position for such a yard or depot would
be about three miles distant on the Now Plymouth Railway, and this would have tho disadvantage! of rrot commanding
directly the traffic to and from the Napier Railway. To deal with the latter it might be necessary to provide a
supplementary yard on the Napier Railway. As in tho previous proposal (No. 1), a locomotive-depot would have to
be provided, presumably at the same place as the marshalling-yard.

Tho expenditure involved in this proposal would be heavy, and working-charges would bo increased.
(..) Deviation of the Railway and Provision of a Station thereon. —Tho deviation of the railway from Longburn

to a point on the Now Plymouth Railway about four miles north of Palmerston North Station, with a connection to
the Napier Railway, as shown on the accompanying plan No. 26453, would admit of an adequate station being
provided without the disabilities of the present site, with marshalling-yard and locomotive-depot.

The expenditure involved would be fieavy, but should not, in my opinion, exceed that which would have to be
incurred in carrying out either of the previous proposals (1) or (2). In the congested state of Palmerston North
Station extensive alterations could only be carried out at considerable exponse and with delay to tho work and tho
traffic.

It has not been possible to obtain detailed data in connection with tho proposals without causing public comment,
which I have considered it advisable to avoid, but, so far as can be judged from an examination of the ground
and such information as could be obtained, the scheme is feasible from an engineering point of view, and interference
with house property would be comparatively limited. Two roads, ono unformed, would have to be closed, but as
these are of an unimportant character the opposition to the closing would probably not be serious. The main roads
would be bridged.

Tho principal opposition to bo expected would bo from—
(a.) Those of the business firms and residents affected by the greater distance to the station. The station

would be on the outskirts of the borough, and the distance from the centre of the Square would be
about one mile and a quarter, as compared with about three-eighths of a mile at present. The
business centre of the borough is, however, growing towards the west, and therefore in the direction
of the suggested site of tho station.

(b.) Those holding private-siding access from the present railway between Awapuni and Terrace End.
These include the Manawatu Racing Club's branch (on which I understand it is proposed to establish
milk-preserving works at some time), tho proposed siding to tho Municipal gasworks, Mr-Gill's
Hour-mill siding, and others. Tho Racing Club's branch might be extended to the new route and
possibly it might be arranged to retain a track along the present route from Terrace End to work
the various private sidings if the opposition of the owners cannot be overcome otherwise.

(c.) Property-owners (such as those in Main Street) whose business would be affected by the removal of the
station.

Conclusion.
I have no hesitation irr recommending the deviation and new station—proposal No. 3—as being in the best

interests of every one concerned.
Proposals Nos. 1 and 2 have the serious objection that trains would continue to run at speed along the main

thoroughfares, and this objection would _>o increased by the removal of the locomotive-depot and consequent
increased running.

There is no doubt that very serious opposition will bo offered to the proposals, but if a change is to be made —

and I consider this inevitable —I think it will be better to make tho change before the difficulties become greater
and before a large amount of monoy is spent on the present site.
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If the proposals meet with your approval, I suggest that the question be discussed confidentially with the

Mayor of Palmerston North, and that the necessary surveys be put in hand to enable the scheme to be prepared
more in detail.

I forward the following plans showing the proposals : Plan No. 26.53, map of locality, showing suggested
deviation ; Plan No. 27646, showing railway from Longburn to proposed termination of deviation, with private
sidings, and proposed deviation and site of proposed station ; Plan No. 26630, draft scheme of rearrangement of
existing station, showing suggested widening of street, building, and platform.

P. W. Mac-Lean,
Chief Engineer.

[Railway Report D-.2b, 1914, put in.]
Mr. Myers.] We have heard already that the traffic at Palmerston North has gone on increasing

year by year, and there is a certain amount of information contained in the documents already put
in. Have you any records in concise form which show the increase . —I mentioned in that letter to
His Worship the Mayor an outline of the increases, but I may say that the bulk of the traffic on the
North Island Main Trunk lines passes through Palmerston, and it is a fact that the railway business
has expanded very materially throughout the North Island. That in itself indicates that Palmerston
North has had an increased business to deal with apart from the local traffic. An increase in through
traffic anywhere affects Palmerston North.

I now want you to look at the red scheme on Plan No. 26630, but I do not want you to concern
yourself with anything that Mr. MacLean. has already given detailed evidence upon ; but he said that
some one else, either you or some one from the Traffic Branch, would be able to give better ev: dence
than he could g've of the cost of operating the red. scheme by reason of the engine accommodation
being placed at some distance south of Palmerston North, and the two sorting-depots being placed
north, one on the Main Trunk lino and the other on the Napier line ?—Mr. MacLean's figures with
respect to the cost of operating—that is, 70,000 train-miles at 10s., £35,000 per annum —are by no
means an overstatement. The cost of running train-mileage is more than 10s. per mile. Mr. MacLean
ought to have mentioned 12s. That is about what it is now, so that tho estimate would be at least
£35,000 a year. Mr. MacLean's estimate for shunting of £50,000 I quite agree with, but of course
that presupposes that you are going to deal with your train business with one engine. Every traffic
man knows that you cannot do that; you require more shunting-engines than you do train-engines
to do the shunting of a given business. As to Mr. MacLean's figures, lam prepared to let them, go
with this reservation, that they are on a conservative basis, and the position has been minimized.

Would such a scheme be anything like as convenient from a railway point of view as having the
whole of your accommodation in tho one vicinity, as is proposed in the diversion scheme shown on
Plan 26453 ?—No, it is cheaper always to concentrate the business so that you concentrate the
control. If you have to split up the business and create largo depots a distance from your centre,
then you have to have extra controlling officers and additional staff, and our experience is that
under conditions of that kind it requires at least one-third additional staff.

With regard to the suggested Main Trunk deviation from Levin to Marton, you gave evidence
before the 1916 Commission ?—Yes.

Except that the cost of construction would now be greater than it was then, has anything
-happened to modify or alter the opinions you expressed to that Commission ?—Not in the slightest
degree. In fact, what has happened has strengthened the opinion I then expressed, and which
T would express more strongly to-day.

I have taken you over all the details on which Mr. MacLean gave evidence, but is there anything
you would desire to add to what you have already said in answer to my questions .—I should just
like to add this : that on page 200 of D.-4, tho proceedings of the Foxton Commission in 1916, will
be found the details of the traffic, and on analysing that the only traffic that would be affected and
pass over the deviation is included in items 1 and 2.

Are you speaking now of the Main Trunk deviation. ? —Yes. That business represents 17 per
cent, of the passenger traffic and from 13 to 25 per cent, of tho other traffic. It would average out
about 20 per cent, of the business, and only 20 per cent, would pass over that deviation. The other
80 per cent, has to be dealt with at Palmerston North irrespective of whether that deviation is made
or not. I have taken tho traffic for to-day and the traffic for 1920, and I find the position is about
the same. About 85 per cent, of the traffic that originates on the North Island Main Trunk line has
to be dealt with at Palmerston North—that is, business that'goes'to and from Wellington, Napier,
and Wairarapa.

The Chairman.] So that if the Levin to Marton Railway was there now you would only be
relieved of 15 per cent, of the traffic you now get from the north ?—Yes, that is so.

Mr. Myers.] And you would still want the alterations at Palmerston North ?—Yes, still want
the alterations at Palmerston North. I have here a statement in exactly the same form showing the
traffic carried on the Main Trunk line between Levin and'Marton. [Statement produced and put in:
Appendix A.]

Supposing you had the deviation from Levin to Marton, would either of the other schemes, the
red or the green, be feasible in those circumstances ? —No. The green scheme is quite out of the
question on account of the cost. There would be the business disturbance and compensation for
that kind of thing. Then, the red scheme would bo quite out of the question, because it does not
provide tho accommodation necessary.

And not only that, but you have to carry on somehow during the time that thoVLevin-Marton
line would be under construction ? —Yes, and in the meantime the business would be constantly
expanding with the natural growth.

The reason I am putting these questions is that I want to find out for the benefit of the Com-
mission whether or not it is absolutely essential that this Palmerston North question should bo faced
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now and faced to the fullest extent ? —I have not the slightest hesitation in saying that, quite
irrespective of anything else, Palmerston North must be faced, and the scheme that has been proposed
is the only satisfactory way I can see of meeting the position.

Mr. Marchbanks.] This statement [Appendix A] does not give tho local traffic to Palmerston
North ?—Yes, it gives it all. Item No. 5 shows all the traffic that originates between the two
stations.

Does that give all the local traffic to Palmerston North ?—-Yes.
Could we get the total traffic to Palmerston North ?—You could, get that from a return.
I should like to get the traffic north-bound to Palmerston North and beyond Palmerston North

to the west coast and to the east coast ? --That is all given in the statement that I have put in
[Appendix A].

The Commission adjourned till 2.30 p.m. on Wednesday, 9th March, 1921, at Palmerston North.

Palmerston North, Wednesday, 9th March, 1921.
The Commission-sat in the Magistrate's Court at Palmerston North on Wednesday, 9th March,

1921.
Opening.

Mr. Myers : Sir, we have already given some evidence in Wellington, and I understand that
the main object in coming here is to enable the people who are opposing the scheme of the Railway
Department to indicate by evidence the reasons for their opposition. After they have done so, sir,
I will be able to say whether I find it necessary to call any evidence here, and, if so, I could call it right
away.

Mr. Luckie : Sir, I understood that the Commission adjourned to Palmerston North for the
purpose of taking evidence generally and in accordance with the usual procedure. I submit that it
is really for my learned friend to adduce his evidence so as we may have an opportunity of replying
to him. My friend knows that that is the usual custom in cases of this description. It is for him to
bring forward the evidence that is available here.

Mr. Myers : I disagree with the view taken by my friend Mr. Luckie, and obviously the course
he suggests is wrong. I decline to allow the Railway Department in this matter to be placed in the
position of a litigant coming before this Commission by adopting the course that my learned friend
suggests. I have called, the expert testimony which I considered necessary to show the reasons for
the proposals adopted by the Railway Department. I have no expert testimony to call here, and
I decline to adopt the suggestion submitted by Mr. Luckie. The course suggested by me is the
proper one, and I think Mr. Luckie will remember that at the last Commission similar to the present
one -you will remember, sir, because you were one of the Commissioners—the very course my learned
friend advocates now was the course he objected to in that case. The evidence of the Railway
Department was not called thru) until the rest of the evidence was heard. I may say that the Rail-
way Department has come to tho conclusion after very careful consideration that a certain course
is the right and proper one, and I suggest that it is the duty of those gentlemen represented by
Mr. Luckie to show that that course is wrong.

Mr. Luckie : In reply to my friend's distinction between this case and the case of the Levin-
Marton deviation Commission, I should like to point out to you, gentlemen, that that Commission
was got up at the instigation of certain persons who desired to show that the Levin deviation should
be given effect to, and consequently it was natural for them to open their case, because they were
proposing something. I submit, sir, that it is for my learned friend to support his position. To my
mind the position is very clear from the order of reference, which says : " (1) Whether the facilities
now existing at Palmerston North for the conduct of the business of the Government Railways Depart-
ment are sufficient and suitable for that purpose. (2.) If such facilities are not sufficient or are not
suitable for such purpose, what alterations therein (whether in respect of situation or otherwise
howsoever) are necessary, and desirable, and best adapted to enable the business of the said Depart-
ment to be carried on-with-the greatest degree of safety, efficiency, economy, and convenience."
Obviously my learned friend must realize it is the Government that desires an alteration in the rail-
way-station facilities at Palmerston North, and therefore I suggest it is for the Government to bring
forward its evidence in support of the proposals, so as to enable me to reply to the evidence submitted.
My friend's distinction between this Commission and the Commission which was set up several years
ago is obviously accounted for by the fact that we were the moving parties. At that time we had
to support our case before the Commission, and lam asking him to do the same thing now. The
mere fact that he is appearing for a Government Department in a matter which is affecting the
whole of tho Dominion and involves an expenditure of something like £700,000 or £800,000 which
has to be justified does not alter the position. Up to the present time we have only heard the official
evidence—that is, the evidence of Mr. McVilly, General Manager of the New Zealand Government
Railways, and the evidence of Mr. MacLean, Chief Engineer of the Railway Department and I
submit we should hear the whole of the evidence of the Department before I am asked to proceed
with my case. I should like to say that lam not putting the Department in the position of a litigant.

Mr. Myers : Mr. Luckie may take it, sir, from me, and the Commission may take it, that I do
not intend to call any further evidence at this moment. I have obtained the evidence of the experts
of tho Railway Department, upon whom the Government must necessarily rely. I do not see the
necessity, sir, at this stage to call any evidence which is of a non-expert character. If my learned
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friend has any evidence to call let him call it by all means, and if necessary I propose to call any
further evidence by way of rebuttal. It is farcical in a matter where the Government is accepting
the advice of their experts to expect it at this stage to call a lot of non-expert evidence.

The Chairman: The Commissioners are of opinion that we should not ask Mr. Myers to proceed,
nor do we consider it is right for him to do so. We are sitting in Palmerston North for the purpose
of hearing the evidence of any one either for or against the proposals of the Railway Department.
If either Mr. Luckie or any other gentleman is desirous of submitting any evidence we are prepared
to hear them. We do not desire to close the evidence against either side at all.

Mr. iMckie : Do I understand, sir, the position is that I will have to call evidence, and that my
learned friend will be in a position to call evidence in rebuttal, and that I will have a further right to
call evidence in connection with the matter ? It seems to be a most confusing way of putting the
position before you.

Mr. Myers : I would not object.
The Chairman: We would be quite prepared to do that.
Sir James Wilson : During the time the Commission was sitting in Wellington I appeared before

you, and. I was informed that the Commission would be sitting in Palmerston North for the purpose
of hearing the views for and against the proposals of the Railway Department, and that I would be
given an opportunity of being heard. As I have to attend a meeting at Palmerston North to-morrow
I find I will not be able to attend the Commission, and if it is convenient I should like to be given
an opportunity now of making a short statement to you, gentlemen. No doubt the procedure is a
wrong one, but I would be pleased to have the opportunity.

Mr. Luckie : Before proceeding any further I should like to say for the information of Sir James
Wilson that it is my intention to say a few words with reference to the Levin-Marton deviation.

Mr. Oram : Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I would like to say that I have been instructed to
appear on behalf of the Palmerston North. Chamber of Commerce. Ido not think it will be necessary
for me to address the Commission, but before proceeding any further I should like to say that the
Palmerston North Chamber of Commerce heartily endorses the action of the Railway Department
in its scheme to remove the railway station and yards from the town and deviate it according to the
plans of the Railway Department's Engineer. At a later stage it is the intention of a representative
of the Chamber of Commerce to give evidence in connection with the matter. Ido not think there
is anything further I need place before you in the meantime.

Sir James Wilson : I wish to take this opportunity of thanking the Commission for the privilege
of addressing it. In the first place, I should like to say that the persons for whom lam appearing
had no intention of being represented by counsel until we became aware that Mr. Myers was going
to make this a very serious question, and in consequence it was considered advisable by those who
are opposing the present intention of the Railway Department to be represented by counsel in
connection with the matter. Mr. Luckie was not instructed to take this matter up until the last
moment, and therefore ho is not in a position, to speak with the fullest knowledge as to the position
we take up. It was originally understood that I was to appear before the Commission as the
representative of the different local bodies on the west coast in regard to the position they take up.
I may say that the first intimation we had of the Commission was that it was to consider the station,
facilities at Palmerston North, and it was not our intention to say anything about that, although we
were aware that the station was very congested, and we have no reason to suppose that it should not
be altered. We did not propose to have anything to do with the matter until suddenly we found
that the order of reference of the Commission had been extended and brought into question another
matter which was to us a very serious one—namely, whether it was desirable and expedient that a
deviation of the Wellington - New Plymouth Railway should be made between Paekakariki and
Marton, and in consequence we were called upon to bring forward evidence before you. At the same
time, as far as I am concerned, I do not propose to give any evidence, and I merely wish to make
a brief statement for the information of you, gentlemen. We understand that you are required to
report on three matters. Tho first issue to be dealt with is whether the existing facilities at Palmerston
North are sufficient and suitable for the Railway Department's purposes, and you have to ascertain
whether the suggested schemes should not be able to meet the case. The next issue is a very serious
question, and. one which is of national importance—that is, whether it is desirable, and expedient, and
warranted to have a deviation of the railway-line. In the one case it is a matter of local importance,
but in the other it is a different matter altogether. In connection with a deviation of the line, as has
been suggested, it will mean that a large sum of money will be spent upon it. It is not my intention
to go into the matter very exhaustively, but I should like to make it perfectly clear to the members
of the Commission that this matter is not, as I have already intimated, one of local importance, but
is a matter of national importance, and you, gentlemen, have a very serious responsibility cast upon
you. To my mind there are many circumstances that have to be taken into consideration when
reviewing the position, such as through traffic, &c. The suggestion submitted by us of shortening
the line will, if carried into effect, prove of immense benefit to the country. During the time the
Commission was sitting in Wellington Mr. MacLean, Chief Engineer of the New Zealand Railways,
gave evidence in support of the proposals to deviate the line andrwc want to rebut
that evidence. I was un_er"the impression" with"the
improvement of the station facilities, but I am jriven~to understand that there""is no" such report in
existence. Surely the Railway*Department' ,'mus_''have a knowledge*^'what Mr." Hiley"said,"'and,
moreover, we think that a~ gentleman"'of Mr." Hiley's experience would"_iot' suggosf'anything that
would not meet the case.

"* I "do not know whether or not the Commission is'possessed of any'infor-
mation to show that the traffic',has*.ncreased'*at"*Palmerston North,' bu_*'so far as I am''concerned I
have not heard. When you come to think of the position and the suggestion we make, and have
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made for years—this is especially so in the case of the deviation of the line—we are not sure that the
Commission is in a position to decide that point on the evidence of the officers of the Railway Depart-
ment, which to us is a very important matter, unless it has very much more information before it by
competent engineers. I do not know for the moment that any person in New Zealand can show
that Mr. McVilly is not capable.—perhaps he is more capable than any person in New Zealand—to manage
the railways of this country. I have no hesitation in saying that Mr. MacLean as an engineer from the
railway point of view is a first-class man. We have nothing to say against them, and we have every
confidence in their ability and in their management ; but I suggest to you, gentlemen, that they are
only looking at this matter from a railway point of view, and I consider it is their duty to look at it
from that point of view—it is a duty we expect of them ; but there is something else they have to
consider, and it is the duty to tho public that they have to bear in mind. It is undoubtedly their
duty to work the railways to the best advantage, but, as I have already stated, the Railway Depart-
ment has a duty to perform to the general community of New Zealand, the same as the local bodies
have their duty to perform.

Mr. Myers : I think they arc nearly all supporting the scheme submitted by the Railway
Department.

Sir James Wilson : They are all interested in seeing money expended in the City of Palmerston
North. As far as we are concerned, we have nothing to say against Palmerston North. We are
delighted to see it going ahead, and we are pleased to see the trains going through the Square. The
whole of the public travelling from north to south say it is one of the best squares in New Zealand,
and if the station is shifted two miles out they will not see it at all. Every person who goes from
Palmerston North would have to go out a distance of one mile and a half or more. That is a very
serious matter ; but Ido not propose to stress that point any further. There is another matter you
gentlemen have to consider, and that is the question of cost. The Railway Department states that
it will have to spend about £700,000 in deviating the line around Palmerston North, and T ask, what
advantages are you going to get ? You are going to get an improved yard. I admit that a larger
station than the present one is necessary. I also ask, what extra income are you going to get if the
proposed deviation were carried out ? Are you going to save anything —are you going to make the
railways more profitable ? Then there comes a very important matter, and it is the benefit to be
derived by the general public. You have to consider those matters, because they are very important.
They are matters the Government has to consider, and I feel sure the Railway management looks
upon them in the same light. It is a great responsibility to be placed on your shoulders, and you
have to advise the Government. By shortening the distance you are certainly saving the passengers'
time, and of course you will save so many miles of railway, and you will deduct from the fares a certain
amount of money, because you will not carry the passengers the same distance as you do now ; and,
furthermore, every ton of goods that goes over tho railways will be conveyed a shorter distance, and
in consequence a few shillings saving will be effected. I should now like to draw your attention to
a report made by Mr. Bush—or, rather, the evidence given by Mr. Bush during the sitting of tho
Foxton Wharf and Main Trunk Deviation Commission. The evidence to which I refer will be found
at pages 89 to 95 of the Commissioners' report. In his evidence he points out the saving in cost if
the deviation of seventeen miles were carried out. That is expert evidence, and I will not be in a position
to give you that information. However, if you deduct a certain number of miles of railway you save
over an extended period a very large sum of money. There is one thing that should bo ascertained,
and. it is whether there has been any truth in the statement that a saving in money will be effected
by the deviation.

The Chairman: Anything that has been stated will be in the report of 1916.
Sir James Wilson : I would also like to draw the attention of you gentlemen to the report of Mr.

McKerrow on the proposed deviation via Foxton, 1896. I may say that this report was submitted
to the Commission in 1916 by Mr. McVilly, and will be found at page 201 of the report of the Foxton
Wharf and Main Trunk Deviation Commission. Mr. McVilly was opposed to the purchase of the Sanson
Tramway, which was doing a great service to the settlers in that locality. We were endeavouring
to extend our railway to Greatford, and if this had been carried out it would have been doing a
great service to the whole of New Zealand. Mr. McKerrow, who was a very able man, went over this
line and examined it, and although he was Surveyor-General he was not a railway man in every
sense of the word. Ho went into the question and he gave us a great deal of information, and he
gave it as his opinion that the distance from Levin to Greatford by the proposed line would be
about thirty-nine miles, whereas Mr. MacLean said the distance was fifty miles.

Mr. MacLean : I said "about fifty miles."
Sir James Wilson : Mr. MacLean speaks of a line from Greatford. The suggestion is that the line

to Greatford is not altogether satisfactory because there is a steep hill close to the place in question.
I should, like to take this opportunity of reading to you gentlemen an extract from Mr. McKerrow's
report, in which he says, " There would, therefore be, after deducting the five miles and a quarter
from Foxton to Carnarvon, thirty-"four miles of railway to construct. Further, as Greatford Station
in its present position is unsuitable for a junction, and moreover it is undesirable to have another
junction so near Marton Junction, it would be better, therefore, to continue the existing line from
Greatford to Marton Junction, 3 miles 16 chains, or in all about thirty-seven miles or thirty-eight miles
and a half of railway to construct, which, in the absence of detailed survey and estimates, should not
be estimated to cost less than £200,000." Mr. MacLean's estimate of the cost was £1,000,000. I
think you were very alarmed when Mr. MacLean said that the cost would be about £20,000 per mile.
Of course, I quite realize that Mr. MacLean knows the country, but I do not think he has gone so
carefully into the matter as to make the estimate he has.' He will find that evidence will be given
showing that the cost is very much smaller than he estimates,
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Mr. Myers : I am given to understand that Mr. Holmes in his evidence estimated the cost at

£12,000 per mile.
Sir James Wilson : Now, the question has been raised, and it has been published in the newspapers,

that the Manawatu County Council desires to sell its tramway. I would like to take this opportunity
of denying that statement. Now, in connection with the question of gravel for our purposes, I desire
to say that wo have the utmost difficulty in getting it when we want it. We recognize, however, that
the Railway Department has to run the trains at the least cost. Then again, the Railway Department
will not convey our gravel in the summer-time because it does not pay them to do so. The time that
suits the local bodies to get their gravel is the summer-time, but the Department apparently considers
it more convenient to convoy it in the winter-time. We own the tramway and run it to suit
ourselves, subject to the restrictions imposed by the Public Works Department. We assist the
settlers to a great extent, and they cannot, of course, expect the Government to do it to the same
extent. The tramway has been a great benefit and a great saving to the ratepayers, and I say most
emphatically that the only reason why we are willing to sell our tramway is because the Manawatu
County Council is supporting the suggested deviation of the Levin-Greatford Railway. There are
other motives suggested, but in dealing with this matter I think it would be better to leave them alone.
Our position is somewhat difficult, and I do not know where we are. If tho Railway Department
is going to spend its own money upon the deviation, of a railway, that is a matter for the Railway
Department to consider—that is a railway matter ; but if the Government is going to spend borrowed
money, then it must be a matter for the Public Works Department.

The Chairman : In any case it is a Public Works matter.
Sir James Wilson : Whatever the position may be the duty of the Government is quite clear.

It is quite true what Mr. Myers said, that these gentlemen—the General Manager and Chief Engineer
of Railways—are the advisers of the.Government upon railway matters. There is something beyond
that, and, as I have previously stated, there is the public interest in this matter, and to my mind
that is beyond a local question altogether. I submit, sir, that it is too important a question to be
considered by a Commission unless the members thereof have the fullest information before them

Mr. Luckie : You are now referring to the Levin-Greatford deviation 1
Sir James Wilson : Yes. If your report is to the effect that the station facilities should be

improved I may say we do not want to enter into that subject, because we have no evidence to offer
upon it; but we do say if you consider the deviation of the line round Palmerston North then you
should have more information before supporting it. You must consider the future, and it will not
be very long before the line will have to be duplicated ; but I submit, if the Levin-Greatford. devia-
tion were given effect to, a duplication of a large portion of the line will be saved. It is proposed to
spend a very large sum o money, and I think before anything is done you, as a Commission, ought
to have much more information than tho mere hazard of Mr. MacLean that it is going to cost a
million or two. This, of course, is a matter which the Government has to decide, but you gentlemen
have a most important duty to the Government and to the public, and you have to consider the
matter very fully before reporting. lam not prepared to say anything more at the present time, but
we think that the time is not opportune to spend this large sum of money. We are quite prepared
to 'stand aside and say nothing more and wait your decision, but we think the fairest course to be
adopted is for the Department to do the best it can at Palmerston North. It seems to me difficult
to understand how a gentleman of Mr. Hiley's capacity, who came here with such £ reputation, and
who has since gone to India also with a very high reputation, should state in the year 1914 that the
present accommodation could be improved to meet the needs of the community, and now to be
informed that that is impossible. That is a question on which no doubt evidence will be given at a
later stage. I would again urge you before anything is done to be in possession of the fullest infor-
mation and know what is going to take place, and I think you should suggest to the Government that
this is not the time to spend the money on the deviation suggested by the Railway Department. In
conclusion, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of tho Commission, I would like to thank you for the patient
hearing you have extended to me.

Mr. Miles May I say, Sir James, that it would, be of interest to the Commission if you will give
us an idea of the strength of the body you represent. My point is we have heard of the Railway
League, and I understand you are representing the Railway League.

Sir James Wilson : The local bodies concerned begin with the Levin. Borough Council. The
next local body is tho Foxton Borough Council. As a matter of fact, all the representatives of the
yarious local bodies were not able to bo present, and therefore I am appearing before this Commission
on their behalf.

The Chairman : I understand that Mr. Luckie is really representing the whole of the local bodies
Sir James Wilson is speaking for.

Mr Miles : If Mr Luckie is appearing for all the local bodies concerned, that is sufficient for my
purpose.

Mr. Luckie : In appearing on behalf of those persons in and about Palmerston North who are
opposed to the proposals of the Government in this connection, I desire before calling evidence—as
you gentlemen have decided I will have to do—to state the main line of objection taken by those
people whom I represent. In the first place I desire to point out what is wellknown to everybody—
that a particularly large'tactor in the prosperity and the size and growth of Palmerston North is that
it is now, and has become during some years past, the main central distributing and collecting station
for the whole North Island system of railway, and it is a fact that the whole North Island railway
system centres in Palmerston North. This has had most to do with its prosperity and its growth in
previous years. Indeed, I remember well how much smaller it.was twenty-five years ago, and though
Palmerston North has risen by reason of tho railway we have the most extraordinary proposal put
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forward by the Railway Department at the present time. Neither in the United States of America
nor in any other part of the world will you find a parallel to the present proposal, nor will you find
any place where the railway is taken outside the centre of population. In fact, the tendency is to
bring it nearer to the centres. That is the inevitable consequence in all cases. The proposal submitted
by the Railway Department, if it is carried into effect, will, apart from its other demerits, have the
effect of pushing Palmerston North along Rangitikei Street, and in consequence the value of land in
the vicinity of the proposed railway-station will be increased. I may say that enormous prices have
already been given in Palmerston North on this speculation for land in the vicinity. It is a fact
that numbers of people have been speculating on these proposals.

Mr. Myers : You always have that.
Mr. Luckie : I will show that a great deal of the interest that lies along Rangitikei Street is

responsible for the attitude taken up by the official representatives of Palmerston North. It is within
my knowledge that land that was previously purchased at £120 per acre recently changed hands at
£360 per acre. The inevitable consequence of shifting the railway-line is to shift the economic centre.
That is the history of the development of railways. They have been the greatest promoters of values
that the world has ever seen. If you are going to shift the main railway-line at Palmerston North
one mile and a half to two miles away from its present position, what is going to happen ? If tho
railway-station is shifted from where it is at the present time it means that the. property in the vicinity
of the present site is naturally going to decay and reduce in value. It must be borne in mind that a
large amount of shopping is done by through passengers who arrive by one train and return by a later
one the same day. The result will be the people will do their shopping somewhere else where they are
able to return to their homes the same day. I cannot understand how it is that my friend His Wor-
ship tho Mayor has duped the population of Palmerston North and blinded them in regard to this
deviation of the line. It must be recognized that if this deviation were carried out it will mean that
the shopkeepers in the neighbourhood of tho present station will be ruined, or practically so, to the
advantage of the shopkeepers in the vicinity of Rangitikei Street. It is my intention to prove to
you by expert testimony that the tendency of every railway in the United States of America and
Canada is to acquire more land in the vicinity of the present station sites. Even the Waterloo Station
in London has enlarged its yard accommodation by acquiring more land contiguous to its present
site. The station was not built outside London when more accommodation was required. If such a
scheme is possible in London it is very much simpler in Palmerston North, and according to all economic
principles it is what should be done. I may say that it is not from the railway man's point of view
I am looking at this matter, but from the point of view of the poor unfortunate people who have
their business premises situated near.the present station-site. There were five hundred people who
signed a round-robin, and it should be before you, and each one from the different households said
they were opposed to the removal of the station. I have no hesitation in saying that if the Com-
mission sat for two more days there would be at least five thousand signatures. No doubt my friend
Mr. Nash will take up a different attitude. I want to point out to you gentlemen that I have here a
plan which has been supplied to me showing the existing railway system in Palmerston .North.
[Plan produced.] I want to point out that as long ago as 1889 the Railway Department appreciated
the importance of making various alterations in the railway-station at Palmerston, and it was not
until the year 1919—a period of thirty years—that there was any suggestion made to remove the
station to another site. The Railway Department, in order to carry out its various improvements,
deemed it necessary to close Cook Street. A Proclamation was issued in the year 1889, but by
reason of some defect in the Proclamation it was set aside by the Court of Appeal. In the year 1892
another Proclamation was issued, and it was again set aside by reason of some defect. I may say
that as late as 1912 the next Proclamation was issued, but it has not been set aside. It is recognized
that it is a good Proclamation, and the Government has not dared to close the road. The Govern-
ment apparently was satisfied that the increase in the accommodation necessary at Palmerston
North could be carried out on its present site, and for this purpose, about ten or twelve years ago
the Department purchased tho portion of land opposite the goods-shed and in the vicinity of Pitt
Street. [Portion of land pointed out on plan by Mr. Luckie.] I am at a loss to know why they
purchased that piece of land ten or twelve years ago and have not touched it. I undertake to show
the Commissioners four or five old engines that have been drawn up opposite the goods-shed, and I
consider it is a clever bit of stage management. However, this is what I want to point out in this
connection : that in the year 1912, after the last Proclamation was issued for the closing of Cook
Street, the

Mr. Myers : Why do you say that the Government did not dare to do it ?

Mr. Luckie : Well, as my learned friend objects to the use of the word " dare " I will withdraw
it. 1 was only using the words expressed by a Railway official. I want to find out from tho Railway
Department what has" rendered it necessary to abandon the scheme that was suggested between tho
years 1914 and 1916, because this was the scheme which Mr. Hiley approved of in his report of 1914,
and which involved the closing of Cook Street. For that purpose a Proclamation was issued in 1912,
but I do not know what developments have presented themselves since that time. In 1914 Mr.
Hiley, the then General Manager of Railways, said that a scheme for the improvement of the station
facilities at Palmerston North could be carried out at a cost of £40,000. It is % now proposed to
increase the accommodation and provide a new station at a very much heavier cost. At a later stage
I will prove that the accommodation can be provided at a cost not exceeding £1.50,000, or at the
most £200,000. In West Street there is an area of about 10 acres of land which is undoubtedly
suitable for engine-shed accommodation without going outside the general area covered by the
railway-station. It is, I suggest, for the Railway Department to indicate to the Commission why
the proposals outlined by me should not be carried into effect, and not involve the Dominion
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in an unremunerative additional expenditure of about £500,000, which would be the case if the
proposals of the Department were given effect to; and. as I have already intimated, a number of
people who are in business will suffer if the station-site is shifted. I also contend that it is the duty of
the officers of the Railway Department to show you that it is impossible to make the necessary
improvements at the present site before asking you to agree to the proposal to shift the station out
to another site. The Department will also have to produce very conclusive evidence to show why
the scheme which was approved in the year 1914 is considered to be unsound to-day. We are told
that there is going to be available 7,000 ft. of frontage round Church Street and Main Street, and that
this land is worth £30 a foot. Possibly three or four yards of it down Main Street might bo worth that
amount, but the rest of the land would not be worth more than £7 or £8 a foot. The Engineer said
that it would realize at £30 a foot the sum of £200,000. To my mind that will show you how totally
inadequate the calculations of the Railway Department are when dealing with a simple ordinary
proposition of this kind. Representations have been made to close Cook Street, and the citizens of
Palmerston North would naturally be contented if a vehicular subway were provided, but the Rail-
way Department was only prepared to provide a pedestrian subway. Palmerston North is going to
benefit in a direct sense if that is the only obstacle that is going to stand in the way. I may say the
whole curse of the business is this failure to close Cook Street in a satisfactory manner. I submit that
if the closing of Cook Street is the only obstacle in the way it is a sorry lookout.

Mr. Myers : Mr. MacLean has given evidence to the effect that the closing of Cook Street
would be inadequate for the required accommodation, and that in the interests of the town the
station should be shifted.

Mr. Lnuckie : They have not said how much land can be acquired in the vicinity of the present
station. I want to point out also that right up to 1914 the Railway Department was satisfied that
this scheme of Mr. Hiley's was satisfactory, and, furthermore, no suggestion has been made for
thirty years to make alterations in the proposed location of the station. It is proposed to shift the
line in tho vicinity of Rangitikei Road, a distance of one mile and a quarter away, and I propose to
produce evidence which will show that the locality in question is subjected to floods from six to
twelve times a year, and it will take an enormous sum of money, far in excess of what Mr. MacLean
estimates, in order to get the proper foundation to build the line on. You can drive a pile down from
10ft. to 15 ft. before you can get a solid bottom, and it will mean an immense cost to the Department,
estimated at more than £700,000. As I have already explained, the tendency in other countries is
to bring the railway-stations into the cities. Ido not propose to weary you any further, so I will call
Mr. Holmes, who has had some experience, in this matter, to give evidence.

Robert West Holmes sworn and examined.
Mr. Luckie.] You are a retired civil engineer, and were Engineer-in-Chief of the Public Works

Department ?—Yes, and Under-Secretary of tho Public Works Department at Wellington.
You have had a great deal of experience during your years of office as Engineer-in-Chief and

Under-Secretary of the Public Works Department in surveying and outlining the railways in various
parts of the Dominion ? —Yes, I have.

In the course of your experience you have had some knowledge of the inevitable growth of inland
cities, such as Palmerston North, and their dependence upon railway communication ?—Yes.

Will you tell the Commission what is your view of the inevitable consequence of the proposed
deviation ? —My idea is that the moving of the station is hardly a necessity.

Is hardly a necessity ?—That is so. I practically support what you have stated in your recent
address. It is the usual practice in other places to take the railway-line to the traffic.

Could you instance any particular place you have in your mind ? —Yes ; take Sydney, for instance,
where the station is in the heart of the city. They are proceeding to extend that railway by an
underground railway. I can also mention London, where the principal termini are in the city. It
has not been found necessary to remove any of the termini out to the suburbs.

I suppose you have not examined the site where it is proposed to construct this new station .
—I know it fairly well.

I suppose the fact of building the station a great deal farther away from the present business centre
is going to make it more expensive for people occupying premises in the centre ?—The business people
who require accommodation nearer the railway-station will have to build new warehouses.

That means their business premises will be removed towards the railway-station ?—Yes.
If it increases the cost of carriage to these new premises it is going to make those goods more

expensive to the people who consume them . —Certainly.
From your knowledge of the conditions in Palmerston North, if it is possible to acquire other

land in the immediate neighbourhood of the present station, would it not be preferable to extend the
operations of the railway at its present position than adopt the method proposed by the Government ?

—I think that would be the best policy.
Obviously the population in a city like Palmerston North follows the railway . —Yes, I should

say so. I know that that is being done at Hamilton.
It is already doing so at Hamilton ? —Yes, Hamilton has extended right across to Frankton

Junction. I may say that Frankton Junction is the main station in that district.
As a matter of fact the removal of the railway-station in the direction intimated by the Govern-

ment will do an injury to those people whose business has been built up by their own industry in the
neighbourhood of the present site. What effect is it going to have on the properties in the immediate
neighbourhood of where the railway is to be ? —lt will increase the value of the property. \
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For an unearned increment ? —Yes. In Christchurch, when the station was situated in the vicinity
of Barbadoes Street the business premises were much more valuable than they are now, owing to tho
fact that the station was shifted to Manchester Street.

It is natural to expect the same thing will happen here ?—Yes, certainly.
I suppose all inland towns depend to a great extent on railway transit ?—That is so.
For that reason the cities are dependent upon the railway and must follow it % —Yes.
Mr. Myers.] Mr. Holmes, have you had any experience of working railways —that is, have you

had anything to do with the management of working railways ?—Only in cases where the Public
Works Department has worked traffic on unopened lines.

You do not regard that as putting you in the position of an export in regard to the management
and working of the railways ?—No, that is so.

You are not for a moment suggesting that you have any expert knowledge in regard to the
management and working of the railways ? —Not on the major points.

Just give the Commission an idea of the experience you have had ?—The managing of traffic on the
sections of line under the control of the Public Works Department during the period of construction.

Mr. Holmes, I suppose you will concede this to me : that oven if the interests of a few people who
have land near the present railway-station at Palmerston North suffer by a change in the locality of
the station, they must necessarily give way in the public interests ?—Yes.

Have you any knowledge of the business from year to year that has been done, say, during the
last twenty-five years at Palmerston North ? —No.

Have you any idea of the difference between the volume of business, say, for the last ten years
and the volume of business to-day that passes through Palmerston North ? —No.

Will you then please tell the Commission why it is you suggest that the removal of the station
is hardly a necessity ? —Because the station can be extended to the south.

Unless you have some idea of the movement of the traffic year by year and its increase and its
probable increase in view, how can you venture the opinion as a witness to this Commission that the
removal of the station is hardly a necessity ? —Because the present station can be extended to any
extent—that is, north, south, east, and west.

Have you any knowledge of the requirements of the Department in connection with the facilities
at Palmerston North—can you say whether you have any knowledge of the business ?—Certainly
not. I would like to add that there is ample land south of the present station for the requirements
of the Railway Department.

Have you taken into consideration the accidents at level crossings in the neighbourhood of the
railway ? —Yes.

Do you consider that level crossings arc proper in the neighbourhood of a station like Palmerston
North ?—No.

Do you not agree that it is a source of danger to have level crossings ? —All level crossings are
dangerous.

You give that opinion as an engineer ? —Yes.
You have said that in Sydney and London they have stations in the city. Now, Mr. Holmes,

you know that both in Sydney and in London the stations to which you refer are terminal stations ?

—Yes.
Can you compare terminal stations with a station like Palmerston North ?—I say you can com-

pare Palmerston North with a station like Clapham Junction in London.
What comparison do you desire to draw ? —I say that the station accommodation can be increased

in the same manner as it was extended at Clapham Junction.
If you have facilities available you can do that ? —Yes, that is so.
Do you consider that tho platform at Palmerston North is sufficiently wide ? —No, I do not

think it is wide enough.
Where are you going to get the increased width from ? —By buying more land.
On which side . —I am referring to the piece of land farther down the line.
Your suggestion, as I understand it, is to buy land to the south and remove the station premises,

&c. ? —No, extend it.
Extend the platform ? —Yes, and the sidings.
I suppose, Mr. Holmes, you will admit this : That the opinion of the men who are responsible

for the working of the railways as to the facilities they require should necessarily be better than the
opinion of a person who has not had the experience of working the railways ? —ln my position as
Engineer-in-Chief it has been my duty in connection with the work of construction of railways to
obtain from tho Railway Department information as to the conveniences they require at stations and
provide those conveniences. The Railway Department is now in possession of their requirements
with respect to Palmerston North, but I say that any engineer would be just as competent to provide
those requirements as the Railway Department.

What I am putting to you is this : Supposing you were still Engineer-in-Chief of the Public Works
Department, and the Railway Department said they wanted certain accommodation, would you
question their opinion ? —Certainly not.

You would regard their opinion as better than yours because they have to operate the railways ?

—Yes.
I suppose, Mr. Holmes, that the Railway Department, after careful consideration, came to the

conclusion that the suggestions you have made arc not practicable. Having regard to the require-
ments of working the railways, would you accept that opinion at once in preference to your own ?—

I would accept their opinion as to the requirements, but 1 would not accept their opinion as to the
best position of tho station premises.
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They arc the persons to be considered even though the Public Works Department have to do the
constructional work ? —lf they determine what they require.

You have said that the principal business places follow the railway ?—Yes.
Are you aware that in Palmerston North all the principal places of business I am speaking of that

usually follow the railway have been gradually making for Rangitikei Street and are located there
now ?—Perhaps in view of the probable moving of the station.

That will not do me, Mr. Holmes. This movement has been going on for years. Can you
account for tho fact that the business of this town is going in the direction of Rangitikei Street and
not towards the present railway-station—ran you account for that ?—lt will take a little thought to
answer that.

I think it would. You are not questioning the accuracy of what I am, putting to you—it is a fact,
is it not ? —Yes.

Mr. Holmes, you admit that it is a fact that in Palmerston North, notwithstanding your experi-
ence elsewhere, the principal business places for years have been going towards Rangitikei Street and
not towards the Railway-station ? —I will accept your statement.

No, you will not. lam not giving evidence. Do you not know what I have said is a fact ?—

I know that a good many places of business are situated in Rangitikei Street.
Are you aware of the fact that in Dunedin the location of the station was altered some years

ago ? —Very slightly, within my knowledge.
About half a mile ? —Not as far as that.
Are you aware that later the condition of things in Dunedin was different ?—The places of

business are growing up round the new station.
In Christchurch the situation of the business places in tho city has not altered ? —They are

growing up along the railway.
It is a fact, is it not, that the railway-station is some distance away from, the business centre .—

The railway is in the same place as it has always been.
Even so, it is quite a distance from the heart of the city ? —Yes.
Take the case of Marton. The situation of tho station there was altered, was it not ?—Yes, as

regards the distance from Marton.
Tho station was removed a very considerable distance away from its first location ? —Yes.
That has not brought the business places down to the station ? —Of course it has. They are

extending up to the old station.
Of course they are—I quite understand that ?—lt is hardly a parallel case.
Take the case of Frankton Junction and Hamilton : Hamilton is one of the most prosperous

places in the North Island ? —Yes.
Do you know that the leading business people in Palmerston North and tho Borough Council and

tho Chamber of Commerce are all supporting this proposal of the Railway Department ? —I have
heard so this afternoon, but I am surprised at it.

I suppose you give those men credit for some commercial knowledge and common-sense ? —Yes.
I am told tho railway-station used to be in the Square : are you aware of that ? —Yes.
And the station was moved, I think, quite half a mile . —Yes.
That does not seem to have affected the prosperity of Palmerston North. ? —That is just a minor

shift along the existing line.
Mr. Oram.] If you were still in the position of Engineer-in-Chief and the experts of the Railway

Department stated that a certain course of action was in their opinion necessary, and that course of
action was backed up by the Borough Council and the Chamber of Commerce and other local bodies
in the town, you surely would not say that that action should not go on because it would, injure the
trade of certain individual persons, would you . —I might hold your opinion, but I think I would
report my views to my Minister. He would be left the final action in the matter.

Have you had much experience of Palmerston North ? —A fair experience. I was first here in
the year 1876.

You have been in fairly close touch with Palmerston North ever since ? —Yes, in fairly close
touch.

You are aware that on the south Palmerston North is bounded by the river ?—On the east.
The point I wish to make is this : from your knowledge of Palmerston North arc you in a

position to say the direction in which Palmerston North is likely to extend ? —Palmerston North
must extend in the direction in which, the Railway Department put the railway.

The wholesale business places will certainly creep along near the railway ? —The retail trade of
the town does not necessarily follow the railway-station very closely.

The retail trade does not necessarily follow the station. lam talking of the town generally. If
tho town extends at all it must extend in the direction of the proposed station ? —Yes, providing the
ground is suitable for a township, but there is some doubt.

According to your experience tho town is actually extending in that direction ? —I believe so,
but to a limited extent.

According to the plan which was originally prepared by the Railway Department some time ago
for the extension of the yard it involved the closing of Cook Street ? —I believe so.

According to the plan of the Department it involved the closing of Cook Street of necessity ?—I
believe it did. If the system of construction adopted in London were adopted here there would be
no necessity for closing the streets. It would simply mean raising the lines.

Would that be practicable in Palmerston North ? —There is nothing to prevent it.
At what cost ?—That would be a question I would have to go into. You would have to com-

promise between viaduct and subway work,
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Have you gone into the question of cost of providing tho line overhead ? —I have not done so in
this case because I have not been asked to. In Sydney the bridges are above the streets.

The point is this : that without either raising the railway-line or putting it under the level of
of the street you could not carry out the scheme without closing Cook Street ? —Put in a subway.

At what cost ? —That is another question.
Do you know that both the town and the district are growing ?—Yes.
Jlow would you overcome the difficulty of the level crossings ?—From the present station to

Terrace End .

Yes ? —I do not think there would be much difficulty in placing the railway-line below its
present level.

Have you formed any estimate of the cost of doing that ? —That would not be a very expensive
matter provided the river-water did not give any difficulty. The gravel-pit at Terrace End is dry.

There are grave engineering difficulties in carrying out that scheme ?—Not that I am aware of.
What about the grades ? —There would be a grade ascending from the last crossing in the Square

at the south end.
Would not that grade hamper the efficiency of the railway service ?—I should not think so.
Have you any idea of the distance from the Square—that is, the last crossing—to Terrace

End ?—About two miles.
Have you any idea of the grade that would be necessary to carry out your suggested scheme ? —

Whatever would be the convenient grade for the Railway Department.
Mr. Myers.] Besides the grades there are other engineering difficulties in the way?- I am not

aware of any great engineering difficulties.
What about the river-water you mentioned just now . —I said that a certain improvement could

be effected provided the river-water did not give any difficulty, and judging by the condition of the
gravel-pit at Terrace End that is dry enough and is also deep enough.

Otherwise you would leave the railway-crossings as they arc ?—Unless it was decided to viaduct
the whole line.

You have not formed an idea of how many million pounds that will cost ?—That would not run
into millions.

In your opinion the convenience of the town would be better served by leaving the station where
it is at the present time ? —I take it that the present condition of the town is due to the convenience
of the present railway-station site.

Mr. Holmes, as an engineer, is it not very difficult at the present time to put in any transit
system from the present railway-station to any of the residential portions of the town ?—lf it would
mean tramways, it is difficult.

It is difficult. From Main Street to the Square is a very congested street for tramways, is it
not ?—I do not think so.

With the removal of the railway-station from the centre of the town to the suggested position
outside Boundary Road, it would be very easy to put in a transit system that would serve the whole
of the borough ?—lt would serve Terrace End.

Do I understand you to say that you could not have a tramway system in Palmerston North with
the railway-station running through the town as it does ?—lt is possible.

How are you going to do it ? —The same as was done in Christchurch.
Mr. Liuckie.] By the method you have suggested of shifting the railway to the south of tho present

site, could you not avoid the shunting through, the Square ? —Yes.
And in consequence one of the chief difficulties which has been raised in connection with Palmerston

North would disappear so far as that portion was concerned ?—Yes.
And you are satisfied from your knowledge of the neighbourhood that there are ample sites

available to the south and west of the present railway-station to provide all the accommodation that
could be reasonably required for a very considerable time to come ?—Yes.

If the land at the proposed new station is subject to heavy flood-water in the winter-time
considerable expense would have to be incurred by tho Railway Department to prevent this ?—The
land would have to be kept high enough to prevent flooding.

As head of the Public Works Department it would be your duty to advise against putting tho
railway-station in tho looality proposed by tho Railway Department if you could not find satisfactory
foundations ?—lf the position were insuperable.

Except at extraordinary expense ?—Yes.
In your opinion there is no comparison between the expense that would be involved by carrying

out improvements at the present railway-station and the expense that would bo involved if the
present Government proposals were carried out ?—The present station could be improved sufficiently
at a less cost than the construction of the proposed deviation.

How much less ?—I am judging by the estimates given by tho Railway Department with respect
to the cost of construction of the deviation.

Mr. Marchbanks.] In connection with the level crossings north of the station, instead of sinking
the road as you suggest would it not be feasible to raise the road from, the Square 7 ft. or 8 ft. until
you got to Terrace End, and provide subways at the Square ? Have you any idea what subways would
cost at the present time . —I could not give an estimate.

William Thomson sworn and examined.
Mr. Luckie.] You are a retired farmer, are you not ? —Yes.
And you reside in Palmerston North ? —That is so.
How long have you lived in and about Palmerston North ? —Off and on. I have known this

town for many years.
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You have had an opportunity of considering the proposals of the Railway Department, and I

want to ask you what would be the effect on the city if the proposed deviation were carried out ?—

I think that the effect on the Town of Palmerston North would be very detrimental. Of course it
would be an advantage to those people who are in the vicinity of the proposed railway station, but
it would inflict an exceedingly grave wrong on the people who are in business on tho main line at
Palmerston North.

Do you know the effect it is having, or will have, on the land in the neighbourhood of the
proposed station ?—I am not speaking personally, but I have heard that values in. the immediate
vicinity of the proposed station have gone up from £120 to £300—that is, of course, roughly
speaking.

Do you know the site of the proposed railway-station ?—Very well.
Have you any knowledge of its condition in the winter-time ?—Yes.
What is its condition . —I have seen portions of the land flooded. I think in the year 1892 or

1893 there was one big flood and it flooded a portion of the land [pointed out on plan].
Have you seen it flooded subsequently ?—Yes, last flood.
How deep ?—I cannot say.
Here is a photograph [Exhibit No. 6] of the land as it was in October last year .—That is

quite correct.
Mr. Myers : That is nothing of the kind.
Mr. Luckie.] Mr. Myors has stated that the general trend of the business at Palmerston North,

independent of the railway, is down Rangitikei Line. I will show that the town is developing
along the Rangitikei Line. There is no doubt about that. [To witness :] Is it a fact that the great
bulk of the business premises which have to hold heavy stocks will remain where they are, near the
railway-station, instead of going down near the proposed site ? —I fancy the business places will
follow the railway-station.

There is a considerable area of land adjoining the present station where land could be obtained
for railway purposes, is there not ?—Down West Street and Church Street there is a large paddock
on the left-hand side as you go along Boundary Road.

Mr. Marchbanks.] I am given to understand there are something like 150 acres there ?—Yes,
I understand so.

Mr. Myers : I may tell my learned friend Mr. Luckie that tho proposal to take land west and
east of the railway-station was rejected by the Railway Department ten years ago. •

Mr. Luckie (to witness).] Do you know that plans were prepared in the year 1914 or 1915, and
were understood to be Mr. Hiley's plans, for improvements to the present station ? —Yes.

Were those proposals put forward by the Railway Department ? —Yes.
Mr. Myers : I protest, sir, against this class of evidence. Mr. Luckie ' asks this gentleman

something about Mr. Hiley's scheme, but he does not say how he knows.
Witness : Well, I can tell you it was stated in a most definite way in Palmerston North.
Mr. Myers : We are simply wasting time.
Mr. Miles : I think the Commissioners will be able to place the proper weight on hearsay

evidence which it should receive.
Mr. Liuckie (to witness).] From your own knowledge you know the locality about the present

station ?—Yes.
Do you know whether or not the level crossings in Palmerston North are a source of danger ? —

No, they are not a source of danger. I may say that for the last twenty years there were only
about four accidents.

Mr. Myers.] Mr. Thomson, ar you giving evidence before this Commission in a representative
capacity, or as Mr. William Thomson, of Palmerston North, retired farmer ?—I am giving evidence
as a representative of a committee.

Of what representative capacity ? —lt is representative of a large number of business men in
this city—for instance, Mr. Clausen.

Exactly. You are one of the so-called " Vigilance. Committee." There are some business men
amongst them %—Yes.

Have you any direct interest %—None whatever.
How did you come to be mixed up with the " Vigilance Committee"

? —Because any one who
has any interest in the town should belong to it.

How many business men are there connected with this " Vigilance Committee "

? —Quite a
number. Mr. Clausen and Mr. Rodgers are two I have in my mind for tho moment. Mr. Rodgers,
land agent, carries on business near the railway-station.

What other business men are there on your committee ? —Mr. Ireland.
His premises are near the railway-station, are they not ?—Yes.
He has a private siding off the present line, has he not ?—Yes.
What other business men are there connected with the committee you speak of ?—I do not

know them all personally. There are a great many who are down Main Street.
Mr. Rodgers, I am told, owns some shops near the railway-station ?—You had better ask him

that question. Ido not know what property he has got.
You know the people in your league—it is a committee and not a league ? —Yes.
What other business men are there . —I do not know. I cannot tell you.
Mr. Thomson, would it surprise you to know that I have here in my hand a petition which has

been handed to me by Mr. Young, president of the Palmerston North Chamber of Commerce, con-
taining the names of 230 persons, every one of whomrepresents a business house, wholesale or retail . —

Yes.
5—D. 4a.
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Are you surprised ? —Not a bit surprised. My answer to that question is this :in my judgment
those men, however good they may be as business men, from the standpoint of railway deviation
they know no more about it than any other man, and I consider they are just as entitled to give
their opinion as other men. I could point out to you a petition which was handed to the Prime
Minister containing the names of five hundred business men who know what is for the good of the
place just as these men know. It is the greatest fallacy in modern times to assume for one moment
that because a man may be a clever business man that he should tell us where the railway should go.

Mr. Thomson, the point I am putting to you is this : you will admit that these business men
are interested in the consideration of this question ? —Decidedly.

After all, it is the business people who are most likely to be prejudiced if any one is prejudiced.
Can you say it is not the business people who are prejudiced mostly ? —I cannot say that.

I suppose you have not been in any mercantile business ? —No.
You have deposed that the photograph you put in is a photograph of the site of the new proposed

station ? —I say that.
Will you tell the Commission whose property that is shown in the photograph. I want to see

whether you know, and I also want to know why you say that the last flood was there on the site
named ?—That is looking at it in a general way.

That will not suit me, Mr. Thomson You have deposed that this is a photograph of the proposed
station ?—That is not what I said.

Pardon me .—I said that in driving out to the place in question and looking in a general way
that is what you will see.

I put it to the Commission that the statement was made in answer to Mr. Luckie and asked in a
question I put to the witness a few minutes ago. If there is any dispute I shall have the shorthand
note read out. [The following was read out at the request of Mr. Myers :

" You have deposed that
the photograph you put in is a photograph of the site of the new proposed station ? —I say that."]
I had a deliberate purpose in asking that question because I believe Mr. Thomson is wrong. [To
witness :] I ask you whose property is that shown in the photograph .—I do not know the names
of the property-owners out there.

Do you know that that is a photograph of a Mr. Fair's property ? —I do not know Mr. Fair even.
Would you be surprised to learn that tho paddock of which this is a photograph is at least a

half a mile away from the proposed railway-station . Do you still consider that is the site ?—Mr.
Luckie asked mo tho question if the country was under flood, and I said that in drying along Rangi-
tikei Road that is what you will see [pointing to the photograph].

I only wanted to give you the opportunity of putting that right if you can. You said that was
the site of the proposed station. It will be proved that the property shown in tho photograph is
half a mile away from the proposed railway-station ?—I should question it, but Ido not know.

Some reference was made by Mr Luckie in regard to level crossings. Are you aware that the
local body in Palmerston North has been pressing the Railway Department for years in regard to
the railway-crossings ?—I cannot speak about that, Mr. Myers.

The station was built some years ago, was it not ? —Yes.
I suppose before the station was built the land which belongs to the people in whose interests

we are now speaking was worth little or nothing ?—You are speaking of a time when I did not
know Palmerston North.

I suppose those people who owned land there got what you called an " unearned increment "

by reason of the station being put there ? —Yes. I should like to say this : that neither the Depart-
ment nor the Government have the slightest right to inflict an injustice on the people, and it would
be inflicting an injustice on a considerable number of people if the proposal submitted by the Depart-
ment were given effect to.

John Chrystall sworn and examined.
Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the Commission, may I be allowed to make a brief statement ?

Briefly, I support the statement made by Sir James Wilson. lam representing at this Commission
the Foxton Borough Council. I also represent the Levin-Greatford Railway League. Tho league
comprises the local bodies entrusted with the local government of territory extending from Paeka-
kariki to Marton. In addition to that we have the support of most of the local bodies as far as
Stratford (with the exception of Wanganui) and the local bodies as far as Taumarunui on the Main
Trunk line. You will see that we are a body of some solidarity and of increasing popularity. We
are approaching this matter from a national point of view. Our objective is to oppose the proposed.
Palmerston North deviation, and we say that the Levin-Greatford Railway is a matter of national
importance. I will ask any one to show a case where the station has been successfully moved outside,
of a town in any part of the world. If the proposals of the Railway Department were given effect
to the cost would be about £700,000, and it will mean a certain amount of difficult construction—for
instance, miles of permanent-way, &c, will have to be pulled up. It will also cost the Palmerston
North Borough Council a large amount of money, because it will have to provide new sidings for its
gasworks, and it will be forced to lay electric trams to convey the people to and from the new station.
A good deal of discussion has taken place as to why the Borough Council and the Chamber of Commerce
unanimously endorse the proposals of the Railway Department. I may say that tho Mayor of Pal-
merston North said that if they did not support tho Railway Department's proposal they would be
side-tracked by the Levin-Greatford League. In connection with the loss to business people I would
like to say that you cannot disturb the existing conditions- without causing a great deal of incon-
venience to the people in the vicinity of the present station. Any one knows that the prosperity of
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Palmerston North depends on the easy accessibility to the main centre of the town, and if people are
landed about two miles away there will bo a great loss of time going to and from the town. A good
deal has been said about the floods, and I ask you to imagine what will happen to the Auckland
express arriving at flood-time. Mr. Nash denies that is the site for the proposed railway-station
[pointed out on plan]. We would like to know where tho site is. In the Palmerston North Standard
it is stated that the land was somewhere between Gillespie's Lino and Rangitikei Line. If this
proposal were given effect to it would mean a total cost direct and indirect to the State of £1,000,000
or more ; and I ask, who is going to foot the bill ? It is all very well for the officers of the Railway
Department to make recommendations for a new station, but we are the shareholders. We submit
that the recommendations made by Mr. Hiley some years ago should bo carried out in their entirety.
I am not an engineer, but I believe Mr. Hiley was a competent one.

Mr. Myers : He was not an engineer.
Mr. Chryslall: If Terrace End could be diverted by having station-yards there it would save the

traffic coming through Palmerston North, and I believe that it is possible to have a goods-station at
Terrace End and leave the passenger-station in its present position. If the Levin-Greatford Railway
were constructed it would be a distance of thirty-eight miles, and the saving in time would be approxi-
mately one hour. It would also save in mileage sixteen miles, and the cost would be approximately
£12,000 per mile, making a total cost with bridging of £600,000. This proposal would also avoid the
necessity of duplication when that time arrives. A penny saved is a penny earned, and every penny
saved from this unwarranted expenditure of the proposed deviation could be transmitted to the con-
struction of the Levin-Greatford line, and the members of this Commission would save £600,000 and
make a gift to the travelling public of New Zealand.

Mr. Myers.] You are one of the members belonging to the same league as Mr. Thomson ?—No.
What is your league ?—The Levin-Greatford League.
What you are here to advocate is the Levin-Greatford line—you want the Levin-Greatford

Railway ?—Absolutely.
The sooner you get it the better you will like it ?—I would not recommend it at the present time.
The sooner you can get it the sooner you will like it—that is the position . —Yes.
Supposing the Railway Department are definite in their opinion that a deviation is required at

Palmerston North, and supposing you can get the Levin-Greatford Railway, is that the end of your
objection to the Palmerston North deviation ?—lt is not; and I say that even if I were a resident
of the North Capo or the Bluff, and equally cognizant of the contemplated waste of money, I would
oppose it as strenuously as I do now.

The fact is you are a Foxton resident and Mayor of Foxton, and also a member of the Levin-
Greatford League ?—Yes.

Y"ou have criticized the wisdom of the Palmerston North Borough Council in coming to the
conclusion that this deviation is necessary—you say it is going to cost a lot of money ? —The Mayor
says so.

Do you think it is altogether right for the Mayor of Foxton to come here and inform the Mayor
and Borough Councillors of Palmerston North how they are to conduct their business and what is the
best way to conduct their business ?—ln political matters. This is a matter affecting the people
generally.

The only reason for coming here is to show that the matter has to do not only with Palmerston
North but with the public generally ?—That is so.

But for that you would not attempt to teach the Borough Council of Palmerston North their
affairs ?—That is so.

Mr. Luckie.] You say the Manawatu Railway Company coped with the difficulty by banking
the Makcrua Swamp ?—Yes, fifteen miles of it.

They did it in the way this could be done ?—Yes, with bankings.

Thomas John Rodgers sworn and examined.
Mr. Luckie.] What is your occupation ? —I am a land agent.
You have property in Main Street, have you not ?—Yes.

' You are satisfied your property will bo affected if any change takes place in the railway-station ?—

That is so.
You have been in Palmerston North for a number of years ?—All my life.
You have watched its growth ?—Yes.
Do you say that its growth is to a large extent due to the railway position '.—Undoubtedly.
In your opinion, what is going to be the general effect on certain railway land if they put the

railway-station in the vicinity of the Rangitikei Line ?—lt will make a great difference to this end
of the town.

A great number of the men who signed the petition that was produced have business premises on
the Rangitikei Line, have they not ?—Yes.

Their business premises will not suffer ?—Not to such an extent.
Do you know the price to which land has gone up where the railway is proposed ?—Some of the

land has changed hands at fairly high prices.
At what price ?—One portion has changed hands at £60 a foot.
Do you know the land where the photograph was taken ?—Yes, it was Fair's property.
The following is a report as to the official announcement of the Department's intention in

connection with the new routes :
" Through the courtesy of the Borough Engineer (Mr. J. R. Hughes)

a reporter was shown the Railway Department's plan this morning anel supplied with some interesting
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details. At present the line from Wellington takes a sharp curve near Longburn and then enters on
a very straight run to Palmerston North. This curve is to be altered into an easy sweep leading across
country to the far side of Boundary Road, the result being that Longburn Station will have to be
shifted in order to be alongside the new line. It is understood that the new and commodious station
will occupy a large area of land between Gillespie's Line and Rangitikei Street and Milson's Line."
That statement appeared in the newspaper, did it not'.—Yes.

What would be the effect on business firms that required to remove goods from the new railway-
station ?—On making inquiries from one of the largest carrying firms the manager informed me that
the carrying could not be done at less than 3s. 6d. per ton extra. At the present time it costs ss. per
ton, and in the event of a change in the location of the station it would cost Bs. 6d. per ton for
cartage.

That must be passed on to the consumer by all those places of business that will bo farther away
than they are at the present time ?—Yes.

That will affect all those business places, both wholesale and retail ?—Yes.
Having lived here all your life you have seen the growth that has taken place ?—Yes.
What is the reason for the main centre going out of the Square and going towards Rangitikei

Street ?—Of course, the main gate is in that direction. As you are aware, Palmerston is a farming
centre.

By the removal of tho station is it going to increase the value of land near the new railway-
line ?—Yes.

It is going to decrease the value of the land in the neighbourhood of the present railway-station"?—
Yes.

Is it not your opinion that the business sites will become reduced from business sites to
residential sites ? —Yes.

Business premises are bound to move towards the railway-station ?—Yes.
Are you satisfied in your mind what has been the cause of the city's growth ? —The railway.
And the fact that it is the centre of the North Island railway system ?—Yes.
We are given to understand that it is proposed to take up this land for the new station. If

they do that, what will happen to the Palmerston North gasworks ? —lt will either have to be moved
to the new proposed railway or provide a new siding.

That would make an expensive siding ? —Yes.
You know something about land-values, do you not ?—Yes.
I want to ask your opinion about a statement made by Mr. MacLean in his evidence in Wellington

with regard to the price of land near the present station. I have not had an opportunity of
discussing it very fully, but he stated that 7,000 ft. of land to the existing streets would be rendered
vacant by this proposal, and that the land was worth from £30 to £60 a foot ?

Mr. Myers : He did not say that. That is absurd.
Mr. Luckie : He said the frontage was 7,000 ft. [To witness :] At what price do you think the

land could be purchased ?—I should say, about 2 chains facing the Square the land would fetch about
£100 a foot; then, from 2to 4 chains away, about £30 per foot; and the rest would fetch from £3
to £8 per foot.

In your opinion would the cost of tho land bo more than £30,000 ?—I estimate it at £40,000 at
the outside.

How long would the land remain on the hands of the Government before it was sold—that is,
if the railway-station was taken away ? —The residential portions would sell fairly well.

Apparently, from what we can learn the whole trouble is that there is a lack of accommodation ?

—Yes.
Together with the difficulty of closing one street ?—Yes.
Do you know whether there is a sufficient area of land in the neighbourhood that is reasonable,

say, at the south end of the railway-station ? —Yes ; and at the southern portion of the railway
station the Department has about 9 or 10 acres not used.

That is the portion immediately adjoining Church Street . —Yes.
Do you know from your own knowledge whether there have been any serious accidents in and

about Palmerston North ?—No. To my knowledge in the past thirty years there have been four or
five accidents.

In your opinion, what would be the effect in twenty or thirty years hence if the railway-station
were shifted out to the proposed new site ?—I think it would be as bad as it is now, or perhaps worse.

Mr. Myers.] You tell us that you have land near the present railway-station ? —Yes, between
the railway-station and the Square.

Fronting Main Street ?—Yes.
Is it leasehold ? —Yes.
Freehold ?—No.
For how long is it leased ? —Twenty-eight years.
What is the frontage ? —l5O ft.
What is the value of the land ? —-£7O or £80 a foot.
What would the lessees' interest be worth ? —£3o a foot, about.
Are you aware that one of the proposals which the Railway Department had to consider, and

had considered, was the extending of the present facilities by taking some land—some considerable
quantity of land—in Main Street ? —I was not aware of that.

How would that suit you ? —I would not care what happens. If the railway-station were moved
1 would gain considerably by it, because I have bigger interests in the vicinity of where the railway-
station is going.
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You have rural land there, have you not ? —lt is really my father's property—about 100 acres.
Is it not a fact that the value of land in Rangitikei Street has been increasing for years ?—Yes,

nearjthe Square.
And gradually for some distance farther on ? —As a matter of fact I know of a property in

Rangitikei Street, and it would not have brought the price it did only for this scheme coming out.
Do you know Holben and Kirk's premises ? —Yes.
What is land worth about there ? —I should say, about £80 to £100 per foot.
How far past Holben and Kirk's on the other side was it that a piece of land brought £60 a foot

recently ?—About 200 to 250 yards.
Is it not a fact that for years past the bulk of the building of business premises in Palmerston

North has taken place in Rangitikei Street ? —That is quite so.
Is it not a fact that that has been going on for ten or fifteen years ?—Yes, about that.
How far would you say Holben and Kirk's place is from the present railway-station ? —About

three-quarters of a mile.
Is it not more ?—I should not think so.
You know the site of the proposed railway-station ? —Yes.
How far would it be from the proposed railway-station ? —About a mile.
As much as that ? —Just about that distance.
So that Holben and Kirk's premises are protty well half-way between the present station and the

proposed station ? —Yes.
So that business premises in the neighbourhood of Messrs. Holben and Kirk's would get their

carting done from the proposed station at about the same cost ?—lt would not make any difference.
Now, look here : when you gave your evidence about carting it was some conversation you had

with a carter ?—A manager of a firm.
You tell us that Messrs. Holben and Kirk's premises are, for practical purposes, about half-way

from the station ?—Yes, from the station.
So that the cartage on goods near Holben and Kirk's would be about the same ?—lf the goods-

shed is put near the station.
That is part of the scheme ? —No, it is stated that the goods-shod would be about two miles and

a half away.
Do you suggest that it would cost ss. extra per ton to carry goods between Holben and Kirk's

premises and a place half-way round the Square ?—I did not suggest anything of the kind.
That is what your evidence suggests ?—A loading business man told me that.
Who told you that ?—Mr. Aitchison.
If that evidence is considered of any value I will call him. Do you know Fair's paddock ?—Yes.
We know that was flooded some time ago ?—Yes.
That flood was caused by the overflow from the Mangaone ? —Yes.
You are not an engineer, of course ?—No.
You cannot tell me whether or not the flooding of the Mangaone could be overcome ?—Yes, it

could be overcome.
That would overcome the difficulty of overflowing that you and some of your leaders have been

talking about ? —lt was not so much the flood we were talking about but the soft nature of the
ground.

You can see as a layman that the flooding difficulty by a little expense can be overcome ?—Yes.
Mr. Jjuckie.] The increase in the value of land in Rangitikei Street would be due to the fact

that it was the main centre—it is converting Rangitikei Street into the main avenue ? —Yes.
In connection with the flooding of the Mangaone: I understand that Drainage Boards have made

efforts to stop it flooding ?—Yes.
But they have not been successful ?—No.
The Commission adjourned at 6 p.m.
The Commission resumed its sitting at 7.30 p.m. in the Magistrate's Court at Palmerston North.

William Wallace Cook sworn and examined.
Mr. Luckie.] You are a representative of the firm of Messrs. Cook and Sons ?—Yes.
And have been carrying on business for some forty or forty-five years ? —Yes.
You have your premises near Terrace End ?—Yes.
You have a siding, have you not ? —Yes.
You have some returns which show the amount of tonnage put through by the siding-holders

in Palmerston North as compared with the tonnage put through by the rest of the importers and
exporters in this city ?—I have.

Can you tell the Commission how this worked out for the year just ended ? —The figures show
that 20,000 tons were handled by persons who are in favour of the deviation, whereas we handled
84,000 tons. It will be seen, therefore, that we handled four times tho amount of goods the other
people did.

That is to say, the non-siding-holders, who constitute that 20,000 tons, arc the people who are in
favour of the proposed deviation ?—That is so.

Now, in connection with land-values—is that going to affect your own business ? —As far as we
are concerned it is impossible to handle goods of a heavy nature and employ traction other th&n
railways.

Would you simply have to scrap your plant and sell your land for what you could get and acquire
new land and plant I—Yes.
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Somewhere along near the proposed railway-line ?—We would have to work somewhere in the
vicinity of the railway.

Therefore your land would decrease in value and the business would be useless ?—Yes.
The same thing would happen in Mr. Ireland's case ? —lt would affect him much more than it

would affect us.
Would you estimate this movement would cost you very much money ? —Nothing under £12,000,

and as far as we can estimate it now it would cost about £15,000.
How long have you had the present siding ? —Twelve years now.
The building of the business depends upon it ?—Yes.
When this proposal first began to be mooted involving bringing you face to face with the removal

of your premises, did you have any interview with anybody with a view of acquiring other land ?—

A proposition was put forward that we should buy land in the vicinity of the proposed railway-station.
By whom ?—By Mr. Davis.
How long ago was that ? —I should say, two months ago.
In anticipation of this proposal being given effect to ?—Yes.
You have been all your life in Palmerston North ? —Yes.
How old are you ? —Thirty-two years of age.
Have you any knowledge of land-values since you have been in Palmerston North ? —Yes.
In connection with those people in business who require to carry heavy stocks, which they have

to import and sell or deliver elsewhere, or deliver generally, how is the removal of the railway-station
going to affect them—will, it materially increase the distance to the railway-station so far as they are
concerned ?—lt is going to affect them to this extent, that their transporting-charges are to be in-
creased.

They will then have to get closer to the railway-station ? —Yes.
Otherwise they will have to pay heavier charges for transport ?—Yes.
Therefore those business establishments which have to carry heavy stocks will, owing to the

distance being materially increased, suffer materially in the business they are carrying out ?—lt is
going to operate in two ways : Firstly, it will involve additional cost in getting to and from the
station ; and, secondly, it will be detrimental to the local business men.

You are pretty well acquainted with the proposed route to be adopted by the Railway Depart-
ment ? —I have seen the plan. [Plan produced : Exhibit No. 3.]

You saw the photograph [Exhibit No. 6] that was put in this afternoon, did you not ?—I did.
Who took it ?—I did.
You remember where that photograph was taken from, do you not ? —Yes.
When was it taken ? —The date is on tho picture. As a matter of fact, I have four pictures of that

same ground.
Where was that photograph taken from ?—lt was taken from where the Kawau Stream inter-

sects Boundary Road.
Generally speaking, in what direction was the photograph taken ? —North-west.
It was taken which way ?—West by north.
Do you know the territory generally about there ? —Yes.
What is tho condition of it ?—Marshy ground. As a matter of fact, I have shot ducks for many

years on it.
How often do you say it is flooded ?—About eight to ten times a year. That is a conservative

estimate.
Does it require a heavy flood I o put it under water ?—lt requires a small fall of rain to put it under

water.
Do you know anything about the condition of it—that is, for foundation purposes ? -Speaking

from a layman's point of view, I know it is very spongy, marshy, and full of decayed timber, and it
would be very expensive to make a satisfactory filling for either a station or station-yards.

You saw a number of names appearing on the petition put in by my learned friend Mr. Myers,
did you not ? —I did.

What do you know of those who have business premises in the Square—do you know anything
about them in particular ?—lt struck me that most of them were small shopkeepers.

Were they mostly freeholders or leaseholders ? —Mostly leaseholders.
Comparatively small leases to run ? —Well, yes.
There are a good number of them who have big business premises and situated in Rangitikei

Street ?—Yes.
Has there not been a very large agitation for tramways in Palmerston North ?—Yes, to my

knowledge for fifteen years.
Those people who are in favour of the tramways want to see the railways away from the present

site ? —Yes.
Do you know of any suggestion that there is the greatest danger from the level crossings near

the station ?—I can only repeat what I have heard stated, and that is, there have been only four
casualties. I cannot remember any more. The people are more careful in the town than they are
in the country.

The railway-trains do not travel very fast within the city limits ?—No ; some trains are faster
than others.

What is your opinion of the estimated value of the properties which it is stated will be rendered
available for sale by the Government if the deviation is given effect to ? —I should say that the
estimate given of the value of property in the Square is accurate. The value of property in West
Street is incorrect. It is not a desirable locality at the present time.
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Will it have any business value ? —For business purposes I would not have any land there at all.
The land in Church Street is dependent on the railway ?—Undoubtedly.
Do you think from £8 to £9 per foot is a fair value ?—[No answer.]
Mr- Myers : I have listened to my friend Mr. Luckie and I protest against this style of cross-

examination. If he is desirous of ascertaining the value of land he should ask him in a proper manner.
My friend ought to know that that is not the way to examine witnesses.

Mr- Luckie: My friend knows when dealing with land-values there is only one way of getting
that information. My friend is aware that the Engineer for the Department stated that tho land
would be worth £30 per foot, and I have the right to bring evidence here to show that he is wrong.
[To witness : | What do you think of the values ?—I think they are wrong. I have bought land in
better localities, and I could not imagine anybody giving the price they say they will got for it.

' What would be the effect on business premises in the Square if the railway-station were shifted
a distance of a mile farther away ? —lt would have a depreciating effect on the values.

The owners would necessarily suffer ?—Of course they would.
At the present time tho work would cost more than before ?—That is in common with everything

else.
This is not the time to construct works ?—No.
Mr. Myers.] How long have you been in business in Palmerston North ?—Fourteen years.
During the whole of that time with your father ?—Yes.
Are you now a member of the firm—how long have you been a member of the firm ? —Five years.
You say your firm, has a railway-siding ?—Yes.
It is a fact, is it not, that that siding is subject to termination ? —Perfectly aware of that.
At three months' notice ? —Yes.
How far is your place of business away from Terrace End ?—We would be about three-quarters

of a mile away.
I suppose you have not thought of inquiring from the Railway Department whether or not your

siding would be allowed to remain, or wliether those people at Terrace End who have places of
business, and who are quite oustidc the busy area of Palmerston North, would be allowed to retain
their siding rights ?—We have made inquiries.

From whom ? —I believe it came from Mr. MacLean himself.
Did you apply in writing ? —No, it was only a general inquiry.
Nor did you make any personal application ?—Oh no.
You do not know what the position would be ? —We quite understand it is very doubtful if we

could maintain our siding right.
Apparently you made no inquiries ?—Personally I have made none.
Would you mind telling me how many tons of the 84,000 tons you spoke about belongs to your

firm ?■—l should say, 25,000 tons, in round figures.
Is that all in timber ?—No, it would be logs, sawn timber, and manufactured goods.
You said to Mr. Luckie that the cost of carriage of goods to business premises carrying stocks

would be increased ? —Yes.
Would you bo good enough to tell me where most of the business premises are located that carry

stocks ?—I do not quite understand tho question—you mean, carrying the stocks ?

Yes ?—ln Rangitikei Street.
Their premises are not situated in the immediate vicinity of the railway-station ?—ln some

cases, yes.
Speaking generally ?—The major portion of their business premises is situate close to the railway

at the present time.
Just listen carefully : I am asking you whether it is not a fact that most of the businesses which

carry stocks in Palmerston North do not have their premises situate in the immediate vicinity of the
railway-station ?—Yes, that is so.

What I say is a fact, is it not ?—Yes.
You took the photograph that has been referred to ? —Yes.
As a matter of fact it is a photograph of Fair's paddock, is it not ? —Yes.
In connection with the floods that have been referred to : do you concur with one other witness

who gave evidence this afternoon that the flooding is from the Mangaone Stream ?—I do not concur
because the matter has been discussed by engineers of the Drainage Board, who are much more com-
petent than I am, and they were not able to arrive at a decision.

If the flooding is not from the Mangaone Stream, can you say from where does the water come ? —

I would suggest that it comes from the Oroua, many miles up country in the neighbourhood of
Kimbolton.

Is there any survey of that ? —lt has been the subject of inquiry by the Borough Council some
five or six years ago.

So we may get some light on the facts from the Borough Council authorities ?—Yes, no doubt.

John Aitchison sworn and examined.
Mr. Luckie.] You are the manager in Palmerston North of the New Zealand Express Company ?—•

Yes.
I understand you have tho biggest carrying business, both for wholesale and retail, as well as for

private carriage, in Palmerston North ?—Of course a large number of firms have their own conveyance.
You know something about the proposed deviation of the railway-line which is the subject of

these proceedings ?—Yes.



D.—4a. 40 [j. AITCHISON.

You know the nearest point of the railway-station is about one mile and a quarter on the
Rangitikei Road ?—Yes.

For the great bulk of the business you have to do, how will that affect the company's carrying
charges ? —We must increase them.

To what extent ?—Quite 3s. per ton.
And in some instances it may be more, is that not so ?—Of course it will be more. The proportion

would bo about 3s. per ton.
Where do you assume that tho goods-shed from which you will have to carry your goods will bo

situated ? —As far as I can understand it is to be situated on the right-hand side of Rangitikei Street,
which is at the intersection of Boundary Road.

If the goods-shed is on any other place in Boundary Road will it increase or decrease the distance ?

—If the distance is much longer it will be much more.
You are quite satisfied that the general bulk of your carrying will nvolve an increase of about

3s. per ton ?—Yes.
And tho public will have to pay for that ?—Yes.
And the consumer will have to pay for it sooner or later ?—Yes.
And that will have a general effect on your business ?—Yes.
How long have you resided in Palmerston North ?—For twenty-five years.
What is your opinion of the effect if the railway-station is removed on land-values in Palmerston

North ?- That is difficult to say. Of course, it .will naturally increase the property near the railway,
because firms will go there to get their business premises close to the railway, but to what extent I
do not know.

In your opinion how will it affect land on the east side of the Square ?-—lt all depends on the
purpose for which the land will be utilized.

Will it improve the value of the eastern side of tho Square for shop purposes ?—Not for some
time.

Will it nffect it in the meantime ?—Yes, to some extent.
What effect will it have in the meantime ?—lt will have the effect that its interest is taken away.
Mr. Myers.] I think you agree that there is a great deal of delay and inconvenience at the

present time in the delivery of goods from the railway-station ?—Yes, there is no doubt about that.
You have from timeto time made serious complaints to the Railway Department ?—Yes.
Both with regard to tho inconvenience and delay ?— -Yes.
I suppose you take into account the inconvenience and delay ? —We have not, unfortunately.
You have not really ?—No.
You are a unique firm ?—We cannot do it.
I suppose you would be glad to have better facilities ?—Yes.
The goods-shed is some distance farther away than the passenger-station, is it not ?—I suppose

the distance from the Square is about half a mile.
Will you please tell me what you charge per ton from the goods-shed to, say, the Commercial

Hotel ?—ss. per ton.
What is the charge from the goods-shed to Holben and Kirk's premises ?—6d. for every half-mile

additional.
How then do you justify your statement that it would cost at least 3s. per ton more for carriage

from the proposed station if it is only 6d. per ton per half-mile extra on your ss. ?—-The distance is
quite a mile and a half to where the proposed station will bo. We would not base it on that price.
When you come to take into consideration that the carts will have to run a mile and a half as against
a mile, you have to run nearly three miles to get a load. Most of the carts arc going back empty.

May I point out to you that better facilities will be provided at the new station ?—Yes, I hope so.
You will have less inconvenience and no delays ?—I have worked it out, and personally I think

that it would cost 3s. extra from that point into the Square.
That is at 6d. per ton per half-mile ?—That is the present rate. The charges may come down.
I think you have complained of the inconvenience and delay in connection with the delivery of

goods at the station : it is a fact, is it not, that the Carriers' Association in Palmerston North waited
on the Chamber of Commerce lately asking the Chamber to agitate for better facilities ?—Yes.

What is it you do want?—The position in regard, to the present station is this: if we send to
the station we wait until the goods are ready for delivery. If we do not do that we would be losing
a considerable amount of time—that is to say, we have to give the Railway Department a longer
period for delivery than, would be the case in the ordinary course.

That is because of the congestion ?—Yes.
The position in Palmerston North is very serious, is it not ?—Yes, it is very serious.
If the Railway authorities say that it is impossible under any reasonable conditions to improve

matters at the present station, and that the only thing to do is to make this deviation, what is it you
want—do you want both or do you want to leave things as they are ?—I am for either way. In the
business I represent it will not affect us.

I am submitting to you two alternatives, and they are, either leave things as they are or hay
the deviation: which is preferable ?—As I have informed you already it will not affect us in the
slightest. It will affect those who are in business.

I am not thinking only of the Express Company, and I do not want the Express Company to think
of itself : lam asking you to think from the public point of view. Which is preferable of the two
alternatives ?—-The public at the present time are suffering through the delay in getting delivery of
goods.



.1. AITCHISON.] 41 D.—4a.
It is quite impossible to go on much longer under existing conditions ?—They cannot carry on

like that—no railway could.
May we take it, or may the Commission take it, that the greater bulk of the goods going from the

railway-station goes into the; Square and Rangitikei Street ?- -In connection with the Rangitikei Street
merchants, there are three at least who have sidings running off the railway close to the station.
Lately tho Gas Company put in a siding.

I am speaking of the goods which you carry .— -These men pack goods in there and cart them
at their leisure.

Is it correct to say that the bulk of the goods from the railway-station goes to Rangitikei Street
and the Square ?—Certainly.

Messrs. Holben and Kirk, 1 suppose, have a good deal of commodities arriving ?—-Not to the
extent they used to.

They get a large quantity of goods from the station ?—Yes.
Do you carry it ?— We have not carried it lately. They have had their own carts for a long time.
Their premises are about half-way between the present and the proposed station ?—Oh, no.
Pretty nearly. Honestly, do you think that the carriage of goods from the proposed station to

Holben and Kirk's place would be much greater in point of charge than the carriage of goods now from
the present station to Holben and Kirk's premises ?—Yes, I do.

How much ?—The carriage from the new site to Messrs. Holben and Kirk's premises would per-
haps be Is. per ton greater than from the old site. We base our charges from the Square.

Do you know that it is worth a little to merchants and to the public to get goods promptly and
to avoid inconvenience and delay ?—Decidedly.

Can you tell me the distance from the Bank of New Zealand corner to Boundary Road ?—I
have not measured the distance, but I should say it would be close on a mile and a half.

It is not a mile. I just wanted to test you in your evidence. Seeing that a large quantity—a
very large quantity—of goods from the railway-station goes to the business premises in Rangitikei
Street, and that it is half a mile or more to most of those premises from the present railway-station
and less than a mile from the proposed railway-station, or the goods-shed, to the Bank of New Zealand
corner, how do you justify your statement that the carriage would be 3s. 6d. per ton more than it is
at the present time ? If it costs ss. to bring a cart now from the goods-shed to the Square, what will
it cost to bring it another half-mile ? According to you, 6d. per ton ?—No.

That is the pomt—I knew I would get you.
Mr. Luckie.] As a matter of fact you do business for a lot of small people ?—Yes.
On the outside of tho Square ? —Yes.
And the bulk of the big business men do their own carting to Rangitikei Street ? —Yes.
What would be the increase in distance you would have to do if the station were shifted ?—Just

about half a mile more.
You would have to do that one way empty ?—Yes.
You are still satisfied that the increase of your charges will be for the bulk of your deliveries ?—

I said, about 3s. per ton.
Have you been interested for some time in the improvements of handling railway traffic at the

station ? —Yes.
Do you know whether there is land available at the present site ?—Yes.
Do you know anything about Mr. Hiley's scheme ? —No.
Nor the proposal to close Cook Street ?—No.
The Railway Department bought some land belonging to your company ? —Yes.
When was that ? —About the year 1912.
Have they used any of it since ?—Not that lam aware of. I think the Postal Department are

using it for some purpose or other.
What was the land bought for ? —I suppose, for railway improvements.
You got £6.000 for it under the. Public Works Act ? —The Government did not give us what we

wanted for the land.
I suppose you will be one of the people who will be very glad to sell to the Railway Department

before the station is removed ?—Wc could have sold the land for more. We were offered about £6 a
foot and got.about £5 a foot for it.

That is in Church Street ? —Yes.
What do you think of getting £30 a foot for land when the railwray goes away ? —I do not think so.

John Ireland sworn and examined.
Mr. Luckie.] What is your position ?—I am a flour-miller.
And carrying on business in Palmerston North ? —Yes.
How long have you been in Palmerston North and connected with your firm ? —About two

years.
You have a private siding, have you not ?—Yes, we have held a siding for about forty years.
Where is the siding situated ?—This side of Terrace End—that is, the post-office side.
Is Cook's siding this side of Terrace End ?—Yes, about a chain.
How far is the siding away from Terrace End Station ?—About 400 yards.
That is on part of the line that will be taken up when the deviation is completed ? —Yes, I sup-

pose it will be.
You anticipate losing your siding if the deviation goes through ? —Yes.

G—D. 4a.
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You handled, did you not, during the recent shortage of flour a larger proportion oi the flour than
was handled throughout the rest of the North Island ?—I would not say that.

More than the rest of the Wellington Province ?—No. We handled a very big proportion of the
goods used in Palmerston North.

Will you be able to carry on your business there if this loop is made ?—lt will be quite impossible
to carry on our business without a siding. For instance, on one occasion we had a matter of 2,030 tons
at one time, and it would have been impossible to have handled that quantity unless we had a railway
alongside.

You are called upon to get rid of it in a short time ? —Yes, the Department can give us twenty-
four hours' notice, but the Department has always been lenient to us.

What would you have to do with your premises if the private siding were taken away from you,
and the deviation were carried out ?—We could not carry on. It would mean we would be over two
miles away from the railway-station.

How far away from the railway-line ? The railway-line must come on this side of the goods-
shed. We would have to build on the other side of the goods-shed.

Near the Rangitikei Line ? —Yes.
Would you have to scrap your present plant ?—lt would be useless. It is a very expensive plant

to put up. I could give you the cost that would be involved in putting up a modern milling plant
to-day. I should estimate that the cost would amount to £20,000.

You estimate it would cost as much as that .—Yes.
In your opinion what would be the effect on business premises generally—those between the

present station and where the proposed new station will be constructed on the Rangitikei Line ? —

I know that in Oamaru, where the station was removed from, the business part, it is practically dead.
Tho merchants have shifted from the vicinity of the old station close to the new station. The same
thing that happened in Oamaru would happen in Main Street, Palmerston North, if the proposals
which have been submitted, by the Railway Department were given effect to.

Do you know whether that is increasing the value of land in the immediate neighbourhood of
the station ? —No, I could not say.

Well, judging by your experience in Oamaru ?—The value near the new railway-station went up
and. in the vicinity of the old railway went back.

The removal of the station has very materially altered the value of the old portion of the Town
of Oamaru ?—Yes ; some places which were good business places near the old railway-station since
removal can only got ss. per week.

You were in Oamaru for how many years ?—A good many years.
You were learning your business there, were you not ?—Yes.
The portion of land in the vicinity of the railway-station is going ahead and is prosperous ?—Yes.
The other portion is dead as the result of the removal of the railway-station, is it not ? —Yes.
Can you see any difference between Palmerston North and Oamaru ? —I am quite sure the same

thing that happened in Oamaru will happen in Palmerston North.
Palmerston North is more dependent on the railways than Oamaru, is it not ?—Yes.
Palmerston North has no waterfront at all ?—No. Palmerston North is dependent upon the

railways.
The great prosperity of Palmerston North is due to its location ?—That is so.
Mr. Myers.] I am afraid I did not catch your statement as to how long you have been in Pal-

merston North ? —I have been in Palmerston North for a period of about two years.
How long have you been in the flour-mill at Terrace End ?—The mill has been there for forty years.
Has it been operating continuously ?—lt has gradually improved. It has gone from a one-sack

plant to a twelve-sack plant.
Some of the plant is forty years old, is it not ?—lt is a fairly modern plant—that is, it has fairly

modern machinery.
What do you call modern machinery ?—We have at the present time over £3,000 worth of

machinery being installed. I may say that this machinery was on order before the deviation was
talked of.

I think you are looking at this question from the point of view of the Manawatu MillsTJompany ?
—

Not entirely.
Mainly ? —I cannot sec that the moving of the station is going to benefit the town. At the

present time Palmerston North is considered to be one of the busiest places in New Zealand. I con-
sider the proposal to move the railway-station farther away from the town must increase the cost of
living in Palmerston North. The carriage of commodities must make it dearer.

I suppose you can see that the necessities of the case may even now, or shortly, require the
removal of the station from its present position ? —I do not see that it does. If the railway is main-
tained in the centre of the town it will continue to be of general benefit, and it is better to have the
station in the centre of the town rather than at one end of it.

But supposing you cannot ? —With the present high cost of materials and the great shortage of
things I think one point the Commission should, consider when going into tho question is to see whether
something could not be done with the present station in the way of improvements.

Supposing it cannot—what have you to say then : are you still going to say that because the
Manawatu Mills Company cannot carry on without a siding the site of the station is not to be altered ?

—I do not go so far as that. Some improvement must be made at the present time. Tho existing
conditions cannot continue.

I am asking you to assume for the moment that the position cannot be improved having regard
to tho public interest generally, but the necessities of the case require the removal of the station from
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its present site : do you still consider that because some of you business people near Terrace End may
have to lose your siding rights the'station is not to be removed ? —Certainly I would not say that.

If that absolute necessity arose, you said something about making other arrangements ? —We
would probably move to a port, where we could get our goods in without any trouble.

For instance, Foxton ? —Wc would go to Wellington.
It is possible for your firm without great expense and loss to obtain land near the new line and

have your siding, is it not ? —Yes, it will be possible,
You do not suggest for a moment, as Mr. Luckie has suggested, that it would be a loss of £20,000 ?—

Our present building would be useless, and it would cost us at least £20,000 to set up.
Could you not use some of your present equipment ?—Yes. The cost would bo very heavy—very

close on £20,000. lam given to understand that the Waimate Mill is costing £20,000.
Is that mill larger than yours ?—Slightly larger. Waimate Mill is to be fifteen-sacks capacity ;

ours is twelve and a half to fourteen sacks. Our business in Palmerston North has been the means
of supplying flour to Napier, Wanganui, and Wellington, and the position would have been very serious
at the time of the epidemic had there not been a flour-mill about.

Albert Lonsdale Cook sworn and examined.
Mr. Luckie.] You are a member of Messrs. Cook and Sons ?—Yes.
Carrying on business in Palmerston North ? —Yes.
You have hoard the evidence given by your brother as to the effect on your business if the station-

site were removed ? —Yes.
Is that evidence correct ? —Yes.
You know something about the site of the proposed new railway-station ?—Yes. The people

who sold land told me they got £350 per acre for 22 acres.
What is the value of the land for farming purposes ?—lf they received £50 to £100 per acre for

dairying purposes it would be a good, price.
Is the land near the railway-site liable to flood ?—lt has flooded every year since I have been in

Palmerston North. Sometimes it floods seven or eight times a year.
It is low-lying land, generally speaking, is it not ?—White-pine swamp.
The whole of that neighbourhood is white-pine swamp ? —Yes.
What do you mean by that ? —lt is very soft underneath—very soft understrata—and is soft

for about 20 ft. down.
That statement is of considerable importance, and I want you to be careful. You would have to

go down a considerable distance to got a satisfactory foundation, would you not ?—Yes.
Mr. Myers.] Can any man who has had no experience in matters of this description be called to

give evidence on what is really an expert matter ?—[No answer.]
Mr. Luckie: We will show you it has the characteristics of white-pine swamp land. The witness

says that it would be necessary to go down about 20 ft. before you get any foundation. lam not
going to carry tho argument any further.

Mr. Myers (to witness).] You have spoken about a sale of some 20 acres of land : to whom did
that land belong ? —Milverton and Sons.

Who was the purchaser?—I think Messrs. Vautier and Wilton.
And they paid £350 per acre for 22 acres ? —Yes.
When was the purchase made ?—Within two days of the scheme being presented to the Borough

Council.
What scheme ? —This deviation scheme.
Can you tell me about what time it was ?—I do not know.
Who told you it was two days after the scheme was presented to the Borough Council ? —The

people who sold the land.
Whore is this 22 acres of land you speak about ? —lt is on the corner of Rangitikei Street and

Boundary Road.
You have spoken of some hole in it ?—Yes.
It is suggested to me that that hole is in the corner of the property : is that correct ?—lt is near

tho bottom portion, yes.
It is suggested to me that the whole is about a quarter of an acre. Now, I want you to be careful,

because we can see it for ourselves. First of all, have you looked at the property lately ?-—Not
recently, no.

What extent do you say this hole comprises ?—I have seen it covered for about two or three acres
for years.

How much is the duck-shooting portion worth ? —£so per acre.
And the other portion ?—About £100 per acre.
Mr. Luckie.] What effect will the removal of the station have on the residential area in that

portion of Palmerston North lying east of the railway-line—is that going to be a considerable item in
the matter of expenditure ? —The removal of the station will put them more in the way of a rural
settlement.

When it comes to the question of getting goods it is going to increase the cost of same consider-
ably ?—Yes, it will add to the cost of living so far as they are concerned.

Mr. Marchbanks.] What depth of water goes over the Rangitikei Street ?—I have seen it a couple
of feet coming down the Mangaone Stream. I have seen it for a few years. The floods have been
heavier on what is known as Fair's Swamp.

Is that the most you have ever seen it ? —Yes, that is the most 1 have ever seen.
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Christian Nicolai Clausen sworn and examined.
Mr. Ljuckie.] You are a timber-merchant and sawmiller ?—Yes.
How long have you been carrying on-business in Palmerston North ?—Since 1894.
About twenty-seven years ?—Yes.
You are against tho proposal for the deviation of the railway ? —Yes.
What in your opinion will be the effect upon Palmerston North and upon tho block of business

premises on the eastern side ?—Speaking of the eastern side, I think it will have a deadly effect.
What do you say with reference to the cost of living to people who reside in that particular

district ? —The increased cost of carting our goods will have to be passed on : that is the only way.
So far as your business is concerned, to what extent will it increase the distance that you will have

to cart goods ? —We will have to cart goods to the station wherever they propose to put it—say, about
a mile and a half away.

You have a railway-siding, have you not ?—Yes.
Where are your premises situated ? —Main Street West—opposite the railway-station.
You make that your centre for getting and carting goods—you store your firewood there ? —Yes.
If you lose that siding and the railway-station is shifted you will have to go nearly a mile and a

half to get your goods ? -Yes.
To what percentage do you anticipate that will increase the cost of goods, you handle and sell ?—

I should say, about ss. per ton.
What do you charge now ? —For time—do you mean the average price ?

Yes ?—I could not give you an. average price.
I wanted to get the percentage of increased cost you would have to pass on to other people : will

it nearly double the cost ?—lt will land out at about ss. per ton.
The extra cost will increase by ss. per ton, and that will have to be passed on to tho purchasers

and to tho public generally ? —Yes.
There is no other way of doing it ?—Not that I can see. If the railway-station is shifted I

cannot carry on.
You know something about the site of the proposed new station, do you not ?—I helped to fell

some of the bush.
How long ago ? —I suppose, thirty-five years ago.
What is tho nature of the country ?—lt is mostly white-pine land. You could travel half a mile

and not see a bit of soil—all the soil has been washed away.
Is it subject to flood ?—Yes.
Beyond Boundary Road and about north and south of Rangitikei Line ? —Yes.
You know the country spoken about and you knew it thirty-five years ago : it was chiefly

white-pine bush there ? —Yes, chiefly white-pine. There was a bit of tawa and matai timber there.
Is it subjected to floods now ? —Yes, I suppose; about seven or eight times a year during the

winter.
Mr. Myers.] You have a siding near the present railway-station, have you not ? —Yes.
You have your factory and yards in. Rangitikei Street, near Messrs. Holben and Kirk's premises ? —

Yes, almost next door.
So you have to cart quite a lot from your yard near the station to your place in Rangitikei

Street ?—Yes.
Do you tell the Commission that it would cost you more to cart from the proposed railway-

station to your place in Rangitikei Street than it would cost you to cart from your present yard near
the existing station to your place in Rangitikei Street ?—Yes, it would.

Would it really ? —Yes, from the proposed station.
You. have a yard near the railway-station. lam only speaking of cartage, and nothing else. Do

you suggest that it would cost more to cart goods from the proposed station to your place in Rangitikei
Street than it would cost you to cart from your present yard near the present railway-station to your
place in Rangitikei Street ?—Yes.

How much per ton more ? —2s. 6d. per ton more. I have already said that.
You surprise mo, and I will leave it at that. I think you know what Mr. Hiley's suggestions or

proposals were in 1914 ? —Yes.
Were you satisfied with them ? —Yes.
Mr. Clausen, is that true ?—I am not aware that what I say is not true.
I will recall the circumstances to your mind. Is it not a fact that Mr. Hiley's suggestions of 1914

involved the loss to you of your siding ?—I am not aware of that.
Is it not a fact that you were for several years a member of the Borough Council in Palmerston

North ?—Yes, for nine years.
Is it not a fact that you voted against the closing of Cook Street ?—That may bo so.
Is it not so ? —That I voted against it ?

For the closing of Cook Street ?—I cannot remember.
Yes, you remember ?—I cannot remember.
Your memory is quite good. It was of groat importance to you. I ask you to think a minute

and be frank with me : is it not a fact that you voted as a member of the Palmerston North Borough
Council against the closing of Cook Street ? —I cannot remember.

Do you not remember the question arising ? —lt arose very often.
Do you mean to tell me that you do not remember whether you supported the closing of Cook

Street or voted against it ?—The question came up so many times.
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May I point out to you, Mr. Clausen, that you are " fencing." Now answer the question ?—I
cannot remember that. I have been out of the Council for nine years now.

I do not care if it is eighteen years ? —The question of closing Cook Street came up so often in the
Council.

Do you not know that the closing of Cook Street also involved the loss of your siding ?—I never
knew that.

Do you know that if Cook Street were closed now, and the scheme which my learned friend Mr.
Luckie is asking us to adopt were adopted, it would mean the loss of your siding ? —That is the first
I have hoard of it.

Supposing I told you that it would, would you still remain a member of the league and support
it ?—Yes.'

Mr. Clausen, you surprise me a second time. So that even if you lost your siding you still prefer
to have the railway-station where it is ? —Yes.

Why—it would not matter to you ?—I think it would be waste of money to shift it.
You are thinking of the public purse rather than of yourself ?—I think a little of both.
Mr. Clausen, there is a drain, is there not, called the Kawau Drain ?—Yes.
Where is this drain ?—lt runs right away from Boundary Road to Awapuni.
And does the water, or any of the water, which you say lies on this land in the neighbourhood of

the proposed new station drain into this drain ?—Yes.
Are you aware that the Borough Council is engaged in taking steps to straighten and widen that

drain ? —Yes, the upper reaches of it.
Mr. Luckie.] Whore does the flood-water on Boundary Road come from ? —When the Manawatu

River rises it banks it up.
Do you know that the Oroua has anything to do with it ? —Yes.
Have any efforts been made during the last ten years to get rid of that flood-water ?—When 1

was in tho Council we went up to inspect tho property and found that nothing could be done.
And it still floods ? —I cannot say.
Did you over hoar until Mr. Myers put it to you this evening that the closing of Cook Street meant

the loss of your siding ? —That is the first I heard of it.
Were you ever threatened with the loss of your siding during any of the negotiations with respect

to tho closing of Cook Street ? —No.
Had this question of the loss of your siding anything to do with the closing of Cook Street ? —No.
Would the closing of Cook Street involve the loss of your siding ?—Not that I am aware of.

i

James Alfred Nash sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] You are Mayor of the Borough of Palmerston North ? —Yes.
How long have you held that position ?—Thirteen years.
You are also, and have been for the last three years, a member of tho House of Representatives

for the district ? —For two years.
I understand you wish to make a statement, Mr. Nash ?■ —Yes. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen

of the Commission, 1 did intend to make some reference to the proposed Levin-Greatford route,
but, sir, lam going to leave that alone. I wish to submit to the Commission a photograph, and
I. want to ask you, sir, to be kind enough to allow me to take the photograph away to-night, because
I am certain any proposal which comes before Parliament in regard to the Levin-Greatford scheme
will, after members have seen what they will have to contend with, receive the same short shrift
as it received during the last session. 1 want to make our position quite clear by saying that the
Borough Council did not at any time approach the Railway Department in regard to the removal
of the railway-station, but we made many complaints in regard to the level crossings, the shunting
of trains in the Square, the whistling of trains, and all that sort of thing. The proposals were made
to the Council, and they were purely departmental. The position was put before us very clearly,
and we practically had the option of two things—one was the removal of the station, or the removal
of that portion of the goods-marshalling yard, probably some four or five miles from the township.
The Borough Council gave the matter consideration, and the members, with the knowledge they
had of the working of the Railway Department here, came to the conclusion that they would not
be justified in holding the matter up, and that in the interests of the town and the country it was
desirable that the work should be carried out. We went further and had a meeting with the
Chamber of Commerce and with the business men of the town. We invited them to meet us and
fully discuss the position. We were aware that there would be some cases of hardship, but let me
say that some of those people who are the greatest advocates for the removal of the railway in view
of the increased traffic are going to suffer as well as those who are raising objections at the present
time. 1 may say that I have watched the progress of the Railway Department in this town for a
period of over thirty-five years, and I remember the station when it was in the middle of the town.
Eventually it was found necessary to remove it to its present position. Subsequently the Railway
Department realized that the traffic was increasing, and in consequence they decided to acquire ail
the land that they could adjacent to the present station, and this was done. I would like to say
a few words in. connection with tho scheme, known as the "Hiley scheme," which, has been referred
to (luting the sitting of the Commission here and also in Wellington. We never received the
proposal which was submitted at the time as a scheme at all. The Council was, however, approached
with a view to closing Cook Street. Now, sir, we had previously, or a previous Council before us,
agreed to the closing of Pitt Street, and the question arose as to what would be the position in regard
to the closing of Cook Street. We had numerous deputations advocating that there should be a
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subway provided for vehicular traffic. However, the Borough Council arrived at the decision that
Cook Street should be closed in the interests of the town and the country. We asked the Government
to take the necessary steps, and if they were not in accord with that suggestion then the Council
would do so ; but I would like to point out that at that time the war broke out, and the question
in regard to the expenditure of money with respect to the railway-station in Palmerston North had
to be deferred. This was held over until some few months ago, when the matter was reopened.
We could not understand what was the reason for not getting certain information in regard to the
closing of Cook Street, but finally the General Manager of Railways, Mr. McVilly, asked us to consult
with him and one or two of his officers on a given date in regard to the question of the railway
station at Palmerston North. They came up, and the position was put very clearly before
us by the General Manager. We then realized that in the interests of Palmerston North and the
district as a whole there was only one thing to do, and that it was impossible to carry out any
proposal in the way of extensions on the present site. If improvements were carried out at the
present site it would only satisfy the requirements for another four or five years, or perhaps ten
years at the outside, and then the Department would be in trouble again. I would like to take
this opportunity of clearing up one point. In listening to the remarks of Sir James Wilson this
afternoon I think 1 am right in saying that while he had every respect for the General Manager
and the Engineers, he thought they had approached this matter from the point of view of Palmerston
North and not from the point of view of the Dominion. May 1 just read an extract from the
General Manager's letter, which shows that the Department has taken up the matter from a
Dominion point of view, and not, as Sir James Wiison stated, from the point of view of Palmerston
North. It is as follows :

" The main point for consideration in the interests of the Dominion, your
town, and the Department is the solution of the difficulties and the provision of facilities that will
provide not only for the moment but for the future requirements of a large and rapidly growing
railway traffic. This problem has engaged the serious attention of the Department . . ." I
merely mention that to show that this matter had been considered from a Dominion point of view.
Now, sir, in connection with the growth of the raiiways, we find that over a period of twenty years
the passenger traffic in Palmerston North has increased by over 300 per cent. ; live-stock, 600 per
cent. ; timber, 600 per cent., and so on. I want also to say this, sir : that when we realize that
the number of wagons arriving here averages fifteen hundred to two thousand every day it must be
recognized by everybody that something had to be done to overcome the existing difficulty. Unless
something is done it will be impossible to carry on under existing conditions. At times, if one were
to go down to the railway-station it would be seen that two trains arrive together, and other trains
arc heldjiip outside the precincts of the station and cannot get in. That is a common occurrence.
When we come to the question of the goods traffic we find that the Department actually have to
send train-loads of goods down to Awapuni, situated two miles distant, and also to Longburn Station,
a distance of four miles, in order to overcome the congestion at the station. Why, it was only the
other day, when a lot of trucks were standing at Awapuni, that a case of goods was stolen which
was worth something between £400 and £500. As I have already intimated, it will be impossible
for the Department to carry on under the existing conditions. And, sir, there is another very
important factor to be taken into consideration, and that is, for some time past the lives of men
working in the station-yards have not been safe. As is weli known, men have been killed there ;

and can you wonder at it ? Tho handling of stock is giving a great deal of trouble. At the present
time stock has to be driven into the yards at night and placed in the trucks so as it may be taken
away in the early morning. Ido want to stress this point, sir: that owing to the shunting
operations of the Department—and they cannot help it—numerous complaints have been made
about the matter. As a matter of fact you will find, people in the Square blocked at the level
crossing, and there they have to wait until the train shifts. That has been a great nuisance so far
as the citizens of this town are concerned. We want the tramway service for this city, but there
can be no question about it that a tramway service cannot be installed until we have been relieved
of the railway-crossings. It has been said that a subway should commence from the town so that
trains would not go through the main thoroughfares. To-day I heard one witness say that the line
should be built up and that it was just a simple matter to do that. At the present time it is
impossible for a good many of the trains to get up with their loads on to the top at the other end
of the town, and it is quite a common thing for a train to get half-way to the top and have to
go back towards the town and make a fresh, start. 1 have seen that happen on numerous occasions.
That is the sort of thing that is going on under existing conditions. The question with respect to the
distance of the new site has been raised more than once, but the conditions will be far better and
there will be more room, and the Council hopes, with the assistance of the Railway Department, to
make a proper entrance to the new railway-station when it is erected. So far as the business people
are concerned I want to stress this point: Evidence given to the Commission to-day was to lead
you away with the idea—l do not suggest that that can be done for a moment—that the business
peopfe in Palmerston North would be put to a great deal of inconvenience because of the removal
of the railway. I want to say this, sir : that for years past Rangitikei Street has been recognized
as the home of the merchants. There all the big business premises have been erected, and there arc
no business men from the merchants' point of view that I know of in the vicinity of the present
railway-station. Therefore the removal of the railway is going to be an advantage to the business
men in Palmerston North, and that is why they are hotly supporting the proposal. 1 would like to
say also, sir, that the trains running through the centre of the town are a source of danger. It is
not very long ago that a man was killed on the level crossing. As a matter of fact, I saw a man
cut to pieces at the level crossing in the Square. There have been numerous deaths on the railway-
line. I submit that, in the interests of the town, the business people, and the Railway Department,
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the railway-station should be shifted. My Council is supporting the proposals of the Department
because we consider that it is going to provide something which will add to the future of this town
and the district generally.

Mr. Myers.] As far as your personal interests are concerned, and your personal financial
interests are concerned, are they in any way improved by the deviation of this line, or are they
better under existing conditions ? —They are better under existing conditions.

That is what I understood. So that to you personally the alteration would be a detriment and
not an advantage ?—That is so.

You have been in business yourself as a merchant in Palmerston North off and on for some years
past, have you not ? —Yes.

For several years you have been in the land-agency business ?—Yes.
Can you give the Commission any evidence as to the probable value of the land now occupied

by the Railway Department in the vicinity of the present station which will be available for sale or
lease if the station is removed ? —When the tramway service is put in the statement that Mr. MacLean
has made will be justified as to the value of land per foot.

Can you give that as your own personal opinion ?- -I say that because the land on the other side
is worth anything up to £150 per foot.

What do you say about the land on the Church Street side ?—That land will not be so valuable,
and probably it would be worth from £8 to £10 per foot. I concur with Mr. Rodgers.

As a matter of fact, can you say whether or not it would be possible by roading to make the length
of frontage available for sale very much greater than 7,000 ft. ?—I cannot answer that.

Can you assist the Commission by giving your opinion as to the quality of the land and its nature
in the neighbourhood of the site of the now station ?—I heard a witness say to-day that you could take
a stick and put it down 15 ft. anywhere. If that is so lam unable to say how it is possible to graze
cattle on it.

Fair's property is the property shown in the photograph [Exhibit No. 6] put in to-day ?—That is
supposed to be the station-site.

Do you know whether or not that is the station-site ?—I know it is not the station-site. It is close
on half a mile away.

Do you know from your own local knowledge, and from your knowledge as Mayor of Palmerston
North, and from, your engineering reports, and so on, what water it is—l mean, from what stream does
that water come ?—lt comes from the Mangaone and Kawau. I may say we are remedying the
Kawau. The Department's proposals should help to remedy the Mangaone.

One gentleman said to-night that tho water came from the Oroua River : How many miles away
is that river ?—About thirteen miles away.

Is the thing feasible at all ?—lt is not feasible.
When you say " we are remedying the Kawau " you mean the Borough Council, of course ?—Yes.
Mr. Luckie.] Are you in a position to tell us where the station will be ?—Yes. [Position pointed

out on plan.]
Do you know where the goods-shed will be ?—The Department has not settled that matter

definitely yet, and I cannot tell you.
The Railway Department has not made up its mind where the goods-shed is to be ?—I understand

they have not yet. I assume that the position of the goods-shed will not be very far away from tho
station.

Do you know whether or not the ground floods ?—I do not want to deny the fact that in flood-
time the water does not lay in the position where the new railway-station will probably be.

It floods about six or seven times a year under existing conditions ?—I do not agree with that
statement.

Have you not frequently complained to the Railway Department with respect to its failure to
protect the railway-line on the way to Terrace End—there is no protection, I notice, for preventing
the public stumbling on the line ?—That is not the fault of the Borough Council. We have sent down
a request to the Railway Department to have it fenced, but they do not want it fenced.

Who do not ?■—There are a lot of small stores in the street on the road to Terrace End, and people
on the other side of the line make a practise of crossing it to get their requirements. The accidents
have not been there, but at the level crossings. The reply we received from the Minister was that
when we had settled the matter among ourselves we were to go' to him. That was a diplomatic reply.

Did not one accident take place at Terrace End where there was no level crossing ?—Yes, and a
man was killed at the crossing on tho Longburn-Rongotea Road, and there have been other men killed
in the Square. As a matter of fact, a man was killed outside the Courthouse.

It is correct, is it not, that you yourself were in favour of closing Cook Street ?—Yes.
It was closed by Proclamation on three occasions, was it not ?—Yes, it has been closed on three

occasions.
There was a considerable area of land bought near Church Street ?—Yes.
It has never been used ?—lt was not used on account of the war.
There is a considerable area of land that could be taken south of the railway-station. If an

ox-Manager of Railways says this station could be improved by taking the railway-station farther
south, would you say it is impossible ?—What I say is this : If an expert man—an engineer—said that
this was practicable, and the expert Engineer and General Manager of Railways said it was not, I
would believe the Railway Department.

These are men who know their business ?—-If they were railway managers I would accept their
statement.

You are not an expert in matters of this description ?■—No.



D.—4a. 48 [j. A. NASH.

I suppose you have watched the growth of Palmerston North for a number of years ?—For the
past thirty-six years.

I suppose Palmerston North has a fine back country, and a good deal of its prosperity is duo to
its being the railway centre for the North Island ? —The railway has assisted it, but Palmerston North
being an agricultural district has made it what it is to-day.

What is the difference between Feilding and Palmerston North ? —Feilding is too close to
Palmerston North, unfortunately for Feilding. Palmerston North is the centre.

Is it not a fact that Palmerston North owes its supremacy by reason of its being the centre of four
systems of railway ?—The bulk of it is due to Palmerston North being an agricultural centre. »

Are you not aware that the natural consequence of removing a railway-station is to move the
economic centre ? That has already been done in Hamilton and in Oamaru ?—The circumstances
are different in Palmerston North, because the trend of building from a business point of view for years
now has been going right out where the railway is to be moved.

If the railway-station is moved that must increase the value of land round the railway-station ?—

The trend of building has gone where the railway is proposed to be built.
Necessarily a great deal, more of it must go there when the main central railway-station is going to be

put one mile and a half to the west ?—I do not agree with you. I think, with tho up-to-date tram
service we hope to have in Palmerston North, the people, irrespective of that sort of thing, will make
for the centre.

You know as a matter of fact that the building of railways away from the townships has been
the means of not assisting the towns to progress ?—Take, for instance, Masterton : that place is going
ahead.

At any rate, you say that some of that land fronting Main Street would be worth £80 per foot and
some of the other £5 ?—I do not agree with. that.

That land will go back in price when the railway leaves it ?—I do not agree with you.
Mr. Marchbanks.] In connection with Mr. Hiley's scheme put before the Council, do I understand

that it provided entirely for the closing of Cook Street ?—Yes, sir. We did not have any set of
plans handed to the Council.

There were no plans before the Borough Council, and the proposal dealt with the closing of Cook
Street ?—Yes. They said, " You agree with the closing of Cook Street," and intimated that it would
be impossible to do anything unless they closed Cook Street.

The Commission adjourned at 10 p.m. until 11 a.m. next day.
t

Palmerston North, Thursday, 10th March, 1921.
The Commission resumed at 11 a.m. on Thursday, 10th March, in the Magistrate's Court at

Palmerston North.
George Joseph Harford sworn and examined.

Mr. Myers.] You are Mayor of Feilding, are you not ?—Yes.
How long have you held that position ? -I have been Mayor for two years.
You are aware that there are two main questions involved in the consideration of this Commission ;

one is the question of railway facilities at Palmerston North, and the other is the question of the Levin-
Greatford deviation ?—Yes.

You desire to say something, I think, on both these points ? —I desire to say very little in regard
to the deviation near Palmerston North. 1 think that is a question more for the Palmerston North
people.

Has that question been, a subject-matter of consideration by your Council ? —Yes.
I mean the question of the facilities at Palmerston North ?—Yes, it has been discussed in the

Council, but more so the question of the deviation.
You mean the Levin-Greatford deviation ? —Yes.
So far as the facilities at Palmerston North are concerned, are those facilities approved by your

Council, or docs your Council leave it an open question for Palmerston North ? —We certainly
believe that in the interests of the public the deviation would be the proper course to adopt.

That is, the Palmerston North deviation ? —Yes. We think the level crossings are a curse to New
Zealand, and if some of them could be done, away with a great improvement would be effected.

I suppose you people in Feilding have not a correct knowledge of the requirements of the station
at Palmerston North ?—Wc only know at the present time that it is unworkable and very congested.

I suppose wo may take it that so far as Feilding is concerned, whatever is considered to be in the
public interest so far as the railway facilities at Palmerston. North are concerned, Feilding would be
satisfied ?—Perfectly satisfied.

Now, with regard to tho Levin-Gcatford deviation, I think you desire to say a word or two in
connection, with that matter ?—Yes. This question has frequently come before our Chamber of
Commerce as well as our Borough Council meetings. In our attitude towards the question we thought
it was so far out of the range of practical politics that we did not enter into the question for a
moment. We do not think that any Government in possession, of its right senses would take a
railway through swamp land and sandhills through which the Levin-Greatford deviation would have
to pass. About thirty years ago there was another deviation that was recommended, and a Commission
was set up to ad. ise as to its suitability : that was the Fcilding-Mangaweka deviation.
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I think that deviation was referred to by the Commission set up in 1916 and presided over by the
Chief Justice ?—I believe it was referred to. In connection with the Commission which I have
mentioned there is one point which has not been clearly understood. The Hon. Mr. Bryce, who was a
member of that Commission, owned something like 300 acres of land situated near Kimbolton, and
because he owned that land he would not vote upon the question at all.

Do you know of any alteration in the circumstances that has arisen since the year 1916 so far as
concerns the suggestion of the Levin-Greatford deviation ? —The alteration so far as Feilding is concerned
has been this : that the weekly stock-sales, as well as the ram and ewe fairs, are now largely attended
by people rom the Main Trunk line. The facilities that are provided on the Main Trunk line suit
both partie —that is to say, those desirous of attending the sales can arrive in the morning and are
able to return home the same night. If the deviation were carried out it would entail a lot of
travelling for people and put them to a lot of trouble, and it would also mitigate against the welfare of
Feilding.

To that extent tho position has altered since 1916 not in favour of the suggestion of the Levin-
Marton deviation, but against it ?—Decidedly against it.

Is there anything else you want to say ? —No, except to say that I was in the room when Sir James
Wilson was giving his evidence. He said something to the effect that the Railway Department was
no alone to be considered in this matter, but that the public should have a say, as the railway was
for their convenience. Mention was made that when you come to consider the district between Levin
and Marton there are about 34,500 people. Out of that 34,500 people there are only 4,000 people
in the Manawatu County, and I believe a good many of them arc now in Feilding. I think it was the
best argument that was used for retaining the present line that Sir James Wilson could use.

Mr. Luckie.] With reference to the proposed deviation of the railway round Palmerston North,
has that ever been discussed by your Council ?—Yes, that matter has been discussed by the Borough
Council.

Did the Council ever pass a resolution about it ? —No, it was an informal discussion. We felt
that it was not in our interests to interfere with Palmerston North in any way.

It is a matter in which you are entirely indifferent ?—I could not say " indifferent."
It does not matter to you so long as the facilities for the carriage of goods are maintained—it is

a matter of indifference to you whether the present station is maintained or a new station is to be
constructed ? —Certainly; it does not matter to us one way or the other.

I think you said something to the effect that if the Government approved of the Levin-Greatford
deviation it would mean that the railway would have to pass over a lot of swamp land : do you know
that land ?—Yes.

For how many years ?—I have known it for the last thirty years.
Is it a correct definition to call it swamp land ?—A good bit of it is.
Is not the great bulk of it very fine land ? — You have to recollect that on one side of it is

the sea.
You are only speaking about a very small portion of that land : where is the swamp land and

sandhills ?—Only a few months ago I had occasion to come home that way—that is from Levin via
Foxton—and I had to turn back.

Is it not totally incorrect to give the impression that the bulk of this land is not good land ? Is
there not some forty or forty-five miles of good land through which the railway would have to run ?

—

No, not to my mind.
How much of it is good land ?—I have not measured it.
Would there be five or ten miles ?—You know better than I do.
lam beginning to think I do. When you make a general statement like you have done one

comes to the conclusion that you do not know very much about it. You say you have stock-sales in
Feilding ? —Yes.

Would you object to Marton being the headquarters of these stock-sales instead of Feilding ?—

I have never given it a thought.
Marton would benefit at the expense of Feilding if that were done ? —Certainly not. Feilding

is too rich a district to be effected by a change.
What possible harm could this change do Feilding ?—As I have said, Feilding would not I uffer;

but the people who send their stock to the sales in Feilding would find a great deal of difference if a
change were made. At the present time, as I have already stated, the people attending the stock-sales
arrive by the early morning train and leave for home again in the evening.

If Marton were made tho headquarters of the stock-sales it would mean that tho stock which
was handled and sold at Feilding would be handled and sold at Marton ?—I do not think so.

Why ? —The difficulty is getting the sales there.
As a matter of fact you know perfectly well that the question of the Levin-Greatford Railway

has other bearings, such as the benefit to long-distance passengers, for instance-—it would shorten the
service on the line north of Marton and south of Levin, would it not ? —Yes.

It shortens the route by about fifteen miles to seventeen miles, does it not ? —I believe it does.
Would it not be in the public interest to shorten the journey so far as passengers, stock, and

other goods are concerned ?—Not if you have to pay £1,000,000 for your railway.
I mean apart from all that—would not that be an advantage to the travelling public ? —What

section of the public do you mean ?

That section of the public that has to travel between stations north of Marton and. south of
Levin ? —There are very few people among the travelling public that would worry about that.

It would be an advantage to them, would it not ?—You might think so.
You do not think so ?—No.

7—D. 4a.
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What do you know about the country in the vicinity of the Levin-Marton deviation ?—I know
a good deal about the country.

You have admitted that I know more about it than you do ?—I said you ought to know.
Is there not a lot of fine land that would be opened if this line were adopted—there is Foxton

on the one hand and Foxton to Levin on the other ?—Nothing to compare with the land on the
Main Trunk line.

Is it not a fact that there is a lot of wheat-growing country there ?—I am not a farmer, Mr.
Luckie.

You are in favour of the Kiwitca loop, are you not—that was the other alternative route referred
to before the previous Commission ?—No, I was not in favour of it, because I did not happen to be
in tho district at that time. I have only been in the district for twenty-eight years.

It was discussed five years ago : are you in favour of it ?—Yes, if it was opened up it would
make available a vast quantity of territory, and it would also shorten the through distance.

Jack Howard Vincent sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] What is you - official position ?—I am the representative of the Oroua County

Council.
And you have been directed by your Council to make certain representations to the Com-

mission ?—Yes.
Will you please indicate to the Commission what those representations are ?—I was directed

at the Council meeting yesterday to appear before the Commission and emphatically protest against
the proposed Levin-Greatford deviation, on the grounds that the advantages (if any) of the deviation
would not in any way be a fair recompense for the tremendous amount of money that the con-
struction would cost; and, taking into consideration the financial stringency at the present time,
the Council is of the opinion that the money would be far better expended in works of a more urgent
kind, such as the installation of hydro-electricity, which would, in the opinion of the Council, be of
more use to the Dominion than any quantity of Levin-Greatford deviations. As far as the other
question is concerned, wh eh appears to be a most vital question so far as Palmerston North is
concerned, my Council has not very much interest in the matter, sir. That is a matter for the
people of Palmerston North, the Government, and the Railway Department to settle. My Council
is not very much, interested in the matter of whether the railway-station is still confined between
advertising hoardings and a line of disused engines, or whether the station is removed down the
Rangitikei Line.

You are interested, as we all are, to secure the best facilities available ?—Yes, the best facilities
should be taken into consideration.

Mr. Luckie.] You live at Ashhurst ?—Yes.
You are a member of the Oroua County Council ?—Yes.
What is the district covered by the County Council ?—lt extends from the Ruahine Range at

the back of Ashhurst to the Rangitikei River.
How would the actual distance affect you and the people you represent—l mean, if the Levin-

Greatford deviation were carried out ?—lt would not affect us personally in any way.
It would not affect your district in any way ?—No, I do not think it would affect a large portion

of the Oroua County.
So far as you are concerned it does not matter whether such a deviation is made or not ?—As

already stated, the expenditure of £1,000,000 on that deviation at the present time is not, in the
opinion of my Council, warranted.

The assumption is that it is going to cost £1,000,000, but you have not been told that it is ?—I
believe there has been some evidence to that effect.

Mr. Luckie : Not yet, of any value.
Mr. Myers : My learned friend is totally incorrect, because there has been some evidence given

in regard to that matter. What Mr. MacLean said, sir, was that Mr. Holmes in 1916 intimated that
it would cost £10,000 to £12,000 per mile, and he (Mr. MacLean) said that if that were so, and he
accepted his estimate, it would cost anything up to £1,000,000 to construct fifty miles of the railway
between Levin and Marton.

Mr. Luckie : That was an interjection.
Mr. Myers : That evidence was given by Mr. MacLean in Wellington.
Mr. Luckie : It was never intended to ask this Commission to report in favour of that route.

Now is not a suitable opportunity for the expenditure of such a sum of money.
Mr. Myers : If you say it is not warranted it will save a lot of time.
Mr. Luckie (to witness).] You referred to the financial stringency at the present time: do you

think in view of those circumstances it is advisable to incur a very heavy expense immediately ?—I
do not suggest that at all.

Lachlan Thomson McLean sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] You are Chairman of the Kiwitea County Council ?—Yes.
I understand from you that you are deputed by your Council to attend before this Commission

and express the views of that body in regard to one or both of the matters in which this Commission
has been asked to inquire into ?—Yes, we discussed the matter at the Council meeting.

Will you please communicate those views ?—The Council I represent is very much against the
Levin-Greatford deviation. The Council thinks it would be a very bad thing for the district, because
it would be cutting off the main line from a very prosperous district. The only advantage the Council
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can see in regard to the Levin-Greatford deviation is that it would shorten the distance between the
centres. The people living between Levin and Greatford have a tramway, and the district is fairly
well served so far as railway facilities are concerned. The Kiwitea County Council is very much
against this deviation being put through, and considers if any deviation takes place it should be put
through to Kimbolton.

Has your Council considered the question of the railway facilities at Palmerston North and the
proposal of the Railway Department to build the station accommodation elsewhere—say, at the
Rangitikei Line ? —They have not discussed that at the county meeting.

Mr. Luckie.] You approve of a reduction in the distance so long as it does not do any harm to
your own district ?—I did not say that.

You said that if there was to be any shortening of the line it should be put through Kimbolton ?

—I said the Council is of opinion that if any deviation takes place it should be put through Kimbolton,
the reason being it would open up country.

You approve of that deviation ? —I cannot say that 1 would.
Why not ?—The only advantage claimed by this Levin-Greatford deviation, as far as I can see,

is that it would shorten the distance from the centres. If that was the only object in view the line
could be shortened by putting the deviation through Kimbolton.

And would you not object to that ?—I did not say that I would not object to that.
Would you ? —I am in favour of the line going where it is at the present time.
How long have you lived in the district ?—lt is the only district 1 have been in.
What position do you occupy in the Kiwitea County Council ?—I am Chairman.
For how long ?—About four months.
Surely you have considered the question as to whether or not you will support that deviation

you have mentioned ? —At the present time I would not support it.
Why ?—I do not think it is the time to go into the question of a deviation at the present ti__e,
Under normal conditions ? —I would not say that I would.
Do you think that the people would support this deviation—that is, the people living in the

Manawatu district, which forms portion of your county ? —Mangaweka is not in our county.
Do you not think it would be an important advantage to them—on the Main Trunk line they

are in favour of it ?—I do not think so.
Why do you not think it is an advantage to shorten the route ? —I do not think so in all

cases.
You said the district that would be served by the railway if the Levin-Greatford deviation were

constructed is well served at the prese.it time by th;; tram ?—That is all they require.
I suppose you leave Palmerston North to be the judge of what it requires, but you are not

prepared that the other people should be the judges of what they require ?—I did not say that. I
suppose they would like to get rid of their tramway. I can assure you they would be very pleased
to get rid of it.

I want to know why you have an opinion on one question and not on the other : why do you
think it is best for them not to have communication ?—They have very good railway communication.

Do you mean Foxton ? —Yes. They are connected with Palmerston North.
Mr. Marchbanks.] Has there been any survey of the line you speak of, say, from. Feilding to

Manga weka ?—Yes.
By tho Government ? —Yes. It would ..ave been approved, as far as I can understand, if it had

not been for the Hon. Mr. Bryce. The Mayor of Feilding said in the course of his evidence that the
Hon. Mr. Bryce had 300 acres, but he had actually 3,000 acres. The Hon. Mr. Bryce was one of the
members appointed on that Commission at that time, but he would not have anything to do with it
because of his land being interested. .

Joseph Linklater sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] You are the representative of one of the neighbouring local bodies?—Yes; he

Kairanga County Council, and also the Foxton Harbour Board.
You are Chairman of the County Council, are you not ? —Yes.
And also Chairman of the Foxton Harbour Board ?—Yes.
Have these two local bodies considered and expressed their views upon the two matters into

which this Commission has been set up to inquire ? —Yes.
Well, let us take first the question of the railway facilities at Palmerston North : what representa-

tion do these two local bodies, or either of them, desire to make to the Commission ? —So far as Foxton
is concerned in relation to harbour matters it does not affect it at all. With.regard to the Kairanga
County, I should like to say that it is essentially a farming district, and a great deal of produce is
sent away from that district as well as a great deal of stock. We find that through the congestion
at the station it is difficult very often to get our produce railed, and in consequence a good deal of
time is wasted.

Does that apply both to inward traffic and outward traffic, or traffic only one way ? —We are
particularly interested in sending our produce outwards, but there are times when we import goods.
With regard to the trucking-yards, I would like to say that we find them in a very bad position.
In order to truck stock you have to be at the yards before any other traffic starts in the morning,
otherwise you are in trouble, especially through shy cattle. Accidents have already occurred there,
and a great deal of inconvenience is suffered by those who handle stock there.

Mr. Luckie. \ I do not think those facts are denied ? —We have to wait and untruck
that is, show cattle—in the morning because we could not untruck stock when people arc about.
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Then your Council has come to a considered opinion, and what is that considered opinion ? —

My _JUti3t is thoroughly in accord with the decision of the Railway Department to shift the station
to th; proposjd site where they could give additional facilities to the people of the county.

And L supp_>3e the Commission may take it, in coming to that decision or to that opinion, the
members of the County Council have been actuated mainly by the consideration of what they think
are the needs of the people of the county ? —-Yes.

Do you not want to express same view as to the suggested Levin-Greatford or Marton devi-
ation—are the local bodies in favour of it ?—We are all strongly against it.

You say both local bodies are of a certain opinion, and what is that opinion ? —They are strongly
against the Levin-Greatford Railway.

So that the Commission may assume that the whole of Foxton is not in favour of the deviation ?

—The Foxton Harbour Board is not unanimous—there is one exception upon the Board.
There is a minority of one in favour of the Levin-Greatford deviation, and he happens to be the

Mayor of Levin ?—-Yes.
What is the constitution of the Foxton Harbour Board ?—You mean, who are the members ?

Yes ?—There arc representatives of the Kairanga County Council, the Feilding Borough
Who represents the Feilding Borough ?—Mr. Clapham.
Who represents the Kairanga County Council ? —-I represent that body.
What other members are there ? —The Mayor of Levin. Then there is Mr. Barber.
What district does he represent ?—He represents the Manawatu district.
What is his opinion ? —He is against the proposed deviation.
A number of those members have expressed their opinion because it will have some effect on

the traffic round here—is that not so ? —That is so.
Would it not to some material extent decrease the congestion that exists at the present time in

Palmerston North ?—- You mean the Levin-Greatford route ?

Yes ?—-It may to a certain extent.
What you chiefly want the railway-station removed for, or in favour of its removal to the site

proposed by the Railway Department, is to improve the facilities for handling traffic ? —Yes.
If they can improve the facilities without removing the station and at a less cost, would that

not suit you as well ?—-No. The majority of the people of the County of Kairanga do their shopping
in Palmerston North, and the level crossings are a source of danger to those people. I have also
another objection, and that is with regard to the frontage to several farms in my county along the
line from Rongotea Road. The railway-line runs in front of several farms, the only access to those
farms being over the railway.

Must it not do that in a great many other places—it obviously does that all over New Zealand ?

—I do not think that is so.
There are many places where the railway runs alongside the road ? —-Not right up against the

farms.
Now, in the first place you have to consider that the railway has to go by the nearest route. The

road, where possible, will follow the nearest route ? —That is so.
The alternative is to cut the farms in two : which would you prefer ? —What do you mean,

exactly ?

You have either the train at the back of your farm or at the front of it ?—-I would rather have
the train at the back of the farm rather than in the front.

You know there is a lot of valuable land lying south from Pascell Street, at the foot of Cuba Street,
right down through to Kairanga Road, and beyond it alongside which the railway runs, does it not ?

—Yes.
If the railway-yards could be built there, do you not think that would be a greater improvement

and would be less expensive than building the station in the vicinity of Rangitikei Line ? —I do not
think there would be any improvement in the present system, because the trains would still have to
go through the town.

John Llewelyn Morgan sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] You are Stationmaster at Palmerston North, are you not ? —Yes.
A position which you have held for how long ? —For fifteen months.
When you came here, Mr. Morgan, how would you describe the traffic at Palmerston North—

would you say it was heavy traffic ? —-Yes, very heavy.
I just want you to take the position as it was then : if there is no more traffic than there was

when you arrived here fifteen months ago, do you think that the present facilities would be sufficient
to meet the traffic and.enable you to carry the business of the Department on in a proper way ?—

Absolutely no, sir.
Since that time, you have told lis, the facilities were not sufficient. Since that time how has the

volume of traffic been—has it increased or decreased ?—lt is increasing, I might say, every month,
sir.

Take the current year as against the preceding year : can you give the Commission any idea of the
ratio in the increase of volume of traffic during this year ?—-In wagons only, do you really mean ?

Give the information any way you like—you can give it in various ways if you like ?—Roughly
speaking, the volume of wagons handled for three weeks of this year was from 1,452 per day to 1,886
per day. That is an increase of about 6 per cent, for last year in the corresponding number of vehicles.

Is that a fair test ?—That is a fair test. I would like to say that we would have handled more
than that if it had not been for the labour troubles.



J. L. MOEGAN.] 53 D.—4a.
Would it be fair to say, if anything like the same conditions as last year existed to-day, that

your traffic would have been greater ?—I estimate we must be prepared for a2O per cent, increase
this year.

You have told us that the volume of traffic, so far as wagons are concerned, ranges from 1,400
to 1,880 ?—Yes. By using every siding in the yard we can accommodate 917 wagons. This would
mean that the yard would be blocked in every direction.

Can you say to what extent you think an increase in the yard accommodation is necessary—
that is, the percentage of increase ?—I consider we should not have less accommodation than stand-
ing-room for 2,000 wagons in our yards.

Does that mean you will require more than twice the accommodation you have at the present
time ? —-Yes, two and a half times, at least, for our present work.

That is without looking ahead ? —-Yes.
What about your station accommodation ?—The station accommodation is also very poor. I

suppose every one knows what is termed by " scissors crossings." Well, it is points situated in the
middle of the platform which allow trains to go from one road to the other. As far as we are
concerned, we can hold two trains of twelve cars and a van, but the majority of our trains are of a total
of thirteen, fourteen, and fifteen. We have different trains to cross, and we have not the accommoda-
tion for them. The least I can say is that the conditions arc absolutely dangerous at the present time.

Then, so far as the station and platform are concerned, are they sufficient ?—I must have an
increased length of three cars at each end—that is, the length of three cars. This would mean about
fifty yards each way.

What about the width of the station ?—-The platform is also dangerous. It is not wide enough,
and, to my mind, it should be double the width.

What about the goods-shod ?—-It requires to be four times as large, at the very least. Three
parts of our goods-shed work has to be done outside of it.

Can that condition of things go on ?—Absolutely, no.
Can you expect to work a staff under such conditions ?—lt is by extreme tact that I am able to

keep the men going.
Are you in a position to speak about the engine-shed accommodation ?—Yes.
Have you considered the question as to whether you will have sufficient, or anything like suffi-

cient, room to enable the requisite increased accommodation to be provided ? —-I consider it is abso-
lutely impossible without closing the Square altogether. You must have the length, and the length
is not there.

You want breadth, too, if you are going to increase the width of your station ?—-I must have
another platform, if the work is to be carried on.

When you say " another platform," what do you mean ?—■ Another platform so that I can bring
four passenger-trains in at once. At the present time, if I bring in four trains, the people have to
scramble over the cars in order to reach the platform.

You really want two platforms ?—Yes.
You require an island platform, or something of that description ?—lf an island platform were

provided it must have docks at each end. You want accommodation for those trains coming and
going.

You are speaking of the present-day requirements ? —Yes.
I think you know the land we have spoken of in the neighbourhood of West Street: it is

suggested by some gentlemen that some of that land could be used in connection with the present
yards for the purpose of providing the necessary accommodation ?—lt is not feasible, sir.

That is your opinion ?—Yes, that is my candid opinion, and I can speak as an expert of some
thirty-seven years' service ; and I think 1 am right in saying that I have had 99 per cent, more
experience than other railway men. You could not work the business on the other side satisfactorily.
It would be a menace to the safety of the railway traffic from one year's end to the other.

Would you say that the land which Mr. Luckie suggested should be taken is farther away from
the business centre of Palmerston North than the proposed new station-site ? —I am sure you will
find that is correct.

Moreover, you say that you do not think the proposal is feasible ? —No, sir, it is not feasible.
Still dealing with the suggestion made by Mr. Luckie of taking land to the south of West Street,

suppose such a course was adopted, what would be the effect so far as West Street is concerned ?—

West Street would have to be closed and made available for railway purposes.
And Cook Street would have to be closed also ?—Yes.
What about Main Street ?—Main Street practically becomes West Street—that is, it is the junc-

tion one with the other. Main Street ceases before it crosses the railway and becomes West Street.
Mr. Luckie.] Mr. Morgan, you are not an engineer, of course ? —I will say this : I have had to do

with the laying-out of stations during the last ten years.
You are a traffic man, are you not ?—Yes.
You are aware that the proposal of the Railway Department is to take away the present station

altogether and place it on a new site : what do you say about that proposal ?—I consider it is the
only feasible plan that can be achieved for carrying on railway business.

You say that as a result of your knowledge and experience generally, and particularly as a result
of your experience in Palmerston North, and knowledge of the present-day conditions ?—Yes.

It has been proposed to close Cook Street, but it has not been done : you have been working
over Cook Street for a long time past, have you not ?—'Yes.

Mr. Marchbanks.] Can you say, roughly, what proportion of wagons that arrive in Palmerston
North are from the north and going to the east coast—that is, from the north of Terrace End, on the
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west coast, going out to the Wairarapa line and the Napier line ?—You might say that half the traffic
for the east coast comes from the north.

You say that about 1,400 trucks are handled every day from the north for the east coast ?—I
could get those figures.

And also from the Wairarapa side coming into Palmerston North and going north ? -I will also
get that information. As far as the passenger traffic is concerned, about half the volume of traffic
which passes along the line goes from Palmerston North or comes into Palmerston North. I think
you will find that the goods traffic is somewhat similar.

Ernest Hugh Crabb sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] What is your profession or occupation here ? —I am a grain-merchant.
You are also a member of the Borough Council. ? —Yes.
And you are the senior member of the Council ?—Yes.
That is the Palmerston North Borough Council ? —Yes.
You heard the evidence given by His Worship the Mayor ?—Yes.
Do you concur with the evidence he gave ?—Yes.
I think you desire to state certain matters yourself to the Commission ? —Yes.
You have a note of the various matters on which you desire to inform the Commission ?—I have

been appointed by the .Borough Council to give evidence from the Council's point of view in favour of
the proposal submitted by the Railway Department. When the matter came before the Council it was
in answer to an inquiry from the Council as to the reason why Cook Street had not been closed, and
the alterations made in the yards which were originally proposed and which were urgently required.
The proposals of the Department came as an absolute surprise to tho Council, but we considered it
was primarily a matter that affected the welfare of the Dominion through, its Railway Department,
and as such, of course, it was for us to forgo any local feeling that we might have in the matter.
When we came to look into the matter we were favourably impressed with the proposals that had been
submitted to us. We considered the present position a great drawback to the welfare of the town
as a whole, and we desired to see an improvement effected. I may say that we have made repeated
applications to the Department with regard to the danger caused by the trains running through the
Main Street. I have lived in Palmerston North for eleven years and during that time I can recollect
about seven fatal accidents over a portion of the line affected by the deviation. We have also made
repeated applications to the Government with regard to the loss and inconvenience suffered to the
town, and also with regard to the insufficient accommodation at the station, and we welcomed the
opportunity of getting rid of what we considered to be both a menace to the welfare of the inhabitants
and an increasing drawback to the welfare of the town itself. With regard to the best methods of dealing
with the present disastrous congestion, we consider, of course, that that is a matter for the Railway
Engineers and the General Manager who, after all, are responsible for the railways of this Dominion.
It was distinctly understood that the proposal submitted by the Department was the only solution
of the problem, and therefore we considered that that settled the question entirely, and we were justified
in leaving the matter in the hands of men who have made a life-long study of the problem. I would
like to point out that the present position from the point of view of the borough can best be described
as disastrous. Through the long delay over this matter I estimate that the financial loss to the
Council will be not less than the sum of £7,000 to £10,000. We were just on the point of doubling
our gasworks, and for that matter the excavations had started. I may say that machinery is
continually arriving, and at the present time we have upwards of £40,000 of machinery lying round.
The gasworks are overloaded, and they are on the point of breakdown. We cannot extend, or
provide the necessary facilities for the town because of the present position and delay in regard to
the deviation question. If the deviation question is finally settled upon we must move our gasworks
to a point somewhere in the vicinity of the proposed station, and until that question is settled we are
unable to do anything. I may say that we have contracts held up at considerable expense at Home,
and the materials must arrive a long time before we are able to provide a building for them. I want
to bring under the notice of the Commission that this matter should be settled definitely. I consider
that most of the objections raised to the scheme submitted by the Railway Department are puerile
and. " piffling." I have never heard serious men raising such foolish objections as some of them are
raising to-day. I want to say on behalf of the Council that when we considered this matter we
sympathized with some of the people who are going to lose through the alterations. I have listened
to their evidence, and I would ask if there is any means of compensating them that the matter should
be considered. I may say that the flooding at the site of the proposed new station is very largely due
to the overflow from the Kawau drain, and I may say that the Council at the present time is engaged
in straightening the drain. I presume the engineers looked into that matter before recommending the
scheme. With regard to the swamp that has been spoken of, I desire to say that there is not a bit
of that country there that has not a clay bottom. There is one other matter I think should be taken
into consideration, and that is the duplication of the line. In a comparatively short period it will
be necessary to duplicate some of these linos, and if another duplicated line is to go through the town,
then you will have to close Main Street or it will be a death-trap.

Mr. Luckie. You have said something about the reduction in values. You have in the ordinary
course of events seen the growth of Palmerston North for many years—it must go towards the
railway ?—I do not agree with that.

You know that large prices have been paid for land in the neighbourhood of the proposed
station ?—Yes.
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Does that not indicate that the growth of the town must go towards the railway ?—That indicated
that some speculators have got in early.

If land has increased from £120 to £350 per acre, would that not be a pretty considerable increase ?

—Yes.
If that is justified there must be a corresponding fall somewhere else sooner or later ?—ln my

opinion the Main Street property when the station goes away from there will, with the exception of
hotel property and the small shops dependent on the catch trade, increase in value.

You had a dispute a short time ago with the Railway Department, who wanted to fence the railway-
lino towards Terrace End ? —You have stated the position incorrectly. The point was there were
two children killed up there, and we thought the matter was so serious that we asked the Railway
Department to fence the line and provide cattle-stops at each of the crossings. Sir William Herries
came up to see us about the matter, but in the meantime a small counter deputation was got up, and
Sir William laughed and said that under the circumstances it would be better to find out exactly what
we required and then perhaps he would be prepared to consider the matter.

Surely it was a matter that the Borough Council should have overridden this small deputation
on ? —Sir William Herries remarked to us afterwards that it was the best " get-out " he had had.

You did not press the matter ? —No. '

You mentioned about several accidents that had taken place ?—Yes ; one was at the crossing
this side of Longburn and the other at Monrad Street.

That is a long way from the populated portion of the city, is it not ? —That is so.
Have many accidents taken place at the Square ?—There have been a good many accidents

there, but they did not result fatally.
You will have that wherever you have level crossings. Then your objection to therailway remaining

where it is—assuming that the congestion could be got rid of—would be the question of trains running
through the city ?—Yes.

You have, as a member of the Borough Council, concurred with the desire of the Railway
Department to the closing of Cook Street ? —ln these matters we are aware of the needs of the Railway
Department. As a matter of fact the railway is becoming an increasing nuisance to the town.

It was not the idea of the Borough Council to get the railway-station removed at all—it was the
Department's idea ?—Yes.

Henry Llewelyn Young sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] What is your occupation ? —Managing director of Messrs. H. L. Young and Co.

(Limited).
A. company carrying on business in Palmerston North ? —Yes.
What is the nature of your business ? —Manufacturing stationers.
You are the president of the Palmerston North Chamber of Commerce, are you not ? —Yes.
Has your Chamber considered the question of the railway facilities at Palmerston North ? —Yes.
Has it considered the question as to whether the station should remain where it is, or whether it

should be removed to the position suggested by the officers of the Railway Department ? —We have
discussed the matter fully.

And has your Chamber come to a considered opinion on the point ?—-Yes.
And what is that considered opinion ?—Briefly, I would like to give you the views of the Chamber.

As president of the Chamber of Commerce—and I represent the majority of the business people in
this town—we are all unanimous with the Borough Council that the removal of the station to the site
as approved by the Railway Department is absolutely necessary. The accommodation at the
present station for traffic, such as passenger and goods traffic, is, in our opinion, inadequate. The
conditions under which they are working make the removal of the station essential in the interests
of the Department, the town, and. the district of Palmerston North. I should like to point out that
if the station is continued—or, rather, if the station is enlarged on the present site, the length would
be so great that with the shunting that is necessary it will practically mean closing at intervals the
whole of the public thoroughfares of Palmerston North from West Street to Princess Street, which is
opposite Devine's Hotel. Then, of course, the burning question with us is having two lines running
through the centre of our town, which divides it in half. It creates a nuisance so far as the Post
Office, tho telephone bureau, and the Public Library are concerned ; and apart from that, the mere
fact of having sets of lines for the Auckland, Wellington, New Plymouth, Wairarapa trains through
the centre of a town the size of Palmerston North is only courting disaster, and we feel that a grave
responsibility rests with us if we allow this condition of affairs to continue any longer than is necessary.
We approve of the new railway-site which the Railway Department has chosen by reason of th© fact
that it is easily accessible and has good, roads. There is ample room there for future development,
and we think the undertaking will be immediately productive, and that it is necessary for the
development of the Main Trunk system. We are perfectly cognizant of the fact that land values
and property will probably decrease in Main Street, but it appears to us that it is a matter of principle,
and the deciding factor should be the greatest good to the greatest number. The petition as presented
to the Minister from five hundred business people of Palmerston North—that is how it was headed
—is comprised, as far as we know, of a few firms who are interested in the vicinity of the present
station, some of whom are landowners, leaseholders, and small business people adjacent to the
present railway-station. I wish to present to the Commission, with their permission, a petition
comprised of business people in Palmerston North, and I would like to stress this point: that some
of the gentlemen who have signed this petition are interested in property within close proximity to
the railway-station, whilst others have farming interests in the Levin-Greatford deviation, but
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they are forgetting their own interests in order to help the Palmerston North Borough Council to
secure a railway that will give satisfaction to the community. I desire to hand in this petition.
[Exhibit No. 7.]

There are 237 signatures, arc there not ?—Yes. I may say that I have had that purged, and
I find that there are seven signatories who are not business men.

I think one or two of the persons who signed themselves as farmers arc really business men ?—Yes.
May we take it that 230 out of those 237 names are bona fide business men, or firms recognized

as carrying on business in Palmerston North ? —Yes.
Can you say whether they represent the bulk of the business interests in Palmerston North ?—

Yes. We submitted the petition for signature on Monday at 11 o'clock, and the petition was
returned again on Tuesday at 11 o'clock.

The whole of the signatures appearing on the petition were secured without any difficulty and
within twenty-four hours ? —That is so.

Do you desire to say anything about the Levin-Greatford Railway ? —No.
Mr. Oram.] It has been suggested in a previous examination that the majority of the people

who signed the petition have businesses in or about Rangitikei Street: are you in a position to say
whether or not that is correct ?—That is not correct. The petition was taken round the Square, to
Terrace End, and all over the town.

There was another suggestion made, and that was that practically all the signatories were
merely leaseholders, or tenants ? —That is wrong, because we have all the largest firms in the town
on the petition, and they are all freehold properties.

Mr. Luckie.] Are there not a large number of leaseholders ? —There may be some, perhaps.
The bulk of those people who have business premises in Main Street and the Square, are they not

mostly leaseholders and tenants ? —I should not say so.
You have, too, the small shopkeepers ?—-We have the large shopkeepers.
For how many years have you been in Palmerston North ?—For twenty years.
You know whether or not the great bulk of those people are tenants or owners of land ?—No,

I do not.
If a largo number who are shown there are tenants, you are not prepared to deny it ? —No.
Do you say that the shunting could not be done even if they went farther south than they propose

to do now without going up to Princess Street ?—I did not say that. I said that if the station is
enlarged it would practically mean closing at intervals the whole of the public thoroughfare from
West Street to Princess Street.

That is a matter of expert opinion ? —No.
The Commission adjourned till 2 p.m.
On resuming at 2 p.m.,—

John Moore Johnston sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] You live in Palmerston North ?—Yes.
You have been in Palmerston North for a long time ?—Yes.
For how many years ?—About thirty-five years.
You are a land agent in Palmerston North, but amongst your activities I think you are honorary

treasurer of the Agricultural and Pastoral Association ?—-Yes.
And also secretary of the Manawatu Racing Club ?—Yes.
You are here to speak as a delegate from those two bodies and also to give your own views ?—

Yes.
First of all, supposing the railway-station is shifted entirely, as suggested by the Railway Depart-

ment, how will that affect the Racing Club ? —lf I may be permitted I would like to read to the
Commission the views of the committee both of the Racing Club and the Agricultural and Pastoral
Association. The following refers to the Manawatu Agricultural and Pastoral Association : " The
grounds of the association are at present situated 12 chains from the present railway-station, and
when the proposed new station is made the distance will be about 50 chains from the nearest point
to the back of the grounds. The committee considered the proposal and came to the conclusion,
notwithstanding the increased distance from the railway-station to the grounds, that the proposal of
the Railway Department is in the best interest of the town and district, and would give much better
facilities to the stockowners and the public. The association has a membership of over 2,200." Then,
the undermentioned refers to the Manawatu Racing Club :

" The Awapuni course is situated two and
a half miles from Palmerston North and two miles from Longburn. A mile and a half from Longburn,
at Awapuni Railway-station, the club put in a railway-siding about half a mile in length right on to
the course, at their own expense, and costing a considerable sum of money—about £6,000—which
enables them to land the public at the lawn-gates. The proposals of the Railway Department for
the removal of the present railway-station to the new site will increase the distance to Awapuni by
about a mile, and do away with the siding being used from Palmerston North. The committee went
fully into the matter, and, though they will be at considerable disadvantage by the change, they are
of opinion the proposals of the Railway Department are very necessary and in the best interests of
the Dominion and this district."

Is that the considered opinion of the responsible officers of the Manawatu Agricultural and Pastoral
Association and the Manawatu Racing Club ? —Yes, the committee of the Racing Club and the
committee of the Agricultural and Pastoral Association.

And these bodies have come to the conclusion, although from one point of view their own
interests may suffer, that in the interests of the district and the Dominion as a whole this change
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recommended by the Railway Department should be adopted ?—That is so, sir. A change is
absolutely necessary because the danger to life and limb is too risky to carry on any longer.

They have taken all the circumstances into consideration ?—Yes, they took everything into
consideration—that is, both schemes.

Did they consider it in comparison with the retention of the present station and yards ?—Yes.
Mr. Johnston, I think you know the land about Palmerston North as well as most people ?—I

think so.
It is your business to know ? —Yes.
One suggestion, that has been made is that if the present yards be retained—assuming it to be

feasible to carry on there—the station and platform buildings would, have to be extended into Main
Street and a considerable quantity of land fronting the other side of Main Street taken for the purpose
of making the alterations. Have you gone into the question as to what that would mean in the way
of compensation ?—The present width, I understand, is quite inadequate, and so is the length. If
they must encroach on Main Street they will have to take the block of land from George Street right
down to the Foxton. crossing. [Plan produced and position explained]. This would mean an expense
of probably £240,000 without compensation for buildings and loss of goodwill, and without taking
into consideration the cross-streets.

Have you made a rough estimate of what the compensation would amount to ?—-Yes, I have.
What do you estimate would be the amount ?—From Main Street to Cuba Street, if the station

is allowed to remain where it is, it would cost an enormous sum of money to enable the Department
to acquire the amount of land that they would need. It would be necessary for the Department to
buy the whole of the land from George Street right down to the Foxton. line crossing or farther, and
do away with. Main Street. This would put Cuba Street in the same position as Main Street. This
would run into a distance of 60 chains to Main Street and 60 chains to Cuba Street, making a total
of 7,920 ft., or 8,000 ft. at an average of £30 per foot, and this would, as I have already stated, without
taking into account the buildings, amount to a sum about £240,000. If the buildings arc taken into
consideration the amount would be much larger.

And the goodwill of the business ?—I consider it would take the best part of £500,000. The life
of any building is not much more than thirty years. With the exception of one hotel and one other
brick building, the premises from the railway-station to McMurray's building were temporary shacks,
and tho hotels and boardinghouses were very old wooden buildings.

The fact is that in your estimate of a quarter of a million you have not taken into consideration
the buildings at all, nor have you taken into consideration tho disappearance of business premises ?

—No.
Have you considered the probable value of the whole of the railway land now occupied by the

station and yards in the event of the station being removed to the proposed site ?—Yes.
What do you say about that ? —To arrive at the value of that land it depends upon the manner

in which it is cut up and the state in which the Railway Department leaves it. Ido not think that
the frontages in Main Street will, be as materially affected if the station is removed as some of the
owners seem to think. The Government acquired Sections 703, 705, 707, 709, 711, 713, 715, 717, 719,
721, 723, 725, and 727 on this plan [Exhibit No. I] fronting Church Street. That land was taken
under Proclamation from tho New Zealand Express Company, and from the Rhodes Estate. The
sections opposite in Church Street will be more valuable when the railway-station is removed than
it is now, because it would increase in value as residential sites when the noise and smoke of the
railways were removed.

You find it difficult to place a value on the land ?—I do not think the valuation that has been
put on the land is an outrageous valuation.

You would not say that the valuation suggested by Mr. MacLean is an outrageous valuation ?

—-No. If the land is cut up in a certain way it can be made more valuable.
We have heard it suggested, that nearly everywhere the business places follow the railway and

get near the railway : Can you say whether that has been the case in Palmerston North ?—Tho
railway-station was in the Square for years—that is, in the centre of the Square. It was subsequently
moved down to where it is now and Pitt Street was closed. The traffic going up towards the Square
drew the shops that are situated in Main Street now. The sections opposite the railway-station are
unsaleable.

Is it not a fact that the trend of business premises has all been, up Rangitikei Street away from
the railway-station ? —For the last twenty-five years the business premises have been going up
Rangitikei Street. The business places in Main Street between the railway-station and the Square
are mostly restaurants, small shops, barbers' shops, and so on.

You know the nature and quality of the land in the neighbourhood of the proposed station and
goods-shed, do you not ? —Very well.

It has been stated that it is swampy ground and that you can put a stick down, say, from 15 ft.
to 20 ft. : What do you say about that ?—That is absolutely untrue. There is, however, a bit of a
wet hole in Milverton's section opposite Fair's paddock adjoining the saleyards paddock.

There is a bit of a hole at the corner of Milverton's section—the hole is about a quarter of an
acre ?—That is so. It would not exceed a quarter of an acre. It is only wet when there are heavy rains.

Do you know Fair's paddock ? —Yes.
Do you know how near it is to the proposed railway ?—lt is on the opposite side of the road from

Milverton's. It is about 10 chains away from the low place in Milverton's section.
Fair's paddock does become flooded at times—portion of it, at any rate ?—I may say that the

bank of the Mangaone is not good ;it is low in parts north-east of the Rangitikei line. It overflows
and comes down the drain and comes on to the road, and it runs into Fair's paddock.

B—D. 4a.
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We may take it that the water that floods Fair's paddock is from the Mangaone ? —Yes. I
may say that the total depth of water would not be more than 12 in. I went up to have a look at
it during the last flood, and the last flood was the first water I have seen in that paddock for three
years.

Somebody said that it floods seven or eight times a year ?—That is absolutely untrue. The
late Mr. E. J. Riddiford leased that paddock for a number of years as a fattening-paddock, and he
was tho last man to take a fattening-paddock that was full of water. At the Commercial Hotel
crossing recently I was stopped there, and in three minutes there were twenty people standing
on one side, sixteen people on the other, four cars and a lorry, and three cars and three carts
on the other side. I may say that that is not an unusual occurrence, and it happens not only at the
crossing in question but at times at the Post Office crossing. From Terrace End to the Foxton line,
a distance of 186 chains, there are eleven level crossings. The town is divided in two, and the entire
population on the eastern side of the town must do their business on the other side of the railway,
and they are compelled to negotiate these crossings. I cannot see how it is possible to advocate the
extension of the line as suggested in the interests of the town. If this were done it would mean
that there would be greater congestion than there is at the present time. If the railway-station is
removed Main Street would certainly become a residential area, and it would extend towards Terrace
End, and the southern portion of the town would become a good business area.

Mr. Luckie.] As far as the bodies you represent are concerned, how many times a year does
the Agricultural and Pastoral Association hold its meetings ? —Two shows a year—in all, nine days,
and Ram Show, two days. Racing Club, five days racing.

Of course any alteration in the location of the railway-station is not going to vitally affect the
interests of either of the bodies you represent ?—As far as the Agricultural and Pastoral shows are
concerned, I would like to say that the great factor is to be as near the railway as possible.

It will not affect the number of exhibits ?—lt will decidedly affect them. On show days people
come from Masterton, Taihape, and Wellington, and the trains bring about fifteen thousand people,
or more.

Have you any dealings with property on the Rangitikei line ?—Yes, I have.
Any recent dealings ?—Not since the talk about the deviation. I have, however, advised people

not to sell.
Have you had property placed under offer to clients ?—No.
Not your Mr. Davis ? —No, I do not think so.
It was stated that he placed land under offer to a Mr. Cook ? —lt was unknown to me.
You say that the land you value at £30 pe_ foot is unsaleable ?—Yes.
Why ? —Because the railway-station is there.
What is the land in Main Street worth—Mr. MacLean put a price on the land ? —I do not know

what Mr. MacLean values the land at. When you take the high values as against the low values you
have to bear in mind how they cut it up.

For residential sites what is your rough estimate of the value of land in this looality ?—ln Broad
Street, about £40 a foot.

You are a land-valuer, are you not ? —Yes.
You mentioned that the value of the property is going to depend on how it is to be cut up ? —I

did not say it was valued at £30 a foot.
If witnesses who pass that place where you say there is about a quarter of an acre of flat-lying

land say that about 3 acres of the land are in flood half a dozen times a year, you say they are not
speaking the truth ?—I say that land was dry up to the last flood in October, except for a few yards,
say, about tho size of this room. [Room approximately 30 ft. by 70 ft.]

Have you seen water on Fair's section ?—I have not seen a foot of water on Fair's section for
three years until the last flood.

I can produce witnesses who say that they have seen 3 acres of it under water and more than a
foot deep ?—I am talking about Milverton's paddocks.

Mr. Myers.] What about Fair's paddock ?—I have not seen water on Fair's paddock worth
speaking of until last October for years.

Roughly, what area would you say was flooded ?—The greater part of the flat was flooded.
There was about a foot of water on the whole ground.

Mr. Myers : That is all the evidence I wish to call, sir.
Witness : I would like to say, as far as the Levin-Greatford deviation is concerned, that all my

interests are at Rongotea with my sons, who have a farm there, and it would be to my own interests to
have the Levin-Greatford deviation constructed, but I am looking at this matter from the point of
view of the people of Palmerston North.

The Commission adjourned until 2.30 p.m. on the 22nd March, 1921, at Wellington.

Wellington, Tuesday, 22nd March, 1921.
Francis William MacLean further examined.

Mr. Luckie.] I understand from your evidence that you have been five years as Chief Engineer
in the Railway Department ? —Yes.

Prior to that time I presume you had nothing to do with matters of this kind ? —Yes, I had.
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For how long prior to that would this matter come within your jurisdiction ? —I do not quite
understand the question, because during the whole of the time I have been employed in the New
Zealand Railways I have been engaged on such questions.

How long has that been ?—That is thirty-six years ; and prior to that I was employed on
similar questions on tho North British Railway.

Matters of this character relating to the administration of the railways, and particularly with
reference to Palmerston North, would have come under your notice officially at any time during
how long a period past ?—The last thirteen years. It is during the last thirteen years that I have
been attached to the Head Office.

And during that period, though you were not all that time occupying tho position of Chief
Engineer, matters of this description would naturally have been referred to you for consideration ?■—
Not always.

Was this question of additional accommodation required at Palmerston North referred to you
before ? —lt was discussed with the Chief Engineer on many occasions during that time.

It was in your memorandum of August, .191.9, that the question of the deviation in the manner
you have indicated was first put forward, was it not ?—That is so—a definite proposal.

I take it, then, that as a result of that recommendation the confidential meeting with the members
of the Palmerston North Borough Council was held with a view to getting the voice of that body upon
the proposals which you then put forward ? —That is so. My proposals were laid before the General
Manager. They had to receive his consideration, and they did so.

Do you say that the matter was discussed with the Mayor of Palmerston North ?—Yes. The
first meeting with the Palmerston North Borough Council, so far as I am aware, was in June, 1920.

As a result of this ?—Yes.
It is well known, according to the evidence given, that this idea emanated from your Depart-

ment entirely, and not from tho Palmerston North Borough Council ? —That is so.
And the first indication given to the pjiiblic was the interview with the Palmerston North

Borough Council ? —As far as I know.
Prior to that time your report was the first indication of your proposal to deviate ? —So far as

I know.
Prior to that all the proposals in connection with the improvement in the condition of things

in Palmerston North had not been by way of deviation ?—Proposals were made, and it was suggested
in one memorandum, at any rate, to the General Manager, that it might be necessary to consider the
question of removing to another site altogether. That was in 1911.

At any rate, the first time when it was formally proposed as a practical necessity was put forward
in 1919 ?—That is so—a definite proposal.

Nearly all the other proceedings that have been taken related to an improvement of the condi-
tions as they exist at the present railway-station : is that not so ? —That is so.

Involving the purchase of that additional area of land from the New Zealand Express Company
and the Rhodes Trustees, which took place about ten or twelve years ago, was it not ?—That took place
about 1911 or 1912.

But since then no step has been taken to make use of the additional accommodation provided ?

—The war intervened, and it was practically impossible for us to do anything.
And, but for the war intervening, may I take it that some steps would have been taken to make

use of that additional accommodation ?—Conditional on Cook Street being closed.
Is it not a fact that Cook Street was legally closed ? —No.
It says so in your evidence—that it was closed again in 1912 ?—No.
If you did not actually close it you took authority to close it ? —A certain Proclamation was

issued, but previous experience showed that Proclamations were of no avail. On two occasions the
closing had been approved, but doing the thing is a different matter.

But you had been advised that you had legal power to close Cook Street ? —The Crown Law
Office stated that there was existing legislation which partly gave us the power, but special legislation
was absolutely necessary.

Is it not a fact that you have power to close Cook Street ?—I know we have not.
Why ?—lt is a question which has been tested in the Court of Appeal on two previous occasions,

and we have failed.
But was not that due to the fact that the wrong method was adopted in doing so ? —No.
Your evidence with reference to Cook Street makes it clear that there was something wrong

with the Proclamation ? —On the first occasion the Court of Appeal stated that wrong steps had
been taken ; when those steps which were indicated were taken, then the Court of Appeal said we had
not the power, so we did not know where we were.

But since then a third Proclamation has been issued, has it not ?—Taking that area I was
referring to—those sections from the Express Company and the Rhodes Trustees ; and included in the
Proclamation was the taking of a portion of Cook Street—but there are other steps necessary before
we can close Cook Street.

It is only a matter of compensation, is it not ? —No.
What else is it ? —lf you look at the Municipal Corporations Act you will see the steps that are

necessary to take. The question has to bo submitted to a Magistrate, and his decision is absolute
and final, and he can say whether the street is to be closed, or not.

This question has not been referred to a Magistrate yet, has it ? —No.
Or Pitt Street ?—Yes.
And Pitt Street was closed conditionally on a subway being provided ? —Yes.
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What did the Magistrate say ? —He said Cook Street could not be closed. He said ho agreed
to Pitt Street being closed if a subway was provided, but at the same time he said that Cook Street
could not be closed.

But there has been nothing done subsequent to the last Proclamation ? —No.
The last Proclamation was in 1912 ?—That is so. That step could be taken without any Proclama-

tion at all.
Which step could be taken ? —lf you will look up the Municipal Corporations Act you will see

all the steps there that are necessary to take.
But you will find that the Railway Department has certain expressed powers in regard to land

which may be taken, and a street can be closed subject to the Municipal Corporations Act ?—I do
not wish to lay down the law about these things, but the provisions of the Municipal. Corporations
Act are perfectly clear. The whole question of tho closing of a street rests with the Corporation.
The Borough Council has, in the first place,' to agree to the closing, and then has to call a public;
meeting. If that public meeting agrees to tho closing of a street, then it can be closed provided
there are no dissentients. If anybody objects he can apply to the Magistrate ; the Magistrate then
gives a decision, and upon that decision depends the question of whether the street shall be closed
or not.

Then I take it there was very little use taking the land you acquired unless you secured the
closing of Cook Street ? —The land could be made some use of, but very little use, unless Cook Street
was closed.

Did the Department take any steps to secure; tho closing of Cook Street before it acquired the
land ? —lt negotiated with the Borough Council.

Did it get the consent of the Borough Council ?—Yes, the Borough Council said that it as a
Council was quite willing that the street should be closed.

And I suppose it is correct to say that the closing of Cook Street, and possibly West Street,
would be essential to any effective improvement ?—Any temporary scheme, yes.

Is there any possibility of anything but a temporary scheme ? —ln my opinion, no.
You prepared certain plans which you submitted to this Commission on the first day showing

certain other proposals than the present deviation—the proposals marked red and green ? —Yes.
When were those prepared ?—ln 1919, along with the report you have referred to.
What was, the object in preparing the plans ?—lt is explained in the report itself.
To show that there was no other possible way than the deviation—is that so ? What I want

to put to you is this : it means that there was no object in putting in plans with the idea of setting
up ninepins to knock them down again ?—lf you will let me sec my report I will show you why the
plan was prepared. It is perfectly clear as far as I can make it so. I stated as follows :" To deal
with the passenger traffic properly without unduly hampering the traffic in Main Street I am satisfied
that this street opposite the station building and at the approaches thereto should not bo less than
100 ft. wide. The necessary accommodation cannot satisfactorily be provided in a building of less
than 50 ft. wide, and the main platform should not be less than 30 ft. wide. These widths I consider
the minimum possible. On a print of the draft rearrangement plan (No. 26630) which has been
prepared I have shown tho effect of providing the widths suggested in different ways : (a) (red lines),
by encroaching on the land occupied by the railway-station ; (b) (green lines), by the purchase of
land on the opposite side of Main Street." That explains why that plan was prepared.

These were alternative proposals, and you showed they were unsuitable ?—They were alter-
native proposals for obtaining the widths of tho building, the width of the street, and the width of
platform which I considered the minimum possible.

You prepared those plans and were satisfied that there were grave difficulties attendant on both
those proposals ? —I went on to say in my report—" If the former method (the red-line method)
were adopted comparatively little land would be available for sidings, sheds, &c. In the latter
method (the green-line method) a very large expenditure in the purchase of property would be
involved."

One meant the taking of Main Street, and the other did not ?—That is so.
And you indicated that in the green scheme you would have to take an area of Main Street,

which was very valuable on account of there being so many buildings on it ? —Yes.
Was it proposed then to divert Main Street ? —That is the reason for it.
Where would you divert Main Street to in that case ? —Opposite the station.
Whereabouts would you divert it ?—I explained in my evidence that it would probably be

somewhere towards Andrew Young Street and along to beyond Short Street.
That would involve the station remaining where it was. You were quite satisfied that neither

of those schemes would be satisfactory, is that so ?—I reported so in my memorandum.
And you were satisfied that no other proposal could be given effect to with any value than the

deviation you proposed ?—I placed before the General Manager tho various proposals which seemed
to me possible, and of the three proposals which I submitted I recommended the deviation as being
in the best interests of every one concerned.

And the three proposals you put before the General Manager were the only three proposals that
you thought feasible ? —Yes.

And two of the proposals were the green and red schemes ? —I do not quite gather the meaning
of your question.

I am saying that you said you put before the General Manager the only three proposals which
you considered were in any degree feasible ? — The three proposals which I considered would be
possible.

The red proposal and the deviation ? —That is so.
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And you at once showed the difficulties about the green and red proposals, which showed that

they were totally unsuitable ? —Yes.
And you arc satisfied that there is no other proposal than the deviation which may be suitable ?—

Within tho limits of expenditure which are in any way practicable.
It never occurred to you to go farther south with the station ?—lt did.
And did you not find that would bo satisfactory ?—lt would not satisfy anybody.
At any rate, you are quite satisfied that on the proposals you put before the General Manager

the deviation was the only one of any use ?—1 considered the deviation was in the best interests of
every one concerned.

Is it the only efficient one ?—ln my opinion it is the only efficient one.
And you considered the green scheme was totally out of the question on account of the enormous

expense ?—lt was going to cost large sums of money in the acquisition of land, and in the second
place it did not provide the necessary accommodation for working the traffic and for shunting the
traffic with safety to the public.

Then, as a matter of fact tin; whole question, I take it, is a matter firstly of the necessary
accommodation for shunting, goods-sheds, engine-houses, and passenger-station ? —Yes.

And a suitable site for them ? —That is so.
That is the whole question which has been agitating the mind of the management for many

years past in connection with Palmerston North ?—lt is not the whole question, because the Railway
Department has to consider the safety of the public ; and mixed up with this question of the passenger-
station was the question of running a railway along a road from Longburn to Terrace End, and that
weighed very heavily with me, at any rate, and I am sure with the Railway Department, in considering
any proposals that had to bo made.

Mr. Myers.] With level crossings ? —Yes.
Mr. Luckie.] There are, as a matter of fact, practically level crossings all over tin; New Zealand

railways, arc there not ? —There are.
I suggest to you that they are just as urgent a matter in other parts of New Zealand as they are

between Longburn and Palmerston North ?—Well, I cannot accept your suggestion.
Why not ? —Because of the danger of running through the centre of a town.
You were talking about a line running along the road between Longburn and Palmerston

North ? —No, between Longburn and Terrace End.
You have had some experience of the railways in England and America in connection with

these matters ? —Yes.
Is it not a fact that in some of the big railway centres both in tin; States and in England, where

the population is infinitely greater than it is in Palmerston North, the railways run with, level
crossings, right through the centre of some of the cities ?—I know that in England such is not the
case.

What do they do there ? —They provide bridges.
Precisely, where the population is such that it is necessary ; but they do not deviate the railways

do they ?—Yes.
To what extent ?—To a very large extent. If you knew anything about it you would know that

in Boston, America, a huge deviation was made, and huge deviations have been made in Chicago,
and all over the place.

For instance, at Waterloo Station in London, and at Clapham Junction, do not the railway-
stations still exist in the middle of the; city ? —No.

Is it not a fact that at Redfern they are trying to bring the railway-station into the middle of the
city ?—No.

They are trying to get it in ?—Yes, but they cannot succeed.
The only thing that stops them, is the cost ? —The cost must be considered.
Is it not necessarily a fact that Palmerston North owes its actual existence in the size to which

it has grown to its being practically the centre of the North Island railway system—it is due to the
fact of the railway centre being there that the population is round it ?—I think the prosperity of
Palmerston North is due to other causes than the railway.

I am not talking about the prosperity of Palmerston North, but the population ? —And the
population.

Do you not think they have had a good deal to do with it ? —I do not think so.
Why is there such an enormous population in Palmerston North as compared with Feilding ?—

Because there is a wider stretch of country there.
Is it better country round Palmerston North than at Feilding ?—I think so. I am not much

of a farmer, but taking area for area I think it is so.
There is no land like that which is around Marton and Feilding ?-- -I think if you compared the

area of the land round Palmerston with that at Feilding you would find that it is so.
Is it not a fact that the natural result of the removal of the railway would be to gradually draw

the city out to Rangitikei Street ?—No, I do not think so. I am satisfied from my own personal
investigation and from the evidence that has been given before this Commission that the growth
of Palmerston North was north-west of the Square long before there was any talk of removing the
station.

I am not denying that. It had built itself around the Square when the Square was near the
railway-station, and then drew out to the natural outlet, which was towards the west ?—lt is just
the contrary.

Is it not a fact that the building of the railway-station must naturally draw the city out in that
direction ? —The proof is there. It is growing in another direction.



D.—4a. 62 F. W. MACLEAN.

Mr. Myers.] What Mr. Luckie means is, will not the diversion of the railway draw the town
towards the new station ? —I think it will draw the town more rapidly in the direction in which it is
now going.

Mr. Luckie.] That is what I wanted to know, and it goes to show that the natural consequence
of taking a railway centre of that size and of that importance in or about Palmerston North is bound
to bring the city round where the station is ?—I do not think so.

Perhaps you can tell us from the plans whore it is proposed to construct the railway-station, and
where the yards are to be. [Plan referred to.] What land is it proposed that the Government
shall acquire ? —The land necessary for the station.

What area is it proposed to acquire ?—That is not absolutely decided. [Centre of station
indicated on the plan.]

What area of land do you consider necessary the Department should acquire for the purposes
of the railway-station, goods-sheds, running-yards, engine accommodation, and engine-houses?-—ls it
wise to answer that question ?

It has a considerable bearing upon the necessity or otherwise of going so far afield for tho land
you require ? —To provide for present requirements and for future development we think it will be
necessary to take land sufficiently long—about 80 acres for the passenger-station and about the same
for a marshalling-depot.

That is 160 acres altogether ?—For all purposes we might require that, but we do not propose
to occupy as much as that.

How much do you propose to occupy : it might be very useful and wise to take land that you
do not intend to use ?—Probably half that.

Then you will probably require to occupy about 80 acres ? —Yes.
Will you tell the Commission in what proportion you would like to have that land—how long

and how broad ? —lt would be an advantage to us to have an uninterrupted communication free of
all level crossings for the whole length of the railway.

For the whole length of the railway-station and yards ?—Yes.
You have got 80 acres—how would you propose to divide that ? —ln varying proportions of

width.
You want it much longer than you require it in width ?—Yes.
What is, roughly, the proportion of length and width that you would desire in order to make

the most effective use of it for the Department ?—I think it would be very inadvisable to answer that
question. We have yet to buy that land.

It is not a question of buying it—it is not a question of price ?—Yes, it is a question of price.
The more important is the question of locality. What is the most effective measurement for

the 80 acres —what length and breadth ? —I might put it this way : At present the site wo have is
50 chains in length : that is absolutely inadequate. At the proposed site we have 80 chains between
the roads, and those roads will be bridged, so that practically we will have an uninterrupted com-
munication for something like two miles and a half.

That is tho length ; and what will be the average width—10 chains ?—No, not so much as
that; about 4or 5 chains. I dare say it would vary, but I suppose the average would be sor
6 chains.

If you had 80 acres 5 chains wide that would be about 160 chains long. There is an economical
proportion to make the best use of land for yard purposes ?—Not necessarily.

It is better to have it a certain length and width than to have it all square ?—Certainly.
There is an economical basis of length by breadth ? —lt depends upon the nature of the traffic.
I take it you would want 160 chains in length. Where would you have the passenger-station ?

—About the centre of the station block [indicated on plan].
And in which direction do you propose to have the goods-yards ? —ln the same direction—the

same place.
Which way would they extend ? —The same place. The passenger-station and goods-yards

will be placed between the two roads. The plan has been before you since the beginning of the
Commission.

You say that you know of no site as suitable for all purposes as the one you have now proposed ?

—That is so.
I take it there will be a certain amount of filling and adjustment of levels required when you

come to the site ? —Yes, there is in every railway. There arc slight variations.
And they fall a little below the roadway ? —I do not know that they do at that point.
From my experience of them the land is below the level of the road in some places ?—lt is very

slightly below, and in other places it is above.
We know that some of it floods at certain times ? —Very little.
You have not had any levels taken or any details carried out, have you ?—Yes.
And have the foundations been prospected for ? —Yes.
And have they all been found to be satisfactory ? —Yes.
Has anything more than a survey been made of the proposed line and deviation—have you got

a detailed survey ? —We have no detailed plan. We have detailed levels, but we have not worked
out all the details of the scheme yet. We prepared a longitudinal section of the railway.

Then you have had a survey showing the levels ? —Yes.
There are certain levels, but only of a general character ? —Yes.
What do they vary from—how much below the level of the road at the worst ?—I cannot say

from memory; there are a great many levels.
Have you got that plan here ?—I gave you the plans [produced].
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Will you point out the proposed level of the railway-line, and the level of the land over which it
runs ? —At what point ?

I am not referring so much to the Longburn end as to the station end, where most of the filling
will have to be done ? —At the place you are talking about the railway is 7 ft. above the level of the
ground—nearly opposite Wood Street.

That is about tho centre of the site of the railway-station ? —lt is about .1.0 chains from Wood
Street. Where the centre of the station will be is about 2 ft. above the level of the road.

How far back from tho boundary of the road will the station be situated ? —The centre of the
line of railway will be about 10 chains from Boundary Road.

Do you propose to take the whole of tho land ?—I refuse to answer a question of that kind.
As a matter of economy, would it not be wise to take it ? —That is for us to consider.
If you do not take that land of course the speculators will ? —That may be.
You have two public roads which will be of enormous convenience in the matter of handling tho

traffic, and I am putting it to you to show the value of taking the land up to Boundary Road ? —

I thought from your statements that the scheme was a perfectly valueless one.
But you are going to make this particularly valuable land. If you make a central railway-

station there you must enormously increase the value of the property ? —That may be. lam not
going to say whether we are going to take that land or not.

I ask you as a matter of economics whether it would not be advisable to take it ? —We will
consider your advico.

Do you know how much filling you will have to do in connection with the land you require ? —Yes.
How many tons ? —We do not deal with those things in tons.
Well, in yards ?—From start to finish the earthworks will probably amount to half a million

yards.
Do you think that is going to bo quite sufficient ?—Yes, quite sufficient.
Mr. Marchbanks.] Is that bank and cutting ? —500,000 yards of cutting will make 500,000 yards

of banking. There are 500,000 yards of stuff that we will have to get.
Mr. T/uckie.] You will have to level up practically the whole of the 80 acres you have to take ?

—Not the whole of the 80 acres, but whatever we require of it. We will take more land than we
require according to your advico.

You have on various occasions prior to this proposal for the deviation of tho line considered other
proposals for an improvement in the condition at the Palmerston North Railway-station ?—We
have considered the question from time to time—first in 1887, then in 1889, in 1890, and so on right
up to the present time.

And the railway-station still remains pretty much the same as it did in 1890 ?—No.
To what extent has it been improved ?—Very considerably.
To what extent ? —I cannot give you the details.
For many years it has been very seriously congested, has it not ?—Yes, it has.
And other methods have been suggested from time to time and met with the approval of the

management for temporarily dealing with the congestion ?—I do not quite follow the meaning of your
question.

I mean, other methods from time to time have met with the approval of the management with-
out going into the question of the deviation ?—Extensions of the station-yard have been carried out
from time to time.

And extensions of the station-yard have been planned and not carried out ?—lf you refer to
that plan which was prepared in 1911, that was a mere sketch-plan as a basis on which to work. It
was not a plan that was proposed to be carried out at all.

But the land must have been taken with that end and object in view ?—lt was realized that
some extension was necessary, and that land had to be taken to provide for any extension at all.

Then at that time there was no thought of a deviation at all ? —As I said before, it was suggested
at that time that a site in another part of the town altogether might have to be provided.

But it was never actually carried into effect till your formal report in 1919 ? —lt was never
crystallized into a report.

But, on the other hand, improvements were carried out for the purpose of improving the present
tation ?—For ameliorating the present conditions.

Under those existing conditions, how long is it likely to take you to complete the proposed
deviation ? —I have already answered that question ; I think it could be done in four years.

In the meantime Palmerston North has got to carry on as it is ?—Not necessarily ; we will
probably have to do something to keep things going in Palmerston.

You have not yet thought what you will do ? —As soon as the Commission has decided we will
think about it.

With reference to the level-crossing question, there will be a good many level crossings on the
public highways rendered, necessary by your deviation, will there not ? —Not that I am aware of.

What are you going to do with them at these road stations on the proposed line ? —Put them
overhead.

There will be eleven overhead, bridges. When doing that you do not get rid of the Palmerston
North Station trouble, do you ?—Certainly. [Explained on plan.]

The present arrangement is to carry the line on as it is now in the meantime ?—[Explained on
plan.]

There will be eleven overhead bridges when the complete station is made ?—Yes, and seven at
the start.

Will they all be overhead bridges ?—Seven in the line as now proposed.
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That will be an item of considerable expenditure, will it not ?—Yes.
Referring only to the point of level crossings, and to nothing else, in connection with the

advisibility or otherwise of the proposed deviation, would it not be possible to do something in the
same way with the line as it at present stands between Palmerston North and Terrace End or
between Longburn and Terrace End ? —Yes, it is possible. Tin; plan I produce is the Square. [ Plan
No. 28969 : Exhibit'No. 8. |In order to provide a bridge at the Square this is what has to be done :
You start at Church Street, opposite Fitzherbcrt Street, and go with a grade of 1 in 17 over the
railway and land at Broad Street. Over the line at Fitzherbcrt and Rangitikei Streets you have
branch gradients forming a huge double cross. What effect it will have on the appearance of the
Square I would not like to say. The effect of that is that if a person wants to go from the Grand
Hotel to the station ho must first go along Church Street and over the bridge.

Could you not do as you are doing now ?—You have just asked me what steps we propose to take.
Any one who wishes to go from the north-eastern corner of the block, opposite the Post Office, wishing
to go to the Post Office, has got to go over tho bridges.

Mr. Myers.] How far would he have to go instead of crossing the road as he does now ?—A
distance of 1,100 ft. That is the only way in which the Square can be dealt with. You cannot make
a bridgr; on the western side of the Square across the railway without very seriously affecting the
business properties fronting the Square, and you would have to buy every approach towards Main
Street, whereas in the other case you would have to buy up exceedingly valuable property, including
commercial houses, hotel, and various other properties. It would land you in a huge expenditure
which it is practically impossible to estimate. Over the streets crossing the railway between the Square
and Terrace End, what you have to do is this : you make a bridge over the centre, and you would have
a series of approaches. Each of those approaches would be 18ft. 6 in. wide, and that would leave
18 ft. 6 in. between the road and the boundary-line of the property. [Plan No. 28970 : Exhibit
No. 9.] Any one wishing to go in a cart from one corner to the opposite corner must first go down the
side street, then over the road, and then back to the other point, a total distance of 1,800 ft., in order
to cross the road. That is how we would have to carry out the same proposal which we intend to
carry out in tho deviation.

Mr. Luckie.] Then you will have to do that in each of those several deviations. I am not
suggesting that is necessary in Palmerston North, or that level crossings should bo abolished, but
you say you are going to abolish them in the outside district roads ?—Yes.

Will you have to do tho same thing in each of the outlying district roads ? —No.
What will you do ?—We will go straight across the roads.
And you are going to have bridges across the roads ?—Yes.
They will have to be long bridges, will they not ?—Yes, comparatively.
Will they be 700 ft. bridges ? —They will bo 30 ft. bridges with approaches.
At each of the seven crossings ?—Yes.
As a matter of fact you know the number of level crossings there are in the length of railway from

Christchurch to Temuka ?—I do not remember the number.
Is there not a large number ? —Yes, a fair number.
There are no overhead bridges ?—But the line docs not go through the centre of the city.
Is not the city all round the station in Christchurch ?—Yes.
And there you have nothing but level crossings ? —Yes, and we propose to make bridges.
And the same difficulty will be involved there ?—Yes.
How do you propose to avoid it ? —lf you will look at the plans you will see.
I have not had that opportunity ?—Yes, you have, they have been published.
In the American cities they have automatic gates, and you have them in operation in various

parts of New Zealand ?—Yes, we have had them in operation.
Are you satisfied that they are of no use ?—They are very dangerous ; and have proved so in

actual practice.
But they are using them in all the large cities of America where there arc level crossings ? —But

they are not satisfactory, and. nobody suggests that they are..
But they are efficient for saving life, are they not ? —No. They do save life to a certain extent,

but to a certain extent they arc traps at the same time.
Why ? —lf you got caught inside one of those gates you would not stand much chance.
But the people are given warnings the same as with electric bells ?—They give warnings,

certainly, but people do not always obey warnings ; in fact, very seldom.
The only instances wo have of accidents that took place between Longburn and Terrace End

were seven in eleven or twelve years ?—Then it is curious that the Palmerston North Borough
Council, is so anxious to have these crossings bridged.

The whole of the traffic that passes through Palmerston North will be dealt with at the new
station ?—Yes.

The marshalling of the trains will also be dealt with there ? —Yes.
And all the trains going to the north will also have to go to that station ?—Yes.
And then be marshalled and sent out again ? —Yes.
I think you said there were forty trains a day that came in and out of Palmerston North ? —

I said, forty trains apart from through trains.
Do you mean that there are forty trains that have their terminus at Palmerston North each

day ?—Practically, yes.
Does that mean forty coming in from, north and south? — Twenty going out and twenty coming

in.
And that is exclusive of through trains—expresses ? —Yes.
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And those, are from stations of which Palmerston North is the terminal station ?—What we call

either the terminal or subtorminal.
What would be a subterminal—what is the distinction ?—A subtorminal is a station where a

train may have a temporary stop—that is, it may come into the station and then go out later on,
after some hours. A subterminal station is whore a train makes a stop before it returns to where it
started from.

You say there are twenty trains coming in and twenty trains going out of Palmerston North ?—

Yes, that is altogether. That is the present time-table..
According to your evidence there are twenty trains a day, but your evidence does not distinguish

between what arc through trains, what are local trains, or trains making Palmerston North their
terminal station ? —I said that at Palmerston North there were twenty trains going out and twenty
trains coming in exclusive of through trains.

With reference to the goods coming through and going north, they would still have to go through
the new station as they do now ?—Yes. We will deal with the traffic at the new station as we deal
with it now.

And deal with it in exactly the same way ?—No.
You are aware that a large area, especially the area round the station, owes its value to the

proximity of the station ?—I think so. Undoubtedly the owners of that property have reaped a
very large profit from the existence of the railway-station.

Is it not a fact that the bulk of the properties have been built there since the station was put
up ? —I think it is possible, but I could not say from my own knowledge.

Outside that portion from Main Street to Cook Street on the northern side, the area is all
residential ?—Speaking generally, in Palmerston North the area between the railway and the river—
that is, between the Square and Main Street West and the river—is more or less of a residential
character.

As soon as you get south of the gasworks the land is absolutely vacant ? —Not that I am
aware of.

I mean on the northern side—the Rangitikei Street side ?—There are quite a number of houses
there.

Not to the south of the gasworks ? —Yes.
There are three between there and south of the Boundary Road ? —I would not contradict you,

but I know there is quite a number.
The removal of tho railway-station would be to convert that into business sites ?—I cannot

speak very definitely on that point, but Mr. Johnston, an experienced man, and Mr. Nash, who is
the Mayor of Palmerston North, and has been there for some time, and is a land agent, said that they
thought that Main Street West would continue to be an important thoroughfare.

You cannot give any idea of what the value of that land would be ?—No.
You are neither a land agent nor a land-valuer ? —No, but I have to do some land-valuing.
You consider there is no object in going farther south than they have gone at present ?—I did

not say so.
Do you think there is anything to be gained by doing that ?—I think there is a lot to be lost by

doing it. Do you mean, in the interests of the community or in the interests of the Railway
Department ?

Well, the Commission has got to consider it not merely from the interests of the Railway
Department but from the interests of the public, because there is a very large expenditure of money
involved ?—As far as the interests of the general public are concerned, I should look upon it as
disastrous.

Why ?—Because it takes them farther away from their business.
You are referring to the general public in Palmerston North ?—Yes.
But you are taking them farther away from their businesses than they arc at present ? —No, I

am not.
Well, the bulk of them you are ?—No.
Do you mean to tell me that if the station is at Wood Street they will not be farther away from

the Square ? —Farther from the Square, but the Square is not the centre of the town. Practically
the centre of Palmerston North will be very little farther away than the present station.

Why should that be disastrous ? —I did not say that would be disastrous.
You said it would be disastrous to take the station farther south? — Yes, than it is at

present.
Mr. Myers.] You have said that there is a certain amount of land in the neighbourhood of the

new station-site which is subject to flooding ?—That is so.
Does that present any difficulty whatever to your scheme ? —Not the slightest difficulty.
Is it an aspect of the matter that you have taken into full consideration ?—We have.
Is it a real difficulty, or is it merely something which you can easily overcome ? —lt is one of the

ordinary difficulties of making a railway.
Can it therefore be regarded as anything more than a more incident in railway-construction ?—

That is all.
Mr. Luckie has asked you whether the Department did not acquire certain lands in 1912—1

refer to the Express Company's land and tho Rhodes Estate land ? —Yes.
And he asked you whether that land had been used for railway purposes,.and I think you said

only to a slight extent ?—To a slight extent only.
Supposing you had in 1912 and the years immediately following used those lands for the purpose

of increasing your station accommodation, would you or would you not by now have required to do
9—D. 4a.
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exactly what you propose to do—that is to say, divert the station ? —I am quite sure we would
have had to do so, owing to tho enormous increase in the business.

The Commission may therefore take it that supposing you had spent the £200,000 or £300,000 or
more which would have been required, in 1912 and the following years to alter the station and yards
by making use of those lands, that would have been a temporary expedient, and you would, still be
faced with the difficulties that you are faced with at the present time ? —The proposals which were
made in 1912 were admittedly only of a temporary character.

Mr. Luckie asked you whether you could not take the station to the southward of its present
position, and your answer was that it would satisfy no one ?—That is so. That is my opinion.

Have you carefully considered that aspect of the matter ?—I have.
Have you any plans in connection with that aspect of the matter ? —Not the removal of the

passenger-station. I have considered the question of retaining the passenger-station in its present
position, and making sorting-yards and goods-yards to the south.

But apparently Mr Luckie's suggestion, which may yet be made by somebody else, is that you
should take the land to the southward of the present station, and on the left-hand side of the present
line going from Longburn to Palmerston North ? —Assuming that is what is intended, that the whole
station should bo taken away, then the effect of that is that the whole business of passenger and
local goods at Palmerston North would have to be taken to a point somewhere near Awapuni. The
effect of that would be that everybody in Palmerston North has got to add from two to two miles
and a half to the cartage they would have to do to get their goods.

Mr. Luckie: That was not the idea. Tho suggestion was to carry the station a bit farther
south to a point about Kairanga Road.

Mr. Myers.] Is it a proposal you would have in your mind as a Railway Engineer ?—Absolutely
not. You would be involved in the same trouble you have at the present time.

In the first place you would be removing the station farther from the town than it is at present ?—

Yes.
And what next ?—You are faced with a number of road-crossings which have either to be closed,

or bridged, or dealt with in some way.
And you have that in the immediate neighbourhood of the railway-yards ? —Yes, or else going

across them by level crossing.
You are also faced with the difficulty of sending the traffic all through the Square ? —Yes.
And as to tho expense ? —The expense would be most serious. I have considered a number of

alternatives.
Mr. Marchba,nks.] You said just now that you had considered a proposal for leaving the

passenger-station where it is, and of constructing goods and sorting yards to the south ? —Yes.
Did you make any estimate of the cost ? —Yes.
What does it run into ? —[Typewritten statement produced : see Appendix B.]
Mr. Myers.] You put in certain statements giving notes and estimates in regard to the first

proposed scheme, and then in regard to the alternative schemes ? —That is so.
And your proposed scheme shows a total net cost of something like £500,000 ?—Yes.
After allowing £50,000 for contingencies ? —Yes. That includes a complete scheme to

Whakaronga Station.
Mr. Jjuckie.] And that provides for £200,000 credit for sites sold ? —Yes.
Mr. Myers.] That idea is based on present-day prices for labour and material ? —Yes, current

prices.
And if the prices of labour and material go down the cost of those estimates will also go down ?

—Yes.
The same observation applies to the alternative schemes ? —Yes.
Tho first alternative scheme assumes the provision for local passenger and goods traffic at present

station-site, sorting-yard north of present station-site, and a sorting-yard on the outh of the Napier
line ?—Yes.

That is one of the schemes you spoke of in your evidence ? —Yes.
And the total cost of that you estimate at £400,000 ? —Yes. I want to call special attention to

that. This scheme retains all level crossings, and does not deal with any bridges or such crossings
at all. There are between Longburn and Terrace End sixteen public crossings and twenty-four
private crossings.

This first alternative scheme involves the retention of all those level crossings ? —Yes, together
with very considerable shunting over the Square and over West Street.

Now, the second alternative scheme involves the retention of the station at the present site to
deal with all the business ?—Yes, they arc all based on the red scheme. This No. 2 scheme means
that we retain all tho business, except the locomotive-depot, on the present site, for which we would
have to buy a block of land to the west of West Street, or what we call south of West Street. The
reason for purchasing that property is to provide shunting facilities to a certain extent at the
Kairanga Road end. It would not do away with tho necessity of doing away with the shunting over
tho level crossings, but would minimi.sc.it, and in order to shunt to the northern limit of the Square
we provide an overhead bridge such as I have shown in the plan, and wo purchase some property. It
also involves the closing of West Street, and the diversion of Main Street until you come, to Kairanga
Road. Then the locomotive-depot would be placed probably on the northern side (or the western
side), with, a bridge over Cook Street. It also includes the bridging of crossings to Terrace End. I
wish to call special attention to this point: that this scheme which I have sketched out for the
crossings at the various places—namely, Princess Street, Alexandra Street, and Scandia Street—is quite
an impossible arrangement. It would satisfy nobody. The estimated cost of those bridges would
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be somewhere about £50,000 apiece, and it is inevitable that we would have to purchase property
alongside so as to give. access to the people direct without having to go up over gradients. The
estimated cost of £350,000 would be increased by 50 por cent.

The estimated cos . of that scheme would be, what]?—£850,000 without compensation for Ihe
closing of streets.

Then there is a third alternative scheme ? —The third alternative is much on the same lines as
alternative scheme No. 1. If you remember, the alternative No. 1 scheme was for making a purely
passenger and local goods station on the present site, with a sorting-yard to the north. This is
providing for that same traffic, but with a sorting-yard and an engine-depot to the south. The main
difference between that third scheme and the No. 1 scheme is that in the third scheme I have
included the bridges. It runs altogether into about £850,000, but if you want a bridge at West Street,
and not close it, it would mean £30,000 or £40,000 more.

Then you go into a further alternative scheme on page 4 ? —Yes, that is the one suggested by
Mr. Holmes.

You estimate the expenditure on Mr. Holmes's suggested scheme at £1,450,000 ? —Yes ; that is,
assuming that in the course of construction we would be allowed to divert the railway from the centre
of the street along Main Strcct|farther other of the boundaries, and vice versa, while
making retaining-walls, which are essential in the scheme. We would have to make retaining-walls
the whole way along unless we bought up properties on the whole frontage on each side. Either that
or else a trestle the whole way, in which case the expense would be enormously increased.

That involves raising the station and raising the track ? —lt means raising the track 20 ft. up.,
and limiting the present site to purely passenger business, because you could not without enormous
expense accommodate all the traffic, and it would be very inconvenient in the case of goods traffic.

Then Mr. Holmes made an alternative suggestion, that you should lower the level of the line ?—

I did not understand him to say that. I thought he meant subways instead of overbridges.
He suggested lowering the line, and what do you say as to the advisability of that ? —You

cannot do that where there is water.
In the first place, what do you say about the danger of water ? —Your lowered lino would have

to have a watertight case, which is absolutely impossible.
Take the Square : you said before that the datum in Palmerston North is 100 ?—Assuming a

certain datum, the level of the Square is 100- 42, and the flood-level 98.
Docs that mean that immediately you lower your line by about 2 ft. in the neighbourhood oi" the

Square you arc running into the danger of water ? —A very few feet indeed.
Mr. Holmes said, as an argument in favour of hat, that you should tako the neighbourhood of

Terrace End and look at the ballast-pit there where there was no water. What is tho difference in
level be'ween Terrace End and the Square ? —28'20 ft. That is the lowest part of Terrace End. It
goes up to about 30 ft.

It is plain, therefore, that a comparison between the position in Palmerston North at the Square
and the position at Terrace End is useless ?—Quite useless.

Furthermore, supposing you had not the difficulty of meeting wi'h water, would Mr. Ho'mes's
suggestion be practicable, having regard to tho fact that you are going up all the time in the
neighbourhood of Terrace End to Bunnythorpe ?—lt would moan very great development of new
construction-work necessary to get up to the level again.

And all that means heavy cost ?—Very.
He also made some suggestion fhat instead of having overhead bridges you should have subways

between Palmerston North and Terrace End ?—Yes.
That still involves you in the same difficulties as you find at present in regard to the; station-site

and yards ? —That is so—exactly the same difficulty.
Wha do you say about this difficulty of subways ? —Subways anywhere between tho Square and,

say, Scandia Street are quite out of the question ; but in any case a subway would cost quite as
much as an overhead bridge.

Why out of the question ? —On account of the water. It is possible that we might avoid the
water difficulty in Scandia Street, but not between Scandia Street and the Square.

So that, looked at from any point of view, your difficulties in connection with the Palmerston
North railway facilities seem to be very serious ?—There is no doubt about that.

And whatever you do is going to involve in considerable expense ? —Very largo expenditure.
Had you taken all those matters into consideration before you came to the conclusion that from

every point of view the diversion is the best scheme ?—I had.
Mr. Marchbanks.] With regard to the crossings north of the Square, supposing your track was

lifted 5 ft., 6 ft., or 7 ft. and banked, that would mean you would get tho subway 8 ft. or 10 ft. in
under the present ground-level ? —lf you raised the level 8 ft. at Alexandra Street the distance
between the street frontages is 132 ft., and you must make provision in any scheme you are going to
carry out for ultimately four lines of railway. We have three lines at the present time. That means
54 ft. total width. If you are up 8 ft., you cannot then have banks for the 54 ft. width, which means
concrete walls and complications, which add very seriously to the cost unless you are prepared to buy
frontages. In the present grades it would be pretty awkward to do, and you are still faced with the
question of what you are going to do with the shunting.

How would you put a subway there ? —You cannot put the subway there. [Plans discussed.]
Mr. Luckie.] In connection with your estimates of the cost of the deviation as indicated in the

statement put in, you state, " Main deviation, station-yards, locomotive-depot, &c, £600,000."
Does that include all the subways and overbridges which you are going to make ?—Yes.

Both for vehicular as well as pedestrian traffic ? —Yes.
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What do you estimate would be the cost of those ? —I provide nearly £60,000 for overbridges.
Docs that include the necessary overbridging you would have to do at the station itself ?—Yes.
Including the big one at Rangitikei Street ?—Yes.
That does not include the additional lino you would require to get to the Whakaronga Station ?

—No ;in the £50,000 for the Whakaronga Station I have included £12,000 for bridging.
Those are all at tho present rate of expenditure ?—Yes, all the schemes are on the same basis;
Why is it you have put in these overbridges—because really the new deviation is in outlying

districts—they arc not through any portion of Palmerston North, or any populated area ?—That is so*
But you have provided bridges nevertheless ? —Yes.
There must be innumerable instances of level crossings, particularly from Lyttelton to Timaru,

in tho immediate neighbourhood of good-sized towns where there arc no bridges or crossings ? —That
is so. If you leave them out you can knock £50,000 off the estimated cost.

There are an enormous number of level crossings in the South Island where the trains pass through
towns.as largo as Palmerston North and there is no protection ? —There are quite a number of level
crossings in New Zealand which are not bridged, and as I stated in my main evidence, those bridges
can be omitted if it is desired ; but in my recommendations to the General Manager I am making my
own personal recommendations. I think it would be better to spend the money on bridging those,
because it would give us not only safety for the general public who have to cross the railway-lines, but
it would also enable shunting to bo carried on qu te freely without any fear of killing anybody.

But under the new proposal I take it there was only one road through which it would be
necessary to carry on any shunting operations by reason of the adequate area you have for the
station and yards ?—Not at all. There would always be shun'ing between the passenger-station, the
goods-yard, and the sorting-yard, and also between the passenger and goods yard and engine-depot,
and those are on the other side of the roads.

Only one road ? —No, two roads.
I thought there was only one road that crossed the proposed station-site ?—No. [Plan referred to.]
Part of your sorting and marshalling yards will be down near Rangitikei Street ?—Yes.
I take it the sorting-yards comprise the area north-east of Rangitikei Street, and include the

area that was shown as being under flood in the photograph that was produced at Palmerston North ?—

That is so. We have taken the levels of that country, and the greatest depth in a very much higher
flood than you are referring to was not more than 18 in. Those were tho levels taken by quite an
independent engineer, and the flood-levels he showed were higher than the floods you referred to when
the photograph was taken.

What would be the highest flood that you have known there ? -The flood-level of October, 1920.
The formation-level will, be 18 in. above the highest flood-level.

You do not know of your own knowledge how many level crossings there arc between Christchurch
and Timaru ?—I will find out for you.

There has been no occasion of any steps taken to protect them ? The whole outcry so far as
Palmerston North is concerned, according to the evidence, was based upon the difficulty of the level
crossings. The question of the level crossing is no more a great difficulty in Palmerston North, with
tho exception of the question of the shunting into the Square, than in all the other towns in. New
Zealand ?- -The whole suggestion is quite silly.

Richard William McVilly further examined.
Mr. Luckie] You have expressed your approval of the reports of Mr. MacLean in connection

with this matter ?—I have expressed my approval of the scheme, yes.
I gather from the report that the deviation appeared to be Mr. MacLean's proposal originally,

was it not ?—I do not think we need discuss that: I have expressed my approval of it.
I take it the new proposal had its origin, about the time of Mr. MacLean's report ?—lf you ask

when the proposal had its origin, it was in 1919.
Prior to that time most of your attention had been directed. towards an improvement of the

conditions at the Palmerston North station-site ?—Oh dear, no! we had been considering improvements
at Palmerston North, as to what was necessary to provide for the requirements of the traffic, looking
ahead, and we were not committed to any permanent scheme of alteration. Temporary expedients
had been considered.

But nothing in the nature of a permanent imprd.eme.nt ? —No.
Then all these schemes from 1889 were only temporary expedients ?—Temporary expedients

put forward to deal with business at that time.
But not for the future ?—As far as it could be foreseen ; but the traffic varies very rapidly,

and the fact of this increase of 500 per cent, in the last twenty years is a pretty fair indication how
much it has increased.

Mr. Myers.] And how much in the last ten years ?—About 100 per cent.
Mr. Luckie.] It is common ground that something had to be done, the only question being

whether you had previously considered any other proposal involving the deviation prior to 1919 ?—

The question of what improvements had to be affected at Palmerston North, and the best way of
dealing with the problem, had engaged the attention of the Railway Engineers for a good many years
prior to that.

You have examined with Mr. MacLean the reports that he put in of the proposals that were
indicated, and you are satisfied that his method was the only one that could by any means be
carried into effect ? —I am perfectly satisfied that the scheme outlined by the Department and approved
by the' Department is the only one that will meet the position that has arisen and also provide for
the future.
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Had no definite scheme been gone into prior to 1919 for the purpose of permanently improving

the station accommodation at Palmerston North ? —The only schemes that had been considered
prior to 1919 were, as I have said, tentative schemes to provide for the position as it existed at the
time. •

And prior to 1919 the Department had not considered any scheme for the permanent improve-
ment of the conditions ?—ln my opinion none of the Railway Engineers prior to 1919 had ever
contemplated that the schemes they were then putting forward were anything more than temporary
schemes.

Do you mean to say that the departmental Engineers had never taken into consideration the
things which they took into consideration in 1919 during all the time before that when there was so
much pressure from, all sides ? —The Railway Engineers in making the proposals thoy did at the time
were providing reasonably for the business as existing at that time and for reasonable expansion,
but none of those Engineers, as far as I am aware, ever regarded the proposals as being more than
tentative—that is, thoy were not to be permanent.

Then, they never attempted any scheme of permanent improvement prior to 1919 ? —I have not
said that. They put forward schemes which in their opinion wore sufficient to meet the requirements
of the traffic at the time, and for a reasonable period afterwards.

That is all you could do under ordinary circumstances ?—No, you could do more than that.
All railway people have to profit by their experience and by their knowledge of the business and the
altered conditions, and the conditions in this country so far as the railways are concerned have
altered materially—and very rapidly —during tho last ten years.

And particularly in Palmerston North. ?—Not only in Palmerston North, but right throughout
the North Island system. What has taken place since 1908 right through the North Island is going
on everywhere. Facilities that were thought amply sufficient to provide for many years in 1908
are found insufficient everywhere to-day.

Is not that the experience of managers of railway systems in a great many countries ?—Yes ; but
it is not any reason why this Department, or any other railway management, should sit still and not
make proper provision for the future.

No, it is a reason the other way ?—Well, that is what we are doing.
What I am surprised at is that something in that direction had not been done prior to 1919 ?■—■Prior to 1919 the Engineers submitted proposals which thoy considered were sufficient, having regard

to the traffic they had to deal with and the traffic in sight ; but the conditions, as I have already
said, have materially altered since then, and what would have been and was a good and sound policy
in 1908 or 1912 would not be a good, and sound policy in 1919.

But nothing actually had been done in the matter of improving the accommodation at Palmers-
ton North, and although that land was taken about ten or twelve years ago, practically nothing
has been put on it since ? —For the reason that it was becoming evident then that there were grave
difficulties in tho way, and that any money that was spent there would have to be wasted, as the
accommodation cannot be provided on the land available.

Then, as a matter of fact, they have been practically standing still for a long time in Palmerston
North ? —You want us to stand still now and we want to get on.

No, we suggest there is another .method which is an improvement on that submitted by the
Department, which we say should be given effect to ; but the Department has practically done
nothing for twenty years ? —That is no reason why we should sit still for another twenty years and
do nothing.

But this is a sudden discovery of the Department's that something very drastic is necessary ? —

It is not a sudden discovery on the part of the Department.
From the point of view of railway management you consider that after the report of 1919 nothing

else will be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Railway Service in that neighbourhood ?—

I consider that from our past experience, and looking to the future, nothing short of what is proposed
will meet tho position.

And the chief thing that is required as far as the Railway Department is concerned is adequate
additional accommodation for tho purpose of providing passenger-station accommodation, facilities for
handling goods, dealing with engines, and the want of the necessary additional area ?—The chief
and main thing is the provision of adequate railway terminal facilities at Palmerston North.

And that is largely a matter of area, is it not ? —lt is a matter of general lay-out, and sufficient
area to make a lay-out.

Does it not come back to the question of satisfactory accommodation and area ?—lt comes
back to the question of satisfactory accommodation and proper facilities for working.

It is mostly a matter of area ? —No, it is not mostly a matter of area. You may have an area
of 500 acres, and if you do not know how to lay it out you might as well have no area at all.

That is a matter for the railway experts who know best how to lay it out; but it is really a
matter of area, and necessarily the amount of accommodation you can get on that area ?—lt is a
matter of accommodation and facilities.

You were concerned with the negotiations which took place relative to the closing of Cook Street
and previous to that the closing of Pitt Street ?—I do not know that I was concerned. The
correspondence passed through my hands, and I discussed the matter at various times with the
responsible officers of the Railway Department, of whom I was one at that time.

The same methods of improving the railway facilities at Palmerston North were in the mind of
the Department, at any rate, from 1889 to 1912, when Cook Street was first closed in 1889 and when
last closed in 1912 ?—The necessity for making reasonable provision for accommodation at Palmerston
North was in the minds of the responsible officers of the Department.
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They never successfully closed it, and yet they affected to close it again as late as 1912, having
the same object in view ? —To make a temporary improvement to meet the position.

Was it then considered to be merely a temporary improvement ? —Yes. The improvement
that was then proposed was one which the responsible officers of the Department recognized would
not last for all time.

And yet you have told us just now that the reason it was not done was because it was
temporary ? —lt was not done.

But they must have intended to do it in 1912 when they issued another Proclamation closing
the road ? —No. I have told you that in 1912 tho matter was gone into and discussed. Difficulties
arose, and. it was then foreseen that there would be some doubt as to whether any money that was
spent there would last for any time.

I understood it was not done on account of the war ?—The work was not carried out on account
of the war.

I gather that if it had not been for the war the work would have been carried out and the street
closed ? —lt might have been ; but still all the work would have been of a temporary nature, and
we would have to face the position and the expenditure now.

Was it known in 1912 that it was only to be a temporary work ?—lt was known in 1912 that the
work that was proposed would not last for a very long time.

Was it known when you acquired the land some years before ? —The land was acquired in 1912.
It was only acquired as a temporary expedient ? —A temporary expedient for the business

offering then and for a few years afterwards.
A similar scheme involving the closing of Cook Street was in the minds of the officers of the

Department right back to 1890 ?—The question of improvements at Palmerston North has been
in the minds of the Railway management since 1874.

But they did not improve any of tho difficulties—it was the same idea of improvement from
1890 to 1912 ?—For the reason that no responsible Railway officer will spend any more money at
any time than is necessary to provide for the present requirements and the prospective requirements
for a reasonable period, and you have to be guided in these matters by your knowledge of the
business.

Precisely ; and it is only since 1918 that you have woke up ?—No, it is not; we have been
awake all the time.

The same scheme which appeared to satisfy the Department for twenty years is suddenly
departed from in 1919, and an enormously greater expensive scheme is suddenly put before the
authorities for their approval, no suggestion of it having been made before ?—For the same reason
that a building that would have satisfied the Farmers' Union in 1900 would not satisfy them now,
hence the Foathcrston Street structure.

Mr. Myers.] I think you have figures which show the increase in the traffic since 1914
at Palmerston North ?—Yes. [Comparative statement put in : Appendix C] I wish to point out
that-the items in tho column for 1921 are only up to the 28th February.

Have you any other figures or data you desire to put in ?—Yes ; I now produce a return asked
for by Mr. Marchbanks, of the goods traffic to Palmerston North, local and through. [Statement
put in : Appendix D.]

That shows that the statment you made previously in regard to the percentage of through
traffic was about correct ? —Yes, that the through traffic was about 80 per cent. I asked the
Stationmaster at Palmerston North to send mo a return of the traffic dealt with at the private sidings
for the year. That statement shows that the total number of wagons dealt with for McGill's was
1,652 ; for Cook's, 2,087 ; and for Clausen's, 1,475. That is, roughly, five per day for McGill's, seven
per day for Cook's, and five per day for Clausen's. [Statement put in : see Appendix E.]

One gentleman at Palmerston North said there were something like 80,000 tons that went over
the sidings : would that be about correct ?—lf you take those wagons at 10 tons each, the trucks
average about 8 tons maximum, that means about 40,000 tons a year.

Have you any other statement to produce ? —lf you remember, I stated when giving evidence
previously in regard to Mr. MacLean's figures that they were the approximate cost of operating. I
have gone into certain proposals, and the question of the cost of operating the different schemes that
have been put forward. I now produce a statement of the cost of operating a depot two miles
south of Palmerston North.

Apart from any cost of construction, you make the total cost in tho matter of operating-charges
come out.at what ?—The total recurring annual charges would amount to £37,484 ; the non-recurring
charges amount to £11,000, making a total of £48,484, which, capitalized at 5 per cent., amounts
to £969,680. [Statement put in : see Appendix F.]

Have you any other statement you desire to put in ?—I have here a statement which shows the
cost of operating a " loop at Terace End for east and west traffic only." The cost would be £20,524
per annum. £5,000 of that is non-recurring. [Statement put in : see Appendix G.]

Have you any other statement ? —Yes ; I have a statement of the cost of " operating depot
at 92 miles," which is Terrace End. The non-recurring charges would amount to £11,000, and
the recurring charges to £123,086. Capitalized at 5 per cent, that would amount to £2,681,760.
[Appendix H.]

We know that to completely alter the arrangements and divert the line as you propose will cost
a certain amount of money, but when that is done, what do you say as to tho cost of operating the
new station and yards as compared with the present operations : would the cost be greater or less ?

—I should imagine we will get economy in the operating-cost, and at the same time give tho business
quicker despatch. When you consider that at tho present time the station deals with from 1,500
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to 2,000 wagons per day, that those wagons are delayed on an average three hours per day on account
of the lack of facilities, you will see how it would work out. At one hour a day each wagon repre-
sents 71 wagons per day, and that multiplied by 313 working-days amounts to 22,000 wagons in the
year lost for one day. If you take it at two hours you get twice that, and so on.

The Chairman.] And you are short of rolling-stock ?—Yes. Apropos of that I should like to
direct the attention of the Commission to a report made on the American railways in June, 1907.
It deals with the importance of terminal facilities, and the effect of delays at the terminals. The
report states :

" The importance of terminals to the operation of a railway as a whole is indicated
by an analysis of a typical journey of a freight-car made recently by a statistician of a western
railway, and based upon the statistics of the Inter-State Commerce Commission for the year ending
30th June, 1904. From these data the average trip was found to consume 17-72 days, during which
time the car travelled 260-19 miles under load and 124-14 miles empty. On this trip the car spent
1-6 days in trains, two days with the shipper for loading, an equal time for unloading, and 12-12 days
or 68 per cent, of the time, in yards, in interchange between roads, undergoing repairs, standing
idle, &c. The largest part of the car's time is spent in yards. This is indicated by the fact that
roads moving cars long distances without having to put them through and hold them in many large
terminals make a much greater mileage per car per day than those as to which the opposite is true.
For instance, in the fiscal year ending 30th June, 1906, the average miles per car per day on the
Union Pacific reached the remarkable figure of 73-5, while on the Pennsylvania railroad, with its
large eastern terminals, this figure was only 24-19, and on the Now Haven only 14-20 miles. The effect
of large terminals upon the car-movement and upon railway operation in general is further evidenced
by the statement that there are probably at all times in the fifteen largest terminals of this country
approximately one million cars, or 40 per cent, of the entire number in this country, and four times
the number estimated to be in trains between terminals. The most serious need of the railways at
present is more ton-miles per car per day. Because of this fact, any measures that will shorten the
time required for a trip (equivalent to increasing the number of cars available) is of primary import-
ance. As only 1-6 days, or 9 per cent, of the time is now spent in trains, it is evident that the oppor-
tunity to effect an improvement through increasing the speed of trains is limited. Also, any attempt
to reduce the time now allowed shippers at the beginning and end of the journey may be expected
to meet with their opposition, and only limited improvements can be expected here, at least in the
near future. Therefore, improvements must be looked for chiefly in the twelve days now spent by
the car in yards, where it is under the direct control of the railway. If the total time required per
trip could be reduced to fifteen days by cutting down the time spent in yards and otherwise
unaccounted for to 9-4 days, it would be equivalent to placing about 400,000 additional cars in the
service."

The alteration proposed in Palmerston North would mean a considerable saving in the cost of
your work and of your general operations in the North Island ? —Yes, a quicker turnover of rolling-
stock passing through the station.

Have you anything further you wish to put in ? —I do not think so.
The Chairman.] In the event of the deviation taking place, have you considered whether you

can provide siding-accommodation for the sidings now at Terrace End in use by the flour-mill and
one or two other firms ? —I do not think they can get accommodation at those sidings.

Mr. Marchbanks.] You could not leave tho present track in its present position ?—No. It will
bo far better for those people to do what tho Borough Council will have to do—that is, go over to
new ground where they can get proper facilities.

That is a pretty serious matter financially ?—Yes, and our proposal is a pretty serious one
financially for the Department.

Mr. Luckie.] In the case of an operating-depot two miles south of Palmerston North, that is
to be a depot two miles distant from the station ?—lt is the point at which I understand the
gentlemen who are opposing the railway scheme suggest that the goods-depot should be put.

The value of this report and tho amount of money involved in it is the result of having the
goods-depot about two miles from the railway-station ?—To some extent it will be governed by the
distance that the depot is away from the station; but if you spread your depots then you have all the
additional cost of running, and to the extent that the distance run increases so tho operating-cost
increases.

If it is possible to provide equal railway facilities at some point south of the present railway-
station so that there will be no greater difference in the distance between the various operations at
your station, including passenger traffic or goods traffic, marshalling and engine-sheds, as you propose,
then I take it the cost of operating, as far as you are concerned, would be the same ? —Oh, no. You
are taking it from tho present station and putting the Department in a position where it will have to
incur the expense of other overhead charges and supervision by spreading the business, whereas under
the Department's scheme the whole of the station operations will be controlled by one head.

We say that if the same facilities can be provided at another point on the lino between Palmerston
North and Longburn as you are providing at Rangitikei Street, that the operating charges will be
the same ? —Not necessarily.

Why not ? —You are overlooking the fact that if you put this depot down where I understand
you propose to put it—namely, on the right-hand side of the line going to Longburn.

I am not assuming that. If we give you equal accommodation for Palmerston North as you
propose to give yourselves at Rangitikei Street, then there is no difference at all ? —You arc not
going to get me like that. If you tell me where you are proposing to put the railway-depot I will
tell you. Speaking as a railway man, I tell you that as soon as -you spread your yard into different
operations, then you inevitably increase the working-cost. You cannot give us in connection with
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the Palmerston North Station on the present site the same facilities that we propose to provide on
the new site, and you cannot give them to us where they will bo under the one control.

That is based on the assumption that there has got to be dual control, and a considerable
increase in the overhead expenses ? —Yes, I have to consider that.

I wanted to know what was your reason for preparing this statement ?—The particular reason
for the preparation of that statement was to give the Commission some concrete information as to
the effect of putting a goods-yard away from Palmerston North on a site that I understood you had
in your mind, or that the people you represent had in their minds, at Palmerston North. There are
certain operating-charges which the members of the Commission, at all events, will understand are
inevitable as soon as you cut your terminal into two parts, and particularly is this so at Palmerston
North, which is a subtorminal station, where you have to deal with the local trains and the through
trains.

Mr. Miles.] I gather that tho various temporary expedients you have referred to from time to
time have been found entirely inadequate by the way the traffic has grown ? —That is exactly the
position.

Mr. Marchbanks.] In connection with the construction of tho Greatford Railway, I think you
gave evidence to the effect that there was 22 or 24 per cent, of the traffic which now passes through
Palmerston North would be diverted ? —No ; what I said was that the percentage of traffic that
would bo diverted to the Greatford Railway would not exceed 20 per cent. It was about 18 per cent.
in 1916, and it is a little less now, but I put it down at 19 per cent, as an outside figure.

If the deviation of the Rimutyka Incline were made how much, of the traffic would be saved from
going through Palmerston—I mean, all the cast coast traffic from Eketahuna and Pahiatua which
now passes through Palmerston ? —lf the deviation of the Rimutaka line is made, and it increases
the mileage, as I understand it will do

Ido not think it will; I think it cuts out eight or ten miles ?—lf it does, the only difference it
will make will be that the traffic from eight or ten miles north of the present limit, which is Eketahuna,
would go via the Rimutaka ; but when you get to the point where the distance is equal, we find it
best, or as cheap, to send it round the other way. For that reason all tho traffic that now originates
at stations north of Eketahuna is sent round via the west coast line through the Gorge and via
Manawatu line.

That is with the summit grade ; but assuming that is cut out, how does that effect it ? —lt would
then be a matter of convenience and a matter of distance.

There would be a fair amount of traffic from the east coast which would be diverted ?—According
to the distance. We would not do any longer hauling than necessary. Immediately the route via
the Rimutaka line was longer, then the traffic would go round tho shorter route, having regard, of
course, to holiday times when the lines were crowded.

And also having regard to the amount of traffic that would ease the west coast line ?—Yes ; if
the line is crowded then we would certainly use the other route ; but we would not divert the traffic
over a longer route to any extent.

Some reference was made during the sitting of the Commission to Mr. Hiley's scheme. There
was really no Hiley scheme, was there ?—The 1914 scheme that was included in Mr. Hiley's report
of 1914 was really a proposal that was made by our own Engineers in 1910, 1911, and 1912 onwards.

It was simply to improve the station and close Cook Street ?—Yes, close Cook Street and make
some improvements to meet the pressing emergencies of that time.

The Commission adjourned till 10 a.m. next day.

Wellington, Wednesday, 23rd March, 1921.
Joseph Prime Maxwell sworn and examined.

Mr. Luckie.] You were for many years General Manager and subsequently Commissioner of
Railways for New Zealand ?—Well, briefly, lam a member of the Institute of Civil Engineers. In
New Zealand I was for six years District Engineer in the Public Works Department; after that I
was nine years General Manager of Railways, and after that five years Commissioner of Railways.
I have also had some experience in England, having had five years' railway experience there before
I came out here.

I think you have travelled in Europe and America since your retirement from the Government
Service ?—As far as railways are concerned, I have seen railways all over the world, and have studied
them in various countries—namely, in Italy, France, Belgium, Great Britain, Egypt, India, Ceylon,
Cape Town, and Natal. Whether I have been travelling officially or unofficially 1 have always made
it my business to look at the things that impressed me.

You are well acquainted with the Palmerston North Railway system and the congestion in the
traffic which exists there at the present time, and it has been under your notice before, has it not ? —

I visited Palmerston in addition to tho other places that have been mentioned. I have known
Palmerston since it was in bush, when they had a wooden tramway to Foxton, and I have seen
Palmerston North a great many times throughout a great number of years—forty years or more.

And watched its growth ? —Yes. I have also seen the outline of the proposed deviation, and
I visited the proposed station-site, which it was stated to me was liable to extensive floods.

Mr. Myers.] Stated by whom ? —Stated merely by the man in the street. It was mentioned,
that is all. Perhaps I might say as a preliminary that my time in Palmerston North on this
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occasion was very brief, and I made a very cursory examination of the conditions. I was able to go
down'and see the site where it is said the station is going to be. I went down to Kairanga Road and
examined the properties very cursorily on both sides of the line. I also looked at the station, and can
quiteJV.orroborate what has been stated that the present conditions are abominable, and it is very
difficult to do anything at all properly. That I may say generally. I only desire to refer to the
general features, because the details of a thing of this kind must be finally worked out by the
Railway officers, and therefore I am only giving a general opinion. As to the floods, I have always
remembered the saying of a man who had a great experience with rivers, roads, and bridges in New
Zealand. That was the late Mr. Blackett. His dictum was that whenever you get the record of
highest flood, a few years later you are sure to have one higher. That is not a joke—there is a
principle underlying it, and that is, in countries where there is a sudden change from rough country
and watersheds to plains, and thence to the sea, with plains rising and land forming and extending
farther seawards, it is invariably the case that there are great deposits of drift coming down from
the higher country. The land is always rising more or less with the river-beds, and consequently the
floods are always, in that stage of geological existence, tending to get higher. With regard to this
particular place, I know very little about it, but I have had something to do with the Manawatu
during past years, although it is so long ago that I forget a good deal about it. This particular
place is liable to flood from two streams which rise on the west side of the ranges. That is one
place where flood-water comes from ; and on the other side the Manawatu River floods from the
east coast, and, as occasionally happens, there are great rainfalls and floods from both sides. The
two western streams get backed up by the Manawatu, and that causes the extreme flood. That is
about all 1 know of the general features. If you are going to put a station on that site you must
reckon to put it at least a couple of feet above the last flood-level. It is always difficult to get the
exact thing, and you will probably have to reclaim. You will possibly have to provide a yard of
filling for every square yard of ground. Supposing there are 80 acres, and you have 5,000 yards to
the acre, that is 400,000 yards of filling. You have to buy the land to get filling from ; you cannot
take it from the adjoining area, and you would have to go up to the Gorge to get land, and bring
every yard of stuff down by rail. When you get the stuff at the site there is the further cost of
spreading, because with a shallow reclamation you are constantly breaking the road about to get
the stuff distributed ; I should not be surprised if it cost 4s. or ss. a yard. Suppose it cost 4s. which
is one-fifth of £1, the 400,000 yards would cost £80,000. 1 am only talking generalities, but I think
if you look into the matter closely you will find it will cost something like that to provide the filling
for the site of the station. That is as far as that site is concerned. Presuming you have unlimited
funds and can do what you please, it is a very nice thing to have heaps of room and be able to
design a station without the smallest restriction in any way to get the best condition of things you
can. I quite agree with Mr. McVilly that it is most important that you should have the best
facilities for shunting, sorting wagons, and doing everything at that station. It is not the mere
economy you effect by this work at the station itself—you cannot trace, the economies—the economy is
effected in the distribution of the goods and stock and other ways ; so I quite agree with Mr. McVilly
that you should have the best accommodation to give the best results. However, there is one
aspect of the question which Ido not agree with. 1 think that to divert the railway and to spend
£750,000 on making a new station is the height of extravagance. Ido not think there is any reason
in it, especially in these times when everything in the way of economy is so important. £700,000
for one station ! It is terrible ! Then I have also seen plans showing the various proposals.

Mr. Liuckie.] You refer to the red and green schemes ? —Yes. As you know, 1 was only able
to look over some one else's shoulder to get an insight into the ideas, but when I heard Mr. MacLean's
evidence in regard to the proposals, how impracticable everything was, and how costly, as far as I
could judge, I agreed with him that the proposals were as bad as could be, and I would not like to
express my opinion very deliberately after hearing his evidence. I quite agree with Mr. MacLean
that it is very impracticable to do anything on the present site of the station.

You consider that the two proposals are totally inadequate for any purpose?- I accept Mr.
MacLean's evidence as quite clear on the subject. It would be very impracticable and costly to do
anything on that site. Ido not think I need say anything more about the plans. 1 might say,
however, that the only difficulties in retaining the station on the present route are taking enough
land suitably situated, and dealing with a moderate amount of road and street traffic across the
lines. These are the only two difficulties that present themselves to me. If you take enough land
suitably situated you can make as good a station as any one is capable of designing. With regard
to crossings, I would say that where trucks have to stand for some time and trains have, to wait,
together with considerable shunting, you should not have a street-crossing on the level ; but it is
quite absurd to imagine that you have to spend £700,000 on another station because you have a couple
of streets which have to be crossed.

Mr. Myers.] We have not suggested that ?—The railway-crossing question has been made a
great deal too much of. People get the railway-crossing mania :It is a regular mania. I look
around this room and sec people with whom I have been associated for years working together in the
same Department and attending to the same business, and they will know that I am not talking
complete nonsense. I say that the railway-crossing business has become a regular mania. Now,
just think of this : we wen; told that there were twenty trains in and twenty trains out of Palmerston
North Station in a day, and going over a level crossing somewhere up the road. The most a
railway-train would take in passing over a crossing would be something under half a minute,
and if there arc forty trains a day over that crossing, they would occupy twenty minutes at
the very outside- that is to say, less than one minute, an hour. Then, the people who
constantly get wild—we have all got wild about it, and I am as bad as the rest of my
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esteemed friends, and the Chairman is as bad as I am — cause what I call monuments to be
erected all over the Dominion consisting of bridges of some kind which no one ever uses if he
can possibly help it. When I went up to Palmerston the other day Mr. Fulton took me down to a
level crossing. He examined the ground a good deal and said, " There is a good deal of traffic across
here." I looked at the ground after he said that and admitted that there evidently was a good
deal of traffic. Then we looked up and down the street, but there was not a tingle vehicle or a
single soul within view. However, just by us was a beautiful monument going over two or three linos
of railway ; and Ido not suppose any one except the blind and the lame ever went over it. No active
person would think of going over it. That is a monument of what I call the railway-crossing mania.
We all know what it is, and it is a very bad thing to get. The Palmerston North man who lives in
danger of his life near Terrace End has only to keep clear of that lino exactly twenty minutes out of
the twenty-four hours. Then this unfortunate, person comes down to Wellington. He, gets into a
tram and goes up to Manners Street, where he sees two lines of tramway down the middle of the street,
with people going across in every direction, together with motor-cars and horses, all day long, and he
does not, as a rule, see many accidents ; so that the railway-crossing question is quite a mania.
Then you take up this Palmerston plan —it is a terrible thing to look at; it almost puts you off
your head. Then you come to Wellington and you think nothing about it. There are 70,000 people
in Wellington and, I think, twelve thousand in Palmerston North—about one person to the
acre, and they mostly stay at home. When I was up in Palmerston North I never saw twenty'people
congregated together, except on a railway-platform.

Mr. ljuckie.] There are innumerable railway-crossings throughout the railway system in New
Zealand, are there not ?—Of course there are. If you go to Canterbury and take the, line between
Christchurch and Temuka you will not find a single bridge across the line, but there are scores of
railway-crossings. You have to put up with them, and you cannot help it if you are going to be at
all economical. Ido not think very much about the question of railway-crossings. I have a formula
which I always express : If there are trains shunting and standing about at a cross-road, you can
have a subway or a bridge if it is found necessary. That generally suits the people.

As a matter of fact, you consider the question of subways and overbridges is only a matter of vital
consequence in the neighbourhood of cities where there is more than the ordinary traffic and much
shunting ? —You cannot make a definite rule about it. Cook Street is a99 ft. street. It is easy to put
a bridge along the middle of Cook Street, and that will leave 35 ft. on each side. There is no difficulty
about putting a bridge across there if required, but that is a matter that the Department and the
municipality have to settle for themselves. Mr. Fulton says that he could put a subway there ; but
he believes more in subways than I do, and I believe more in bridges than he, does. Mr. Fulton took
me down a subway much against my will, bub I noticed that tho, inhabitants kept perfectly clear of
it and never went near it. 1 had to go up and down the steps, and I was not at all pleased with my
experience. However, in dealing with the main question, I think there, is no difficulty in taking
enough land. There should be no shunting across the Square at all. Take the block of land
which lies between West Street and Botanical Road. The present goods area is very much blocked ;
it is not used fully, and there are old buildings across it. Then there is the engine-shed, and not more
than half the area can be used at the present time. The block of land from West Street to Botanical
Road, and between Main Street and Church Street, can be taken wholly. There, are a number of
small residences on it, but that area gives 80 chains from Botanical Road to the Square. Now,
supposing that after mature consideration the General Manager and the Chief Engineer consider that
is not sufficient, they could take the continuation across Botanical Road. On the left-hand side as
you go north to Terrace End there is a confectioner's shop known as Dustin's. I should not attempt
to take any of that valuable land north of Dustin's.. Mr. Fulton has made a small sketch-plan to
show one way of doing it, but there, are many ways which the Railway people may elect to work out
for themselves. Mr. Fulton's sketch-plan will show that you can take land from Dustin's corner to
Kairanga Road, or farther if necessary. Then you could put the station in the vicinity of West
Street. [Plan produced and explained.] You will then have room for the passenger-station and
the passenger-sidings. You will have approximately 14 chains across from Church Street frontage
to the boundary of this land ; therefore I can see no difficulty whatever. As I said just now, it is
a question of taking sufficient land in a suitable position to get the goods-station on one side, with
sorting-yards and sufficient sidings to do the thing effectually and completely. You will then not shunt
on the Square at all. You will have a considerable distance between the points and the Square to
enable you to shunt your trains if you want to. There is no question about it that you will get about
90 acres for your station in the manner I am suggesting, remembering that you have a large quantity
of land already, and that you absorb the whole of the present Main Street on both sides. Main
Street will be diverted between Dustin's and Kairanga Road.

Mr. Marchbanks.] Do you propose to close West Street ? —I think West Street will have to be
closed.; but when you get your passenger-station there I would make a passenger-footbridge to
connect Church Street with the new station and with the new Main Street. You would then be.
able to have a covered-in accommodation for vehicles approaching the station from the Church
Street side, and the main approach would be from the Main Street side. You could have facilities
for getting a, passenger approach to the station without crossing the, railway-lines on the level. The
question of cost is, of course, a little more difficult, because I have not had a detailed plan, and have
had no time to make one. The compensation which is put down by the Railway Department for the
land on account of the, diversion is £100,000, and a similar sum should suffice to take all the, land to
retain tho station on the present route by going south. It might be found that the whole of the land
taken was not immediately wanted. For instance, on the Church Street frontage you could get a very
large sorting-grid there, and in that case,you might retain the people on the Church Street frontage
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as tenants. Of course tho details would have to be left to the Department to work out. Then you
would put your engine-shed at the end. I understand it is hardly big enough now. I saw in one
of the estimates £50,000 for engine-sheds, but I hardly think, if you build the additional accommo-
dation first and then move the present engine-shed down, that the £50,000 would be necessary. I have
not studied tho point much, but I should be inclined to put down £10,000 instead of £50,000. Now
in regard to the question of the levels. I think some trouble was made about this. It is not an
invariable custom to put railway-stations on the level. The English line I was engaged on the
construction of wa.s the South-western line. A grade of 1 in 200 was allowed for stations ; with a
grade of 1 in 300 you could hardly tell whether it was a grade or level—most people would not bo
able to tell with their eye. You could get a grade of 1 in 300 in the present position quite easily.
Any little grading that it might be necessary to make in the extension could be done if required, by
very little filling. I mention that incidentally. It is not a desirable thing to go in for a large amount
of filling to obtain a dead level; and not only that, it would be extravagant. They can do very
well with a grade of 1 in 300, and I believe that is obtainable. I understand that part of the line is
on a grade of lin 600. Then, the Chief Engineer, in his examination, said that it would be necessary
to take some immediate steps to give accommodation at the present station to deal with the goods,
and lam quite certain he is right. One only needs to be a quarter of an hour there when trains are
coming in to recognize that fact. It is very badly wanted, and if they design the station at that
place they will design the existing sidings to work in with the new scheme. If they do that they
should bo able to make a very great improvement in twelve months' time. On the other route they
say they can do it in five years, but we all know how Governments act, and we could not reckon
on getting it done in five years. It might be done, but it is very improbable. At the same time,
twelve months would enable them to put additional accommodation on the present route ; in the
meantime that would bo of very material advantage to the working.

And would it be of use later ?—They would no doubt design a new scheme to make use of the
existing sidings and accommodation. I do not think they should make a clean sweep of every-
thing they have got and begin de novo. They could not very well do that. In my opinion they
certainly should not spend one-third of what they propose in the deviation to carry that out. lam
only taking a bird's-eye view of the situation, because I have not had time to go into the matter in
detail. However, I should not be at all surprised it it cost less than £200,000. It dep nds on what
you do, and whether you are going to make half a dozen overbridges. I would taboo the over-
bridges, with the exception of one at Cook Street.

The And any subway ?— I would not have a subway. I think possibly the work
might be done for £175,000. Ido not know much about the present conditions, but lam quite sure
that the suggestions of the expenditure of £700,000 is the wildest extravagance one could possibly
go in for. I would not have it.

Mr. Luckie.] Do you consider that such an expenditure on any feasible proposal is in any sense
justified ? —I said at the outset that it is not justified. I think it is very extravagant. Ido not
think the objects that the General Manager and the Chief Engineer are aiming at are extravagant,
but I think they could attain them on the present route. There is one point 1 should like to mention.
Tho idea was expressed by the General Manager and the Chief Engineer that if they took the railway-
station away they would have 7,000 ft. of land which could be sold at £30 a foot. My imagination
would not carry me that far. You can buy land at £20 a foot in a thick residential area, and the
idea of giving £30 a foot for business purposes is ridiculous. They will not get it in my time or
our time.

Mr. McVilly brought forward yesterday a statement of the probable cost of operating a railway-
line at that point, he suggested, two miles south of Palmerston North, chiefly because there would
be; a considerable distance between the engine-shed, the yards, and the station, and he produced some
very startling figures as a natural consequence. In your opinion, with the necessary area on both
sides of the railway-line ——■

Mr. Myers.] Those figures do not apply to one compact station and yards.
Mr. Luckie] Are you satisfied, from the suggestions you have made, considering the railway-

station, engine-yards, and sorting-area that could be found in the manner you indicate, that the
traffic could be worked as economically as in the proposals made in regard to the deviation -

-

That was tho last remark I made. I think that if you took adequate land in a suitable position you
could make the design as good here as anywhere else. I wish to say that there may be more ways
than one of taking land and even going farther south, if the Department thinks it better to do so, but
I have not had time to consider the aspect of the matter referred to by Mr. McVilly. Mr. Fulton has
gone fairly closely into the question and has made a trial sketch-plan, and we have come to the
conclusion that we can make just as good a station to the south in most respects as they could do on
the diverted line.

And would it have the same reasonable easy means of communication with tin; Town of Palmerston
North as the proposed station ? —lt is nearly in the same area.

By this method you would avoid all question of interference with the Square for shunting
purposes I—We would not shunt over the Square at all.

You say that could be done for something under £200,000 ?—I said " less than one-third," and
it might be £200,000, but if carefully worked out you might even do it for less than that. It depends
upon how prices go. If the price of rails goes up and wages increase we do not know where we are.

In your opinion is there ample land that could be taken there at a moderate cost ?—I do not
think the land which I have referred to would require the expenditure of £100,000 for compensation.
I heard a witness the other day referring to sidings, and the question of the interference with private
sidings. I want to say this, because the question of the private siding is a very big one :It is over
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forty years since I was instrumental in pointing out to the Government that they must not allow
private people to secure rights of entry on to railway-lines and railway land by means of sidings without
having a proper agreement and restrictions. The sidings are the property of the Railway Department.
The Railway Department only is entitled to run its trucks and goods across the street from private
sidings. As far as I remember, the man who applies for a siding takes it at his own risk. The
Government has the right to alter its railway-station for the convenience of the traffic or the public
service and put it wherever it likes.

Mr. Myers.] Subject to three months' notice ?—Very well. I was instrumental in getting that
done. Before I joined the Public Works Department thoy were going wildly with respect to this
matter ; if thoy had allowed private persons to establish private rights on railway land the Government
would not be able to deal with the public traffic. Ido not think this Commission can take into
account the question of private sidings ; and if they took the railway away altogether and put it
down in tho swamp, all the sidings would be wiped out.

Mr. Luckie.] It would be possible under your proposals to have a uniform width from Short
Street down to Boundary Road of about 14 chains ? —I have given the extreme width of 14 chains
for the things mentioned by Mr. MacLean—namely, station-building accommodation, wide platforms,
and sidings clear of tho running-lines for passengers ; but that is a point the Railway Department
would go into if they decide to take up this scheme. '

As a matter of fact, the land south of the educational reserve and right down to Kairang -i Road
is almost entirely vacant on that side ?—Yes, there is very little on it.

And right down to Boundary Road the same thing applies ? —I think so, but I did not go down
that far.

Mr. Myers.] I think, Mr. Maxwell, that you left the New Zealand Government Railways in
1894, or thereabouts ?- -Yes.

And since then you have not been actively connected with the New Zealand Railways ? -No,
of course not, except that on one or two occasions I have had the opportunity of going over them
officially and examining them.

For the purpose, speaking generally, of some inquiry ?—Sitting on a Commission, in one case,
with one of the gentlemen sitting on the present Commission. We went over a great portion of the
railways.

That was for the purpose of inquiring into some specific question ?—Yes.
The only reason why I ask you the question as to when you left and how long ago it was is this :

Am I not right in thinking that in your time as General Manager and Commissioner you had to
consider the question of the railway facilities of Palmerston North ?—Just about the time the
Commissioners were appointed there was something done. I remember once meeting the Mayor of
Palmerston North and listening to the complaints about the railway-station in the Square, but the
Commissioners had no loan funds for expenditure. They were entirely in the hands of the Government
and the Public Works Department, and consequently when it came to work of that kind it was a
matter of negotiation and persuading the Minister of Public Works to do what we wanted. Then
the process was that the Chief Engineer of Railways, who was then Mr. Lowe, and the Public Works
Department fixed up things between them in the best way they could for the carrying-out of the
work. That is how it was done.

lam not referring to the old station in the Square, but to tho existing station. Was not the
existing station and were not the facilities at that station the subject of some consideration and
concern even in your time ?—Yes, but I think the station has been altered since then.

That may be so ?—The present position of the station was fixed during the time of the
Commissioners by arrangement with the Public Works Department.

I take it that you prepared the report or notes some days ago upon which you have given your
evidence to-day ? —Yes, two or three days ago.

My point is that you prepared them before hearing Mr. MacLean's evidence yesterday ? -Yes,
and I still adhere to my notes.

I suppose on questions of estimate and cost you would take what Mr. MacLean says as being
approximately correct ? —Mr. MacLean probably has much greater facilities for giving the areas and
estimates that he has done than I have. I understood him to say that he has made a shot at it because
at present it is in embryo. It is only a diagram that he has produced, and he cannot be expected to
give you minute estimates. I can only take a bird's-eye view of the matter and guess. I understand
Mr. MacLean has done the same, because he has not enough data to give an accurate estimate ; but
as he is in work I should say he is better able to do that than I am. I am only giving you my
opinion. If I was on Mr. MacLean's side I should go and consult him about matters. You need
not make any mistake about that.

There are several leagues interested in this matter. Would you mind telling me by what league,
or by whom, you are asked to come into this matter ?—I was not asked by any league. I was asked
I think, by Messrs. Field and Luckie. lam not conscious of there being any league connected with
it. I reckon that the Railway Department is one league because they want to divert the line, and
I am not of that league.

You have said that if the new proposed site is adopted it would be necessary to erect the station
only a foot above the highest reputed flood ?•—I should say you ought to do that at least.

Did you not hear Mr. MacLean in giving his evidence say that he has provided for that in his
proposals . —Yes, I heard that; I wish to corroborate by my views that it should be so, and that it
would cost a very large sum to do it, which I put down at £80,000.

You have told the Commission that you agree it is urgently necessary that something should be
done to improve the facilities at Palmerston North ? —Yes, I think so.
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To quote you own words, I think you said " Tho present position is abominable " ? —Yes, that
is so.

Supposing that the proposed deviation were to cost no more than the scheme you are suggesting
you would agree that the proposed deviation would bo a better scheme ? —No, I should not.
I prefer to remain on dry land in preference to going into a swamp.

Have you taken any levels to ascertain whether or not the land you are speaking of as swampy
is swampy ?—No, I have not. The only information I have to go on is the photograph, and that
shows that it is rather damp. That has impressed me very much, and I am biased by that very
largely.

L)o you approve of a railway runninglthrough a town like Palmerston North if it could be avoided
at a reasonable cost ?—I think you are asking me to give a concrete answer to an abstract question.
Do 1 think it reasonable to go and remove the railway from Palmerston North and put it outside ?

1 do not.
That is another question ? -You cannot state to me a general question on a theory of that kind

that would enable me to answer it.
Do you approve of a railway running through the Town of Palmerston if it could, be avoided at

a reasonable expense ? —Yes, I approve of it running through Palmerston because it is of great
advantage; to the town that has grown up around it. You should not interfere with vested interests
if you can help it.

In giving that answer you are considering the question of vested interests ?—Yes, that is one
of tho points.

Supposing the vested interests say they think it better in tin; interests of the town and of the
public generally not to have the trains running through Palmerston North, would you still say that
the trains must run through Palmerston North if it could be avoided at reasonable expense ? —lf
you have the whole population of Palmerston North giving a firm vote in the direction of getting the
railway outside the town, that would have some weight, but 1 should not be disposed to waste money
in going outside of the town for that reason.

My question presupposes the removal at a reasonable cost ?—Yes.
Do you approve of a level crossing in thr; neighbourhood of a station like Palmerston North ?—

What do you mean by the " neighbourhood " anywhere at the Square ?

Yes ? —I have no objection so long as you do not shunt over the Square. I have tried to explain
that by saying that the forty trains per day would occupy about twenty minutes in twenty-four
hours in going over the crossings, and only during that time would tho traffic be interfered with, and
that is nothing.

You agree, of course, that a bridge is necessary at Cook Street ? —I think it might be desirable,
and I think the people would want it.

Would you as a railway man. tolerate a moment longer than is necessary the existence of Cook
Street as a level crossing ?—I would not have a level crossing there, but if it is absolutely essential,
according to formula, and you can afford it, you must have a bridge or subway.

Now, in regard to the land you suggest taking : you propose to divert Main Street to the north-
ward ? —From Dustin's towards Kairanga Road.

And you propose to put the station in the vicinity of where West Street is now ? —That is one
proposal.

Where would you have your station then ? —The passenger-station is to be in the vicinity of
West Street. I explained to you that I have no plan, but that Mr. Fulton has prepared a trial sketch-
plan, and if he exhibits that to you you will be able to get a clear understanding of the position.

You propose to retain the Church Street site for goods ? —Yes.
The vicinity of the present engine-shed would be taken up by your goods-yard ?—Yes, that is

according to how the Department choose to design.
So that you would have your goods-yard on the one side of the main line and the passenger-

station on the other ? —Yes.
That involves all trains crossing the main lino when entering or leaving ? —No, not all trains ;

that is a detail, of working which it is difficult to answer. It is necessary to have a detailed plan. You
will have a through siding and enter the goods-station from either end.

Did you see the statements that were put in by Mr. MacLean when giving evidence yesterday
showing what each of his alternative schemes meant and what they involved ? —I saw his plans, but
as he described them as sg impracticable, I did not think it necessary to go further

Now, take Mr. MacLean's second alternative scheme. Do not bother about the estimates at
all, but read down to the word " estimate." It reads, " Station (low level) at present site to deal
with all business except locomotive-depot; bridge over centre of Square to allow of shunting to northern
(eastern) side of Square ; purchase of property south of West Street to enable all present area to be
utilized, and for shunting facilities, south end ; West Street to be closed ; this purchase to extend
to Kairanga Road. Main Street to be diverted to west (or north) side of railway as far as Kairanga
Road ; Cook Street to be bridged, and Pitt Street subway extended ; overbridges with necessary
approaches at all crossings north of Square ; double track, Longburn to Palmerston North. This
scheme would only serve for a limited time. Shunting and passage of engines to and from engine-
depot would be carried on over Kairanga Road level crossing " ? —I do not look upon that as
resembling the scheme I am proposing, because it interferes with the Square.

But apart from that you see that the scheme is very much like yours ? —lt differs very materially,
because we are proposing to keep the passenger-station entirely clear of the Square so that
there could be no shunting across the Square and no bridging across. There is an enormous differ-
ence.
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But your scheme, if you alter the whole station and shift the whole station down, would be more
costly than Mr. M-rcLean's, except for the bridges. Ido not want you to look at Mr. MacLean's
estimates for the moment ? —Then how can you ask me if my scheme would be more costly if you
do not tell me what his estimates arc; ?

Mr. MacLean took all the land to Kairanga Road, as you propose ? —Yes ; and I say, take it
farther if necessary for goods purposes.

Mr. MacLean says, " Leave the station pretty well where it is," and you say " Shift it to the
neighbourhood of West Street " ?—Yes.

The question I am asking you, and the only question, is that up to that point does it not
necessarily follow that your scheme in that connection would be more expensive than Mr. MacLean's,
inasmuch as he leaves the station arrangements pretty well where they are ?—But is it not proposed
to build a new station ?

Yes ?—And perhaps use the old building ?

Apparently so : so, does not your scheme up to that point involve a greater expense than his '.-

I cannot tell you unless you allow me to read his estimates.
Of course, because I am trying to get something from you which seems to me to be so obvious

without reference to figures ?—lt is not so obvious to me, because I want to see something more.
Each of you say, " Take the land to Kairanga Road " ? —Yes.
So far as the taking of land is concerned, your scheme involves the same exjiense as Mr: MacLean's ?

—For goods purposes.
I do not care for what purposes : you are buying the same thing ?—-But you are not asking me

about land, you are asking me about the total cost, are you not ?

No, I am taking it by stages and first dealing with the land ?—That would not make any
difference in the land for the goods-station.

Precisely so. Mr. MacLean says, " Station at present site to deal with all business except
locomotive-depot " ? —What does that moan—goods and passengers ?

" To deal with all business, and involves the use of the present station building with minor
alterations" ? —Minor alterations. That is a different matter.

If you leave the station where it is, does not that involve less expense as compared with your
proposal of building an entirely new station near West Street ?—I could not say without having it
sketched out. If the Department is satisfied to leave the present station where it is, and to deal
with the goods in the way I think, and not to shunt across the Square, they had better do it, but
they cannot. You are going to effect all sorts of extravagances, to shunt across the Square, and to
build bridges, and you cannot do it. Mr. MacLean can make you a trial sketch in a day, and let you
see what he really means and what it involves.

You have told us what you mean ? —I told you when \ began my evidence that I am only
giving you the general features, and that Mr. Fulton has a sketch trial plan which he can bring
down. That will show more clearly what I mean.

But I may take it that you have not gone into the question of details—you have not gone into
th ■ matter closely nor into the question of expenses ?— I have gone into all three questions. 1
have gone into the question of expense, as I have explained to you, and given you the total
estimates.

Have you got any details to show how you have arrived at the amount you have given ?—I have
given enough details in the general information to show that I would remove the present passenger-
station site to a place where we could have more land and more area for buildings and platforms
that the minimum requires. I do not see exactly how you are going to keep the present station
going and avoid shunting over the Square ; but if you are prepared to shunt over the Square and
keep the station buildings where they are, of course it will be cheaper.

Now, I want you to look at Mr. MacLean's estimate of that scheme, and you can cross out, if
you like, the overhead bridges from the Square to Terrace End, estimated to cost £350,000. Do you
see that that scheme, which certainly is no less expensive than yours, would involve an expenditure
of half a millon of money ?—I have only arrived at the point that 1 see " £775,000 ; station-yard,
buildings, &c, £150,000." I do not know what that means. Then, " engine-depot, £50,000."" I
have already expressed my view that £50,000 is a very excessive sum, in my opinion, for an engine-
depot, and I do not know where he proposes to place it.

Have you had to consider since you left the Railway service tho question of the cost of an
engine-depot ?—No, I have not.

It is a part of Mr. MacLean's ordinary work, is it not ?—-Does Mr. MacLean intend to build
and equip an entirely new engine-depot and not make use of the present structure at all ?

I do not know ? —Well, I do not know either. Therefore you cannot expect me to answer
that question. He says £50,000 for an engine-depot.

He is responsible for his estimates —I am not ?—Then he says, " Double track, Longburn to
Palmerston North, and separate tracks to engine-depot, £50,000." I have not included anything
for that. If you want a double track, that is extra.

It is an item that has to be taken into consideration ?—That is not putting the station south.
It has to be taken into consideration in considering what scheme should be adopted for

improving the facilities at Palmerston North ?—Yes. I do not think it is necessary.
But you are not running the railways ? No, and I have told you already that the Railway

Department must be responsible for working out its own details. I merely express my opinion that
£50,000 seems a very large sum for an engine-depot. Ido not even know' where they intend to put
it. Then, the report states, " Diversion Main Street, roading, &C., and double track, Longburn to
Palmerston North." I do not think that is necessary.
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That must be left to the officers of the Department ?- They must decide whether it is necessary
to go to that expense.

Does not the necessity for a double track depend upon the volume of business on that particular
line ? —There is no more business between Longburn and Palmerston North than there is in other parts.
You are not going to do away with the Longburn Junction altogether ; it is needed for the branch
line. You are not going to. do away with the Foxton'Branch. It is no more necessary to have a
double line to Longburn than elsewhere : that is my opinion.

What do you estimate for the bridge in Cook Street ?- I put down, roughly, for bridges £35,000.
I notice that Mr. MacLean puts down for half a dozen bridges £50,000.

No; he puts down seven at £50,000 each ? —Before expressing an opinion I should like to see
the particulars of Mr. MacLean's estimates. There are bridges and bridges, and a.variety of ways
of building bridges, and one. would like to know exactly what is going to be done before expressing
an opinion. I would not put down £350,000 for bridges myself—I would put down £20,000.

Have you during the last few years had anything to do with the building of bridges ? —No.
Are not the conditions now quite different from what they were some years ago ?— You can take

it that you are picking out an old fossil, and he will not talk in a modern tongue; exactly.
I am not putting it that way ? —No, I know that. I looked at the crossing and the distance,

and I thought £20,000 would be sufficient to make a bridge for that place.
There again the men responsible for operating the railways must take the responsibility for

saying what bridges are required ?—Yes, they must take the responsibility : that is their business.
Then, Mr. MacLean puts down £50,000 for contingencies. I have put down £15,000 or £20,000 for
contingencies. Mr. MacLean totals up his estimates to £850,000.

Yes, and he includes seven bridges at £50,000 each, which for present purposes I am excluding ?

-Yes, that is right.
lam assuming for the moment that they are not necessary, and I take off £350,000 ? Yes, that

is a nice little item to take off. It is a great comfort to know that it is not going to be spent.
But that scheme, according to Mr. MacLean, would cost half a millon of money ?- I should

knock off the £30,000 and the £350,000, which brings the total down to £425,000, and that T think
would be double what I would spend.

Without having made a real estimate ? —Yes.
You said that it is impossible to estimate the indirect benefits that will result from the improve-

ment of conditions at such a station as Palmerston North ?—Yes, I agree with Mr. McVilly that great
advantages will accrue to the whole district by having a good station, but I consider it can be got
in the south. You cannot estimate the saving very well. The irritation, to begin with, the wear-
and-tear o c body and soul of the whole staff is a very important, and it is a very serious item.

Mr. McVilly put it yesterday that one of the benefits resulting is that you can use your rolling-
stock to very much better advantage ?—Yes. At present the public convenience, suffers very much,
and there is the uncertainty of things in working the traffic. There are a hundred ways in which
benefit would accrue.

Those are matters that the man in charge of operations takes into very serious consideration ?—

Yes. It is very nice if you have carle blanche and can do what you wish. It is all very nice where you
can carry out your own ideas, but that was not so in my time.

When you prepared the notes upon which you have given evidence to-day were you aware, first,
of the increases for the last twenty years, and, secondly, from 1914 in the traffic passing through
Palmerston North ? —I know in a general way that the traffic is many times greater than when I
was in the Railway service. That we all know. It is a very big thing, and with the traffic particularly
that goes beyond that station I do not know how they manage to get on.

I suppose you will agree with me that in devising means to meet the present facilities you have
got to look a considerable distance ahead?—You must look some distance ahead, but it depends how
far you think you can look. You must not attempt to look too far ahead, because you arc just apt
to go wrong in the distance you think you are looking. It is better to go slow in this case, and
better not to be too extravagant in your views. I have seen it done so often in this country. You
go and take a lot of land and do all sorts of things for one place, and then it has to be done all
over again.

You think the conservative view should be taken ? -You should be careful and not extravagant.
I think the present proposals arc very extravagant.

Would they be extravagant supposing the present traffic were doubled ?—I think as far as goods
are concerned you could give double the accommodation they have got now quite easily without'
carrying out the whole scheme.

That does not quite answer my question. Would you say it was an extravagant scheme
supposing the traffic were doubled ?—-I should say it is extravagant to spend £700,000 when you
could do it for one-third of that amount.

The view the present Railway officers take is this : that if they were to adopt some such scheme
as you have suggested -and it is one of the schemes they have considered -it means that in a few years
they would have to recast their ideas again, and probably then, if they found it necessary to divert
the line, it is going to cost them a great deal more than it is going to cost them now ? —I do not
believe that. They can take enough land to do all I suggest.

That you will admit is a matter of opinion upon which you may be right or they may be right ?—

The whole thing is a matter of opinion, but one's opinion is formed from the circumstances you see
around you. Money cannotbe thrown away at the present time. You must do something for the goods
traffic because you cannot hope to get the diversion for five years, and something must be done in the
meantime, but that should be done in a way to enable the Department to go on and complete it later.
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Your scheme is a scheme which may be temporary or permanent ?—All schemes are temporary.
That scheme would, involve a considerable sum of money ? —Probably a couple of hundred

thousand pounds.
That is necessarily a rough estimate ? —Yes. If T could save a couple of hundred thousand pounds

by sticking to the present route instead of taking the diversion I would save it.
Even if in five years you had to reconsider the whole position ?—You would not reconsider it

in five years.
Weil, say in ten years ?—I think not. You must look forward to an enormous development in

the traffic.
Ido ? -You are trying to look too far ahead. You cannot foresee.
Are you aware of the increase in the traffic since 1914 ?—I know it has increased several times.
Notwithstanding all the troubles of men being away ?—I know it has increased.
And increased very considerably ?- -Yes, very well; but I think we are apt to take an exaggerated

view of it. We have had it in evidence that there are only twenty trains in and twenty trains out
in a day, in addition to the through trains. That is not a big traffic. All the trouble arises on
account of having the goods arrangement and other things in an unworkable condition. The traffic
there is a trifle as compared with that at the larger centres. Then wou want to do something as if the,
traffic were going to increase at a stupendous rate, and you want to provide for fifty years.

Might I suggest to you that in the past large sums of money have been thrown away because
people have not been sufficiently far-sighted, and they have constructed works which have not been
of sufficient capacity having regard to the necessities of the next few years ?—That is what I was just
remarking—that in some places we have done work to meet the circumstances in anticipation of
more traffic which has not eventuated. In other places, where we have carried out insufficient work,
the traffic has increased. You cannot forsee these things. Therefore, you should not make provision
for an enormous traffic fifty years hence when you are only concerned with the present.

lam not looking fifty years ahead. I .suppose Palmerston must of necessity always be a pretty
substantial railway centre, must it not ? —lt is a main junction accommodating six groups of traffic.
You have two groups from the south, although one of them is small—namely, Foxton ; two groups
from the east coast -Wairarapa and Hawke's Bay ; and two from the north—the North Main Trunk
and the Taranaki. There are six groups of traffic to deal with.

Mr. iMckie.] Mr. Myers has asked you a question about the enormous rate of increase in traffic,
and puts before you Mr. MoVilly's statement showing that the total goods tonnage and passenger
traffic between 1897 and 1921, a period of about twenty-four years, has increased about 400 per
cent ?—I have not seen the return.

Is it not natural to suppose that the rate of increase is not going to be maintained, in view of the
fact that it has been largely due to the class of settlement that has taken place during that period ? -

I really do not know. The traffic has very much increased, and if you get a proper goods-station then1

will, no doubt, be a similar increase in a similar period.
I take it you are satisfied that the adoption of the scheme you have outlined for a new station at

Palmerston North, or an extension of tho existing one, will provide, with the area available and with
that which can be taken if necessary, all the facilities that can be provided at the station at Rangitikei
Street proposed by the Department ? I think you can take land enough in a suitable position on the
present route in the way we have suggested to provide all the accommodation and facilities necessary.

And you estimate that that would not cost more than something like £200,000 or under ? That
is what I made a rough shot at. I think it ought to be done at £200,000, or under one-third of the
cost suggested by tho Department.

Would that work take anything like the same length of time as would be involved in the proposed
deviation ?—-I think not. It depends on how the Department is supplied with money ; but certainly,
to provide some improvement for the goods immediately could bo done in a very short time.

You suggest that in the meantimeand while the work was in progress you could provide the necessary
improvements immediately, which could be co-ordinated with tho scheme when completed ?- -That is
generally what is suggested—that you could go on at once and provide some improved facilities which
would work in with the scheme to be carried on simultaneously.

Whereas the Department will be obliged to carry out certain temporary expedients and spend
money in temporary improvements during the five years that the proposed scheme was being
completed, and then those temporary expedients would have to bo scrapped ?—I think the Department
agree that they have to do something at once.

In the one case you could make the temporary improvements useful, and in the other case they
would have to be scrapped ?—ln the other place they would be lost when the present route was
given up, or largely so.

In accordance with your scheme, the only two streets that would require to be closed would be
Cook Street and West Street ?■ -Yes. I think Cook Street might be bridged if they wanted it, and West
Street could be closed. It would not be closed to passenger traffic it you adopt a bridge to the
proposed new station from Church Street side of the line.

The question of compensation in connection with the closing of Cook Street has been referred to
a good deal. As far as traffic from, the eastern side—the Manawatu River side—is concerned which
desires to go into the Square, it could, equally readily go up Church Street and get into the Square
without any inconvenience at all ?—I should think so.

Tho only question would be in regard to people, desiring to pass from one side of the line to the
other in the same neighbourhood ?—Yes.

Is it not a fact that in tho case of Palmerston North the natural tendency of the town and its
growth has been enlarged to a great extent by the presence of the railway ?- -I do not know it for a fact,
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and I do not know that anybody else does, but the general assumption is that it has increased
because it has the railway-station and the railway running through it.

What would be the general tendency or result of the removal of a big station to Rangitikei Street
so far as the future spread of Palmerston North is concerned ?—-I suppose the development of the town
would naturally proceed at a greater rate in the vicinity of the railway-station at the other place.

Is it not your experience that railways pass through a great many cities in the Old World and
elsewhere ? —Yes, and they do in New Zealand too.

Is it not a fact that in all the large centres, in both the Old World and the New, the railways in
the majority of cases arc in the centre of the city ? —lt is very often so. My experience; of New
Zealand people is that they all want to go through some place where they should not go.

Under your proposal the Department could get just the same facilities that they can get elsewhere
for one-third of the cost ?—Yes, I suppose that is about it.

That is looking forward as far as is necessary in your opinion to look ? —Yes.
You say it is necessary to take all the land that is required ?—Yes, necessary to take the land

first and then go on with the work afterwards.

James Edward Fulton sworn and examined.
Mr. L,uckie.] You are a civil engineer ? —Yes, lam a member of the Institute of Civil Engineers

and American Engineers. I may also say that I lived in Palmerston North from 1883 to 1888 and
later saw the station shifted from the Square down to the present site.

How long have you been connected with railway work ?—All my business life.
You wore from. 1.883 to 1896 in the Manawatu Railway Company ? —Yes, and I was Traffic

Manager for the railway between Longburn and Wellington for seven years of that time. 1 saw a
good deal of the station traffic in Palmerston North as well as controlling it down here in Wellington.

I think you have been to America and Great Britain since then ? —Yes, I have travelled in
America, in Great Britain, and on the Continent, and have taken a keen interest in railway-working
and station arrangements there.

You have examined tho proposals put forward by the Railway Department for the diversion
of the railway-station at Palmerston North, and you have heard Mr. MacLean's evidence and seen
the plans ? —Yes.

Will you tell the Commissioners what your opinion is with regard to those proposals ?--Well, I
have heard Mr. MacLean's evidence, and understand the proposals put forward by him. I consider
the two schemes, the one at the present station and the scheme for tho goods-sidings away up at
Terrace End, are quite out of the question.

What is your opinion as to the necessity for adopting the deviationwhich the Government
proposes ?—I think it is quite unnecessary and very much too expensive to make that tremendous
alteration.

Do you know any other way by which the same work could be done without going to that
expense ?—Yes, at very much less expense.

What is your proposal ? —My proposal is to go farther towards Longburn on the same line, by
which means you would utilize a great deal of the work already constructed, instead of throwing it
away and having to start de novo.

You prepared a plan ? —Yes, to make it graphic I have prepared a sketch-plan. [Exhibit No. 10.]
The idea of having plenty of land I entirely agree with. My proposal involves disturbing one
gasometer close to the street.

Mr. Myers.] What length do you take ? —A mile and a half of station land altogether. It was
mentioned that we interrupted two streets, but we are also interrupting Kairanga Road.

Mr. Marchbanks.] Do you propose putting an overhead bridge over Kairanga Road ?- No, I
have not proposed a bridge there.

Do you suggest a subway there ? —No, I would not put anything.
You would leave it and close the street ? —Yes, close the street; but you would still have the

same facilities for bridging the place in future, as is now proposed to be done at road-crossings on
the deviation proposal.

Mr. Luckie.] Are you satisfied from your knowledge and experience of railway management
that you could provide with these proposals just as satisfactory accommodation, facilities, and
conveniences as could be supplied at the proposed station at the end of Rangitikei Street ?—Yes,
because you take just as much land and just as much length as they propose to take there.

Then it comes back to the general principle of having the necessary accommodation in a suitable
place ?—Yes.

And you have all. that is required south-west of the present station ? —Yes.
I take it that you would make a diversion of the main road and join the present road again farther

down ? —Yes, near Kawau Stream.
From the gasworks south to Boundary Road beyond Kairanga Road there are not more than

about half a dozen houses, are there ?—No.
That would be tho only part that would involve any compensation ? —Yes.
Mr. Myers.] Would you put a subway tit Cook Street ? —Yes, 1 would prefer it to an over-

bridge. I have an objection to overhead bridges, because they block the view of the signalmen and
block the view of the yards. [Plan referred to and explained.] I would like to produce for the
information of the Commission a book which contains a lot of useful information, called " Railway-
track and Track Work," by Tratman.

11—D. 4a.
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Mr. Luckie.] As you would place the station would it be closer to the Square than that
proposed by the Department ?—lt would be about 25 chains closer to Longburn than it is at present.

What do you estimate, roughly speaking, would be the probable cost of the work involved in
your proposal ? —I estimate about £200,000, similar to Mr. Maxwell ; but I was not taking so much
land as he was proposing to take. You could spend only as much money at first as you had available
on useful works that could be put into service at once.

Does the configuration of the land present any difficulty ? —Taking the land does not, and I do
not see that the land I propose to take would be so much dearer than the proposed station land in
Rangitikei Street.

You would not need to acquire, according to your proposal, any business blocks ?— Only the
gasworks portion.

You have watched the manner in which railway-management is conducted in the large centres
of America and England ? —Yes.

What is your experience of the general tendency in big commercial centres with reference to
railway facilities—have they not terminal stations in connection with collecting and distributing centres
like Palmerston North ?—The tendency is that stations are being brought nearer the towns. At
present they are proposing to take the Redfern Station right into Sydney, close to the Botanical
Gardens. In fact, they were surveying it in 1916 when I was there. Then, Spencer Street, Melbourne,
is right in the middle of the city, and so is Flinders Street Station. Goods-yards are not brought so
closely in.

1 suppose that is chiefly due to the fact of the difficulty of getting the necessary area ? —Yes.
Here you have not that difficulty ? —No. In connection with the big stations in England, they

never think of shifting the passenger traffic from the city, and it is the same with practically all
stations in London and elsewhere.

And if it is necessary to handle goods elsewhere, they go where they can get land ?—Yes, but I
say we can get land here close to tho passenger-station.

And under your proposal you could provide all the necessary conveniences and accommodation
for handling passengers and goods that may be required ?—Yes.

Do you consider in making your estimate you have taken everything that is reasonable into
consideration ?—What is in favour of my estimate is that you have the station there now, and in
addition you have the other materials and the signal arrangements which can be used there, whereas
new ones would have to be provided at the proposed new site.

It is estimated that it would take four o five years to carry out the deviation and build the new
station ?—I do not agree with that. Ido not believe that it would even be commenced in five years.

You think it will take longer ? —Yes ; and after they start the deviation they will not be able
to use any part of it until the whole is completed. Under my proposal they could commence
to-morrow making improvements and soon relieve the traffic. In reference to the deviation, my
opinion is that they would not only not finish it in four or five years, but they would not start it in
that time. •

The Chairman.] Why ?—Because they have not started the Wellington Station yet.
Mr. Tjuckie.] Then in the meantime, you agree with all the other witnesses who have given

evidence that it is absolutely essential some improved conditions must be provided now even if they
adopt the deviation ?—Yes.

And those improvements would have to bo scrapped afterwards ? —Yes.
Could you bring in temporary improvements that could be brought into line and used in

connection with the present station under your scheme ? —Yes.
Could you make them as efficient and far-reaching, looking ahead, as they could on the site at

Rangitikei Street ?—Generally, if you have the land of the same size you could make the station
equally efficient.

Mr. Myers.] I think you designed the Wellington-Manawatu Railway, did you not ? —I was
one of tho Engineers.

And I suppose you designed the Thorndon Station as it existed up to the time the Government
took over the railway ? —I think Mr. Marchbanks principally designed it.

What is the largest station-yard you have yourself designed ? —I suppose the Thorndon Station,
belonging to the Wellington-Manawatu Railway Company.

I want to show that in this particular matter your experience is not comparable with that of
existing railway men. Apparently in the plan you have produced you show a number of blind
sidings ?—Those are neither here nor there.

What do you mean ? They are blind sidings for standing trucks. I have only taken about a
day over the preparation of this question. The sketch only suggests filling with sidings the land that
is at present unoccupied there.

Apparently towards tho Square you show blind sidings ? —Yes, they are only suggestions.
Are they workable ?—They would be workable.
Could you work a station properly with blind sidings ? —You could, have a blind siding anywhere,

required.
You say it is quite feasible to have blind sidings there ?—Yes, blind sidings, or any sidings

found necessary. You would pull that sketch about as required when designing the station. No
sidings at all are shown in Rangitikei Street station.

Mr. Marchbanks.] Those are standing roads for local traffic, arc they not ? —Yes.
Mr. Myers.] They are not intended for shunting ?—You could not shunt from each end of a

blind siding.
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Must you inevitably shunt from both ends of a station like that ? —No, not from blind sidings.
They have blind sidings there now.

You say you have made some sort of estimate : have you a detailed estimate ?—I have a sort
of detailed estimate.

When did you make it ?—I made it two or three days ago—before hearing any evidence.
Will you tell me what you have allowed for the Cook Street ovorbridge ? —I have allowed for

the overbridgo and the subway £25,000.
You provide both a subway and a bridge at Cook Street ? —No, for an ovorbridge at Cook Street.
And you allow £25,000 for that I—Yes.
Do you provide for a subway at West Street ?—Yes, and allow £25,000 for both.
Do you suppose for a moment that it could be done for that, or anything like it ?—I would not

have put it down if I had not.
Do you think it could be done for anything like it ? —I do.
What is the width of the subway ? —Narrow subway of 5 ft. or 6 ft.
And what length ?—About 3 chains.
What is the width of the overhead bridge at Cook Street ?—Not more than 20 ft. If I were

anxious to save money I would make it about 18 ft. The Hutt Bridge is 18ft. wide, you have
probably seen the traffic there on race days, and that will give you an idea of what would be required
for ovorbridge or subway at Palmerston.

What do you allow for the taking of land—taking the land as a whole ? —I provide for 30 acres
at a cost of £40,000.

That includes buildings and everything ?—Yes.
Do you think you will get it for that ? —Yes, approximately. I have added £25,000 on to this

estimate.
What are the items ? —The items I have allowed for are as follows : Sidings on goods site,

£30,000 ; engine-shed and shifting goods-shed, £20,000 ; overbridge and subway, £25,000 ; passenger
site (land 30 acres), £40,000 ; buildings, platforms, and road, &c, £30,000 ; sidings and signals,
£30,000 ; total, £175,000 : contingencies, £25,000 : grand total, £200,000.

Have you provided for tracks ? —Yes. I have provided, for four miles of lines at a total of
£30,000, and another four miles of goods-sidings at £30,000.

Mr. MacLean informs me that that is a long way under the price at which, it can be done : What
do you say ? —For permanent-way I say that is about right. It may be a bit low.

Wo say it is a very big bit low ? —Very well.
Speaking only of that particular point at present, on what experience, prices, or catalogues do

you base that estimate ?—On the prices of everyday work. Heavy rails and sleepers cost about
£4,000 a mile, and there are other things, such as ballasting, and so forth. If you are going to criticize
the; estimates, I want to say that I am giving a diagram, while the Department has given us nothing.

Tho ongino-depot you have put down at £20,000 ?—Yes.
You see that Mr. MacLean gives you some information, at all e;vents, on that point, because he

puts it down on a similar scheme to yours at £50,000 ?—I would say that, considering the position
of money at the present time, we could gladly go ahead with £200,000 available in our pockets and
do a great deal of permanent work there.

How long ago did you prepare that sketch-plan ? —A few days ago— on the 16th March.
May we take it, then, that until you had been up to Palmerston North and looked around there

you had not evolved any scheme for improving the facilities in that neighbourhood of the present
station-site ? —No, I had not done anything in tho matter until I went up.

You had not previously been asked by any Palmerston people to advise them as to what could
be done; ?—I do not know. Some people had been speaking to me before that.

But you had evolved no scheme ?—No.
We miy take it, then, that your scheme dates back only to the .I.6th of this month ? —Yes, or a

day or two before that.
How long do you think, if such a scheme were adopted, it would remain efficiemt and sufficient ?

—If you took enough land it would remain efficient and sufficient just as long as the other scheme.
You mean, if you took enough land to increase your layout ami facilities as required ? —Yes. I

think you want to take enough land. If suffioient land is taken I would not find any fault.
Your scheme leaves the trains running through the Square, through the town, and over the

level crossings ?—Yes.
Do you think that is desirable ?—Yes, I think with those level crossings and overbridges you

almost want a, policeman to make people walk over and use the bridges. People never walk over the
overbridges in Christchurch or Lyttelton. To put ten or eleven overbridges in Palmerston North would
be so hideous that people would go and live somewhere else.

Do you moan to suggest that if the deviation were not costing substantially more than the
adoption of your scheme you would prefer your scheme, with the; trains still running through the town
and over the level crossings, to the deviation ? —That is theoretically the position. But if you are
going to make nine miles of new railway, is it not going to cost much more ?

You must please accept my hypothesis ? —Well, I prefer my own scheme—the present route.
Is that because it is your own scheme ?—No, I will tell you why : the town, whatever you may

say against it, will naturally grow out towards the new place, and they will have the same difficulties
there later.

Is that your objection ?—Yes.
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But is it not a fact to which you are shutting your eyes that the town at tho present time is
extending towards tho site of the new station ?—Yes, but the same conditions will soon obtain at the
new station as they do here.

You mean that a certain number of shops and buildings will gradually grow up around the new
station wherever it is ?—Yes,

Your scheme assumes that the Palmerston North people would submit to the closing of Kairanga
Road and West Street ?—I do not think they will make any bones about Kairanga Road, and I
think thoy would submit to the closing of West Street also. The principal street is Cook Street.

I suppose you know that the Palmerston North Borough Council, which is representative of the
citizens, and also the Chamber of Commerce, prefer the diversion which is suggested by the Railway
Department ? —Yes, I have heard so, but I am not very much influenced by the opinions of Borough
Councillors.

Or of Chambers of Commerce ?—No, there are all sorts of interests involved.
May I ask whether it is the interests of the people of Palmerston North that you have, mainly

in mind when you suggested that tho railway-station should remain somewhere ne;ar its present
neighbourhood ?—Yes, I think it is in the interests of the people of Palmerston North, and it is in
the interests of our pockets.

What is the principal consideration that moves you—is it the consideration of tho interests of
the people of Palmerston North ?—I think the first consideration with mo is the enormous expense.

Anel 1 suppose, like; Mr. Maxwell, you admit at once that the question which is tho better scheme
is entirely a matter of opinion ? —lrrespective of the; question of expense, yes.

Including the question of expense ?—No, because we have got a big station already there now,
and in the other scheme they have to build an entirely new one.

Do you think you are sufficiently taking into consideration tho probability of the development
of Palmerston North, and the probable increase in the traffic there ? —Yes.

I assume you were asked to come into this matter either by Messrs. Field and Luckie or by
some people at Palmerston North ? —I was asked to come into the matter by Mr. Field and Sir
James Wilson.

You know, of course, that Sir James Wilson is opposed to any deviation here—he desires a
deviation from Levin to Greatford ? —Yes. I am not taking that into consideration.

But may I take it that what Sir James Wilson asks you to do was to advise whether in your
opinion some arrangements could bo made or some scheme devised which would involve the retention
of the present site somewhere in its present neighbourhood ?—Some such remarks were made, but
I took no notice of them at all.

May I ask what it was that Sir James Wilson asked you to do ? —Principally he was advocating
the line from Marton to Levin.

He was mainly advocating the line from Marton to Levin ?—Yes.
But the Palmerston North facilities must have had some connection in his mind according to

what ho was instructing you to do ?—I gathered that it was going to relieve the traffic in Palmerston
North to some extent if the line were constructed from Marton or Greatford to Levin.

But he asked you to advise or do something in connection with Palmerston North, did he; not ?-r
I do not know that he did.

But somebody must have asked you to go into this question at Palmerston North ? —Yes, Mr.
Field and. Mr. Luckie.

But you were first spoken to by Sir James Wilson about the Levin to Greatford deviation ?—

Yes, with the inference that it would relieve the; traffic at Palmerston North.
Mr. Luckie.] We asked you, Mr. Fulton, to advise whether this was a proper scheme, in your

opinion, which involved such a large expenditure of money, and whether you and Mr. Maxwell
would visit the present station and give your opinion on it ? —Yes.

And you formed that opinion entirely regardless of Sir James Wilson in the matter at all ? —

Yes. We; were thinking of the proposed Palmerston deviation as alternative to the present site.
Supposing you had been asked your opinion by the Government, would it have been the same

as you have given before the Commission now ?—ldentically.
Irrespective of the people who asked for your opinion ? —Yes.
You have given your opinion as a railway expert and a man having experience in these matters

that your proposal is the most suitable method for dealing with the congested traffic in Palmerston
North ?—Yes.

As far as the question of level crossings is concerned, you have had experience of them all over
the world ?—Yes, I have seen them.

Is there any more danger or difficulty arising from level crossings at Palmerston North than
anywhere else in New Zealand ?—ln proportion to the traffic, no.

And is it your experience that where overhead bridges and subways are constructed, that nine-
tenths of the people do not use them ?- In Dunedin they have automatic gates, and I understood
they worked, very well. A driver with a loaded dray will never go over an overbridge if he can go
over a level. I also draw attention to the automatic gate;s and level road-crossing in the Auckland
Station.

And that is your experience not only locally but applies to all over the world ?- Everywhere.
It may be taken that level crossings are a necessary incident of all railway systems in the world,

especially where then: is flat country ?—Except where the traffic becomes excessive, and they then
raise the whole track for road traffic to pass underneath.

The; Commission adjourned till 10 a.m. next day.
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Wellington, Thursday, 24th March, 1921.
Francis William MacLean further examined.

Mr. Myers.] You were present when Mr. Maxwell and Mr. Fulton were examined, and you
heard everything they said? —Yes.

You have seen the sketch-plan | Exhibit No. 10] that Mr. Fulton prepared and put in, and
you have had the opportunity of studying it ?—That is so.

Prior to Mr. Maxwell and Mr. Fulton giving evidence, had you considered a scheme very much
like that they propound, and is not that the scheme set out as No. 2 alternative in tho notes that you
handed in to the Commission on a previous occasion ?—That is so.

May the Commission take it, therefore, that you had considered a scheme similar to that
propounded by Mr. Maxwell and Mr. Fulton, and, after consideration and comparison with tho other
schemes, discarded it ?—Yes, a scheme somewhat on the same lines.

I think you have carefully considered the scheme now propounded by Mr. Maxwell and Mr.
Fulton, and that you are able to indicate to the Commission the result of your consideration ? —Yes.

Are you as Chief Engineer and as the officer responsible for the operation of the railways prepared
to accept that scheme ?—Certainly not. I do not operate the stations, but I have to design them,
and I am not prepared to accept that scheme at all.

You are prepared to give reasons for that answer ?—Yes.
Before I ask you to give the reasons in detail, will you please tell the Commission whether or not

the estimate given by Mr. Maxwell and Mr. Fulton of £200,000 for the work they suggest is a sufficient
estimate ? — I have gone very carefully into the whole thing, and, economizing the expenditure; as
far as I think possible, I am quite satisfied that the cost of carrying out tho proposals of Mr. Fulton,
without including any duplication between Longburn and Palmerston North, would involve an
expenditure of somewhere at least between £400,000 and £500,000.

And if you add the cost of duplication between Palmerston North and Longburn, what will be
the result ?—You would have to add to that £50,000, at any rate, which would bring the amount well
up to half a million pounds.

I want to see that we arc on common ground in regard to one fundamental matter. You have
indicated what you think Mr. Fulton's scheme would cost ? —Yes.

In your previous evidence you indicated what you thought your own deviation scheme would
cost ? —Yes.

Have you taken your estimates on the same basis in regard to those two schemes—because I
want to ascertain whether you have considered Mr. Fulton's on any different basis from that on which
you have considered your deviation scheme, or vice versa ? —Such estimates must always be on the
same basis to form any comparison at all, but I wish to point out in connection with my estimates
of the deviation that I have practically in every item exaggerated the cost.

Does that mean that you have allowed what you think is an outside estimate ?—A very outside
estimate.

And is that estimate based upon present-day prices ? —Certainly, present-day prices.
Have you estimated the cost of Mr. Fulton's proposal, carrying it out on present-day prices ?—

Certainly.
We must take, it, therefore, that if present prices become reduced as time goes on during the

course of whatever work may be adopted, there would be a proportionate reduction in either
scheme ?—Yes, certainly.

Now take, first of all, the objections you have to the scheme propounded by Mr. Fulton ?- -Mr.
Fulton's scheme, in the first place, is dependent on the; closing of two important streets namely,
West Street and Kairanga Road, or Botanical Road. Those are practically arterial roads—especially
Kairanga Road. The Chairman of this Commission will remember the; difficulties we have had in
connection with. Cook Street, which Mr. Fulton proposes to bridge. At any rate, he; [ruts in his
estimates an amount for the bridging of Cook Street; but it has to be remembered that we have been
advised, and there is no doubt about it, that legislation is necessary to close any street in such a case.
Further, these streets arc the property of the borough, and we only have the right of user ; we; have
no vested rights over those street-crossings at all. Therefore, any proposal that is made in connection
with bridging or dealing with those streets is subject to the approval of the Borough Council.
Personally I think it would be hopeless to expect Parliament to agree to the closing of those streets.
The Palmerston North Borough Council, the Chamber of Commerce, the Agricultural and Pastoral
Association, the Racing Club, and a large portion of the community are very keenly in favour of tho
new site for tho station, and naturally would oppose any legislation which tended to defeat that
object.

Or which would involve the closing of the street ? — Yes. Mr. Fulton proposes to bridge Cook
Street, but so far as I can make out from his sketch-plan he proposes to make; some steep approaches.
In a level piece of country like Palmerston North, with the area surrounding it, I do not believe that
any steeper gradient than 1 in 20 would be tolerated. Further than that, there is the difficulty in
connection with the work near Cook Street that the bridge proposed by Mr. Fulton only provides
for access across the street, and does not provide for access from Church Street or Main Street.

Mr. Fulton proposes to adopt the American type of station with raised platforms ?

Mr. Luckie.] There is no suggestion of that kind.
Witness.] I am dealing with the sketch-design as proposed—and that proposal would not be

tolerated for one moment.
Mr. Myers (to witness).] You see that Mr. Fulton's sketch shows tho platform on the American

plan ?—Yes, and that proposal would not be tolerated in New Zealand. lam quite satisfied of that.
It would, of course, destroy the uniformity of our arrangements in regard to our methods of working,
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and will be a dangerous business. That system could not be; worked with our general methods.
Now, with regard to the goods-yard, Mr. Fulton's sketch proposes that wo should purchase a
considerable area of land towards the Square which does not now belong to us, and on this ho
proposes to put a number of blind, sidings. Now, blind, sidings have their uses if they are easy of access,
but the access to these sidings would be from the middle of his yard, and therefore wouldbe exceedingly
difficult to work. The sorting-grids which he sketches have only a very limited amount of headroom
for shunting. [Sketch-plan referred to.] Assuming that the property facing the Square is not to be
purchased, then there will be very little headroom for shunting, and only for shunting in one direction.
IJ'or shunting at Palmerston North it is essential, that it should be carried on at both ends in any
arrangement of sidings. Again, we come to where he places his goods-sheds, and the sidings
connected with tho goods-shed. He then proposes to stop at West Street, which will mean very
little headway for shunting. For that reason I am satisfied that in order to make in any way a
feasible proposition it would bo necessary to purchase the block of land included between West
Street, Main Street, Botanical Road, and Church Street, which Mr. Maxwell suggests, but it would
increase the cost by at least £50,000, which I have not included in the comparative estimate. In
my scheme I have included that.

But you have not included that in the extra amount which you have said that the carrying-out
of Mr. Kulton's proposal would involve ?—No, I have not included that, but I am satisfied that
would have to be purchased. If we; are; to be compelled to stay at the present site I think it would
be; inevitable that we would have to purchase those two blocks. Now, in Mr. Fulton's design he
also provides for an area of land to the south of West Street for carriage and wagon sidings. The
shape of that land is such that it would be very difficult to provide a series of grids, such as sorting
and standing grids, with the result that we would have to put in a scries of long sidings and short
sidings which would be very detrimental to proper working. Those are the main features of what
I consider the difficulties of his design. It would be exceedingly costly to provide for signals and
interlock a station such as this, and there are roads farther along than Kairanga Road towards
Longburn over which a certain amount of shunting would have to be carried out.

Are those the principal objections you have to the arrangements in connection with the station
and yard ? —Yes, the main features. Perhaps I should say that Mr. Maxwell's and Mr. Fulton's scheme
involves the removal of the station to a point about three-quarters of a mile from the; centre of the
Square, and at least a mile from what is recognized by all to be the centre of the present business,
which ii growing all the time towards the north-west.

You have already said that the figures you have given for tho cost of Mr. Fulton's scheme above
his estimate do not include an additional track from Palmerston to Longburn ?—Yes.

Is that necessary if you keep your present site at Palmerston North ?—The necessity for that
at tho present time is so acute that it has been includeel in the deviation scheme, and naturally if we
are going to work here it will be still more acute, or, at any rate, more necessary than it would bo in
the deviation scheme.

And you have actually allowed £50,000 for that in your estimate of the deviation scheme ?—Yes.
So that in order to compare your scheme with Mr. Fulton's you commence; either by adding

£50,000 to your own increased estimate of Mr. Fulton's scheme, or by taking £50,000 off your estimate
of your own deviation ?—That is so.

Then may we take it from what you have already said that in your opinion the adoption of
Mr. Fulton's scheme would not be satisfactory for the purpose of the efficient running of the railway ?—■
I think that scheme is quite unworkable.

And it still leaves, of course, the level crossings between Longburn and Terrace End other than
those at Cook Street, West Street, and Kairanga Road ?—Well, that is assuming that Mr. Pulton
does not provide for any bridges in West Street or Kairanga Road. He stated quite; definitely that
his proposal meant the closing of Kairanga Road, and he: proposed to make a subway for foot-passengers
at West Street to get access to the station and Main Street.

It still leaves the other level crossings ? —Yes, all the level crossings to the south and north.
Mr. Fulton's scheme does not include any bridges over the other level crossings ?—No.
You have already told us that you object to level crossings in a borough like Palmerston North,

but, after all, is that your main, consideration, or is it a minor consideration ?- -I think it is a point
to be taken into consideration—a point affecting the whole position, but it is not anything like the
main consideration in our proposals.

You have included, I think, in your estimate of the deviation something like: £50,000 for over-
head bridges ?—That is so.

So that in order to bring your scheme into comparison with Mr. Fulton's, could you or could you
not reduce that item of £50,000 that you have got for overhead bridges ? -Accepting the principle
laid down by Mr. Maxwell that bridges should be provided wherever there was shunting, then that
would limit the bridging to two crossings—namely, what is known as Gillespie's line, which is an
extension of Kairanga Road, and the Rangitikei line. There are two other bridges which would
be in a cutting and therefore: would bo bridged in any case. By providing bridges at those places
and omitting bridges at the other road-crossings we could easily reduce our cost by £30,000,

Now I will take: some other items. If you have to save money you could save it on your own
deviation scheme. Mr. Maxwell said that you might require to spend up to 4s. per yard on about 500,000
cubic; yards of earthwork ?-- Yes, he estimated 400,000 yards.

The estimate you gave this Commission when you gave evidence previously included how many
yards of earthwork ?—lt included 500,000 yards at 4s.

You have already stated that you have put in outside estimates, but as a matter of fact what
is your view as to the possible saving there ?—Mr. Maxwell stated that he could not obtain the
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material for this filling anywhere in the locality, and he suggested that it would be necessary to bring
that filling by train from the Gorge line, and therefore he thought a price of 4s. would have to be put
on for such filling. Now, as a matter of fact, a comparatively few chains after we cross the Rangitikei
line we get into the terrace land where there is a deep cutting, and the material from that cutting
would be quite close to where the filling is required,-and it would be used for that purpose. I have
put in a price of 45., but I think it would be quite reasonable to reduce that £100,000 by £20,000.

Now take the item of your tracks : you have allowed in your estimate for fourteen miles at
£5,000 per mile ?—That is so.

Do you think you could effect a saving on that ? —That is based on a price of £20 per ton for
rails, it is difficult to forecast (he future, but I think there is no doubt whatever that we shall bo
able to get rails at £15 per ton, and I am quite sure that the £70,000 I put down for that item could
be reduced by £20,000 and possibly more.

But as you have already said, you were determined to bo on the safe side and make an outside
estimate ?— -I was not going to have it said that I was puttng in estimates at which I could not carry
out the work no matter what the conditions were.

The item of bridges you have dealt with you have allowed £50,000 for them ; but if you were
to adopt the proposal suggested by Messrs. Fulton and Maxwell you could effect a saving of what?—

£30,000.
That no doubt is a matter of principle, but do you agree with the principle suggested by Messrs.

Fulton and Maxwell ?—I do not.
Your own preference is for overhead bridges ?—lt is not only my own preference, but it is the

consensus of opinion of railway engineers all over the world. At the present time we are constantly
faced with accidents at level crossings, and I am quite satisfied that in the near future this country
will have to face the bridging of a very large number of existing level crossings, and. in connection
with a now scheme such as this I am of opinion that it would be wrong to perpetuate level crossings.

I want to ascertain if it is a fact that in bringing your scheme and Mr. Fulton's scheme down to
a common level you would effect a saving of £30,000 on that item ?—Yes. Mr. Fulton referred to
certain safeguards at level crossings, such, as gates and bars. Those are in common use in many places.
They have been used in New Zealand, but they were a constant source of anxiety to us owing to
frequent accidents. Each one involves a power plant to operate it, in addition to a staff of men who
open and shut the gates. The cost of them in most cases would equal the cos'; of a bridge.

You mean the capitalized cost ?—Yes.
Now take the passenger and local-goods yards : I think you allow £120,000 in your estimate in

connection with your deviation scheme ? —Yes.
Do you regard that as an outside estimate ?—I do.
What do you say about the possibility of that ? —To give you an example : at present turnouts

are costing £100 each ; scissors crossings are costing £600 each ; double slips are costing £250 each,
and the cost of those is bound to come down. We have put in estimates for entirely new buildings
on a very generous seale—namely, for buildings, platforms, and verandas, £50,000 ; and for roading
I have put down £20,000. Now, I am satisfied those items could be reduced by £20,000.

In other words, I suppose we may take it that your estimate is made on the basis of your having,
when the works are completed, a perfect organization there ? —Certainly, as nearly perfect as possible
—a thoroughly efficient arrangement.

Now, taking the sorting-yards and. accessories, I think you allow £50,000 ?—Yes, and I think it
would be reasonable to reduce that to £40,000 and still be very liberal. The engine-depot, without
land, I estimated at £80,000. That includes shed, £20,000 ; sidings, £20,000 ; &c.

I think in your estimate you. allowed for a sum under the head of " miscellaneous " ? —Yes, I
allowed £65,000.

Is that a liberal allowance ? —That is what most engineers would call a most extraordinary
allowance. You could easily cut that down by £20,000.

Then the land I think you put down at £100,000 ?-- -Yes.
It is all rural land, is it not ?—Yes, I put the land down at something like £750 per acre, but

the witnesses have put the amount down at £1.30. In the preparation of this estimate I originally
put down £50,000, which I thought was ample, but I decided to be still on the safe side, so I put down
£100,000.

But you think it will not cost as much as that ? —Oh, no. I could knock £40,000 off that,
or oven more than that. That is a total of £160,000.

A total possibility of saving on the deviation estimates?—Yes. On the Terrace End- Whaka-
rongo deviation I allow for two and a half miles of railway, £50,000, for a single line. That is a
very high estimate, but I do not suggest that that would be reduced.

The Chairman.] That would not be spent in the meantime ? —No. On top of all that I provide
£50,000 for contingencies, which is a very high estimate considering the allowances which have
already been made.

Mr. Myers.] It is very difficult to make estimates at the present time, is it not ? —Yes.
It is difficult to make a satisfactory estimate of cither the cost or tho time required for com-

pletion ?—That is so.
But you have taken everything into consideration and allowed up to the utmost limit ?—That

is so. I might say in. connection with this saving, amounting to £160,000, I provided in my estimates
for £200,000 on account of land to be sold. I was criticized somewhat for suggesting £200,000, but
I think that estimate was supported by very experienced land-valuers and land agents, such as Mr.
Nash and Mr. Johnston, of Palmerston North.

Mr. Luckie.] Mr Nash did not support it ? —He did support it. He thought it was a very fair
amount to allow.
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Mr. Myers.] Mr. Nash suggested that this land would range, from £8 up to £100 ? —Yes. I
would like to call attention to this fact; that the officers who advised me on this point have quite
recently valued another block which has been sold by auction, and the valuations, which were on the
same basis, have, as a result of the auction, increased by 20 per cent.

Mr. Luckie.] Where was that ?—At Stratford.
Mr. Myers.] Your point is, the same men who handled that land have expressed their opinion

to you in regard to the price of this land ?—Yes. Now, allowing that I am wrong, and putting it
at £140,000, that means a total saving of £300,000. On tho estimate of £300,000 it reduces the net
cost to something like £400,000.

What you say is this : that as a matter of fairness, if you are taking advantage of any reductions
in your estimates of cost, you should also, having regard to the evidence given at Palmerston
make a reduction in your estimate of the value of the land that will be left in the neighbourhood
of the present site at Palmerston North if the deviation is made ?— That is so. Now, I would like
to say further that in connection with these estimates I have thought it inadvisable to make any
deductions on account of the value of tracks, buildings, anel appliances which would be released by
the deviation. We: would have a single: line of track from Longburn to Palmerston North, a double
line of track from Palmerston North to Terrace End, a large length of sidings, a great many turnouts
and buildings which could be made use of elsewhere. At a very low estimate—and this is affecting
the total cost to the Government and not effecting the comparative, cost—I would allow £60,000 for
those.

Mr. Luckie.] After removal ?—Yes, deducting tho cost of removal, the value for use elsewhere
would be not less than £60,000. I have not taken that into consideration.

Of course that saving would be made by the adoption of any scheme ?—Certainly not. If you
are going to remain at the present site you still have to use the rails between Longburn and
Palmerston North and between Palmerston North and Terrace End. You would still go on using the
sidings, and the estimates prepared for the alternative schemes do not include tho cost of these extra
tracks at all. This saving is only effected in the deviation scheme.

Mr. Marchbanks.] That material would be used in the station ?—Yes, and in estimating the
cost of this station that has been taken into account. If you care to go into the particulars of Mr.
Fulton's estimate I could show you.

Mr. Myers.] Mr. Maxwell said that you would require to erect your buildings so that the
formation would be at least 2 ft. above the highest known flood ?—Yes.

Has all that been attended to ? —Yes. Our scheme provides for the formation being well above
—as a matter of fact .18 in. above—a flood higher than that which has been called attention to.

You are in entire: agreement with what Mr. Maxwell says, and it is really rudimentary ? —Yes.
This flood is largely due to certain conditions in the Mangaone River and Kawau Creek, which are
being dealt with quite independently of us altogether.

Turning to Mr. Fulton's estimate, he has made an estimate of the cost of carrying out his scheme
of £200,000. You say it will cost double or more than that ? —Yes.

I think you can illustrate that quite readily? — Yes. Mr. Fulton in his estimate has two
separate items—namely, £30,000 for sidings, and £30,000 for sidings and signals : that is £60,000
altogether. In evidence he stated that he was including about eight mile's of siding at £4,000 a mile,
which is £32,000.

What is the length of siding necessary for your requirements ?—At least twenty-three miles.
In the station at the present time there are seven miles.

And that is totally inadequate ?—Yes, absolutely.
You say as the officer responsible for this part of the Railway administration that twenty-three

miles of sidings are required ? —Yes, that is so.
And what about the item of £4,000 a mile ?—£4,000 a mile is a low estimate for track where

you have no interruptions at all; but in a station where you are laying tracks and interfering
with the track the whole time, as you would be at that station, our experience is that tho cost is
practically doubled. However, not doubling it, but making the minimum allowance, he would have
to provide eight miles more than he has provided for. Putting that at £32,000, he has to include his
turnouts, which, at a very low estimate, and a far lower estimate than 1 have put down—namely,
£10,000—would mean £42,000.

That is assuming you are going to use the present sidings which are there ? —Yes, that is so.
Would you be able to do that ?—No. I said I would put it at £8,000 for extra cost, making it

round figures, but that would not look at it. That would mean £50,000 altogether. For sidings
Mr. Fulton provides for £60,000, and he includes in his estimates signals. I asked the Signal
Engineer what it would cost, roughly, to interlock this station, and, assuming the ordinary interlocking
system, which is not a power plant, he said it would cost at least £20,000. That would involve a
staff of twelve or more signalmen. Putting that at £20,000, and adding that to the £50,000, there
is £70,000, and I am sure that is a very low estimate. You have to add £10,000 to Mr. Fulton's
estimates for that particular item of sidings and signals.

You say that the signal arrangements would require a staff of about twelve men ?—At least
twelve men.

That is, if you give effect to Mr. Fulton's scheme ? —Yes ; that is for mechanical interlocking.
Supposing you adopted the deviation scheme, what about the staff then ?—ln the deviation

scheme the signalling would not cost anything like that. It is inoluded in " miscellaneous." I
think it quite feasible that we could work it with not more than two thirds of that staff. If you
introduce a power plant for signalling, then probably the cost would be doubled. It might bo
economical, but it would probably double, the initial expenditure.
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Now take the engine-sheds and shifting-goods shed ?—Mr. Fulton allows £20,000. Included in
my estimates are not only the engine-sheds but coaling appliances and the complete depot, which
means a very large yard. We have to make very large provision for the storage of coal, and tho
lowest estimate that could be put down for the engine-depot, which means not only the engine-shed
but the extension, because we want more than double the accommodation, would be £40,000. I put
it down in my other scheme at £50,000. That would add £20,000 to Mr. Fulton's estimate.

Now take the ovorbridge and subway shown in Mr. Fulton's scheme : I think he allows £25,000
for the two ?- —Yes. Any scheme of bridging must be subject to the approval of the Borough Council,
and I am quite satisfied that the Borough Council would not consent to any structure in the: way
of bridging such as that designed by Mr. Fulton. I have put down £70,000 for it.

Then you would require approaches ?—Yes, in both directions, from Church Street and from
Main Street, at a grade: of not less than 1 in 20. In addition they would certainly require a tarred
metal surface, the cost of which at the present time is something like 15s. per square yard, and that
is certainly not included in this estimate. I am quite satisfied you could not put a bridge which
the Borough Council would agree to at that place under £70,000. That is taking concrete at
something like £4 a cubic yard, which is quite a reasonable sum for such work at present prices.

Mr. Marchbanks.] Is that for a concrete or a steel bridge ? —A steel bridge with concrete walls.
Not on pillars ? —lf you put a bridge on pillars the cost would be greater. At the present time the

cost of filling I have estimated at something like ss. to 6s. a cubic yard, which is very reasonable.
Mr. Myers.] Now take the land ? —Of course I may say that we are dealing only with the Cook

Street overbridge. I have referred to the almost practical certainty that we would have to provide
bridges at West Street and Kairanga Road. As to the subway, Ido not know on what basis Mr. Fulton
has estimated his subway. So far as I can make out he does not separate the two. Putting it down
at about £10 a foot it would run into £5,000 or £6,000. Our pre-war cost for subways was £6 per foot,
but at the present time we cannot put thorn in at £15 a foot.

Then, I think you have some observations to make in regard to the item of land whioh Mr. Fulton
provides for. I think he provides for 30 acres ? —Yes, apart from the area of 30 acres which, he proposes
to take south of Cook Street he proposes to take an area fronting Church Street, near the Square.

Not contiguous to the Square but near the Square ?—Yes. Taking that frontage, there are houses
and stores on it, and putting it down at £15 per foot, including the buildings, which is a ridiculuously
low value, that would amount to £12,000. From Thomas Street Mr. Fulton has provided for taking
over a mile of frontage, which includes 300 ft. of the business property of the Tiratu Timber Company.

Mr. Luckie.] It was never intended to take that land at all ? —lncluding the 300 ft. of the Tiratu
Timber Company's property, there would be 660 ft. of the borough's gasworks property to a depth,
of 2 or 3 chains.

Mr. Myers.] Mr. Fulton said that was to be taken ? —That is so. The Corporation has gone to
immense trouble in connection with this property. It has sent complete plans of the property Home
to the makers of the gas plant, and those makers have sketched out a complete scheme for the gasworks
involving the use of the whole of the land. It is inevitable that if a depth of from 2to 3 chains on
a frontage of 660 ft. of that property is taken the compensation will be very heavy indeed.

Mr. Fulton's scheme involves keeping the borough's gasworks where they are, whereas the
Corporation is quite prepared in the general interests of the city to shift tho gasworks up to tho site
of the new station ? —That is so.

But if the Corporation is bound to keep the gasworks where they are by reason of the station
remaining where it is, then the Department will have to face a very heavy claim for compensation ?—

The Corporation is bound to keep the gasworks where they are if the station is to remain there, because
siding-accommodation is necessary for the gasworks. Then, along from the gasworks to about half
a mile from Kairanga Road is a frontage of valuable property to bo taken. 1 cannot believe that for
£40,000 the necessary provision could be made. The property of the Tiratu Timber Company that has
to Ire bought is near the Square, and the Corporation's gasworks property is very valuable. I
cannot believe that anything like £40,000 is going to be sufficient for that. lam certain it would have
to be more than double, and I would put down £50,000 at the least in addition to Mr. Fulton's £40,000.

Mr. Marchbanks.] That is £90,000 altogether ? —Yes. I am satisfied it will run into nearer
£100,000 than £90,000. That does not include everything between West Street and Botanical Road
on the opposite side, for which I allowed £50,000.

Mr. Myers.] I suppose we may take it that as a Government officer holding a responsible position
you recognize that it is part of your duty to give the best service at the least possible cost ? —That
is so. There are other items that have also to be considered. Mr. Fulton provides £20,000 for buildings.
As I said before, the sketch he has prepared is on the basis of the American system of working. He
states that there will bo no platforms, but to make a comparison with the estimates of the deviation
ho provides £30,000 for buildings, platforms, road, &c. Well, in the deviation scheme we put down
£50,000, and if you are going to make a comparison at all, then you must add. £20,000 to Mr. Fulton's
estimate in that respect, because it is the same accommodation. Then there is another item. Mr.
Fulton includes roading in the item of £30,000, but what amount he provides for roading itself I do
not know. Mr. Fulton in his scheme has to form a main-road deviation from Short Street to Cook
Street to half a mile beyond Kairanga Road. In the case of low land which requires filling, and which
would require to have a top surface to make it as good as the present road, p>art of that road Mr. Fulton
proposes to make 132 ft. wide. I have no hesitation in saying in regard to the cost of that road, and
the cost of the necessary roading inside the yard to give access to the local sidings, &c, that if he could
do it for less than £40,000 at the present time he would be very lucky indeed. I put down £40,000.

What does'Mr. Fulton provide for it ?—Nothing. He says, ," for buildings, platforms, road, &c.,
£30,000." I assume that in that part of the estimate roading was left out. Omitting roading altogether,

12—I). 4a.
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and taking roading by itself, what I assert with every confidence is, for a road of that kind, and
remembering what I said before, that the Borough Council owns the roads and must be satisfied with
the construction of it, he would be very lucky indeed if he could do it for £40,000. The total of those
items amounts to £190,000 or £200,000, which is practically double the estimate.

That is without any allowance for additional work between Palmerston and Longburn ?—Yes,
certainly.

Mr. Luckie.] You say now that the net cost of your proposed deviation, after making due provision
for all the allowances, and probably other estimates of cost which you have been careful enough to make
in your original estimates, could now probably be reduced to a net cost of about £340,000 ? —

£400,000.
There is the saving of £60,000 ? —I said I did not wish that to be deducted.
But as a matter of fact you say it is worth that ?—Yes, it is certainly worth that.
That brings it down to £340,000 ?—Yes,
You really believe that all this saving will be effected, and that the total net cost to the Govern-

ment, after making provision on that basis, is going to be £340,000 ? —I would not say so if I did not
believe it.

Do you know of any occasion in connection with previous estimates where the estimates have
been so much'better than the actual results as in this case ? —Yes, I do.

You know that in a good, many cases in New Zealand in connection with Government institutions
the customary thing is for the estimates to be largely exceeded ?—-I do not wish Mr. Fulton's estimate
to bo compared with, those reduced by me. I wish to put before this Commission as my official
estimate the original, estimate I put in, and any comparison that would be made would be with the
original estimate, the net cost of which was £500,000. I have stated that Mr. Fulton's scheme
will cost at least from £400,000 to £500,000.

Does that include the cost of the additional overhead bridges outside tho shunting-arca ?—lt
does not include any bridges other than Cook Street.

You say that the Cook Street bridge would cost £70,000 ? —I am sure of it by comparison with
present prices.

How much will the Rangitikei Street bridge cost ? —£6,000.
Do you not think you would have to provide similar accommodation for traffic at Rangitikei

Street, considering the importance of Rangitikei Street, that you would at Cook Street ?—Yes, I do.
Then, why is there the difference ?—Any engineer would know that.
Unfortunately, T am not an engineer ?—lt is a difficult thing to explain such engineering matters

to a layman, but I will endeavour to do so. At Cook Street you are faced not only with one bridge,
but you have to take the approach along Cook Street and Short Street. You have to make an
approach in each direction along Main Street, and the same in the case of Church Street. That
would mean six approaches, instead of two as in the case of Rangitikei Street. You have, further,
to make two additional, bridges to allow of level access from one part of Church Street to the other,
and from one part of Main Street to the other. At Cook Street you have a bridge which is 6 chains
long over the tracks, while at Rangitikei Street you have only about half a chain.

You know, as a matter of fact, do you not, that the great bulk of the traffic that goes over Cook
Street goes into the Square, and could easily go up Church Street to get there ?—I have already
explained what is perfectly apparent to every one—namely, that whatever bridge is made over
Cook Street must be done to the satisfaction of the Council, and I am absolutely certain that the
Borough Council would insist on what I have said.

Apparently a lot of shunting is going on and nothing has been done to stop it. Cook Street is
right in the middle of the shunting-area at the present time, is it not ?—Yes.

What I want to put to you is this : assume you could got, in this neighbourhood of, say, the site
erf the Gas Company, an area varying from 12 to 14 chains wide by a depth of about 80 chains across,
a total of 120 acres, or what it is assumed will be the necessary area, could you not, having acquired
that land, and putting aside the question of the cost of the land adjoining the, Grand Hotel, and.
including the purchase of tho dwellinghouses in West Street, carrying this down to Kairanga Road
and beyond it, and getting an area of 100 to 120 acres do you mean to say that you could not just
as effectually provide all the necessary accommodation and conveniences for working there as you
could at Rangitikei Street ? - Given an uninterrupted area of certain dimensions at that particular
place you could no doubt provide accommodation just as well there as at Rangitikei Street—that is,
given an uninterrupted area, remember.

You refer to the difficulty of altering the tracks on the existing lino of railway where the work
is being done at the present time ?—I am referring to a great deal more than that.

That is one of the difficulties ?—One of the smaller difficulties.
It is not a serious difficulty ? —Yes, it is a serious difficulty, but the greatest difficulty is where

the area is riddled with street-crossings and valuable property.
Take the dwellinghouses between West Street and Botanical Road: there are about twenty

small dwellinghouses there, are there not ? —They are not small.
You think it would take £50,000 to do that ?—-My dear sir, to take what you are talking about

would cost a million to get an uninterrupted area such as you think. It would cost hundreds and
hundreds of thousands of pounds to purchase the land alone.

You are quite satisfied of that ?—Yes, quite satisfied.
In any case, you will have to make very large improvements in the present station, will you not ?

—Yes.
And you will have to work there until the new station is constructed ?—That is so.
Then those improvements will have to be practically scrapped afterwards ? —No.
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They will be torn up and taken somewhere else, ? —That is so.
I understood you to say you would require fourteen miles of tracks in tho new station ?—Yes,

a double track seven miles long, and twenty-three miles in addition to that.
If you duplicated the line from Longburn to Palmerston North it could bo done at tho same

cost alongside the present line, could it not ? —No. Unfortunately the duplication of the railway
between Longburn and Palmerston North presents a good many difficulties. There would be a
certain amount of bridging, and there is also a deep drain, in addition, to many other difficulties. I

' consider we would be fortunate if we could duplicate that line satisfactorily for £50,000.
But it all runs along practically on one side of the road from. West Street ? —lt docs.
So that there would be no severence there ?—Oh, yes.
You would simply take the additional area of land which the railway at present occupies ?—No,

you would have to put the whole thing in the centre of the roadway, or else take land on the western
or northern side.

That is tho strip of land which, at present has no frontage ?—lt has a legal frontage to the
Longburn-Palmerston North. Road, and Railway Reserve.

It is useless without crossings ?—There arc twenty-three private crossings.
It would leave the same number of private crossings ?—lt might increase them very much.

These people have the right to subdivide their land.
Have they the right to subdivide it now ?—Yes.
So that they might increase the number of crossings now ? —Yes.
And duplication of the railway-line would not increase them ?—No.
It is only a question of taking another strip of land ?—That is so, probably, and for the main road.
You have got the road there already ?- -If you take a strip of land you have to dedicate it as a

road.
But the road that lies on that side of the railway-line is totally unformed at the present time ?

—But in legal phraseology it is a road. If there is no roadway there the District Land Registrar cannot
issue a title, but he can in this case issue a title because it has a legal frontage to a road.

You could get over that difficulty by dedicating a little on the other side ?—You have to form
a road.

I understand you to say that you allow only £50,000 for crossings which will be involved
throughout the route of the new deviation—that is, if you put crossings at every street ?—At every
legal public road.

You have put down £350,000 for crossings between the Square and Terrace End : is that because
they will be of that character ?—Yes.

And you think they will be of that character right up to Terrace End ?—Yes, I am sure of it.
If it is necessary to have these level crossings bridged or subways provided in this locality, surely

it is equally necessary throughout the whole railway system of New Zealand where they are in the;
neighbourhood of large towns ?—That is your opinion, is it ?

I am asking you is that not your opinion ?—-No.
You made tho statement that the Railway Department will be faced with the question of bridges

at level crossings ?—But I did not say at all level crossings.
But at level crossings in populated areas ? —I said that the whole question of the bridging of level

crossings would have to be faced.
What did you mean by that ?—Exactly what I said.
Is it your opinion that bridges will ultimately have to be provided at level crossings ?—What

level crossings ?

The Chairman : We all understand the position.
Mr. Luckie.] You remember preparing this No. 2 scheme which I think you gave, consideration

to just at the time those figures were supplied, which was prior to the sitting of the Commission
horo ? —ln that particular form they were supplied.

You had not prepared any plans or outlined any definite scheme for the construction of a station
farther south of Palmerston North ? —I had not prepared any detailed plans.

Had you given the whole matter full and complete consideration ?—I had.
And. you came to the conclusion that the crossing element was the chief difficulty ?—I did not

say anything of the kind.
I am suggesting that ?—Well, do not suggest. I did not. I have already said that it was not

the chief consideration.
But one of the most important ones ? —I said it was not one of the most important ones.
In any case you preferred and thought it wise to get outside that site ?—lf you will read my

memorandum you will sec the whole position set out. The point of view was put as clearly as possible
before the General Manager, and the General Manager has put that before the Commission.

You are satisfied, I take it, that to do what is wanted at the present site, even without the
bridging, except at Cook Street, as suggested in Mr. Fulton's scheme, is really going to be more
expensive than your own proposal ?—I believe it will be.

Mr. Marchbanks.] Given this distance of about a mile and a half as shown on Mr. Fulton's
plan, and assuming that the roads which he marks as closed are closed, is there any special difficulty
in making the layout that would be satisfactory ?—lf you could get, as I said, sufficient length of
absolutely uninterrupted area without any level crossings, and you are able to purchase sufficient
land, then I think there is no question but that you could make a satisfactory station.

I understood, from your examination by Mr. Myers that you had an objection to subways ? —

No, I do not object to them. What I gathered from the scheme as outlined on Mr. Fulton's
sketch-plan was that it presupposes that you are going to have what they call in America a train-shed,
with tracks on the level. [Sketch-plan referred to and explained.]
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James Burnett sworn and examined.
Mr. Myers.] You are a civil engineer ?—Yes, and a member of the Institute of Civil Engineers.
You were for many years in the Engineers' Branch of the Railway Department ?—Yes, for

thirty-seven years.
I think you retired, when ?—I was Chief Engineer from 1908 to 1915, when I retired on pension.

I succeeded Mr. Cooni, and I had been Chief Assistant to him. for seven years.
You apparently had to consider in your time this bugbear of the Palmerston North station ?—

Yes, I had to make proposals, but I explained to the General Manager that they wore only tentative
and tern porary proposals.

For instance, in 1912 there were some proposals made ? —Yes.
Does your observation apply to those: proposals ?—Yes.
At that time 1 think there were all kinds of railways proposed as part of a comprehensive scheme

and all included in what has been referred to as Mr. Hiley's report ? —Yes, but Mr. Hiley's report was
after that.

But I think in 1912 there were proposals made for railways in various parts of New Zealand ?—

There have been for years and years large improvements proposed.
in 1912, for instance, were the difficulties in Palmerston North so acute as to necessitate a

complete revision or change of site ? —They were sufficient for economical working to make it necessary
to increase the accommodation.

I think you have had the opportunity of seeing the records from 1914 up to the present day ?

Yes.
And of seeing how tremendously the work has increased in volume at Palmerston North ?—Yes.
Have you considered the question as to the best method to be adopted to overcome the difficulties

at Palmerston North ? —ln the last report I remember making the: difficulties connected with the
closing of Cook Street especially appeared to be so acute that I said unless it could be satisfactorily
arranged it would be inevitable that a new site must be considered.

That was before you left the service ?—Yes, that was in 1912.
Knowing what you do now of the increase in the volume of traffic, do you think if e:ven Cook

Street were closed the present site is or could be made sufficient ?—I do not think that any developments
that could be made on the present site would give anything like the advantages which would be given
by tho deviation proposed by the Department now.

You heard the scheme propounded yesterday by Mr. Fulton and referred to by Mr. Maxwell ?

—Yes.
Have you considered that and compared it with the deviation proposed by the Railway Depart-

ment ?—Yes, I went into it yesterday afternoon with Mr. MacLean.
Which do you think is the better scheme ? —I have not the slightest hesitation in saying that in

my opinion the deviation scheme is a prudent, wcll-considejred, and in the long-run an economical
scheme. The cost of working such a station as Palmerston North, with the lack of facilities they
have had for many years, is impossible to estimate. The whole of that would be obviated by the
deviation. Moreover, there is one point I have not heard referred to, namely, the haulage. The
total length of lino would be reduced by half a mile, which in the course of years becomes quite an
important matter. I have no hesitation in saying that in my opinion the deviation is the right thing
to follow.

And you say that in the light of the modern experience you have had yourself in connection
with the working of the New Zealand railways ?—Yes.

Have you been in a position to consider, and if so have you considered, the question of the
comparative cost between Mr. Fulton's suggested scheme and Mr. MacLean's ?—Not in groat detail,
but in conversation with Mr. MacLean yesterday afternoon we went through the estimates and noted
many things of which he has given evidence this morning.

You have heard what he has said in evidence this morning by way of comparison : do you agree:
generally with what he has said?—Yes, generally.

For instance, do you agree with him that in all probability very large savings could bo made on
his estimates in connection with the deviation scheme ?—I would say that the estimates for the
deviation scheme appear to be on the liberal side. Mr. MacLean has been very prudent in putting
down what may be considered exceedingly high prices, but the difficulties of estimating them at
present arc so great that I think it is most commendable.

On the other hand, what do you say as to the estimate which Mr. Fulton made of carrying out
his proposal ?—I think it was insufficient, and he did not take into consideration many points that
should be taken into consideration. There cannot be a doubt about it that if that suggestion were
adopted overbridges at tho three streets would be insisted upon.

The three cross-streets being Cook Street, West Street, and Kairanga Road ?—Yes, it would be
absolutely unavoidable.

That means two bridges that Mr. Fulton has not taken into consideration ? —Yes, two long and
expensive bridges.

Well, if you take those into consideration, and also other items which you think Mr. Fulton has
underestimated or omitted to estimate, do you think in the long-run there is going to be very much
difference in the cost between the carrying-out of his scheme and the carrying-out of the deviation
scheme ?—Not a difference that should be considered as against getting the deviation, scheme for
convenience, whereas by Mr. Fulton's scheme you are perpetuating the disadvantage of the railway
running right through the main thoroughfare of the town and its approaches, There cannot be a
doubt in my mind that if it continues there for a generation or two the whole railway through the
town will have to be elevated. It is better to deviate it now before the town grows larger.
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Elevation would mean the alteration of tho grades, &c. ? —Yes, it would be very expensive, and
would mean a matter of millions.

And then when you come to the cost of operating,"*! think you said that if you have a modern
station constructed now with all conveniences you can work it more economically than you could
work a station which you have, to add to ?—That goes without saying.

Mr. MacLean's scheme involves the taking of a considerable quantity of land ?—Yes.
What is your experience, as a rule, in connection with the taking of land for stations ? —That you

have: to pay through the nose for it—top prices always.
As a rule has the Department in the past taken enough land for station-sites ?—No.
Would you say, then, that it is better to take more when you are taking a new site like this than

to bo more conservative and then take land afterwards ?—Undoubtedly.
Mr. Luckie.] Up to the time you left the service the question of a deviation had not been

considered by the Department at Palmerston North ?—No.
Apparently nearly all your negotiations with a view to increasing the facilities at Palmerston

North centred round the: closing of Cook Street ?—Yes, mainly.
And had those difficulties been satisfactorily overcome and Cook Street closed, having acquired

the land fronting Church Street that you did for thepurpose: of improving the conditions in Palmerston
North, you would have no doubt made use of it for shunting and for the purpose of laying rails, would
you not ? —Yes ; that is what the estimate of £40,000 was given for in 1911 or 1912.

Then, assuming that there would have been no difficulty about the closing of Cook Street or
West Street, would it not have been possible, and indeed convenient, to have acquired the land lying
south of West Street down Kairanga Road and improved the station-accommodation in that way ?—

No, I cannot say that definitely.
You would then have had a more compact block of land of tho necessary width and the necessary

length, which could have been added to from time to time, and you could have increased the railway
facilities. At any rate, when you were; negotiating for Cook Street, there was no thought of deviating
the station- -the only thought was of improving the conditions where they were?—That was the
proposal at that time.

And that could have been effected by acepuiring further land to the south ?—Not definitely ; but
there comes a time in every business when a great change becomes necessary, and the man who is
there at the time and who has the brains to foresee it takes it up. That has been done in this case.

You mentioned the question of the saving of half a mile of haulage:: where would that saving
be effected ?—lt would be effected on all the main-line traffic between Wellington and Auckland.

But the reverse would be the case between Longburn and all the traffic that came through the
Gorge, would it not ?—No, I think not. It would possibly be about the same in length, but that is a
small portion. Temporarily be: as you say, but that is not where the bulk of the traffic
is—only 25 per cent, at the outside.

The proposal would involve a complete change in the station at Longburn, would it not—it
would have: to be pulled up and relaid ? —it would have to be rearranged.

Kairanga Road is mentioned as a road necessary to be bridged, but that road is only slightly
used ?—I do not know personally, but I am given to understand it is the main access from tho
west coast and abattoirs. It is one of the main road-lines of the district.

COUNSEL'S ADDRESSES.

Mr. liuckie : Mr. Chairman, I only wish to make a short statement. It would be a matter of
entire supererogation on the part of either of us to address you on the evidence which has been
given. It is almost a matter of expert testimony which you gentlemen arc better able to weigh.
I only desire to say that the people whom I represent, while appreciating the absolute necessity
for drastically improving the railway conditions at Palmerston North, submit that those alterations
could be more effectually carried out at a site which could be acquired, they say, in the neighbour-
hood of the present site, and at the same time result in a saving of expense and delay, which we
say would be much greater if the jrroposed deviation were adopted. It was merely for the purpose
of putting these submissions before the Commission that the evidence of the experts was obtained ;
but it must be understood that they were naturally working under merst difficult conditions in view
of the fact that they were obliged to submit to the Commission estimates arrived at at very short
notice, and therefore were unable: to go into the same amount of detail as the representatives of the
Railway Department in connection with their own proposals. What wo desire to show is that if
given -and this is practically admitted—the: necessary additional area in or about the site where the
station now stands, similar facilities can bo supplied at much less cost than is proposed by the
Railway Department. The Railway Department, on the other hand, insists that, so far as the cost is
concerned, there will be; little; or no comparison between the two proposals. It therefore becomes a
epuestion for you gentlemen to consider, and you are in a much better position to say what reliance
is to be placed on those estimates. I cannot carry the matter any further. I think a good deal
more than is necessary has been made of the level-crossing question, except in shuntmg-areas. Our
proposal suggests that all shunting over the Square and except over two or three streets can be
avoided. Those streets, barring Cook Street, are not of very grave commercial importance for traffic
purposes ; and the grave dislocation of the trade, the innumerable injustices that must necessarily
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result from such a tremendous change in the railway system by the removal of one of the most
important railway centres a distance such as is proposed, is a matter which ought to be taken into
consideration by the Commission in view of the fact that we say that the work can be done at
materially less cost at or about the present site than would be the case in the proposed deviation.
In all questions of estimates of cost you gentlemen know much better than any of us could urge
upon you how little reliance can be placed upon even the best of them, because so much depends
upon the price of the material, which we cannot control, and the cost of labour, which is always
increasing in New Zealand and, unfortunately, becoming less efficient. There is one other matter I
desire to mention, and that is the question that ought not to be called a deviation—namely, the
Levin-Marton link lino. As the members of the Commission are aware, those persons who are,

supporting tho proposal of the Levin-Marton line are not urging the Commission at the present timeto
report that that is a matter for present consideration. The reason for the question being added to
the order of reference was that, in the event of the Commission being satisfied that the proposed
deviation was more expensive by comparison with another method that might be adopted to
drastically improve tho conditions at Palmerston North than was justified at the present time, it
would therefore be an unjustifiable expenditure of the excess which might very well be expended in a
link line which would open up a large amount of other territory. The one, is purely a matter of
railway administration, while the other is a question of national importance, and, we suggest, on its
general principles, ought to be, regarded not merely from the point of view of railway-construction
and railway-management, but from the point of view of the enormous convenience to the travelling
public, and the carriage of stock, merchandise, and material which would be the result by the saving
of distance and consequent saving of what is so important commercially—the question of time. I
wish to reiterate, as was mentioned by Mr. Skerrett at the conclusion of the Commission that sat
in 1916, that it was not now a matter for consideration, but it was one which, when any further
improvements in tho railway service were to be dealt with, ought to be taken into consideration.
It is not desired to press that matter at this stage and under the existing conditions. Sir James
Wilson, I think, intended to make that clear when he addressed the; Commission ; and I have the
authority of those persons whom I represent to put it to the Commission in that way—that while wo
are not urging that the Commission should suggest that this matter is of any immediate consequence,
it is of sufficient consequence to justify the Commission in saying that in the early future a proper
detailed survey should be made and estimates arrived at, so that when the matter comes to be
considered in the; future it will be fairly considered as a matter of importance not only to the
railway system of the Dominion but to the convenience of the general public of the Dominion. It is
a matter which, when considering the development of the railways throughout the Dominion,
warrants the serious and favourable consideration of the Railway Department. With reference to the
other questions as to which evidence has been adduced before the Commission, it seems to me,
gentlemen, that I cannot add anything further. You are experts much better trained than we are to
consider the evidence placed before you and your own knowledge of the, service will enable you to
pass judgment in the matter.

Mr. Myers : Gentlemen, Ido not intend to take up more than a moment or two of the time
of the Commission. I would point out that I have calied very little evidence with regard to the
question asked in the second or extended Commission—I refer to the question of the consideration
of a deviation of the Main Trunk line. I called little or no evidence for the reason that I regarded the
matter as one which, up to the end of 1916, is concluded by tho report of the Commission of that
year. Consequently, therefore, the onus of showing that the position has altered since then is upon
those who urge, if they do urge it, that the time has arrived when the question of a deviation from
Levin to Greatford should be further considered. If my friend Mr. Luckie says it is not suggested
that the time has arrived for the further consideration of that matter, then it seems to me that on
this point the Commission will have quite a simple task. It is not suggested by Mr. Luckie, nor is
it suggested by any of the witnesses who have been called by him, that there is any alteration
between tho present position and the position as it existed at the time when the last Commission made
its report. That being so, 1 assume that the report of the last Commission stands, and that the
answer so far as the second or extended Commission is concerned is quite a simple one. I venture to
say that we should not have heard a word at the present time about the deviation from Levin to
Greatford or Marton wore it not for the fact that a slight deviation is proposed at Palmerston North.
I also venture to say this : that if the proposal of the Railway Department had been to retain the
railway-station at Palmerston North in its present site, or in the neighbourhood of its present site,
no matter what the expense, we should not have heard a single word from Sir James Wilson and
those associated with him, and it was for that reason and that reason alone that I ventured to ask
Mr. Fulton by whom he had been instructed in connection with this matter. The Commission, of
course, will understand that I do not for a moment suggest that anything that Mr. Fulton has said
he does not believe to be correct, and it was not in any way with a view of attacking his credibility
that 1 asked him. by whom he was instructed. The importance of the matter is this : that it is not
Mr. Thomson's league, or Mr. Clausen's league, or the league of so-many gentlemen we have heard
from Palmerston that are really fighting this question.

Mr. Luckie : Excuse me—my friend is not right.
Mr. Myers : One moment. What I say is that it is really not they who are fighting the

question, because if they had been you may well assume that before they could suggest to the Railway
Department or to the Government that the course advised by the Railway Engineers was wrong they
would have had something in the nature of expert reports to back up their opinion, or the view they
endeavour to press upon the Government; but they have done nothing of the kind, and it was not
until the league of Sir James Wilson came upon the scene that we have any endeavour made to
question the views of the Railway Department by means of the opinions of any engineer or engineers.
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Mr. Luckie : That is not correct.
Mr. Myers : But it is correct according to the evidence. Mr. Fulton says it was quite lately

that he was approached upon this matter ; Mr. Maxwell says the same ; and Mr. Fulton says that
it was not until the 16th of this month, after this Commission had sat at Palmerston North and
evidence had been given, that he went into this question at all, and as a result formulated the
scheme; which he has submitted to this Commission.

Mr. Luckie: That was done under instructions received from us, acting on behalf of the
Palmerston North residents.

Mr. Myers : Well, it does not matter very much, but I can only act upon this statement that
Mr. Fulton himself has made. The inference that I suggest is deducible from all the facts is that the
real opposition to the scheme proposed by the Railway Department emanates from the league of
which Sir James Wilson is the head and. forefront—the league that year after year have been doing
all thoy can to see that the Main Trunk line is diverted and deviated from Levin to Marton. That,
I suggest, is their main consideration, and the real object that lies behind the opposition to the
Railway Department in the proposals which they are making in connection with the facilities at
Palmerston North. Now, gentlemen, I want to put this position : Mr. MacLean has dealt exhaustively,
to the best of his ability having regard to the difficulties that he or any one else in a similar position is
necessarily faced with, with the estimates of cost that would be incurred in the carrying out of the
departmental scheme, and in the carrying-out of the scheme propounded by Mr. Fulton. According to
Mr. MacLean there appears to be. not very much difference in the cost. Let me put it this way :
Supposing it would cost £100,000, or £150,000, or £200,000 more to carry out the departmental scheme
than to carry out Mr. Fulton's, the mere question of cost does not conclude the matter. Of course,
the Departme;nt says it is in a much stronger position. The Department says that there is not
that difference, if there is any difference, in the cost between the carrying-out of the two schemes ;

but I go further and say, supposing the cost of the departmental scheme would, bo greater than that
of carrying-out Mr. Fulton's scheme, would Mr. Fulton's scheme: be: sufficient ? Would the Depart-
ment bo able to close West Street, to close Kairanga Road, without giving any facilities in the shape
of overhead bridges ? And the moment we commence talking about overhead bridges for those streets
we are adding very greatly to the cost of Mr. Fulton's scheme, quite apart from his underestimates
in other respects, and the; one or two omissions from his scheme of which Mr. MacLean has spoken.
The original Commission asks, first of all, this question :

" Whether the facilities now existing at
Palmerston North for the conduct of the business of the Government Railways Department arc:
sufficient and suitable for that purpose." Ido not desire to waste; the time of the present Commis-
sion upon that point.

Mr. Luckie : We both agree upon that.
Mr. Myers: Even if we do our agreement is not binding upon the Commission. All I intended to

say was that we have led all the evidence available to us, and we submit we can do no more than that,
and that the answer is a plain one. Then, the next question is : "If such facilities are not sufficient or
are not suitable for such purpose, what alterations therein (whether in respect of situation or otherwise
howsoever) are necessary and desirable and best adapted to enable the business of the said Depart-
ment to be carried on with the greatest degree of safety, efficiency, economy, and convenience."
So that the Commission has to consider four factors ; not only the one factor of expense, but the
factors of safety, efficiency, economy, and convenience. There is one point I do desire very briefly
to stress, and that is this : that tho officers of the Railway Department have no object in carrying
out a scheme: at greater expense if some other scheme at less expense would be: sufficient. The
scheme which has been propounded by Mr. Fulton is not a new scheme. It is not brought before
this Commission and submitted to the Railway Department for the first time. I thought when we
were at Palmerston, when Mr. Luckie was telling us how he was going to show us that we could do
all that was required in the neighbourhood of the present site, that he was going to explode
some bomb when we came back to Wellington. I thought that he; must have some scheme,
or that his engineers had placed before him. some scheme of a surprising nature, and so simple
that it would at once surprise, us to see that we had overlooked it; but when the scheme comes
to be placed before the Commission and comes to be examined, we find that it had already
been anticipated by Mr. MacLean even so far as this Commission is concerned, because its main
features are set out in the second alternative scheme referred to in Mr. MacLean's notes. It
is quite true that in that scheme Mr. MacLean sets down the sum of £350,000 for overhead
bridges. lam quite content for the purposes of the present argument and for the purposes of tho
consideration of this Commission that the item could be altogether eliminated. When I say that I
do not for a moment suggest to the Commission that these level crossings are at all satisfactory, I do
not want to exaggerate the importance of having these bridges that Mr. MacLean provides for,
and I therefore suggest that so far as that particular scheme is concerned, all those level crossings
could be eliminated and the estimate reduced by the sum of £350,000. You still have a cost
involved in that scheme of something like half a million of money. And be: it remembered
that Mr. MacLean gave that estimate and made that report before Mr. Fulton and Mr. Maxwell
gave their evidence. Since then Mr. MacLean has had the opportunnity of considering much
more fully Mr. Fulton's scheme, and of considering the question of cost and the figures give:n
by Mr. Fulton, with the result that Mr. MacLean shows, after making due allowance: for the
differences between Mr. Fulton's scheme and the alternative No. 2 scheme previously placed before
the Commission by Mr. MacLean, that the cost of Mr. Fulton's scheme would be something like
£400,000 instead of £200,000, and to that would have to be added a"sum of £50,000 or thereabouts for
the additional line: between Palmerston North and Longburn. Well, the Commission, of course, if
it comes to the conclusion that the officers of the Railway Department are all wrong, will say so
without any hesitation ; but is there any material upon which such a finding could be made ? The
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only material consists of a statement that has been made—of course, in absolute good faith—by
Mr. Fulton ; but when the two schemes, the deviation scheme and Mr. Fulton's scheme, are
considered carefully and compared as to cost, our submission is that even on the point of immediate
economy there is nothing to be said in favour of Mr. Fulton's scheme as against that propounded
and proposed by tho Department, while on the other hand there are many respects in which the
advantage is clearly with the scheme which has been propounded by the Department. The Depart-
ment is looking not only to the: present but to the future. The officers of the Department have
before them information as to the requirements of the Department, and as to the probable require-
ments in the future, which cannot be appreciated in the same manner by Mr. Fulton, or by any
other engineer who lacks the experience and the knowledge of the requirements possessed by the
officers of the Department. Ido not think, sir, I can usefully add anything further.

The Chairman : I think I speak for my colleagues as well as for myself when T say that we;

thank counsel for representing the case so lucidly and fully, and all that wo have heard will receive
our serious consideration.

Mr. Myers: I desire to say, and lam sure Mr. Luckie agrees with me, that our thanks
aro due to the members of the Commission for the consideration we: have met with, and for the
patient consideration that the epiestion before the Commission has had at your hands.

Mr. Luckie : I quite agree, sir.
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Map showing Part of

PALMERSTON NORTH.
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PALMERSTON NORTH.
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Exhibit No. 3

PALMERSTON NORTH

Suggested deviationofMainLine.
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PALMERSTON NORTH, 1919.
Alternative Proposals, North and South ends.
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PALMERSTON NORTH.
Proposed yard
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EXHIBIT No. 6.

Palmerston North present Railway Site,
showing room for extension.

Proposed Site Palmerston North New Station. Oct. 27/1920.
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EXHIBIT No. 7.

Petition of Business Men of Palmerston North.

We, the undersigned business men of Palmerston North, desire to endorse the action of the Borough
Council and Chamber of Commerce in supporting the plan of the New Zealand Railway Department
to remove the present railway yards and station from the centre of the town to the site proposed by
the Engineer, near Boundary Road, for the following reasons : —

(I.) That the present accommodation for both passenger and goods traffic is hopelessly
inadequate, and immediate relief must be found, otherwise the efficiency of the service
must suffer :

(2.) That, owing to the congested nature of the yards, great inconvenience is experienced
by the commercial community in despatching and getting prompt delivery of goods :

(3.) Under present conditions the Department is endangering the lives of their employees :

(4.) The lines running through our streets are a menace to the general public :

(5.) That the new site provides ample room for storage and efficient handling of goods and
produce:

(6.) The undertaking will bo productive, and is essential to the development of the North
Island Main Trunk service.

D. J. Lovelock, Land Agent
(and 236 others).
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PALMERSTON
NORTH

Proposed
Overbridgeat

Street
Intersections
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Map showing

Existing and Proposed Railways and Roads
in the Counties of

Manawatu and Horowhenua.
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APPENDICES.

APPENDIX A.

Return of Traffic carried on Main Line between Levin and Marton from 1st February,
1920, to 5th February, 1921.

NoTi!.—If the new line were made between Levin and Marton the only traffic: which would go over it would be
the local traffic (i.e., traffic to and from stations on the new line) and the traffic specified in items 1 and 2 above.
A 11 the other traffic specified in items 3 to 10 would still have to go over the present line, and the new line would be useless
for the purposes thereof.

APPENDIX B.
PALMERSTON NORTH DEVIATION.—NOTES AND ESTIMATES.

Peoposed Scheme.
Deviation Longburn to junction with main line (near 91| m.) beyond Terrace End, and, temporarily,

junctions with existing and Napier lines for east coast traffic. Length, 6 miles 70 chains.
Double track throughout. Third track from station-yards to junction with Napier line.
Later direct line from junction for Napier line to Whakaronga Station. Length, 2 J miles. Single

track.
Main passenger and local station, large sorting-yard, and engine-depot.
All road-crossings bridged.

Estimate. £

Main deviation, station-yards, locomotive-depot, &c. .. .. .. .. 600,000
Line to Whakaronga .. ..

.. .. .. ..
.. .. 50,000

650,000
Contingencies .. .. ••

••
•• .. •■ 50,000

Total .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 700,000
Deduct value of present station-site, to be sold .. .. .. .. .. 200,000

Total net cost ..

.'.
.. .. .. £500,000

i o "r> a .13—D. 4a.

Division.

Passenger Traffic.

Number
of Revenue. Cattle.

Passengers.

Goods Traffic.

Other
Live-stock

Sheep. and Goods
other than
Minerals.

Minerals. Revenue,

Thorndon to Levin (inclusive).
1. To and from Marton and stations north

thereof (Main Trunk and branches)
2. To and from Pukepapa - New Plymouth

and intermediate stations and branches
3. To and from Koputaroa-Greatford and

intermediate stations
4. To and from Terrace End - Napier-Wai-

rarapa

Number. £ Number.
119,863 239,265 703

Number. Tons.
0.001 05,335

Tons.
7,004

£

142.008

00,058 62,511 1,075 5,375 23,667 10,137 55,615

151,738 57,710 0,253 79,807 86,128 33,177 173,452

68,532 64,394 1,249 11,689 35,791 10,364 84,012

Koputaroa-Greatford (inclusive I.
5. Local traffic
6. To and from Terrace End - Napier-Wai-

232,957 18,357 1,318
116,926 30,820 12,108

50,090 22,308
311,075 21,498

4,025
1,691

10,582
33,088

rarapa
7. To and from Marton and stations north

thereof (Main Trunk and branches)
8. To and from Pukepapa - New Plymouth

and intermediate stations and branches

83,079 56,786 9,027

57,148 23,580 6,887

133,074 55,407

107,901 18,329

15,945

1,179

78,945

25,403

Terrace End - Napier - Wairarapa.
9. To and from Marton and stations north

thereof (Main Trunk and branches)
10. To and from Pukepapa - New Plymouth

and intermediate stations and branches

36,426 00,131 10,47230,420 221,328 65,804

170,198 17,539

31,491 134,107

18,957 10,274 8,32018,957 11,275 39,498
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Alternative Scheme (1).
Passenger and local-goods traffic at present station-site. Sorting-yard (land, earthworks, and

tracks) north of present station-site (say, about 92 m.). Small sorting-yard (interchange sidings) on
Napier line, with tracks to main sorting-yard. Engine-depot, say, south of present station-site, with
special track thereto.

Double track, Longburn to Palmerston North : these tracks to be placed in centre of road and
railway reserve. Extra track, Palmerston North to main sorting-yard, and regraeiing of present track
(present gradient 1 in 63).

Retain present level crossings. Main Street widened (on railway land), and shunting over Square
and West Street.

Estimate. £

Passenger and local-gooels station . . .. .. .. .. .. . . 100,000
Main sorting-yard .. .. .. .. .. .. :. .. 80,000
Subsidiary sorting-yard on Napier line, and tracks to main sorting-yard .. . . 20,000
Engine-depot, &c. .. .. '.. .. .. ' .. .. . . 50,000
Double track, Longburn to Palmerston North .. .. .. .. . . 50,000
Extra track, Palmerston to sorting-yard, and regrading of track .. .. .. 50,000

350,000
Contingencies .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 50,000

Total .. ..

.'.
.. .. .. £400,000

i
Alternative Scheme (2).

Station (low level) at present site to deal with all business except locomotive-depot.
Bridge over centre of Square to allow of shunting to northern (eastern) side of Square.
Purchase of property south of West Street to enable all present area to be utilized and for shunting

facilities south end. West Street to be closed. This purchase to extend, to Kairanga Road.
Main Street to be diverted to west (or north) side of railway as far as Kairanga Road.
Cook Street to be bridged, and Pitt Street subway extended.
Overbridges, with necessary approaches, at all crossings north of Square.
Double track, Longburn to Palmerston North.
This scheme woulel serve for a limited time only. Shunting, and passage of engines to and from

engine-elepot, would be carried on over Kairanga Road level crossing.

Estimate. £

Station-yard, buildings, <fee. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 150,000
Engine-depot .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 50,000
Property . . . . .. . . . . . . .. .. .. 50,000
Diversion Main Street, roading, &o. .. .. .. .. .. .. 20,000
Double track, Longburn to Palmerston North, and separate tracks to engine-depot . . 50,000
Bridges—

£

Cook Street.. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 70,000
Extension Pitt Street subway . . .. .. • .. .. . . 35,000
Square to Terrace End (seven)* .. .. .. .. .. 350,000

455,000

775,000
Contingencies .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 50,000

825,000
If specially prepared surfaces for overbridges (concrete, tarred macadam, or other) add .. 30,000

Total .. .. .. .. .. .. £855,000

(Say, £850,000, compensation for closing south side of Square not included.)

* fee plan Ne>. 28970. Arrangement would not be considered satisfactory te) publio and owners of property in
neighbourhood. Compensation would have to be paid to owners of property purchased, increasing cost by at leeist
50 per cent. See also plan No. 28969 for bridge at Sejuarc.
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Alternative Scheme (3).
Station at present site for passenger and local-goods traffic. Sorting-yard at Awapuni (as in

alternative scheme 4). Engine-depot between station and sorting-yard.
Main Street to be diverted to west side of railway, and West Street closed.
Double track, Longburn to Awapuni. Four tracks, Awapuni to Palmerston North.
Bridge at Cook Street. Pitt Street subway to be extended. Overbridges at all crossings north

of Square. One bridge at Square.
Estimate. £ £

Station-yard, &o. .. .. .. .. ..
.. .. 100,000

Sorting-yard .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 100,000
Engine-depot .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 50,000
Diversion Main Street .. .. .. .. .. .. ..20,000
Double track, Longburn to Awapuni; four tracks, Awapuni to passenger-station 50,000

320,000
Bridges—

Cook Street.. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 70,000
Extension Pitt Street subway .. .. . . .. .. .. 20,000
Square to Terrace End* .. .. .. .. .. ..350,000

440,000
Roading .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 40,000

800,000
Contingencies .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 50, 000

Total .. .. .. .. .. .. £850,000

If special surfaces for overbridges, add £30,000. Compensation for closing south side of Square
and for closing West Street crossing not included. If bridge at West Street required, add £30,000 to
£40,000.

Alternative Scheme (4).
High-level passenger-station on present site, with high-level tracks to Terrace End and under-

bridges at each end of Square and each street-crossing. High-level track continued southward to
Kairanga Road crossing, thence descending gradient (I in 132) to about 86|m.

Sorting and local-goods yards between 85 m. (Rongotea Road) and 86J m.—that is, yard at
Awapuni.

Double track, Longburn to Palmerston North Station (passenger). Three tracks, sorting-yard
to passenger-station.

Estimate. £ £

High-level passenger-station (buildings, platforms, tracks, &c.) .. .. 100,000
Concrete wall, Main Street .. .. .. .. .. .. 70,000
Filling .. ..

.. .. .. .. .. .. .. 170,000
Temporary work. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 100,000
Extra cost of work during construction .. .. .. .. .. 30,000

470,000
Sorting and local-traffic yard, Awapuni .. .. .. .. .. .. 100,000
Engine-depot .. .. .. .. .. .. ..

..
.. 50,000

High-level passenger-station to Terrace End ..
.. .. .. 425,000

Terrace End to runout .. .. .. ..
.. .. .. 10,000

West Street to Kairanga Road .. .. .. .. .. . . 30,000
Kairanga Roael to runout. . .. .. .. .. .. .. 20,000
Bridges—

Square northwards (eight) .. .. .. .. .. .. 50,000
Pitt and Cook Streets .. .. .. .. .. ..40,000
West Street and Kairanga Road .. .. .. . . .. 12,000

587,000
Double track, Longburn to Awapuni ; four tracks, Awapuni to passenger-station . . 50,000
Roading .. .. .. .. ..

.. .. ..
.. 60,000

1,317,000
Contingencies .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 133,000

Total .. .. .. .. .. .. £1,450,000

(Say, £1,500,000.)

* See plans Kos. 28969 and 28970, also note on scheme (2).
14__D. 4Ai
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APPENDIX C.
Comparative Statement showing Traffic at Palmerston North.

APPENDIX D.
Return of Goods Traffic, Palmerston North.—Local and Through.

Periods ended 11th December, 1920, 8th January, 5th February, 1921 (twelve weeks).

APPENDIX E.
Traffic Department, Palmerston North Station, 18th March, 1921.

In re Private-siding Traffic, Palmerston North.
Memorandum for General Manager, Wellington.

As requested by you, I beg to submit the following : —

Number of Wagons in and out, to and from, Private Sidings at Palmerston North during Year ended
28th February, 1920.

I regret I am unable to give each firm separately without very much more time for research.
J. L. Morgan, Stationmaster.

1897. 1900. 1905. 1910. 1914. 1920. 1921.
Percentage

oi: Increase,
1897-1921.

Outuwrds.
154,467

363
5,067

59,009
1,758
1,271
4,066

12,734

174,062
495

9,343
50,508

1,278
917

4,117
16,445

202,788
817

6,701
59,163

915
1,066
2,820

26,021

224,523
710

6,026
55,080

1,256
944

2,601
34,168

424
473
777
646
800 •

400
558
409

Passengers
Season tickets
Cattle and calves
Sheep
Pigs
Timber
Minerals
Other goods

No.

Tons

42,834
124
687

7,450
140
189
395

6,708

50,810
236

1,441
8,568

985
215

7,117
9,341

132,143
394

5,924
37,178
3,089

979
4,147
8,977

Total goods tonnage 7,292 16,673 14,103 18,071 21,479 29,907 37,713 41.7

Revenue.
Passengers, ordinary..
Passengers, season
Parcels
Luggage and mails ..

Goods
Miscellaneous
Rents and commissions

£

7,982
32

| 970

£

9,098
171

1,069

£

10,300
405

f 1,532
I 732

7,180
98

1,791

£

30,956
1,732
2,404

802
14,902

232
479

£

38,777
2,029
3,153

970
19,483

202
503

£

03,050
2,497
4,326
1,766

34,592
391

1,120

£

77,164
2,440
5,221
2,137

51,958
740

1,260

992
7,525

| 059

2,740
32

624

4,893
04

588

1,596
2,212

102

Total revenue .. 65,177 107.74212,380 10,483 28,098 51,507 140,920 1,038

Inwards.
Cattle and calves
Sheep
Pigs
Timber
Minerals
Other goods

No.

Tons

513
20,120

143
3,874
1,470
8,117

1,381
32,955

322
9,271
1,717

10,785

2,455 2,101
38,702 37,141

1,614 ! 807
19,591 i 7,009
7,536 ] 9,843

23,133 20,067

5,098
33,224

088
13,192
13,020
34,483

6,695
02,408
11,173
10,662
14,898
40,202

4,907
50,371
15,113
14,742
19,905
47,260

808
152

10,469
281

1,258
482

Total tonnage 13,401 21,773 50,260 42,919 00,695 65,822 81,967 509

Division. Cattle. Calves. Sheep. Pigs. Timber. Minenls 0therMinerals. Goodg

1. Looal traffic at Palmerston North
2. Traffic from and to stations south of Palmerston

North to and from Bunnythorpeand stations
north thereof

3. Traffic from and to stations south of Palmerston
North to and from Whakaronga and stations
east thereof

4. Traffic from and to stations Bunnythorpe and
north thereof to and from Whakaronga and
stations east thereof

Totals

No.
1,110
1,854

730

No.
40
79

322

No.
17,186
98,681

55,105

No.
5,778
1,884

729

Sup. Ft.
1,945,000
3,545,900

330,800

Tons.
5,042

13,011

2,209

Tons.
16,928
19,259

10,781

1,736 100 51,016 17 3,912,300 6,026 8,570

5,430 541 221,988 8,408 9,740,000 20,288 55,538

Nui Lber of Wagons loaded.

Sidings.
Per

Year.

In.

Per
Month.

Per
Year.

Out. Total
in and out perPer per |)ay .

Month. [ Year.

IcGill's and Perrson's
Jook's and Tong's . .

Jlausen's, Watson's, and Barraud and Abraham's

1,166
1,015
1,228

98
84TV102*

486 j
1,072

247

40|
891
aoA

1,652
2,087
1,475

5
7
5
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APPENDIX F.
Cost of operating Depot at (say) Two Miles South op Palmerston North.

Number of ordinary trains—out, 21 ; in, 21. Specials average—out, 4 ; in, 4. Total daily trains, 50.
Extra running between station and depot :50 trains, 4 miles each : daily mileage, 200 ; £

annual mileage, 62,600—at 4s. lOd. .. .. ..

.'.
.. ..15,128

TT Number ,r .
.

Shunting services :—
Hou

u
ra of „

r°tal
° each. -,-, ■ Hours.Engines.

24 2 48
4 1 4

16 1 16
6 1 6

— 5 — 74
Less present services . . . . . . .. 24 2 48

2 1 2
! ' . .' '."

— 3 — 50
>*n '"."..i — —

Additional .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 2 24 £

Daily mileage, 192 ; annual mileage, 60,096—at 2s. lOd. .. .. .. .. 8,513
Staff: Traffic (23 men) .. .. .. .. .. .. ..

.. 7,715
Locomotive (9 men) .. .. .. .. ..

.. .. 3,128
Holiday traffic (extra cost).. .. .. .. .. . . .. .. 3,000

Total recurring annual charges . . .. .. .. .. .. 37,484
Non-recurring charges : 2 shunting engines, £6,000 ; signalling and interlocking, £5,000 .. 11,000

Total .. .. .. .. .. ..
.. £48,484

Capitalized at 5 per cent. : — £ <—-

Annual recurring charge, £37,484 .. .. .. .. 749,680
Non-recurring charge, £11,000 .. .. .. ..220,000

£969,680

APPENDIX G.
Loop at Terrace End for East and West Traffic only. £

Train—6 trips, 5 miles =30 miles per day = 9,390 miles per year at 10s. per mile .. .. 4,695
Shunting, 40,064 miles at 2s. lOd. per mile .. .. .. .. . . 6,000
Staff -Locomotive (6 men); Traffic (9 men) .. .. .. .. .. .. 4,829
Shunting-engine, £3,000 ; signals and interlocking, £2,000 .. .. .. .. 5,000

£20,524
Capitalized at 5 per cent. = £410,480. • <■■

_

-

APPENDIX H.
Cost of operating Depot at Ninety-two Miles.

Number of ordinary
#trains—out, 21 ; in, 21. Specials average—out, 4 ; in, 4. Total daily trains, 50.

Extra running between Palmerston North and depot: 50 trains, 10 miles each : daily £

mileage, 500 ; annual mileage, 156,500—at 10s. .. .. ..

'..
.. 78,250

T__.._ Number T. .
Shunting services:— ■CLOU' S of T,

otal
each' Engines. Hours-

-24 3 72
16 1 16
2 1 2

— 5 — 90
Less present service .. .. ..

.. 24 2 48
2 1 2

— 3 — 50

Additional .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 2 40 £

Daily mileage, 320 ; annual mileage, 100,160—-at 2s. lOd. .. .. .. ..14,189
Train engine mileage to and from depot south of station-yard : 50, at 4 miles each : daily

mileage, 200 ; annual mileage, 62,600 .. .. .. .. .. .. 8,868
Additional staff : Traffic, 35 men ; locomotive, 13 men ; maintenance, 3 men ..

.. 16,779
Holiday traffic (extra cost).. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 5,000

Total recurring annual charges .. .. .. .. ..
.. 123,086

Non-recurring charges : 2 shunting-engines, £6,000 ; signals and interlocking, £5,000 .. 11,000

£134,086
Capitalized at 5 per cent. :— £

Recurring charges, £123,086 .. .. .. .. ..2,461,720
Non-recurring charges, £11,000 .. .. .. .. 220,000

£2,681,720
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Care of Head Office, Railway Department, Wellington, sth March, 1921.
a

_

Palmerston North Railway Commission.
I have been directed by the Royal Commission which has been appointed to inquire regarding

railway facilities at Palmerston North to request to be informed whether any survey has been made
by or on behalf of your Department at any time of the deviation which has been suggested from time
to time of the Wellington - New Plymouth Railway between Levin and Marton or Greatford. lam
also directed to ask whether you have in your Department any plans or estimates of cost of the
proposed railway.

The Commission would be glad of the favour of an early reply hereto.
I have, e&c,

H. H. Sterling, Secretary.
Engineer-in-Chief, Public Works Department, Wellington.

Public Works Department, Wellington, 9th March, 1921.
o

_

Palmerston North Railway Commission.
In reply to your letter of the sth instant, I have to state that no survey of the Wellington -

New Plymouth Railway between Levin and Marton or Greatford has been made by this Department,
although I understand some survey has been made of which we have no particulars. At any rate, if
the survey was made it was many years ago, when the conditions were very different to those of the
present day. The only plan we have is forwarded herewith [Exhibit No. 10], and is a copy of litho
which the Department did not prepare originally. Such estimates as have been made in the past will
be of no value at the present time. In 1904 the then Uneler-Secretary estimated the cost at £300,000,
but this, no doubt, would be greatly exceeded to-day.

Yours, &c,
F. W. Furkert, Engineer-in-Chief.

The Secretary, Palmerston North Railway Commission, C/o Head Office,
Railway Department, Wellington.

Approximate Cost, of Paper.—Preparation, not. given; printing (650 copies), Including maps, &c., £2135.

Authority : Maim'us F. Macks, Government Printer, Wellington.—l92l.
Price ss.]
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